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Cautionary statement
Ihe Annual Reporl and Accounts for the financal year ended 371 December 2019, as conlained in this document {Annual Report), contains information which
viewers or readers might consider 10 be forward looking staternents refating to or inrespect of the financial condition, resuits, operations or businesses ol Elementis
ple. Ary such statements involve risk and uncertainty because they relate to future events and circumstances. There are many factors that could cause actual
resulls or developments to differ matetially from those expressed or mmpliedd by any such forward looking staternents. Nothing in this Arinual Report should be
construed as a profit forecast,



2019 highilights

Innovation. Growth. Efficiency.

Elementis is a global specialty
chemicals company operating
across five business segments:
Personal Care, Coatings, Talc,

Chromium and Energy.

To our customers we deliver Enhanced Performance
Through Applied Innovation; our products make our
customers’ formulations look, feel and perform at their best.

The execution of our Innovation, Growth and Efficiency strategy
will address our customers” most chalienging problems while
delivering on cur medium term performance objectives.

Operational highlights

In 2019, we responded to a challenging demand-environment with
aclear self-help agenda and the delivery of cost savings. new

business wins and new product launches.

Strategic highlights
In 2019, we completed our Coatings transformation programme,
the integration of Talc and launched a new range of skin care

ingredients. In November 2019, we held a Capital Markets Day
to update stakehglders on ouwr Innovation, Growth and Efficiency
agenda and medium term financial objectives.

Sales’ Adjusted operating profit'? Adjusted operating margin'?
2019 2019 2019 o

$874m $123m 14.1%
2018:$822m 2018: $133m 2018:15.1%

2017.$783m 2017:$123m 2097:157%

Operating profit’ Profit before tax' Net dehbt’

2019 20719 2019

$101m $61m ($454m)
2018:$85m 2018: $65m ) 20718:(1$498m)

2017.$97m 2017.$79m 20N7:($291m)

Diluted earnings per share’ Adjusted diluted earnings per share'** Ordinary dividends per share®
2019 2019 2019

7.9¢c 12.4c 8.55c

2018:95¢ 2018:16.9¢c 2018:8.40c

2017:22.0¢ 2017 17.0c 2017:8.05¢

 Continuing operations
2 After adjusting items - see Note 5

3 ftebased for the effects of the Rights Issue — see Note 29

*See Note 28
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Qur business at a gtance

Helping customers respond
to their biggest challenges

Revenue

$874m

Adjusted
(] operating profit

$123m

Our purpose

Our purpose is to achieve sustainable progress
across the world through innovative speciafty chemical
products that deliver cleaner and better performance.

We are collaborative industrial innovators; developing
long-term partnerships with our customers, innovating
at pace to keep them at the forefront of their markets.
Combining our access to unique natural resources with
our unmatched rheology and technological expertise, we
responsibly transform raw materials into ingredients with
crucial product benefits,

This enables our customers and their industries to solve
their product performance and sustainability chalienges.

Personal Care Coatings

Overview We are 2 leading global supplier of theology We supply our rheology modifiers and
modifiers, based on natural and synthetic selected additives to industrial and decorative
ingredients, and antiperspirant actives to coatings manufacturers. Our products help
personal care manufacturers. Qur products make industrial coatings last Jonger and
help make skin creams smooth and decorative coatings apply evenly and with
antiperspirants work. enhanced stain resistance.

o $1 95' l ' $320' I l

Adjusted operating profit

$43m $48m

Readmoreonpage 44 Read more on page 45
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Global manufacturing locations

Americas

Total number of sites:

13

8 Personal Care, Coatings
and Energy

5 Chromium

Talc

Europe

Total number of sites:

6

3 Personal Care. Coatings
and Energy

3Talc

Chromium

Asia

Total number of sites:

3

3 Personal Care, Coatings
and Energy

Energy

We are the second largest global supplier

of talc based additives toindustrial end
markets including long life piastics, coatings
and technical ceramics. Talc additives help
make plastics in vehicles lighter and stronger,
and deliver enhanced anti-carrosion
characteristics to coatings.

We supply a range of chromium chemicals
that are used across a broad range of
industrial applications to make products
more durable. We are the onty producerin
North America and have a unique delivery
system that generates significant customer
safety benefits.

We supply clay and synthetic based
rheology medifiers for oil and gas drilling,

and stimulation activities. These products
are formulated to lubricate the drill bit, control
formation pressure and remove cuttings in
drilling fluids.

$151m

$171m

$47m

$26m

$18m

4m

Read more onpage 46

Read more on page 47

Read more on page 47
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Discovery wall

The world
of Elementis

Combining our access to unique natural resources
with our unmatched rheology and technological
expertise, we responsibly transform raw materials
into ingredients with crucial product benefits.
These ingredients can be found in products that
are used in everyday life.

Bathroom

1, Hair Conditionsr FANCOR® 6. Antacl|ds Elementis ANTACID 9. Tiles FINNTALC enables the 13. Shower Hoad CHROMIC ACID
natural oils help condition and ACTIVES help ease the discomiort crieation of large yet structuraily pravides meltallic shine, corrosion
repair damaged hair of stemach indigestion stable walltiles resistance and enhanced wear

2. Sunscresan BENTONE GEL®and . Fabric Softener ANEOCLEAN® 10. Mirror FINNTALC in the coating 14. Towe) Rack CHROMIC ACID
BENTONE HYDROCLAY™ helps rheclogy modifiers make towels of your mirror protects the silver provides metallic shine, corrosion
improve sunscreen application angd softer for longer for longer resistance and enhanced wear
boost SPF 7. Ceramics BENTONE® hectorite 11. TolletPaper FINNTALC prevents 15. Grpen Tilas CHROME OXIDE

3. Antiperspirent High performance clay provides excelient Aow of formation of sticky impuritiesin provides vivid colour pigmentation
ANTIPERSPIRANT ACTIVES help ceramics to create mirror-like gloss paper making far green, brown and black tiles
keep you fresher for longer and smoothness 12. Tollet Seat Our PLUSTALC

4. Mall Poligh BENTONE® 8. Tites THIXATROL® helps bind incteases the durability of your
organoclays make nail polish apply large tiles to a surface faster and toilet seat
smoathly and evenly forlonges

Living
1, Magazines BENTONE® provides 3. WallPaint RHEOLATE® thickeners €. Clock Frama PLUSTALC increases 10. Wine Bottte CHROME CXIDE
flent flow in publi vinks for ensufe premium paints apply the strength and durabitity of your provides a vivid green colour and
the high gloss pictures and sharp evenly, smoothly and with clock frame prevents product spoilage from
tetter printing complete cover 7. Tetep FINNTALC str hens Uvrays

2. Leather Cushions RHEOLATE® 4. Cabinet REECLATE® thickeners plastic parts so your telephone ¢an 11. Leather Sofa CHROME SULPHATE
thickeners provide the required ensure excellent paint coverage be made lighter preserves and swengthens leather,
flow to apply fiexible and and durability for furniture cabinets 8. Chewing Gum TALC helps make makingit softer forionger
wansparent lgather coatings 6. Flooring FINNTALC improves the chewing gum soft

printability of your flaminate flooring
S0 you can enioy more designs

04 Elementis pl¢ | Annual Report and Accounts 2019

9. Fiatscreen FINNTA(C ensuresthe
dimensional stability of your large
TV frame



Personal Care Coatings Talc Chromium Energy
« Colour cosmetics = industrial finishes + Automglive + Finishes « Ois
+ Skincare = Architectural * Householduses + Leather * Gas
~ Haiscare + Construction = Blectronics
« Antiperspirants + Food & Pharma
- Bath& Spap * Paper
1. FaceMask BENTONE 6. LoatharSeoat RHECLATE® 0. Moblle Phone SUPREAD® wetting 11. Chramo Handles CHROMIC ACID
HYDROCLAY™ keeps your skin thickeners provide the required agents help protective coatings provides melaflic shine, enhanced
heatthy, silky and smoath ftow to apply fiexible and cling to difficult to ¢oat plastics corrosion and wear resistance
2. Lipstick BENTONE GEL® makes parant leather ings 9. Vitaming MICROTALC keeps your 12. Leather Hoadboard CHROME
lipsticks pop with colour 6. Concrete Wall DAPRO® nutriticnal supplements dry and SULPHATE preserves and
3. SkinCroam BENTONE® LUXE defoamers remove trapped air prevents tablets from sticking strengthens leather. making it
defivers moisture to your daily skin and ensure a smopth concrete 10. Smart Speaker FINNTALC softer for longer
care routine wall covering increases the strength of your 13, Chrome Lamp CHROMIC ACID
4, Facla)Makeup BENTONE 7. Magazines BENTONE® provides smart speaker frame provides metaltic shine, enhanced
HYDROCLAY™ suspends colours excellent flow in publicationinks corrosion and wear resistance
evenly throughout makeup for high gloss pictures and sharp
letter printing
Kitchen
1. KitchenFloar BENTONE® 5, Wall Paint FINNTALC ensures that 9. Nitchen Furnfture FINNTALCn 13, Sink Tap CHROMIC ACID provides
' thickeners create a smooth concrete your ki wall paint is Ae the edge protection of your kitchen metallic shine. enhanced corrosion
leveifing surface fortiles, carpets and stains canbe wiped off furriture supports durabifity and wear resistance
orparquet 6. Papor Cup ANNTALC replaces 10. Washing Machina PLUSTALC 14. Detergent SODIUM SULPHATE is
2. WallPaint QurBENTONE®HD plastic as a barrier coating, making ensures that your washing used for enhancing performance of -
tlay ensures premium paints apply paper cups environmentally friendly machine parts canresist damage clothing detergents
evenly, smoothly and provide and biodegradable by detergents 16. Natural Gas for cooking
complete cover,inone coat 7. Olve O} MICROTALCimproves 11. Refrigorator SODIUM BENTONE? hectorite allows for more
3. Tiles BENAQLA® spray dried the yietd and clarity of extra virgin DICHROMATE helps refrigerant coils efficient discovery and extraction of
hectorite clay prevents sagging of abveoll . withstand corroslon naturalgas
walitiles 8. KitchonPaper FINNTALCprevents 12, SteelKottle CHROME SULPHATE

4. Kitchen Cabinet RHEOLATE®
thitkeners ¢reate a uniform and high
quality finishon kitchen cabinets

formation of sticky imgurities in
paper making

makes your keitle shing, provides
corrosionresistance and eases
cleaning procedures
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Chairman's statement

A culture for success

Andrew Duff
Chairman

Dear Shareholders

Despite a challenging demand
environment in many of our markets, we
have continued to make strategic progress.
The development of our recently launched
Innovation, Growth and Efficiency strategy
is an exciting next step for Elementis, clearly
articulating howwe aim to achieve our
medium term ambitions.

Business and markets

in 2019, we experienced a challenging
macroeconomic environment characterised
by weak demand. This was particularly the
case in our two most cyclically exposed
businesses, Chromiurn and Energy, where
performance declined. By contrast, the Taic
result, foltowing the acquisition of Mondo in
late 2018, was particularly encouraging in
the context of soft automotive demand for
long life plastics.

Innovation, Growth and Efficiency
Over the last three years, we have made
significant progress in transforming
Elementis’ portfolio, management and
culture; repositioning the Group as a
premium performance additives business
with advantaged positions in growing
markets. In November 2015, we helda
Capital Markets Day for analysts and
investors te outline the next phase of
our development.

Innovation, Growth and Efficiency are

the piltars of our new strategic agenda.
Execution of our priorities in these areas will
address our customers’ most challenging
probiems while driving sustained value
creation. Now with the right platform in
place, we are excited about the pcotential at
Elernentis for material growth opportunities
and margin improvement, alongside strong
cash generation. You can read more on our
strategy and plans in the CEQ's review and
onpages 8to 11.

06 Elementis plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Balance sheet

A halimark of Elementis is strong cash
generation. In 2019, this was no different,
with net cash generation of $44m despite
ane off cash items of $29m in the first half,
thereby reducing net debt from $498m at
the end of 2018 to $454m at the end of 2019.

Loocking forward our priosities are clear:
investment to drive organic growth, 2
progressive dividend for shareholders
and debt reduction.

In the medium term we plan to rapidly
de-lever the Group and have the objective
to reduce leverage to under 1.5x net debt/
EBITDA. This wilt be delivered through

the execution of our strategic priorities,
operating cash conversion in excess of
90% of operating profits and disciplined
capital allocation.

Dividend

This year, the Board is recommending a total
ordinary dividend of 8.55 cents per share
{2018: 8.40 cents per share'), reflecting our
confidence in the Group's business model
and ability to ganerate cash, ite madium
termprospects and the levels of investment
required to defiver our Innovation, Growth
and Efficiency objectives.

The final dividend will be paid on 29 May
2020in pounds sterling at an exchange
rate of £1.00:$1.2925 lequivalentto a
sterling amount of 4.4487 pence per
share) to shareholders on the register at

1 May 2020. The Board declared an interim
dividend at the time of the Interim Results
announcement of 2.80 cents per share
(2018: 270 cents').

Governance and Board

As aBoard, we set out to deliver the

highest standards of corporate governance,
transparency and integrity. Board chemistry
is excellent, with candour, mutual respect
and collective commitment providing a
healthy dynamic for debate, challenge

and decision making.

Board succession planning is key to
preserving this position, and to that end we
were pleased to appoint John O'Higgins as
incoming Senior Independent Director who
joined the Board on the 4 February 2020,
Johnwill replace Nick Salmon, towhomwe
will say goodbye at the forthcoming AGM.
Nick joined the Board in 2014 and leaves
with our sincere thanks for his outstanding
contribution and wise counsel.



Stakeholder engagement

Alongside supparting and empowering our
people, we have continued to ensure that we
understand and consider the views of all our
key stakeholders.

As Chairman, i continue to visit sites across
the world and hold open town hall sessions
with the employees as a matter of course.
Similar events are conducted when all Board
members attend operational sites as part

of the Board's annua! programme. in 2019,
we held such meetings in the Netheriands,
Finland and China.

During the year, Sandra Boss was

appointed Designated Non-Executive
Director for engagement with the Company’s
workforce. Sandra is already involved with
the Company's approach ta investing in and
rewarding our workforce in her capacity asa
member of the Remuneration Committee.

To learn more about our workforce
engagement activities during the year
please see page 63.

A culture for success

The culture at Elementis is open andinclusive,
where pecple enjoy working together.

We place huge importance oncreating a
culture of doing what's right and speaking
outif things are not. This is supported by
astrong set of values - Safety, Solutions,
Ambition, Respectand Team. In 2019, we
have further embedded these values through
our employee communications, performance
management systems and training
opportunities. To learn about our values

in action please refer to page 33.

This year. macroeconomic conditions have
been challenging. The Group has nonetheless
delivered resilient operating margins and
strong underlying cash generation. On behalf
of the Board, I would like to thank each and
evary employee for their commitment.

Summary

In 2019, Elementis delivered progress

inthe face of tough macroeconomic
conditions. Looking ahead, while global
market conditions remain challenging, we
continue to invest for the future and are
confident that our strategic priorities of
Innovation, Growth and Efficiency will deiiver
further progress in 2020 and beyond.

Andrew Duff
Chairman

t Rebased for effects of the Rights Issue —see
Note 28

Embedding our values

Safety Soluti Ambition Respect Team

As our business grows, itis important to
develop consistent and efficient working
practices across our teams.

Our values - Safety, Solutions, Ambition,
Respect and Team - are core to our high
performance culture. In 2019, we focused
on further embedding our values to
ensure they are reflected in everything
we do.

During the year, over 1,000 of our employees attended workshops across
20locations to discuss our values and consider how they influence our day-
to-day interactions with colleagues, customers and the community.

Our values are embedded in all aspects of our communications.
Internal newsletters, town hall meetings and our recently launched
employee engagement and safety surveys all reinforce our core values.

Behaviour that is refiective of our core valuesis actively encouraged.
Alignment with our performance management and reward systems all
encourage values-centric behaviours

Annual Report and Accounts 2019 | Elementis ple 07
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Chief Executive Officer's strategic review

Innovation. Growth. Efficiency.

Paui Waterman
CEO

08 Efementis plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019

“Qur strategic pillars of
Innovation, Growth and
Efficiency are designed to
deliver our medium term
performance objectives
of a 17% profit margin,

90% plus operating cash
conversion and financial
leverage under 1.5x EBITDA."

Elementis has changed significantly

over the last three years. We have exited
disadvantaged. capital intensive businesses
and added new operations that provide
scope for better growth and returns.
Combined with a significant resetting of
howwe run cur business, we now have a
solid platform to create value by defivering
Innovation, Growth and Efficiency.

Before turning to our medium term
ambitions, | would like to review 2019.

Performance

This was a year of disappointing financial
performance, driven by weak market
demand ¢onditions. Coatings was

impacted by weaker industrial production
and destocking. Personal Care saw

growth in Cosmetics but competitive
pressuresin AP Actives, while Talc had a
robust performance in our first full year of
ownership. Results in Chromium and Energy,
ow two more Cyclically exposed businesses,
were impacted by weak industrial production
and lower drilling activity respectively.
Further details on each business segment’s
performance can be found on pages

44 to 47.

Elementis is a highly cash generative
business and our working capital and capital
expenditure initiatives aim to improve this
still further. in 2019, our operating cash
conversion' was strong at 130%, andasa
result our net cash generation was $44m.
Net debt reduced from $498m at the end
of 2018 to $454m, representing a leverage
ratio? of 2.7x EBITDA. Looking forward,
we see a clear defeveraging profile for the
Group as a result of strong underlying cash
generation and the impact of our cash
focused strategic initiatives.
' Seealternative performance measures
onpage 171
2 Seevnaudited pro forma information
onpage 172



Safety

Safety remains our top priority - we will never
be satisfied unless every employee is safe
100% of the time. In 2019, 1am pleased to
report we had a gocd level of performance,
relative to both the industry and our medium
term track record, with seven recordable
injuries {2016-18 average: 11)and a total
recordable incident rate of 0.48 (2016-18
average: 0.78), up marginally from the lowest
level ever achieved at Elementis in 2018.
This robust level of performance was driven
by investments made inrecent years to
reduce operational risks and enhanced
safety leadership training to develop

our safety culture. Going forward, we will
continue to focus onimproving this record
still further.

CSR and sustainability

Within a wider consideration of how we
do business, sustainability is a core value
at Elementis. This is reflected in both how
we run our operations and the benefits
our products bring to customers and
wider society.

We are committed to reducing the energy
intensity of our operations and we are proud
that our ongoing efforts in this area are
externally recognised. We were delighted

to receive in 2019 a silver rating under the
EcoVadis programme, which places us in
the top 5% in the manufacturing sector

for our sustainable supply chain within
giobal manufacturing.

The green credentials of our products

are also foremost in our mind. In Personal
Care, our clay based preducts offer an
attractive natural alternative to customers
and are verified against rigorous third party
standards such as 1ISC, COSMOS and
Ecolabel. In Coatings, our technologies
enable the creation of more environmentally
friendly waterborne industrial products and
in Talc, our additives support vehicle fight-
weighting and the subsequent reduction in
greenhouse gas emissions. We enable our
customers to enhance the sustainability
credentiais of their products and we are
excited to be part of progress in this area.
Going forward we will continue to take
actions that ensure the sustainability of
both our operations and products improve.

People

Our Chairman has written of the open and
inclusive culture that we seek at Elementis,
and the importance of doing what is right.
Our people, and the culture that they
embody, are at the centre of our success.

Investment case

Transformed portfolio

The fundamentals of our business are strong. We have
a transformed portfolio that is focused on high quality.
high margin activities in Personal Care, Coatings and
Talc. These premium performance additive businesses
have enduring competitive advantages centred on
access to differentiated resources, unique technology
and market leading formulation capabilities.

Material growth opportunities

These premium performance additive businesses are
exposed to significant structural growth opportunities
which Elementis is well positioned to capture.

In Personal Care, the growth of premium cosmetics

in Asia, natural skin care ingredients and AP Actives
are clear opportunities for our unique hectorite clay
and technoiogy platforms. Vehicle light weighting,
emission regulations and reduced single use plastic
consumption will drive strong sustainable demand for

our Talc ingredients. In Coatings there are clear growth

opportunities in premium decorative, waterborne
industrial additives and adhesives & sealants.

Innovation focus

Innovationis at the heart of what we do.

Elementis is a global leader in performance-driven
additives that help create innovative solutions for our
customers. Leveraging our capabilities in rheology.
surface chemistry and formulation, we help customers
respond to their biggest challenges through deep
partnerships, ongoing technical support and consistent
quality, service and delivery. This focus onmarket
leading innovation will drive our growth.

Strong cash generation

Strong cash generation is a hatimark of Elementis.
Locking forward, we target operating cash conversion
of at least 90%, supported by working capital savings
and capital expenditure discipline. The execution of
our medium term Innovation, Growth and Efficiency
priorities combined with strong cash generation

will facilitate sustained reinvestment for growth, a
progressive dividend and a clear deleveraging profile.
Qur medium term leverage objective is under 1.5x
EBITDA, with further reduction thereafter.
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Chief Executive Officer’s strategic review continued

In Novembar 2019, we held a Capital
Markets Day in London cutlining

our st ic priorities and medi
term performance objectives

We are very fortunate to have developed a
deeply experienced and highty committed
leadership team. This year | am pleased

to welcome Joe Lupia, Steve Ridge and
Ajeeth Enjeti to that team. Joe has more
than 30 years of experience in R&D roles

and joins Elementis from BASF Corporation.
Steve has a career of more than 25 years in
the chemicals industry and joins Elementis
from FMC Corporation as SVP Global Supply
Chain. Ajeeth joined us as part of the Talc
acquisition and has assumed the role of SVP
Strategy and Transformation, replacing the
recently retired Danny Hughes.

Talc integration

The acquisition of Talc closed on 23 October
2018 and just over one year later, lam
pleasedto say that integrationis complete.
Alt key individuals within the Talc business
are now part of Elementis and are working
at pace to execute our strategic priorities.
Functions such as T, finance and supply
chain are all integrated into the globat
Eiementis teams, sharing expertise and
waorking in harmony. Together, we made
good progress in 2019 on delivering the
bulk of our planned $2min cost synergies
through savings in areas such as marketing,
IT and supply chain.

Our sales teams are also fully integrated.
This is most retevant for Coatings and
Personal Care where we are on track for
delivery of $20-25m of revenue synergies
by 2023. We now have rmore than 30 new
distributors carrying our Talc products in
the Americas and Asia and significant new
business opportunities in the pipeline.
Thisis great progress and lam very excited
about the future of Talc within Elementis.

Innovation, Growth and Efficiency

As reflected by the Talc acguisition, we
have made significant progress over the
last three years transforming our portfolio
and re-positioning Elementis as a premium
performance additives company with an
advantaged position in growing markets.

Personal Care, Coatings and Talc now
represent over 809 of Elementis’ earnings
and are true premium performance
additive businesses, In each we transform
advantaged resources, such as hectorite
and taic, into high value ingredients using
our distinctive technology and formulation
expertise. Taken together, what we do
ensures that our customers’ end products
perform better. This ts what we meanwhen
we speak about Enhanced Performance
Through Applied Innovation.

Our strategic pillars of Innovation, Growth and
Efficiency are designed to deliver our medium
term performance objectives for the Group.
Onpages 14 to 19 we explain further and give
examples of our strategy in action.

With strong positions in attractive markets
we see clear growth and margin improvement
opportunities and expect to dediver strong,
sustainable returns. Linked to our strategic
framework are clear medium term Group
performance objectives. These include:

= Adjusted operaling profit margin of 17%

+ Operating cash conversionof atleast 90%
perannum

= Financial leverage of under 1.5x net debt/
EBITDA

10 Elementis plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019

We are excited about the potential at
Elementis for material growth opportunities
and margin improvement alongside strong
cash generation.

COVID-19

As the COVID-19 virus situation has
developed we have been assessing the
impact on our employees and our business
to ensure that both are effectively supported
and managed. Our production sites and
sales offices in China have reopened

and all Elernentis staff are safe and well.
China represents approximately 15% of

our Group sales, is home to three out of our
22 manufacturing plants andis a limited part
of our global supply chain, However, there

is potential for some disruption to customer
demand and we will continue to monitor

the impact as appropriate.

Outiook

We have focused Elementis on high guality,
high margin activities inPersonal Care,
Coatings and Talc, and remain focused

on the execution of our strategic priorities.

The fundamentals of our business remain
strang. Inthe short term, given the
challenging market back drop, and the
uncertainty around COViID-13, we remain
cautious on the 2020 outlook with stable
performance expected, supported by the
delivery of cost savings and new business
opportunities, Overall progress in Personal
Care, Coatings and Talc is expected tobe
offset by challenging market conditions

in Chromium.

Paul Waterman
CEQ



Q&A with our CEO

Q: How would you evaluate Elementis’
performance in 2019?

A: Disappointing in terms of outcomes, but solidin the context
of the weak demand conditions we faced. The more cyclically
exposed parts of the portfolio such as Chromium and Energy saw
the most adverse conditions. We focused on self-help actions
to optimise our performance. The delivery of $10m of cost
savings, 13 new product launches and $25m of new business
opportunities means we achieved a 14% operating margin.
We can, however, perform much better | am confident that

the execution of our Innovation, Growth and Efficiency agenda
wilt resultin margin improvement, strong cash generation and
financial deleveraging.

Q: What do you mean by ‘Innovation’
and whatis to come?

A:Innovatien is at the heart of what we do. In 2019, we delivered
13 new products to our customers. These include new hectorite
based products for skin care and several new Coatings additives
such as Supread® wetting agents that are becoming standard in
waterborne systems. They alt improve the performance of our
customers’ products.

By delivering distinctive and maternial innovation to our customers,
in a speedy manner, we will continue to be a market leader and
drive growth. We ask where we canmake our customers’ products
perform better, be more efficient and be more sustainable.
innovation excellence is critical for any chemicals company, and
for us, targeted innovation drives both growth and efficiency.

Q: How would you characterise the
performance of the AP Actives business?

A: As a result of the acquisition we have a Personal Care business
of scale, engaged in the distribution of complementary products
to new and existing customers around the world. The short term
financial performance has been somewhat disappointing due to

raw material inflation and trade war refated tariffs, Looking forward,

we are confident of muchimproved performance. The ramp up
of a new manufacturing site in India in 2020 and the roll out of our
attractive innovation pipeline will enable us, as the globalmarket
and technology leader, to cost effectively serve this growing
global end market.

Q: What are your sustainability priorities?

Az Our priorities are twofold. We are focused on ensuring our
operations have limited impact on the environment and our
communities, Second, we strive to ensure that our products help
our customers address their sustainability needs. Let me give you
a couple of examples. Our unique Coatings additives are helping
to reduce the level of harmful VOCs found in industrial coatings
and our talc additives are making plastics lighter and stronger,

thus helping to reduce vehicle emissions. Enhanced Performance ‘

Through Applied Innovation is about making products that are
better, more efficient and crucially, greener.

Q: Are there more acquisitions

in the pipeline?

A:We are completely focused on business delivery and

investors should not anticipate any material acquisitions.
Following the disposal of disadvantaged, non-core activities
suchas Surfactants and Pigments, and the acquisitions of AP
Actives and Taic, we now have a portfolio that is better positioned
for growth. Our Innovation, Growth and Efficiency agendais
focused on leveraging this portfolio to deliver our medium term
performance obiectives of margin improvement, cash conversion
and financial deleveraging.

Q: What are the risks to your strategy
implementation?

A: A further significant market downturn would limit the speed at
which we can deliver our medium term performance objectives.
This is, however, beyond our directinfluence so we can only
seek to mitigate its impact by ensuring we are as efficient and
agile as possible. As a specialty chemicals business the single
biggest risk we face is not running our operations in a safe and
reliable manner. As a result, ensuring all of our employees go
home safely at the end of each day, is and will continue to be

our most important priority. -
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Our market environment

Responding to a
changing world

12 Elementis pic | Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Qur unique ingredients
deliver crucial product
benefits. For instance,
our Bentona® additive
range helps make
colour cosmetics
brightet for longer

We have over 90 expert
scientists working at
eight Iocations around
the world, partnering
with ur customers

to soive theis product
performance and
sustainability challenges




Trend

Qur opportunities | What this means forourindustry |

Ourresponse |

Demographics.

Global populationis set to
increase by 2 billionin the next
30 years, to 9.7 billion people.

Most of this increase will be in
the developing world where
high birth rates wilt drive further
urbanisation and investment
ininfrastructure.

In addition, an expanding
middle class is expected to gain
Westernlevels of consumerism,
generating new markets

for products that improve

tiving standards.

Premiumisation

Prerniurnisation is bridging the
gap between luxury and mass
market to give all consumers
access to unique or inngvative
products that promise more.

Premium is not just about price.
itis the promise of exceptional
quality and experience, fueliing
the growth of unique, value
added products.

Ceonsumers are willing to pay
premium prices on value added
products with reat benefits.

Asg aresult, the premium
segment is experiencing stronyg
growth, outpacing total category
sales in many markets.

Sustainability

The continuing accumulation of

greenhouse gasesis described

as the main cause of giobal
warming. Rising sealevels and

anincrease inthe frequency of
extreme weather are associated
conseguences of this trend.

Both affect food and.water
supply just when the growing
global population needs it
most, bringing increased
international pressure to
restrict climate change.

This, along with ever

more scarce natural

resources, Mmeans a growing

demand for innpvative,
sustainable products.

Transparency

In an ever more connected
world, customers and
employees want more
transparency fromthe
organisations that serve
and employ them.

Organisations of all kinds must
estaplish and mainiain trust,
as the basis for successful
collaboration and innovation.

+ Increasing ¢emand for industrialand
decorative coatings

« Rising penetration of personalcare

products suth as colour cosmetics

and skin creams

Increased demand for consumer

goods that require our agditives

N

« Demand for higher guality producis

- Demand for products with 'feel good’
characteristics

= Demand for 'natural’ ingredients

= Demand torinngvative
sustainable products

Mova towards natural or naturaily
derivedingredients

Pressure to minimise social and
environmentalimpact along the
supply chaln

LConsistent and transparent
communicationof activities
throughiout the value chain

Clear evidence of ethical and social
considerations in decision making
Openand frequent consultation with
altstakeholders

- New markets for natural and
synthetic additives thatimprove the
performance of consumer products

Qpportunities to innovate and serve
local market needs

Maore demand for hectorite and tale
based ingredients

Opportunities to increase the
penetration of aur high parformance
technology solutions

+

Increased opportunities for our natural
hectoritaand talc based ingrediants

+ Demand for our lechnology
solutions thatiower customers’
environmental footgrint

Reduce the environmental footprint
of our supply chain

Help customers make informed
decisions thwough the provision

of clear scientific evidence
improved reporting and disciosure
of corparale activities

integration of taic based additives into
our global supply chain, improving our
ability to selltalc in Asia and Americas

Capital investment in manufactuting
assets in Asia to reduce supply chain
lengthand bring owr products closer
tocustomers

Launched new nectorite clay based
products {Bentone®Luxe and Bentone
Hydroclay™) focused on the skin
caremarket

New Rheolate® HX rheology

serigs delivering one coat hide

and stainresistance for premium
decorative coatings

Increased share of ‘distinctive’
progucts within ourinnovation pipeline

.

Investment in our hectorite and talc
production network

The launch of new additives that
help create industrial coatings with
fewer VOCs

Suppori for sustainable farmers

of ingredients such as palm oitand
meadowfoam seedoit

- Combinabon of Global Technology and
Product Stewardship teams

Creation of Sustainabiity Council
working towards lowering our carbon
footprint and reducing waste

.

.

“For further inforrnation, see pages
2431032

investment in digitalplatforms
including a new company websile

Comprehensive empioyae
engagement consuliation with results
to be shared on a periadic basis

Verificationagainst demanding
labelling standards suchas IS0,
Cosmes and Ecolabel o highlight
the sustainability of our products
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Our strategy

Innovation

innovation is at the heart of what
we do. We are a global leader in
performance-driven additives
that create innovative solutions
for our customers.

Leveraging our capabilities in rheology, surface chemistry and
formulation, we help customers improve their products, responding
to their biggest challenges through deep partnerships, ongoing
technical support and cansistent guality, service and delivery.

This focus on market leading innovation drives our business

and our growth.

Qur innovation priorities are threefold, First, we want 1o deliver
distinctive new technologies that provide improved performance
and lower operation costs, while at the same time enhancing our
customers' sustainability. At the end of 2019, 45% of our product
portfolio delivered against these innovation priorities.

Second, we are focused on material innovation chalienges that face
not just our customers but also the industries in which we operate.
For exampie, using more natural ingredients in Personal Care and
fewer VOCs in Coatings. This ensures our resources are directed to
the biggest, mostimpactful opportunities. Today we are spending
35% of our R&D budget on our top 10 projects versus 20% in 2016.

Lastly, we are increasing our speed of innovation. By focusing on fast
prototyping, proof-of-concept techniques and technology transfer
across our different segments, our time from concept to market has
drasticaily decreased from 2.5 years in 2016 1o 1.5 years today.

How do we judge success ininnovation? Owr aimis toincrease the
revenue we generate from innovation; for example, by driving the
proportion of distinctive products in our portfolio from 45% today to
809 in 2025. And we want more new products. While we have been
doing better in recent years, our ultimate goal is for 15% of our sales
to come from new or protected products.,

Innovation excellence is critical for any
chemicals company. Targeted innovation
drives both growth and efficiency.

Qur ultimate goal ls for
15% of our revenue

to come from new or
protected products.
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Top

Eiementis’ additive
technology helps to deliver
more environmentally friendty
water based formulations for
industrial coatings.

Bottom

When a biofuei producerin
Thaiiand faced an excess
foaming problem, Eiementis
was able to rapidly create a new
defoamer solution



Innovation in action

Cutting edge
premium
skin care

in Personal Care, we create
ingredients based on our unique
hectorite clays sourced from our
mine in California, the only one
of its type in the world.

From this advantaged starting
point, we apply our technology
expertise to deliver unique
solutions to our customers
around the world.

Our main focus in Personal
Care are rheology modifiers,
products that control the
dispersion and suspension

of pigments, provide flow
qualities for enhanced sensory
performance and skin-feel, and
formulation stability.



What this means
for our business

Kate Watermann
Global Technical Services Manager,
Personal Care Appiications, Cologne, Germany

The drive for Innovationin
Personal Care hasn't changed ~
what's changed is our focus,
our speed of response and

our client relationships.

“I've been at Elementis for nearly 20 years, working with
R&D, our commercial teams and our customers. L have
research scientists in the US, Germany and Brazi, and
customers around the world. My job is to demonstrate
what our products can do inroadshows and technical
workshops and help our customers develop their own,
unigue applications.

"We work in really close collaboration with our customers.
They approach us with specific requirements, but we also
develop products in anticipation of market trends —more
natural products, for example.

"Qur skin care developrnent has been spectacular,

Makeup is such a visual and sensory thing - our new
products, Bentone Hydroclay™ and Bentone® Luxe, are
clean and natural, and enable silky smooth application

with better colour. Added to that, they stabilise formulations
with active ingredients, like sun protection agents.

“In under one year since faunch, the customer reactions
have been just incredible. We've already had significant
orders - and one customer even asked us to stop doing
demonstrations sa they could patent and launch their
products ahead of the competition! We couldn't stop
promoetions, but this hasled to a new partnershipin
innovation with the customer.”



Colour cosmetics, such as mascara and lipsticks have to date been
the prime application of our rheolegy modifiers in Personal Care.

In this area we have achieved significant success with 8% average
annual sales growth over the last seven years, driven by strong
consumer demand for premium, natural ingredients.

In 2019, we entered the skin care sector, a large and fast growth part
of the Personal Care market. In April, we launched two new hectorite
based products, Bentone® Luxe and Bentone Hydroclay™, targeting
the premium skin care market. Hectorite is weli suited for use in skin
care; it is natural, water soluble, light in colour and delivers excellent
skin feel.

Bentone Hydroclay™ enables the creation of innovative and
elegant sensory experiences. These clays are of the highest quality
and purity. Their uniqueness lies in their ability not only to thicken
water but also in the silky texture that they impart during and

after application.

Cur second product, Bentone® Luxe, is an emulsifying gel that
facilitates the creation of exceptional skin care formulas with the
ability to create a vaniety of textures with one single emuisifying
ingredient. Formulating flexibility, exceptional emulsification
properties and rheological control make Bentone® Luxe ideal for
both innovative skin care and colour cosmetics.

The customer reaction to these unique products has exceeded our
expectations. We have received a record nurnber of requests for
samples and formulation support prototypes. One customer has
already introduced three new products based on this technology,
just six months after its initial introduction. We are partnering with

a number of other customers to create a novel material that can be
used as one core technology for many of their future developments.

Given the fantastic market reaction to date, we are confident

these products will help us deliver up to $10m of extra sales inthe

medium term,
Atour Capital Markets Day in
November, investors had the

opportunity to make a skin
creamusing Bentong® Luxe

Our hectorite based ingredients
heip ta create skin creams that
have great touch and feel
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Qur strategy continued

Growth

in our transformed portfolio, over
80% of earnings are now generated
by Personal Care, Coatings and Talc.

The value chains across these segments are similar, transforming
advantaged and long life hectorite and talc resources into high value
additives via distinctive processing and formulation expertise, as well
as consistent product quality and high levels of customer support.

In addition to their endunng competitive advantages, there are clear
growth opportunities for thase premiurn performance additive
businesses, supported by structural mega trends.

Within Personal Care, there are major opportunities in cosmetics,
Despite 25% average annual safes growth in Asia over the last four
years, we are relatively underweight, with the region representing
around 20% of sates. To drive further growth, we are doubling the
size of our Asia sales team, building dedicated technicai support
and focusing our innovation efforts on local market needs. Skin care
is a new and attractive market for cur natural ingredients, andin
antiperspirant actives, emerging market growth and increasing
aroduct performance reguirements will drive growth. We are well
positioned to capture these opportunities and grow Personal Care
revenue weli above GDP levels with high and stable operating profit
marging over the mediumterm.

There are clear growth opportunities
for these premium performance additive
businesses, supported by structural
mega trends.

Talc has been successfully integrated into Elementis and we are now
the second biggest global player, serving growing high end industrial
applications. We are well positioned to expand market share outside
Europe and address the opportunities presented by global mega
trends. Vehicle light weighting, emission regulations and reduced
single use plastics consumption are expected to drive strong
sustainable demand for our Talc ingredients. There is also significant
revenue synergy potertial {on track for $20-25m by 2023} leveraging
our global reach, customer relationships and innovation expertise.
As a result, over the medium term we expect to grow Talc revenue
well above GDP with an improving operating profit margin,

in Coatings. we are aleading supplier of high value, premium
additives, critical to performance. Qur Coatings transformation
programme has ¢reated an integrated, simpler and more customer
centric organisation bringing margin improvernent and focused,
profitable growth. We see clear growth opportunities for our unique
ingredients in premium decorative, waterborne industrial additives
and adhesives & sealants. As a result, in Coatings we are targeting
GDP+ organic revenue growth over the medium {erm, with an
improving operating profit margin.
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Tatc provides functional
advantages lixe enhanted
corrosionresistance

for marine coatings and
improved durability for
decorative coatings



Growth in action

Talc global
expansion

Talc is a global market worth
approximately $1.1 billion and
we are the second largest
player, with approximately an
11% global market share, up
from 9% three years ago.

Customers increasingly demand
high specification products, not
simply on alocal basisbutona
global scale.

As part of Elementis, there
is potential to expand Talc's
geographic presence and
market share.



What this means
for our business

Wendy LI
Asia Sales Director Tale, Beijing, China

With Elementis’ global scale
and network capabilities in
China, Japan, South Korea

and across South East Asia,
Talc's market opportunities

are immense.

‘Ijoined Talc in 2014, Personally, 1 was a bit uncertain when
Elementis acquired the business. But nowl feel really good.

the combination makes us much stronger, especially in
areas such as coatings, where there are real synergies.

“Elernentis gives people the freedom to do their jobs,
supports you and encourages working together, so our
cultures match perfectly.

"Now we have the global structure and scale, | foresee major
expansion for Talc, particudarly in plastics and ceramics.

“We have afull range of talc products addressing all the
needs of the highest end long life plastics markets—that's
close 1o a 900,000 metric ton Asian market.

“The market for technical ceramics in Asiais also large.
Due to strict environmental controls. demand for high
quality talc, one of the key raw materials, is growing fast.

“We achieved close to 50% growth in 2079 in China and
lam sure we can keep growing over the medium term.”



Our Talc resources, located in Findand, originally predominantly
served nearby paper markets, and our geographical focus centred
on Europe. indeed, today Europe stili accounts for more than

80% of our talc additives revenue. However, as the Talc business
has invested and increased its ability to serve high value added
applications such as plastics, coatings and life sciences, SO its
ability to sell arcund the world has risen.

There is now a material opportunity

to further globalise and accelerate our
ambitions by leveraging Elementis’ global
asset base, marketing and distribution
capabilities, and technical expertise.

In long life plastics, such as bumpers, mouldings and trims, talc
helps the light weighting of vehicles and thus reduces vehicle
emissions. Today anaverage 14kg of talcis used in every vehicle.
This is expected to rise to around 16kg by 2023. Cur strategy is to
serve this growth and gain market share. First, we gain qualification
into a multinational's global headquarters by winning on quality and
consistency. After demonstrating our product quality and customer
service, we then grow into the global network of that business.
This strategy has served us very well to date as we have expanded
our share iniong life plastics from 4% in 2015 to 7% today. As part
of Elementis, we see this only gccelerating.

in Coatings, tafc provides functional advantages such as corrosion
resistance for marine coatings and durability in decorative coatings.
Elementis brings a strong global presence to Talc and a great position
in Coatings. We now have 30 existing coatings distributors selfing

talc additives and a strong pipeline of newbusiness opportunities,
including inthe Americas and Asia. As a result, we see $10-15m of
revenue synergies for delivery by 2023,

Talc is the softest known mineral, alt natural, chemically inert and
water-repellent, so it is well-Suited for use in areas such as food and
beverage, pharmaceuticals and cosmetics. While this is currently a
smail business for our Talc operations, there is scope to grow and
globalise. Talc is now fully integrated into the Elementis Personal
Care innovation and sales organisations and we are making
progress towards $10m of synergies by 2023.

High valye talc increases
the stiffness and rigidity
of plastics foruse in
automobiles, without
adding weight

Average talc per vehicle (kg)

A focus on premium performance additives...

1 Distinctive resources

and processing
2 Formulation and ;:f'::::; o
customer co~-development additives

3 Quality service
and support

...with a strong platform for growth

Personal care Rheology modifiers and AP actives
Asia cosmetics, skin care, taic

Tale Talc based additives
Globalisation, long life plastics, technical ceramics,
barrier coatings

Coatings Rheology modifiers and additives
Premium decorative, waterborne industrial, adhesives
& sealants, Tale
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Our strategy continued

Efficiency

Asthe Group increases
in gize, itis important
to develop efficient
working praciices
across our teamg

Savings driven by efficiency and simplification

Fitfor purpose Operational Digital
organisation efficiency implementation
Simple Supply chain Faster

andlean improvements and easier

$15m of savings by 2022
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We know where and how we

want to grow. Efficiency and
simplification will ensure that

we generate growth at the lowest
operating cost. To this end, we are
targeting a $15m reduction in our
2019 cost base by 2022,

We are focused on three areas. organisation structure, operational
efficiency and digitisation.

We have redesigned and streamiined our global structure to fit our
changed portfolio. Bigger spans and fewer layers promote faster
decision making and a moare efficient execution. In addition, we

have aligned job levels on a global basis as part of our approachto
standardise key processes, including those related to HR, IT. finance.
procurement and logistics across geographies. These steps

have resulted in a lower headcount of approximately 100 full-time
employees. Qur organisational redesign is nearing completion and
will resutt in $5m of full-year savings.

A further $10m of efficiency gains is expected te come from our
global supply chain. Qur new Indian manufacturing facility will

lower our manufacturing costs, increase our proximity to growth
markets and create a tariff-neutral starting point tor our AH Actives
operations. In addition, we are aligning ocur global capacities with
our volumes. This consolidation exercise will improve our supply
chain planning and inventory controi. And a strategic review of
procurement spend within our current organisation has opened up
possibilities of savings in areas such as transportation and logistics.

A key enabler of our efficiency and simplitication drive is our digital
implementation programme. Here, we are making big changes.
Historically we had a variety of different IT systems, partly a reflection
of a dispersed set of businesses and functional activity. Today, we
have adopted some best-in-class and standardised applications
across the Group that give us the ability to operate more efficiently
and effectively and serve our customers better.

Whether it be how we manage our teams,
run our global supply chain, or serve

our customers, we have a mentality

of continuous improvement.



Efficiency in action

Digitisation
of Elementis

Digital transformationis a
 key enabler of our innovation,
Growth and Efficiency
programme.

Theright infrastructure and
applications will make it easier
for customers to do business
with us and enable faster and
better execution.

We are moving from multiple
legacy software suites to a

- commeon range of best-in-class
systems across the Group.



What this means
for our business

David Zhou
Global Supply Chain Director, New Jersey, USA

We're building a better supply
chain, giobally. Better product
flow, better information flow
and more consistent service.

“I started as a Supply Chain Manager with Elementisin
China nearly 12 years ago - before maving to the US in
2017 to head up our giobal suppty chain management
digitisation programme,

“The focus of the programme has been reducing our
working capital requirements whilst improving customer
servicelevels. Using Demantra, we have moved to

a consistent, global, approach to sales forecasting,
demand planning, inventory control and order fulfilment.
It's an analytical, statistical and data based approach to
business management.

“‘And it works. A UUS$23m reduction in working capital since
2017. Last year direct customer deliveries '0On Time andin
Full' exceeded 92% for the first time.

“What's nexi? it doesn't stop! Talc and Chromium have to
complete their programmes — then we will concentrate ona
better interface to communicaie across all elements of the
supply chain, reducing lead times and cutting surplus stock
still further.”



in 2019, we rofled out the Saiesforce customer relationship
management system across all our segments on a global

basis. The platform enables the systematic management of

our refationships with existing and potential customers through
contact management, sales managernent, productivity and more.
One example of the tangible benefits the system can generate is
within the area of new business identification. Due to systematic
digital tracking of new opportunities by market and geography our
new business pipeline is up over 20% in 2019 and the pipeline for
2020 to 2023 is encouraging.

While 2019 witnessed significant improvement in our ability to
identify customers, the next step is to improve how we optimise the
customer journey. Our website and digital tool-set are commerce
ready. As a resuit of the upgrades in 2019, we now have a modern
and digitally capable site. Future integration of this system with
platforms such as Salesforce will enable us to manage the entire
lead-to-order fulfilment cycle in a seamiess way for offline and
online customers. This will result in improved customer journeys
and more efficient responses, and will help us capture our best
growth opportunities.

Demantra, part of the Oracle suite of tools, is a cornerstone of

our efforts to deliver $30m of working capital savings by 2020.

The system enables our supply chain to tiiangulate market demand,
supply restrictions and customer commitments to optimise our
operations and thereby our working capital. In 2019, the system
delivered $10m of purely inventory related savings. Further integration
with our new business data from Salesforce wiltimprove our
forecasting ability and generate further working capital savings.

Leveraging the rich customer data created by Salesforceis a
further step of our digital transformation. In 2020, we expect toroll
out analytical tocts such as Tableau. These applications will provide
our sales force, channel team and executives with secure, up-to-
date, customised views of customer data.

With 22 manufacturing
locations and thousands
of customers across the
world, we are focused
on delivery of further
efficiencies inour
global supply chain

©Qur enhanced demand
planning capabilities
ensure wecan

meet our customer
needs in a timely and
efficient manner
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Business model

Delivering value
for all our stakeholders

Inputs

People

Qur engaged and skilled workforce
are focusad oninnovation, customer
coliaboration and service, and

What we do and howwe do it

Elementis is a global specialty chemicals
company operating across five business
segments: Personal Care, Coatings, Talc,

delivery of our strategy in a safe Chromium and Energy_
and responsible manner.
Capital Through our innovation, operations and sales and marketing

We operate within a disciplined capital
allocation framework that allows us
to invest in growth, productivity and
maintenance to support delivery of

expertise we create high value additives that make our
customers’ formulations look, feel and perform at their best
and enable distinctiveness in the market — Enhanced

our strategy.

Relationships

We build and maintain close long term
relationships with customers, suppliers
and other stakeholders; centred on
trust and coliaboration.

Supply chain

Qur global manufacturing footprint
allows us to deliver our high value
innovation solutions to customers in
all geographies. Safety is fully aligned
to operationat performance.

Assets

We ownand operate the world's largest
known source of high quality rheociogy
grade hectorite ¢lay and four talc mines
with high quafity fong duration talc
resources. We are the only domestic
producer of chromium chemicals in
Narth America, and our unique delivery
system generates significant safety
benefits for customers.

Expertise

Qur people are experts in their fields.
Frominnovation to operations and
product stewardship we have experts
who enable us to deliver unique and
superior product formulations to a
wide range of end markets.
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Performance Through Applied Innovation.

{innovation

Our purposeisto
achieve sustainable
progress across the

world through innovative
specialty chemical
products that deliver
cleaner and better
performance

Operations

Sales &
Marketing



Innovation

Innovation is at the heart of what we do.
L.everaging our capabilities in the science
of rheoclogy, surface chemistry and
formulation, we help customers respond
to their biggest chalienges through deep
partnerships. We deliver performance
enhancing additives, ongoing technical
support and consistent service quality.

Operations

Across the globe we operate high
performance production networks.

The sourcing of raw materials, including
our unique clays and talc resources,
production, quality control and logistics
are driven by our experienced operational
teams who are continuously optimising
our production networks.

Sales & Marketing

Our customer facing teams build deep and
meaningful relationships with our partners
which means we are the supplier of choice
for the leading companies in the industries
that we serve. In addition, our teams
constantly monitor market developments
to ensure our formulations meet the
requirements not only of our customers
but the end users of their products.

Value creation

Shareholders

Strong balance sheetand cash
generation delivering sustainable
returns to shareholders

$49m

Dividends paidin 2019

Employees

Creating and maintaining rewarding
careers for our total global workforce
of ¢.1.300is critical for the delivery
of our strategy

$122m

Employee pay in 2019
Customers

Providing value enhancing products
and building redationships with our
customers ensures we are better

placed to solve their biggest challenges

$874m

Total revenue from customers
in2019

Suppliers

We value our supplier relationships

and take along term strategic approach

to mutualvalue creation

700+

Number of raw materials
used in 2018
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Key performance indicators

Measuring our performance

1 There were no environment
incidents in 2019,

KPl Totalrecordable Lost time Environmental ROCE
incident rate (TRIR) accidents {LTA) impact
Definition Weusethe US LTAis aninjuty or iiness We record and categorise ROCE is defined as
Qccupational Safety and that requires more than environmental incidents aperating profit after
Health Administration three days away from intotiersbasedon adjusting items divided
{OSHA)} definition for work not including the day severity or actions taken by opérating capital
recordable injuries and of incident. by regulatory authorities, employed, expressed
iinesses. TRIR is the total Tier 3incidents are as a percentage.
number of recordable thosethathevea Operating capita!
incidents multiplied significantimpact on the employed comprises
by 200,000, divided by environment and require fixed assets (excluding
total hours worked by reporting to an external goodwill), working capital
all employees during authority and where and operating provisions.
the year. enforcement action is Cperating provisions
likely. Tier 2 incidents have include self insurance and
a minor impact and require environmantal provisions
notification but are likely but exclude retirement
to rasuilt in minimal action benefit obligations.
by the authorities.
Performance Further information can Further information can Further information can Further information can

be found on page 29.

be found on page 29.

be found on page 29,

be found on page 172.

Remuneration linkage

Non-financial targets
within the Executive
Directors’ annual bonus
structure typicaily
inciude ingdividual

Non-financial targets
within the Executive
Directors’ annual bonus
structure typically
include individual

Non-financial targets
withinthe Executive
Directors’ annual bonus
structure typically include
individual objectives

ROCE is anunderpin
condition for the Lang
Term Incentive Plan,

ROCE including goodwill
was 8% (2018: 8%).

abjectives relating to abjectives relating to refating to environmental
safety performance. safety performance. performance,
Link to strategy Link to strategy Link to strategy Link to strategy Link to strategy
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Key to strategic priorities

o innovation o Growth o Efficiency

2 Total operations (both
continuing and discontinued).

Adjusted operating Adjusted Group Contribution Adjusted operating Average trade
cash flow profit before tax margin profit/adjusted working capital to
operating margin sales ratio
Adjusted operating cash Adjusted Group profit Contribution marginis Adjusted operating The trade working capital
flowis defined as the net before taxis defined defined as toral revenue profitis the profit derived to total revenue ratio s
cash flow from adjusted as the Group profit less all variable costs, from the continuing defined as the 12 month
EBITDA plus changes before tax on total divided by total revenue operations of the average trade working
inwarking capital, operations {continuing and expressed as business after adjusting capital divided by total
provisions and share and discontinued) after a percentage. items. Adjusted operating revenue, expressed

based payments, less net
capital expenditure.

adjusting items, excluding
adjusting items relating
to tax,

margin is the ratio of
adjusted operating profit
tototalrevenue.

as a percentage.

Trade working capital
comprisesinventories,
trade receivables

and irade payabies.

It specifically excludes
prepayments, ¢apital
or interest related
receivables or payables,
changes due to
currency movements
and items classified as
other receivables and
other payables.

Further information can
be found on page 42

Further information can
be found on page 123.

Further information can
be found on page 172.

Further irformation can
be found on page 172.

Further information can
be found on page 172.

No directiinkage
with remuneration.

Adjusted Group profit
before taxis a key
element of the Annual

No direct linkage
with remuneration.

No direct linkage
with remuneration.

Average trade working
capitalis a key element of
the Annual Bonus Plan for

Bonus Plan for the the Executive Directors.
Ex ive Di rs.
ecutive Directors. Further information

Further information can be found within the
can be found within the Remuneration Report
Rermuneration Report on page 86.
onpage 86,

Link to strategy Link to strategy Link to strategy Link to strategy Link to strategy

000

00
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Sustainability at a glance

A year of
achievement

UN Globa! Compact delivered our
first communication on progress.

EcoVadis
Silver rating

Top 5% of sitver rating in,
manufacturing sector

We doubled our offering of

new natural and naturatty

derived products to meet ,
our customers’' needs.

Our talc and polymeric
products reduce the weight

of gautomotive components
thereby reducing the carbon
footprint of today's automobiles.
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Meadowfoam® seed ol comes
from family farmers who use
intelligent crop rotation and
natural resource management.
This results in a superior product
that is renewabte, sustainable,
and supports local communities,

Many products are derived from
natural and renewable sources.
Many cosmetic ingredients

have received COSMOS natwral
approval. We support RSPO and use
sustainable sources of paim oil to
protect rainforests and biodiversity.

In Milwaukee, we increased the
number of Fish Hotels tenfold
which resulted in more and
bigger fishin an area that was
devoid of fish a few years ago.

Over $25minvested in
HSE and maintenance
capital expenditure.
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Sustainability

Integrating sustainability into our business

Paul Waterman
CEOQ

“Elementis is committed
to create a sustainable
future worid through our
innovative products, our
dedication to reduce the
effects of manufacturing
on the environment and our
core values to being a safe,
ethical, environmentally
and socially responsible
company.”

Qurrolein society

Respect and care for our environment

and our communities are core values

at Elementis. It drives everything we do

as part of our ongoing contributions to
sustainable products, practices and policies.
Qur behaviours impact the people who work
for us, as well as the wider environment.

Qur Code of Conduct and Company

values underpin cur commitment to pecple
and the communities where we operate.
This focus ensures safe and proper working
conditions, high ethical behaviours, and
business integrity.

Safety is a core value at Elementis.

The safety of our employees, the
environment, the communities in which
we operate and our products is one of

our top priofities. Our goal is to maintaina
world-class HSE programme that delivers
excellence in HSE, while focusing on

zero harm.

Sustainability leadership and governance
In 2018, we established the Elementis
Sustainability Council (ESC) to provide
leadership. oversight, and coosdination

for all Elementis’ sustainability and social
responsibility poficies, programmes,

and goals.

The ESC is comprised of:

= SVP Global Supply Chain
and Manufacturing

« SVP, Globa! Technology

* SVP, Global Personal Care

+ Chief HR Officer

» Group Company Secretary

+ Director, Global Product Stewardship
and Sustainability

Our sustainability achievements

The ESC reports directly to the CEO who
inturn reports on environmental, social,
governance and sustainability matters
to the Board.

We recognise that the development and
maturity of our sustainability programme
is ajourney. The primary focus of the
ESC during 2019 has beento assess and
evaluate potential sustainability metrics
and programmes to demonstrate our
continuing commitment to sustainability.

We are proud to participate in and receive
external recognition for our sustainability
efforts which include; EcoVadis, Carbon
Disclosure Project, FTSE4Good and
Roundtable for Sustainable Palm Oil {RSFO}.
We are an active signatory to the UN Global
Compact and submitted our inaugural
comimunication on progress during the year.

Sustainabllity metrics

We expect to publicly announce
these metrics during the first half of
2020.In addition, the ESC has been
focused on aligning these targets
and our Company values with the
UN Sustainable Development Goals.

Product safety

We are committed to making sure our
products will not harm peopie or the
environment during manufacture, use, and
disposal. To suppaort the highest levels of
product safety and regulatory compliance,
we have a corprehensive product safety
and product stewardship processes in
place to ensure that any hazard relating

to our products are fully understood

and communicated (o our custormers.

Any risks are managed to minimise potential
impacts to peopie and the environment,

Top 5 % of silver rating
for manufacturing

sectorinCSR 2009

FTSE4Good
member since

UN Global Compact - CDP - Above Certified user of
full commitment average sustainable palm oil
performance and member of RSPQ
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Qur products are sold in compliance
with all applicable local and country
laws and regulations.

Innovation

We constantly strive 10 use our expertise
and capability to create innpvative products
that meet the changing expectations and
needs of our customers. Qur customers

rely on us to produce high quality. high
performance and environmentally friendly
products which enable them to manufacture
with an emphasis on sustainability in their
own operations.

For example, the production of ethanol from
ptants, such as sugar cane or corn, is an
attractive alternative to conventional fossil
fuels. A critical challenge for such bio-
ethanol producers is (0 reduce excessive
foaming during the fermentation process.

When a biofuel producer in Thailand was
unable to secure a sOlution from its existing
supplier for an excessive foaming problem,
Elementis rose to the challenge. Our team
immediately assessed the severity of the
situation and offered a quick sofution.

Within less than three weeks, Elementis
launched anew defoamer {DAPRO® DF7169)
and shipped 100kg to the customer for
production trial. lmprovements in production
efficiencies were immediately achieved at
this facility, leading to increased output,
profitability and end-user satisfaction
without compromising the high standards

of quality, safety and environmental
compliance during the fermentation
process, Trials with other bio-ethanol
producers are showing very positive resuits,

During 2018, we implemented a
'sustainability index’ in Gur nnovation
process to emphasise the importance of
developing new products that are either
natural or manufactured using renewable
resources, have low energy requirements
intheir use and minimise our customers’
carbon footprint.

Climate change

We acknowledge climate change is likely

to have animpact on our business as we
operate on a global basis. We have started
1o analyse climate relatad risks relating to
our operations and we intend to address this
more formally as we e@mbark on our journey
to being able to disclose climate-related
financial impact. Currently, we disclose

our environmental, social and governance
performance through the Carbon Disclosure
Project ({CDP) climate change programme
which considers risks and opportunities

of climate related issues from the world's
largest companies.

We note that the UK Government has set a
target to bring all greenhouse gas emissions
tonet zero by 2050 and we are currently
considering how best we can contribute to
this target in respect of our UK operations.

Site specific

As a demonstration of our commitment

to the environment, local site specific
programmes are in place t¢ replace
disposabie paper products, plastic utensils,
and non-recyclable consumables at all our
locations. At cur management headquarters
in SciPark, New Jersey, volunteers launched
arecycling initiative to collect and recycle
used beauty product packaging, plastic
water bottle caps, batteries, and other hard
to recycle office supplies.

Water consumption

Water scarcity is a global issue. We operate
mostly inlocations where this isnot an
immediate issue, nevertheless we recognise
the need to conserve water and keep up

to date with developments relating to
water supply risks. Water consumptionis
minimised where possible by treatment
and recycling. Consumption is related

to production output, product mix, plant
utilisation and cleaning activities. Qur new
site in India is being constructed to recycle
and reuse 100% of the water it consumes.
Zero liquid discharge is being builtinto

the site design with only solid waste being
taken away.

Waste

As part of our ongoing commitment to the
environment, we seek to reduce the guantity
of alitypes of waste. The first concernis to
reduce the amount of waste thatis classed
as hazardous. Beyond that, non-hazardous
waste is minimised and recycled.

Energy consumption

We consume energy from several

sources; electricity (both wind and solar),
steam, natusal gas, LPG, biomass and

oil at manufacturing sites, offices and
laboratories. Energy consumption varies
with production volumes and product mix.
Further information on energy consumption
can be found below.

Palm oil
Our membership of the Roundtable
on Sustainable Palm Qil (RSPO) means

sourced from sustainable palm plantations
that are responsible and responsive to the
issues of soil degradation, biodiversity., iocal
people and land rights. Elementis is certified
under the RSPO for our organoclay and
bentone gels product range.

Supporting family farms and

local growers

Meadowfoam® seed oil, found in many
cosmetics, comes directly froma
community of family farmers in Oregon,
USA_ These farmers use intelligent crop
rotation and natural resource management
as part of their farmer-driven stewardship
practices. This results in a superior cosmetic
ingredient that is renewable, sustainable,
and supports locat families.

Biodiversity

Woe believe that the variety of life, should

be protected insofar as it is reasonably
practicable by reducing or avoiding the
impact on, and potential for damage to,
sensitive species, habitats and ecosystems
as a direct or indirect result of our operations
and activities.

Examples of our efforts and specific
action plans implemented to enhance
biodiversity include:

« Seedlings for native species trees have
been planted at our Palmital, Brazil and our
Taloja, india facilities.

» Afence barrier, installed at our Hectorite

mine in California, protects the habitat of

the desert tortoise, which is a protected
species. If a tortoise makes its way beyond
the barrier, we work with a certified
biolegist to return them to their habitat,

Monitoring and compliance with

environmental permits and good

ecological practice ensure that permitted
discharges from our Charleston, West

Virginia facility do not affect freshwater

mussels, which are a protected species

that reside in the Kanawha River.

Qur Chromium business in Castle Hayne,

North Carolina, has maintained a large

fenced area of undevelopediand (130

hectares) adjacent to the site, which will

remain forested to provide a haven for
witdiife to inhabit.

At two sites, Milwaukee, Wisconsin

and Anji, China, retaining walls have

been constructed to prevent silt and

residual clay from being washed into

Elementis is committed to protecting and the adjacent rivers.
conserving the rich biodiversity foundin
tropical palm forests by using palm oit
2018 2018
Absolute Partonneof Absolute  Perlonne of
¢000s} productien (C00s)  production
Energy consumed (GJ) 4,553 5.58 5753 14.7
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Sustainabiiity continued

Health, safety and environment

Health, safety

and environment

Highlights

New Group HSE policy
Elementis HSE Council launched
HSE culture assessment {ool launched

Qver $25m invested in HSE
and maintenance related
capital expenditure

Over 30,000 hours of HSE training
completed every year

32%

reduction intotal Scope 1 and Scope 2
GHG emissions

Incident
investigation

Internal
auditing

We place great emphasis on protecting
people and operating responsibly.

Our Health, Safety and Environment (HSE)
pragrammes provide the basis of how

we develop, manufacture and distribute
our products sround the world. Thisis
founded on management systems and
internal procedures that define our
regulatory obligations. the industry best
practices that we employ, risk management
and the various programmes that drive
continuous improvement.

In 2018, we updated ouwr Elementis HSE
policy and circulated to all employees.

The new policy represents our objective to
maintain a world class HSE programme that
delivers excellence in HSE performance and
drives continuous improvement.

Al employees and contractors are given
training to understand their roles and
responsibilities to ensure compliance
with our safe work procedures and we
conduct regular audits to determing
policy compliance.

We consult with, and invcive, our employees
in the development and implernentation of
our HSE programmes and initiatives.

To assist us in identifying ways to improve
our HSE cuiture we have devetoped an
HSE culture assessment tool. This tool

Process safety
management

Global HSE framework

Externalrisk

assessments

Environmental
sustainability

Injury

prevention
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allows the sites 1o conduct a year over
year assessment onimprovements on
HSE culture. The tool consists of over 35
questions pertaining to accountability.
comrritment, responsibility and
employee participation,

The resuits of the survey provide insight
on areas of focus for each year and these
elements are included in site annual
improvement plans.

During 2019. we launched the Elementis
HSE Council, a new forum to discuss HSE
matters. The rnission of the councitis to
create a community that promotes HSE
excellence, knowledge and engagement
that drives continuous improvement in
performance and culture. The council
includes mermbers from the HSE and
aperations community and meets monthly
to exchange ideas and discuss HSE
related issues in an openand transparent
environment so we canlearnfromwnat is
working and where we ¢can do better.

To ensure that all of cur manufacturing

site leaders are aware of their roles and
responsibilities in championing HSE at their
facilities we implemented a Site Leader HSE
Review Panel. Within 120 days of their date
of hire or promotion, Site Leaders will appear
before areview panel to demonstrate a
thorough understanding of their site's
regulatory obligations, permit conditions,
process hazards, injury & incident history
and all other aspects of HSE related tothe
safe operation of their facilities. Current site
leaders will cycle through the review process
every three years.



Continuous improvements

For the second year in a row we held our
annual Surnmer Safety Challenge where all
operations, including R&D labs, are expected
to participate. On the Monday of each week,
two employees are paired together and
serve as each other's ‘Safety Buddy” At the
beginning of each shift the Safety Buddies
will meet and discuss their assigned tasks
for the day where they identify the hazards,
risks, needed controls, and how they plan

to Keep safety in mind throughout the day.
Each pair of employees completes alog
sheet and submits to their supervisors.
There is no prescribed pattern for pairing
safety buddies, e.g., salary & hourly,
operations & lab; maintenance & front office.
etc. Each week a new pairing will be made.

Investmentin HSE

In 2019, over $25m was invested in HSE

and maintenance related capital expenditure
projects, representing around 50% of our
total capital expenditure. These investments
include an ongoing programme of
maintenance, new investments in air quality
improvements through installation of a

new Dryer bag house at St. Louis and a new
Regenerative Thermal Oxidiser (RTO) at our
Songjiang, China facility, We made rail car
and track safety improvements at our Castle
Hayne, NC and Dakota City, NE facilities

and we made several process safety
improvements at our Vuonos, Finland facility.

In addition io capital expenditure
investments we ensure that our employees
are properly trained to understand their roles
and responsibilities to safely operate our
facilities. We provide over 30,000 hours of
HSE and compliance training every year.

Our performance

In 2019, we unfortunately experienced a slight
increase in the number of recordable injuries
compared to 2018, We incurred seven
recorcable injuries in 2019 with one of those
being atost time miury greater than three
days of lost time.

In order to understand the basis forwhy these
incidents were occurring we implemented
anew oot cause analysis technigue to
ensure we had a complete understanding

of why incidents occurred and what we can
doto prevent them from happening again.
We share theselearnings via Safety Alerts
and discuss in depth during the monthly
HSE Council. All Corrective and Preventative
Actions {CAPAg) identified during the
investigation and root cause analysis are
entered into our HSE information database
and tracked to completion.

2019 safety performance

We use the US Occupationat Safety and
Health Administration (OSHA) definitions
for Recordable Injuries and iflnesses,

the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and
Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 2013
for Lost Time Accidents {LTA), and Total
Recordable Incident Rate (TRIR) as a means
for benchmarking performance.

20319 2018 2017

TRIR {incidents per
200,000 hours worked)

048 0.22 110

Environmental impact

We record and categorise environmental
incidents into tiers based on the severity

or actions taken by regulatory authorities.
Tier 3 incidents are those that have an
impact on the environment and require
reporting to an external authority and where
enforcernent action is likely. Tier 2 incidents
have a minor impact and require notification
but are likely to result in minimal or no action
by the authorities. In 2019, we maintained a
highlevel of environmental performance as
there were no Tier 2 or Tier 3 incidents (2018:
zero Tier 3;zero Tier 2).
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Greenhouse gas {GHG) emissions
Carbon dioxide derived from natural gas
combustionis the principal GHG attributed
to our operations. Other GHG emissions
arising from our operations inciude those
from chemical reactions in production
processes, wastewater treatment and
carbon dioxide used for process cooling.
Qur data includes all operating sites and
principal offices. Small office locations are
excludedas the level of carbon dioxide
equivalent (COze) emissions from these

offices do not make a material contribution.

For 2019, total Scope 1 and 2 emissions
decreased overall by 32% directly
attributable to the full year benefit of
divestments of former Group sites,
increased energy efficiencies of the Talc
sites and ongoing sustainability initiatives.

During 2019, energy efficiency actions
across the Group included:

» Upgrading of milis used in our Talc
operations resulting in 509% energy
savings and 90% CO; emissions savings

« Newwarehousing in central US to seek
consotidation of truckloads resulting in
less trucks on the road

« Zeroliquid discharge system for all water
on site relating to our new India plant
currently under construction

= New generations of additives using plant
based additives which reduce the energy
requirement during paint manufacturing
process using lower temperatures

* New Martinsville facility - installation of
new condensers

» Castie Hayne - transition from three
kitns to two kilns driving utilisation and
energy efficiency

We see additional opportunities to move
towards more renewable energy sources
for some sites in 2020. We have projects
underway evaluating the implementation
of both solar and wind energy for our sites.
In addition, each manufacturing site has
been challenged to identify projects that
may reduce their carbon footprint.
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Sustainability continued

Greenhouse gas emissions
GHG emissions are calculated from energy purchased and process calculations. Energy units are convertedinto CO.e using the official
data provided by the UK Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra).

Please note that Scope 1 and 2 emissions, and the intensity ratios, are subject to variations due to changes in the mix of products
manufactured, volumes, portfolic and energy efficiency improvements.

. Base year
2019 2018 2013

Scope 1: Combustion of fuel and operation facilities (tonnes COze) 170,811 242476 221,076
Scope 2: Electricity, heat, steam and cooling purchased for own use (tonnes CO,e) 57,930 96,059 89,500
Total:
Scope 1 and 2 (tonnes CO»e) 228,741 338,535 310576
Intensity ratio:
{tonnes COze/tonne production) : 0.28 0.89 0.77
Supplementary intensity ratio:
(kg COze/kWh engrgy consumed) 0.18 0.22 0,27
Out of scope:
Biofuel {tonnes CO.e) 4,676 5753 O

CO,e values were derived using Defra published factors (2019}

Note: Scope 1 and 2 COze emissions show significant reductions as aresult of a number of sustainability initiatives, investmaents and full year benefit of
- divestment of certain COze intensive sites,

In accordance with The Companies (Directors’ Report} and Limited Liability Partnerships {Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations 2018
which came into force on 1 April 2019, the table beiow states our UK energy usage;

2019
Scope 1: Combustion of fuel and operation facilities (tonnes CO.e) 7.534
Scope 2: Electricity, heat. steam and cooling purchased for own use (tonnes CGqe) 924
Total:

Scope 1 and 2 (tonnes COse) 8,458
Intensity ratio:

{tonnes CoZeftonne production) . 0.43

During 2019, our Livingston site completed three energy efficiency projects; LED lighting replacing all fluorescent light on site andin
offices, installation of an extraction fan and a high speed roller door to reduce heat ioss. In total these initiatives amounted to a total
capital investment of £58,669 delivering per annum cost savings of £52,561, reduction in energy usage of 419,587 kwh and reduction
in carbon emissions of 124,228 kgCO;.
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Our supply chain

Highlights

As a global Group we seek to maximise
efficiencies and synergies across
our business

500+

suppliers

700+

raw materials

20+

manufacturing locations

1,500+

customers and local distributors

Procurement excellence is a key strategic
driver for our success. We employ a
functional led organisation structure,

with category specific expertise located
arcund the worid. We are aligned with the
businesses to leverage ouwr spend delivering
continuous total cost improvement and
supply risk mitigation,

In 2019, we achieved more than $8min
procurement related cost savings through
cooperative strategic management of

our suppliers, and facused efforts to

right size our requirement. We continued

to de-risk our raw materials through the
development of additional sources of
supply for critical raw materiat and improved
demand planning which allowed us to better
react to market changes.

Qur Code of Conduct upholds our
commitment to high ethical standards of
fairness and respect in all business dealings
including with customers, suppliers, and
distributors. Our Purchasing Code of
Practice reflects the requirements of the US
California Transparency in Supply Chains
Actof 2010 and the UK Modern Slavery Act
2015. Training is provided to employees

on sustainable supply chain management
which includes prevention of modern siavery
and fair business dealings with customers,
suppliers and distributors. We assess and
require our key and large suppliers and
potential suppliers to ensure conformity
and consistency with our policies, including
compliance with international labour laws
and the absence of slavery and human
trafficking. This includes the use of
questionnaires which are assessed by our
procurement team. if a suppiier is found to
be inbreach of international labour laws
and standards that seek to prohibit slavery
and human trafficking we will terminate our
agreement with themn immediately

Product stewardship, sustainability

and compliance

Successful product stewardship involves
constant communication with suppliers and
customers at all levels. We partner with key
suppliers and customers for faster to market
salutions for our products, We surveyed

our top B0% of suppliers regarding their
sustainability programmes and will use this
to improve our performance.

We expect the people inour supply chain
to be treated fairly and their human rights
respected, We strive for the highest ethicat
standards, holding our supplers and
partners to the same criteria.

GDPR
We require that suppliers and service

providers treat personalinformation in

line with applicable laws and regulations.
Where applicable, we have concluded
agreements to safeguard the personal
data of our employees, and customers.
We conduct reviews into the service
providers' ability to comply with data
protection laws and require that incidents
which may have animpact on Elementis
to be reported to us without undue delay.

Trade and tariff impacts

Following US and Chinese trade
negotiations and the UK's withdrawal

from the EU, we have taken a proactive and
collaborative approach internally and with
ouwr customers and suppliers. In some cases,
we have built inventories to mitigate supply
risks, and where appropriate we have shifted
certain production to new iocations to
minimise the cost of new tariffs.

Payment terms

We work collaboratively with our suppliers
to enable us to deliver value to the business
and are committed to paying our suppliers
ontime. Our standard payment terms for
supphers are net 60 days from receipt of
goods and services.

Tax transparency

Onan annual basis we devefop and publish
our tax strategy statement, in line with the
requirements of paragraph 16(2), Schedule
19, Finance Act 2016. We aim for a proactive,
apen and transparent relationship with alt
relevant tax authorities in order to facilitate
meeting our statutory and legisiative
obligations. The tax strategy statement

is approved by the Board and is available
©on our website www.elementis.com.
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Sustainability continued

Our supply chain continued

Our mines

- Elementis operates five mines which
provide us with a clear source of
competitive advantage.

Hectorite mine

Location: California, US
Markets served: Personal Care,
Coatings
and Energy
Resourcelife +50 years

We own the oniy commercially viable
high quality rheology grade hectorite
mine in the world, this combined with
manufacturing know how enabies

us to supply high value functional
additives globally.

Talc mines

Four operating
minesin Finland

Loacation:

Human rights and modern slavery

Our Code of Conduct details our
commitment to human rights and covers
bribery and corruption, conducting business
with respect, integrity and equafity, and
rmanaging personal activities and interests.
QOur approachis guided by international
conventions and standards, including the
United Nations (UN} Universal Declaration of
Human Rights and the UN Guiding Principles
on Business and Human Rights as well as
the International Labour Organisation's
Beclaration on Fundamentat Principles

and Rights at Work, We prohibit the use of
child and forced labour and are committed
to the principles of equality of treatment

and non-discrimination. With our supply
chain partners we undertake ongoing risk
assessments and due diligence processes
to monitor compliance.

Full details on our approach to preventing
modern slavery across our business

can be found within our Modern Slavery
Statement published on our website at
www elementis.com.

Bribery and corruption

We have a zero tolerance policy for bribery
and corruption. Our Code of Conduct
includes bribery and corruptionand is further
supported by an anti-corruption policy.
Reporting procedures are in piace supported
by processes to prevent retaliation against
any employees who communicate good
faith concerns relating to business conduct.
Employees receive regular training on anti-
bribery and corruption.

Speak up reports

In 2019, there were a total of 4 speak up
reports {2018: 2). All of these reports were
investigated fully and closed during the year.

Weregardthe increase inreportsasa
positive sign that cur employees have
greater awareness and understanding of the
benefits of speaking up and that all concerns
ratsed are valued and investigations will be
taken seriously.

Markets served: Longiife plastics,
costings, life
sciences and paper

Resource hfe: +Q0vyears

These specialty talc mines in
Finland are within one of only two
known deposits of scale in Europe.
As aresult of optimised upstream ang
" downstream logistics from plants in
Fintand and the Netherlands, we are
in a position to serve dynamic end
markets globally.

Number of
Concern raised cases

Bribery and corrupticn -
Business and financial reporting -
Business integrity -
Competition /anti-trust -
Confidential infermation and

intellectual property =
Conflict of interest -
Discrimination or harassment

Our initiatives

» Optimise underperforming sites

+ Sale of non-core assets
* Asset optimisation
= Product optimisation

Process optimisation
= Automisation across operations

= Driving utilisation
+ Process simplification

» Higher efficiency equipment
» Materials delivery
+ Equipment reliability

Environment, health and safety

—_ =i

Other or general enquiry
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Our people

Highlights

Organisational capability

* Completion of a full organisational
review looking at spans, layers and
reporting relationships to create a
more efficient and effective structure,

» Piloting e-learning for our sales teams
to buiid commercial capability

Operational excellence

» Global Data Protection Compliance/
GDPR policies, processes and
procedures embedded further
into the organisation with validated
progress via internal audit.

* The acquired Taic business integrated
into HR systems plus the addition of
compensation planning and mid-year
performance review modules

Cuiture and values

* Values were rolled out throughout
the erganisation through workshops.
They were embedded into
performance management and an
employee engagement survey which
was launched in October 2019 as an
anniversary based dynamic survey

+ Designated Non-Executive Director
for workforce engagement appointed
and programme of engagement
established. Further information can
be found on page 63.

We believe in a culture dnven by strong
values and an environment that promotes

safety, accountability and high performance.

As our greatest asset, people and the teams
they work within drive the success of the
business delivering value to customers,
shareholders and the communities we
impact. We pride ourselves in the innovative,
agile way we respond to ever changing
needs of stakehclders worldwide,

Qur people strategy

We focus on three core areas:
Organisational capability; Operational
excellence and Culture and values, making
significant progress in 2019. Our values
inform the way we act and behave and
guide our decisions on a daily basis.

Culture and values

Saletyis at the heart of everythingwe do
andin conjunction with the other values at
the forefront of every decision we make and
actionwe take.

This ¢ulture is driven by our values which
we continue to embed in the organisation.
Through the employee survey we will gain
further insight into how we can strengthen
their adoption globalty.

Throughout 2019, we ran workshops
on our values across the organisation.

Employee locations as
of 31 December

Total employees 1,342
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Safety
Solutions
Ambition
Respect

Team

Employees embraced these sessions and
used them to discuss the values and how
well we live them within the organisation.
From these groups, we learnt of a number

of concerns around career development,
internal communication and coflaboration
between departments. These concern
areas were actively discussed at a local level
with a number of new forums putin place.

At an enterprise level, we incorporated
these areas into the employee engagement
survey to enable a better understanding to
be developed. We ensured the new website
provided material useful for both internal
and external stakeholders and committed to
launching anintranet in 2020.

Gender Diversity
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Our peopie continued

Priorities for 2020

* Litilise the insight from the employee
survey to continue to embed the
values and drive engagement across
the organisation

+ Embed the newreward and job
structures with processes built
into HR systems

* Support segment organic growth
through focused people plans which
continue to build capabiiity

» Support the start-up of the Incia
Plant, building the capabitity, the right
culture and embedding the values

* Advance the digitai footprint through
further improvement of elementis.com,
HR systems and the introduction of a
basic intranet

= Development of a People Dashboard/
Scorecard

Business conducts and ethics

Qur Code of Conduct sets out the standards
of conduct expected from everyone who
works for Elementis. Qur Code is aligned
with applicable laws and regulations. as well
as our vaiues.

To help employees understand and adopt
these values, principles and standards

in their daily work life, information andg
training are supported by comprehensive
whistleblowing procedures and an anti-
retaliation policy.

The Code is translated from English intc

six other languages (Brazilian Portuguese,
Dutch, Finnish, German, Chinese simplified
and Chinese traditional) and supported with
interactive online training to help employees
stay up to date with their responsibilities.
Allnew employees are required to undertake
training on the Code and refresher training is
every two years.

The Code covers the following:

= Fair dealing

+ Confidentiality and privacy

* Record keeping

« Communications

= Trade practices and
competition compliance

+ Insider trading and fair disclosure

« Bribery and other corrupt practices

* Product liability

« International business dealings

« Pglitical contributions and activities

* Maintaining a safe, healthy and
affirmative workplace

« Equal opportunities

~ Anti-harassment

» Offensive materials

» Alcohol and drugs

« Conflicts of interest

= Gifts and hospitality

» Theft and misuse of Company assets

» Corporate opportunities

* Intellectual property and network use

+ Integrity and security

Diversity and inclusion

Diversity of our people and the inclusive
nature of cur culture is intrinsic to better
business decisions. We continue to make
appeintments based upon merit and seek
to leverage our global footprint to reap the
benefits of a diverse talent pool. Our HR
policies including Equal Opportunities
and Dignity at Work and Recruitment and
Selection, underscore our commitment
to providing equal opportunities in
employment, striving to ensure that the
work environment is free of harassment
and bullying and that everyene is treated
with dignity and respect. Regular training is
provided to employees during the course
of their employment.

Whistleblowing

We provide Alertling®, a 24 hour anonymous
multi-lingual phone reporting sesvice

for employees to report any potential
violations of our Code of Conduct.

Reports are duly investigated promptly and
action is taken as appropriate. The Audit
Committee and Board have oversight of
whistleblowing matters.

Employee communications

and engagement

The Company is committed to employee
engagement throughout the business.
Employees are kept informed of the
performance and strategy of the Group.
HSE matters ang other employee initiatives
through reguiar email bulleting and townhall
meetings take place at each of our sites.

During the year, the Company launched its
employee engagement survey as amethod
to gather insight from employees. To ensure
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that the Board take into account the views of
the workfarce, the Board appointed Sandra
Boss as the Designated Non-Executive
Director for workforce engagement and
further information on Sandra's role can

be found on page 63.

Building stronger teams

We support the continuous development
of our peaple in enhancing their skills

and providing the tools they need to be
successfulin their roles. Our focusis on
building capability through a fong term
approach to development and effective
crganisational design. Qur globai leaders
are building functional capability with teams
aligned across our business segments.

We continue tolook at how we build high
performing teams whether local, regional,
global or virtuai. A number of our employees
have participated in external development
programmes in 2019 and we will continue
to expand this in the future.

People drive performance

Through our people management
processes our employees learn about

the strategy, priorities and goals of our
Company, businesses and functions.

This promotes an environment of
accountabilty and performance to achieve
clear goals each year. Annual and mid-year
performance discussions enable managers
and employees to review their progress. give
and receive feedback and ensure clarity and
alignment of goals.

Performance is recognised through a
robust reward philosophy. Our advanced
compensation and performance
ranagement processes build performance
into both annual merit review and individual
bonus outcomes, We aiso provide
opportunities to give one time awards

for exceptional performance.

HR systems and processes

Through a clear people strategy, we have
invested in creating and enhancing critical
HR systems and processes including talent
reviews and performance calibration,
building capability within our automated HR
systemn, where appropriate, standardising
policies and processes globally, and
utilising reporting and analytics for better
aecision making.

Life saving rules

Allemployees are responsible and
authorised to stop any work that is unsafe or
does not comply with our Life Saving Rules.



Sarah Bissland
Plant Manager -
Livingston,
United Kingdoem

Fresh from college graduation with a
chemistry degree in hand, Sarah Bissland
was excited to join Elementis Global
inOctober 2010 as a QC Techmician,

She chose chemistry because 1) she loves
it and 2} she believed the degree provided
many career opportunities. Since then,
her successive rotes have taken her from
the laboratory to her recent promotion to
Plant Manager. She credits her mentors
along the way for their support to develop
a cross-functional skilf set.

AS she plays a pivotal role in the company's
success, her long-term vision for the
Livingston plant is built on continuous
improvement, effective manufacturing,
and innovative approaches allanchored

in teamwork, excellence, safety,

and suslainability.

Her personal leadership philosophy is

to be approachable and give everyone a
voice. She plans to ‘pay it forward' to other
employees helping to mentor them and
she encourages more women to seek out
leadership roles at Elernentis.

Jojanneke Bron
Plant Manager —
Amsterdam,
The Netherlands

Jojanneke Bron has always wanted

to help others and make a difference.
Froma young age, she [earned a respect
for the worid we live in. This established
afoundation and interest in studying
heaith. She found her vocation at the
waorld-renowned Wageningen University

& Research fusing her love for medicine
with food technology.

Uponjoining Elementis as a Plant Manager
inNovember 2019, she knew she found a
culture that shares her beliefs, She feelsa
positive energy at Elementis as everyone
understands the importance of their
contributions and strives to innovate.

As awoman running a production plant,
Jojanneke is grateful for the valuable
coaching from her father and her mentors.
The best advice she received was to
trustin her abitities and her own path.

She shares this same guidance with her
team to untock their inherent potential.

Jojanneke and her family love the outdoors
and being active. She devotes much of her
spare time cheering on her sons in their
sports activities and volunteeringwith the
locat soccer club. She also enjoys tending
to her vegetable garden, watching life come
from the earth and being present ta the
peacefulness, There are so many parallels in
gardening, managing a team and creating a
better world — nurturing, care and emotion.
Staying focused makes good things happen.

Suzanne
Matuszewski
Director Globat
Stewardship and
Sustainability

Joining Elementis in January 2018, Suzanne
Matuszewski feels privileged to put her
lifelong passion for sustainability into
action. As Director Global Stewardship and
Sustainability, she’s using her background
in bialogy, chemistry, and physics to create
a better world.

From an early age, her career was driven
by her passion for sustainability. Today,
she feels empowered at Elermentis to
develop more efficient ways of utilising
environmentally friendly chemical
engineering. While she subscribes

Life Saving Rules

Authorised Fafl protection
operatorg only sest requirad when
beltsmustbeworn  workingat heights

Knowand |
comply withPPE -~ and
reguizements for

Permit required for

Obeydriving laws
h line br

use poﬂ:y

overy task

Onty quatified Obtaln safe work Parmitrequiredfor  Permitrequiredfor  Permitrequired for
persannel can work permitand lock autitag out performing hat canfined space
onenerglzed approved work plan work antry

equipment

to all Elementis’ Values, the strongest
connectionis for Respect —especially
as it applies to communities and

the environment.

Hervision for the Stewardship and
Sustainability team is to be more
integrated into the entire lifecycle of
product development. She believes her
team’s formula for success will further
benefit customers and consumers.

Huibin Zhao

Vice President
of Coatings,

Asja and Country
President, China

Bringing 30 years of experience with
several multi-national chemical specisity
companies, Huibin Zhao joined Elementis
inMarch 2019 as Vice President of
Coatings Asia and General Manager of
China Operations. With a bright and curious
mind from a very young age, science
competitions fueled his love of science,
Itis no surprise that Huibin has dedicated
his life’s work to chemistry. He chose an
emerging discipline in the 1990s known
as polymer science for his major while at
Fu Dan University — a prestigious research
university in Shanghai, China.

We need chemistry and chemicals for
everything. That's why it is soimportant
to Huibin to be a champion of discoveries
for sustainable solutions that add value Lo
Etementis' customers.

He credits his mother for being his most
influential mentor teaching him good values,
to do the right thing, and stand strong

even through adversity. As a manager,
Huibin taps into those values to create his
team’s chemistry - supporting their ideas
and listening to the chalienges they face,
encouraging innovation and safety, and
driving them to develop the best possible
solutions. Chemistry is everywhere.

#
Training during 2019

GDPR Refresher
Global Anti-Corruption and Bribery

Preventing Sexual Harassment —
New York and California

Anti-Harassment Training - US

Maodel Code of Conduct for
Third Party Suppliers

Global Financial Fraud Prevention

Diversity and Inclusion

Information security

Sustainable supply
chain management
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Section 172 statement

Promoting the success of the Company
The Board acknowledges that thereis
alegslrequirement for the Company to
report on how the Board and its Commiittees
have considered the requirements of

$.172 of the Companies Act 2006 in their
decision making.

A director of a company must actin the

way he considers, in good faith, would be
most likely to promote the success of the
company for the benefit of its members as a
whole, and in doing $0 have regard (amongst
other matters) to the following factors:

* The likely consequences of any decision in
the long term,

= The interests of the company’s employees,

* The need to foster the company's
business relationships with suppliers,
customers and others,

+ The impact of the company's operations
on the community and the environment,

= The desirability of the company
maintaining a reputation for high standards
of business conduct, and

* The need to act fairly as between members
of the company

Therequirements of 5.172 are not new to the
Board. Supported by the Group Company
Secretary, the Board reviewed its decision
making processes to ensure that there
was appropriate focus on stakeholders.

As aresult, a template was developedto
assist the Board, management or anyone
tasked with preparation of board materials
to fully consider stakeholders in all matters
requiring decision making, including
strategic decisions. All board decisions are
recorded in the minutes for each meeting.

Itis expected that the embedding of this new
process will enable a greater understanding
and appreciation of directors’ duties below
Board level, At Board level, this process will
continue to bring stakeholders views to the
forein board deliberations and discussions.

All significant strategic decisions returnto
the Board for review periodically as ameans
at alater date as a means to measwe

the success.

During the year, the Board considered and
approved a range of matters supporting
the longer term success of the Company,
examples are below:

= 3year strategic plan and annyal
operating plan

« Supply chain optimisation pregramme

= Capital markets strategy

« Board diversity policy and
succession plans

= Modern slavery transparency statement

» Tax strategy

Company opearations - Indla investment
During the year. the Board was asked to
consider and approve a significant capital
investment redating to the India plant,

The Board considered each of the relevant
stakeholder groups and the economic
business case during its discussion,
Having due regard for the enviranment,
the Board considered the design and
configuration of the plant. The Board
considered potential risks relating toany
delays associated with regulatory and
operational permits, resourcing plans

and competitor activity.

Further, that the diversity, skills and
background of the Board proved valuable
during the discussion as a number of
directors were able to bring their direct
experience of having operated in India.

The Board considered that the investment
will continue to farm part of the Company’s
ongoing strategic plans including; 3year
pian, annuai plan and ongoing investor

and customer communications over the
medium term.

Shareholders, dividends

and capital allocation

The Board aims to understand the views of
its shareholders and always to actin their
bestinterests.

As part of the Company’s capital allocation
policy. the Board adopted a dividend policy
in 2018 with the intention to pay progressive
orginary dividends, normally with a dividend
cover of atleast two times adjusted
earnings. The expectation is that interim
dividends represent one third of the prior
fult year dividend.
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Subject to maintaining balance sheet
fiexibility and strength in the context of the
Company'sinvestment plans, additional
returns to sharehoiders will be considered
where net debt is structurally below one
times earnings (EBITDA).

During the year and prior to making
adecision to pay interim and full year
dividends, the Boarg considered the
current performance of the business,
the Company’s annual and 3 year plans
{including capital expenditura), neg
debt position, cash generation, short
and medium term forecasts, available
distributable reserves, covenant tests
for net debt: EBITDA and interest cover.

The Board considers shareholder

views as part of regular board meetings,
broker feedback and ongoing shareholder
dialogue and concluded that the declaration
of interim and full year dividends were
sustainable and indicated confidence in

the medium term. The Company's dividend
policy is underpinned by its going concern
and viability statement which can be found
on page 53.

Business relationships - China
distribution agreement

During the year, the Board considered

and approved a significant distribution
agreementin China which was expectedto
reduce supply chain complexity and serve as
aplatform for growth. During the discussion,
the Board considered its reputation for
maintaining high standards ¢f business
conduct with regard to compfiance
standards and appropriate training, transition
risks and ongoing relationship management.

Employee interests and engagement
During the vear the Board appointed Sandra
Boss as the Designated Non-Executive
Director for workforce engagement as
adirectresponse to the UK Corporate
Governance Code enabling the workforce
voice in Board matters. The Board also
received updates on the implementation
of an organisational review. talent and
succession plans and launch of the first
employee engagement survey.

Further information on stakeholder
engagement can be found on pages 33,
£53.68-69and 78.



Non-financial
information statement

Reporting requiremént

Policies and standards
which govern our approach

Where to find the information
inthe Annual Report

Environmental matters

» Code of Conduct
= Health, Safety and Environmental policy

*» Sustainability on page 26
= Health and safety and environment
onpage 28

Employees

« Health, Safety and Environmental policy
= Code of Conduct

* Life saving rules

+ Data protection and privacy policies

* Equality and diversity policies

+ Whistieblowing policies

« Health and safety and environment
onpage 28

= Qur people on page 33

* Supply chain on page 31

Human rights

» Code of Conduct

« Equality and diversity poiicies

« Data protection and privacy policies
« Purchasing Code of Practice

* Modern slavery statement

« Our people onpage 33
* Supply chain on page 31

Social and Community matters

» Code of Conduct

* Whilst we do not have specific policy on
socialfcommunity matters we engage
directly with our communities wherever
we operate.

* Qur pecple onpage 33

Anti-corruption and anti-bribery

* Code of Conduct

¢+ Anti-corruption policy

* Anti-trust policy (global competition)
* Purchasing Code of Practice

« Our people anpage 33
« Supply chain on page 31

As required under Section 414CA and 414CB of the Companies Act 2006, the table (above) includes references to non-financial

matters in our Strategic report.

Reference to our policies, due diligence processes andinformation on how we are performing on these areas are contained
throughout the Strategic report. Information on our principal risks can be found on pages 50 to 52, information on our non-financial
key performance indicators can be found on page 22 and a description of our business model can be found on page 20.

Etementis has established a cross functional Compliance team (ECT) that meets on a quarterly basis to consider compliance '
training needs and improvements, 8ssign training courses to alf and selected groups of employees and monitor training completion
rates. The ECT considers possible improvements and makes recommendations on identifying and mitigating compliance risks for

the Company.
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Finance report

A challenging

market backdrop

Ralph Hewins
Chief Finance Officer

Revenue

2019 provided a challenging market back
drop, but our net cash generation remained
strong, driven by working capital reductions
and capital expenditure discipline.

Group results .

In 2019, revenue from continuing operations rose 6% to $874mas an
extra tenymonths contribution from the Talc business offset declines
in Personal Care. Coatings. Chromium and Energy. Revenueinthe
Pergonal Care segment declined 4% on an arganic basis*, with
growthin Cosmetics offset by weaker performancein AP actives

as we grew volumes ahead of the start-up of the India plant in 2020.
in Coatings, revenue declined 8% on an organic basis* driven by
weak end market demand, customer destocking and the impact of
our portfalio simplification actions. Revenue in Chromium decreased
by 7% due to weak globa! industrial demand ang pricing. particularly
inthe second half. Energy revenue declined by 14% on a constant
currency basis as a result of lower drilling activity in North America.

Operating profit rose 19% to $100.9m due to the increase in reported
revenue and a reduction in adjusting items. Adjusted operating

profit from continuing operations declined from $132.6min 2018

t0 $123.0m, adecrease of 7%. This was driven by declinesin our
most cyclically exposed businesses of Chromium and Energy. along
with competitive chaffenges in AP actives. Reported profit after tax
increased from $41.4min 2018to $46.4min 2019 asiower adjusted
operating profit ang higher interest expenses were offset by lower
adjusting items.

2019 20018
$m $m Change

Personal Care
Coatings

Talc ’
Chromium
Energy
Inter-segment

195.0 2103 7%
3201 362.2 -12%
150.7 215 601%
1711.0 1843 -1%
46.6 549 -15%
{0.8) 1.0) -11%

Revenue from continuing cperations

B73.6 8222 5%

Discontinued operations — Surfactants

- 48 -100%

Total revenue from continuing and discontinued operations®

873.6 827.0 6%

© Total operations {both continuing and discontinued)

a8 Etementis ple | Annyal Report and Accounts 2019



Operating profit
2019 2018
Adjusted Adjusted
Qperating Adjusting aperating Operating Adysting operating
profit itams prafit profit items profit
£m §m $me $m $m $m?
Personal Care 291 13.6 42.7 40.4 11.8 52.2
Coatings 43.7 4.6 48.3 576 5.1 525
Talc 19.9 58 25.7 {0.2) 41 39
Chromium 12.6 5.6 18.2 15.8 17.2 330
Energy 3.8 - 38 71 - 71
Central costs (8.2} (7.5) (15.7) {35.8} 19,7 {16.1)
Operating profit from continuing operations 100.9 221 123.0 849 477 1326
Discontinued operations — Surfactants - - - {10.4) 9.8 {0.6)
Operating profit from continuing and discontinued operations® 100.9 221 123.0 74.5 575 132.0
¢ Total operations (both continuing and discontinued} N
A After adjusting items —see Note 5
Group performance —Revenue
Effect of Decreassy/
Revenue exchange Impact of merease Revenue
2018 rates MBA 019 2019
$m $m $m $m $m
Personal Care 2103 e 0.7 (8.5} 195.0
Coatings 3622 {11.3) {4.0) {26.8} 320
Talc 25 8.2) i36.9 1.5 150.7
Chromium 184.3 - -~ {13.3) 171.0
Energy 549 (0.4) - (7.9 46.6
Inter-segment {11.0} - - 1.2 {9.8)
Revenue from continuing operations 822.2 (27.0) 132.2 (53.89) 873.6
Revenue from discontinued operations 48 - 4.8) - -
Total revenue from continuing and discontinyed operations 827.0 {27.0) 127.4 (53.8) 873.6
Group performance - Adjusted operating profit
COperating Effect of {Decreasel Operating
prafit axchange impact of increase profit
20184 rates MEAF 2019 2018¢
Im £m $m $m $m
Personal Care 522 . (1.0} 0.9 {B8.4) 42.7
Coatings 525 {(2.6) 25 {4.1) 48.3
Talc 39 (1.5} 207 26 25.7
Chromium 330 - - 14.8) 18.2
Energy 71 01 - (3.2 a8
Central costs (16.1) - - 0.4 (15.7)
Adjusted operating profit from continuing operations 1326 (5.2} 231 (27.5) 1230
Discontinued operations — Surfactants (0.6) - 06 - -
Total adjusted operating profit from continuing and discontinued operations 132.0 (5.2) 237 (27.5) 123.0

A After adjustingitems - see Note 5

1 M&Aimpact includes Coatings and Personal Care portfolio efimination following Delden asset sales and the acquisition of Talc
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Finance report continued

Adjusting items

In addition to the statutory results, the Group uses alternative performance measures, such as adjusted operating profit and adjusted
dituted earnings per share, 1o provide additional useful analysis of the performance of the business. The Board considers these non-
GAAP measures as an alternative way to measure the Group's performance so it is comparable to the prior year. Adjusting items in 2019
resulted in a charge of $32.5m before tax, 3 decrease of $25.0m against last year. The key categories of adjusting items are summarised
below. For more information on adjusting iterms and the Group's policy for adjusting items, please see Note 5 and Note 1 tothe financiat

statements respectively.

Personal Central
Care Coatings Talc Chromium Energy costs Total

Credit/icharge) $m m $mn $m $m $m $m
Restructuring ©.7) 2.6) {0.2) [k Y - (1.5} 5.1}
Business transtormation (1.8) {0.5) - 0.4) - - {2.5}
Environmental provisions - - - (4.9 - - 4.9
Arnartisation of intangibles arising on acquisition (11.3} {1.5) {5.6) 0.2) - - {18.5)
Refease of contingent consideration - - = - - 5.0 9.0
Total charge to operating profit {13.6) (4.6) (5.8) {5.6) - 7.5 (221}
Sale of Dental plant {9.0) - - - - - (8.0}
Charge to finance costs
Mark to market of derivatives - - - - - {1.4) (1.4)
Tota) [22.6} {4.6) {5.8) {5.6) ~ 6.1 {32.5}
Restructuring Amaortisation of intangibles arising on acquisition

In 2019, restructuring costs relate predominantly to the
organisational efficiency programme which has eliminated duplicate
roles, reduced management layers and increased spans of control
in order to realise cost savings and efficiencies across the Group.
Asin 2018, restructuring also includes the IFRS 2 cost of buyouts
associated with the CEQ and CFO's appointments in 2016.

Business transformation

In 2019, we initiated a programme to review and optimise our supply
chain and manufacturing footprint across our Coatings, Personal
Care. Energy and Chromium businesses. Costs incurred in 2019
related to exiting supply contracts and consulting fees incurred to
enhance our operating model.

Environmental provisions

The Group's environmenta! provision is calculated on a discounted
cash flow basis, refiecting the time period over which spending is
estimated to take place. A change in discount rates has increased
the liability by $4.9min the year. As these costs relate to non-
operational facilities they are classed as adjusting items.
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Amortisation of $18.6m (2018: $15.0m) represents the charge in
respect of the Group's acquired intangible assets. As in previous
years, these are included in adjusting items in order to present 2
more reflective view of the Groug's overall performance and the key
business drivers that underpin it.

Release of contingent consideration

Anassessment of the potential payments to be made under the
earnout mechanismin relation to the Talc acquisition has led to the
release of $9.0m,

Sale of Dental plant
Theloss onthe exit of a non-core plant (part of the Dental business)
has been treated as an adjusting itemin 2018,

Mark to market of derivatives

The movements in the mark to market valuation of financial
instruments which are not in hedging refationships do not form part
of the underlying performance of the business and thus are treated
as adjustingitems.



Hedging

Cashflow hedges are used as part of a prograrmme to manage our
exposure to interest rate risk particularly associated with USD and
EUR interest payments. In 2019, interest rate movements were such
that the netimpact of these hedge transactions was a credit to net
finance costs of $0.3m (2018: credit of $0.1m),

Central costs

Centraf costs are those costs that are not identifiable as expenses
of a particular business and comprise expenditures of the Board
of Directors and corporate head office. In 2018, central costs of
$15.7m were broadly similar to the $16.1m of central costs for the
previous year.

Other expenses

Qther expenses are agministration costs incurred and paid by

the Group's pension schemes, which relate primarily to former
employees of legacy businesses, and were $1.5min 2019 compared
to $1.6minthe previous year.

Net finance costs
2018 2018
$m $m
Finance income 0.4 03
Finance cost of borrowings {23.7) {16.8)
{23.3} {16.5)
Net pension finance costs (0.5) {0.4)
Discount unwind on provisions (2.4) (1.0
Fair value movement on derivatives (1.4} -
Interest on lease liabilities (1.8) -
Netfinance costs {29.4) 17.9)

Netfinance costs for 2019 were $29.4m, an increase of $11.5m
onlastyear. The increase was primarily due to the acquisition of
Mondo, completed in October 2018, which was part funded by an
increase in borrowings. Finance costs comprise interest payable
onborrowings calculated using the effective interest rate method,
facility arrangement fees. the unwinding of discounts on the Group's
environmental provisions, fair value movement on derivatives and
interest charged on lease iiabilities. Pension finance costs which are
afunction of discount rates under 1AS 19 and the vaiue of schemes’
deficit or surpius positions were broadly consistent in 2019 at $0.5m
compared to $0.amin 2018. The discount unwind on provisions
relates to the annual tirme value of the Group's environmental
provisions which are calculated on a discounted basis. The increase
to the environmental provision in 2018 has resulted in a higher
discount unwind in 2019

Taxation

Tax charge
2018 2018
Effactive Effactive
rate rate
$m %% $rn %
Reportedtax charge 14.6 23.9 156 239
Adjusting items 6.1 = 8.8 -
After adjusting iterns 20.7 221 244 1.6

The Group incurred atax charge of $20.7m {2018 $24.4m} on
adjusted profit before tax excluding discontinued operations,
resulting in an effective tax rate of 22.1% (2018: 21.6%). The Group's
effective tax rate in 2019 is broadly in line with that which would

be expected given the geographic mix of territories in which the
Group operates, and following the widespread implementation

of the OECD's Base Erosion and Profit Shifting ( BEPS') initiatives. -
Tax on adjusting items primarily relates to the amortisation of
intangible assels.

Earnings per share

Note 9 to the ‘Consolidated financial statements’ sets out a number
of calculations of earnings per share. To better understand the
underlying performance of the Group, earnings per share reported
under IFRS is adiusted for iterns classified as adjusting and includes
profits fromn both continuing and discontinued operations.

Adjusted diluted earnings per share was 12.4 cents® for 2019
compared to 16.9 cents? in the previous year, a decrease of 27%

due to lower profit, higher net finance costs as well as the increased
weighted average number of shares following the rights issue in
October 2018, Basic earnings per share before adjusting items was
8.0 cents écompared to 7.9 centst in 2018, Adjusting items increased
basic earmnings per share by 4.6 cents®in 2019 (9.1 cents®in 2018).

Note 2 1o the Group financial statements provides disciosure

of earnings per share calculations both including and excluding
the effects of adjusting items and the potential dilutive effects of
outstanding and exercisable cptions.

Distributions to shareholders

During 2019, the Group paid a final dividend inrespect of

the year ended 31 December 2018 of 5.70 cents per share

(2018: 5.58 cents'). An interim dividend of 2.80 cents per share
(2018: 2.70 cents'} was paid on 27 Septermnber 2019 and the Board
is recommending a final dividend of 5.75 cents per share which will
be paid on 29 May 2020. The Board have adopted a dividend policy
with the intent to declare progressive ordinary dividends, normaily
with a dividend cover of at least two times adjusted earnings.

The expectation is that interim dividends represent one third of

the prior full year dividend. Subject to maintaining balance sheet
flexibility and strength in the context of the Company's investrment
plans, additional returns to shareholders will be considered

where net debt is structurally betow one times earnings (EBITDA).
The Company regularly reviews its distributable reserves and makes
dividend recapitalisations as and when necessary to ensure it can
make all expected dividend payments.
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Finance Report continued

Adjusted cash flow

The adjusted cash flow which excludes the cash effect of
adjusting items from operating cash flow is summarised below,
A reconciliation of statutory operating profit to EBITDA is shown
in the alternative performance measures sectlion on page 171.

2018 2018

$m tm

EBITDA* 174.5 1629
Change inworking capital 330 {29.9)
Capital expenditure {47.3) (50.8)
Qther {5.4) (4.5)
Adjusted operating cash flow 154.8 777
Pension payments {1.2) (1.2
tnterest and tax {26.8) 21.2)
Adjusting items {30.4) (21.8)
Payment of lease liabilities {6.0) {0.3)
Free cash flow 80.4 332
Issue of shares 0.1 2233
Dividends paid (49.3) (41.9)
Acquisitions and disposals 2.1 (426.7)

Currency fluctuations 4.8 51
Movement innetdebt 43.9 {207.0}
Net debt at start of year {498.1) {2917}
Net debt at end of year {454.2} (498.1}

1 EBITDA - earnings before interest, 1ax, adjusting itemns, depreciation
and amortisation,

Adjusted operating cash flow increased by $77.1mto $154.8m
for 2019 due to working capital inflows of $33.0m, reflective of a
sustainabie improvement in our inventory position following the
introduction of digital demand planning tools and a reductionin
12 month proforma revenue. Capital expenditure of $47.3m was
broadly comparable 1o $50.8min 2018,

Free cash flow increased from $33.2m to $90.4m as working capital
inflows more than offset the increase in adjusting items, interest
and tax payments, Adjusting items of $30.4minclude a net outfiow
of $19.0m to the previous owners of the Talc business following the
successful settiernent of an historic tax case in Finland and a further
$9.7m cutflow in settlement of a commerciai dispute reiating to the
Surfactants business disposed of in 2018. Pension paymentsin
2019 were inline with the prior year at $1.2m as the 2018 triennial
review of the UK pension scheme conciuded that no cash top up
payments will be required from Elementis until at least 2021.

Whilst net debt decreased from $498min 20180 $454min2019.a
reduction of $44m, net debt to pro forma adjusted EBITDA increased
from 2.5x**in 2018 to 2.7x** in 2019. The increase in leverage is due
to the decline in adjusted EBITDA, reflective of lower earningsin
Personal Care, Coatings, Chromiurn and Energy.
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Balance Sheet

2018 2008
$m $m
intangible fixed assets 958.1 976.6
Tangible fixed assets 513.6 478.2
Working capital 152.2 183.9
Net tax liabilities {137.9) {131.6
Provisions and retirement benefit )
obligations 68.7) {587
Financial liabilities (15.1} {40.3;
Lease liabilities {46.9) -~
Unamortised syndicate fees 5.1 5.6
Net debt {454.2) (4981}
Total equity 906.2 915.6

Group equity decreased by $9.4min 2019 {2018: increase of
$213.3m}. intangible fixed assets decreased by $18.5m dueto
$18.6m amortisation of intangibles arising on acquisition and $8.6m
of disposals that were partially offset by $6.5m of foreign exchange
gains. Tangible fixed assets increased by $35.4m, with gross PPE
additions of $48.4m and right of use asset capitalisation of $48.2m
partialty offset by depreciation of $50.9m and disposals of $5.8m,

Working capital comprises inventories, trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables and derivatives. Working capital decreased
by $31.7min 2019, made up of $11.0m sustainable working capital
reductions driven by our multi-year improvement programme of
which the bulk refates to inventory savings, reflective of our new
digital supply chain management. The additional reductionin
working capital reflects the decline inunderlying 12 month proforma
revenue and working capital management.

Net tax liabilities increased by $6.3m, as the tax charge on profits for
the year after adjusting items and currency translation adjustments
exceeded actual cash tax paid. Movements in provisions and
retirement benefit obligations are discussed elsewhere in this report.

ROCE {excluding goodwill) has remained stable at 15% with reduced
adjusted operating profit offset by ftower working capital.

The main dollar exchange rates relevant to the Group are set
out below.

2018 2018

Year end Average Year end Average

Pounds sterling 0.75 0.78 0.79 075

Euro 0.89 0.89 0.87 0.84
Provisions

The Group records a provision in the balance sheet whenit has

a present obligation as a result of past events, which is expected
to result in an outflow of economic benefits in order to settle the
obligation. The Group calculates provisions on a discounted basis,
At the end of 2019, the Group held provisions of $51.6m (2018:
$48.8m) consisting of envirenmental provisions of $44.1m (2018:
$43.3m). seif-insurance provisions of $2.2m{2018: $1.5m) and
restructuring and other provisions of $5.3m (2018: $4.0mj}.




Environmental provisions have increased by $0.8m in 2019, with
$4.9m taken through adjusting items as a change in the discount
rate applied to the fiabitities, $2.2m of unwind of discount in the year
offset by a $6.7m utilisation. The self-insurance provision represents
the Group's estimate of its liability arising from retained liabilities
under the Group's insurance programme.

Within the restructuring and other provisions categories the majority
of the balance relates to the organisational efficiency programme
which has eliminated duplicate roles, reduced management layers
andincreased spans of controlin order to realise cost savings and
efficiencies across the Group.

Pensions and other postretirement benefits

2019 2018
$m g
Net {surplusiiiability:
UK (7.4) (22.1)
us 15.9 213
QOther 8.6 10.7
171 9.9

UK plan

The largest of the Group's retirement pians is the UK defined
benefit pension scheme (UK Scheme’) which at the end of 2019
had a surplus, under IAS 19, of $7.4m (2018: $22.1m}. The UK
Scheme is relativety mature, with approximately two thirds of its
gross liabilities represented by pensions in payment, and is closed
to new members. Liability adjustments of $57.7m (2018: $(45.7)m)
which arose due to lower discount rates based onreal corporate
hond yields outweighed the return on pian assets of $62.1m (2018:
$(21.8)m) . Company contributions of $nil (2018: $0.5m}refiect the
funding agreement reached with the UK Trustees following the 2018
triennial valuation. Under this agreement top up contributions are
no longer required until at least 2021,

USplan

Inthe US, the Group reports two post retirement plans under |1AS
19: a defined benefit pension plan with a deficit value at the end of
2019 of $9.9m (2018 $15.7m). and a post retirement medical plan
with a iability of $6.0m (2018: $5.6m). The US pension plans are
smaller than the UK plan and in 2019 the overall deficit value of the
US plans decreased by $5.4m as the financial cost of the liability
of $5.0m (2018 $4.6m) and the actuarialincreases in the liability of
$11.8m (2018 $8.5m decrease) were more than offset by return on
planassets of $21.1m (2018: ${4.9)m) and employer contributions of
$1.5m{2018: $1.3m).

Other plans :

Other liabilities at 31 December 2019 amounted to $8.6m {2018:
$10.7m) and relate to pension arrangements for a relatively small
number of employeesin Germany, certain UK legacy benefits
and two pension schemes acquired as part of the SurmmitReheis
transactionin 2017.

Einancial Liabilities

Financial liabilities at 31 December 2019 include $13.0m of
contingent consideration in respect of Monde {2018: $21.4m) and
$nil (2018; $18.9m) in respect of an outstanding histerical Mondo tax
case in Finland which was settledn the year,

Brexit

During 2019, the Board continued to rnonitor the impact of Brexit
amidst a period of political uncertainty. Management remaing

of the view that the impact on the Group is expected to be of

low materiality. We continue to menitor the status of the trading
relationship between the EU and the UK. A cross-functionai team
is in place 1o assess potential risks and impacts so that we can take
appropriate action in refation to our supply chain and customers.
Further information on how we have assessed and are mitigating
the risks associated with Brexit can be found in the principai risks
section of the 2019 Annual Report.

Events after the balance sheet date
There were no significant events after the balance sheet date.

Ralph Hewins
Chief Financial Officer

4 March 2020

¢ Total operations (both continuing and distontinued)

A After adjusting tems-seeNote 5

+ Rebased for the effects of the RightsIssue - see Note 25

*  Adjusted for FX (where constant currency reflects prior year results
transiated at current year exchange rates) and the impact of M&A.

** On a 12 month pro forma basis — see pro forma calculations onpage 172
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QOperating review

Personal care

Emerging market growth
and strategic progress

Marci Brend '
SVP Global Personal Care

$195m

2019 revenue {2018: $210m)

$43m

2019 adjusted operating profit
(2018: $52m)

Satles by region
Asia 14%
Europe 46%
Amencas a0%
Sales by market
Cosmetics 39%
AF Actives  33%
Dental &
Pharma 28%

2019 was a year of mixed financial
performance as Cosmetics delivered solid
performance while Anti-Perspirant (AP
Actives) grew market share.

Looking forward, our strategic priorities are
focused on increased penetration of Asia,
new skin care products and AP Actives
growth. Successful execution will Grive
strong organic revenue growth and high and
stable returns.

Cosmetics delivered solid
performance while AP
Actives grew market share.

Financial performance

Personal Care revenue in 2019 was $195m
compared with $210m in the prior year, a 7%
decline on a reported basis. Exclutding the
impact of FX and M&A fi.e. onan organic
basis*), revenue fell by 4%.

On the same basis, our Cosmetics
business revenue rose by 484, driven by
steady performance in North America
and Europe and strong growlhin Asia and
Latin Armerica as the penetration of our
hectorite clay based products increased.
This growth in Cosmetics was more than
offset by a decline in AP Actives revenue.
While volumes finished the year broadly flat
on 2018, as we grew market share inthe
second half of 2018, ongoing competitive
pressures adversely impacted revenue,

Adjusted operating profit declined by 18% to
$43m, with adjusted operating margins solid
at 21.9%, but down from 24 8% inthe prior
year period. This decline was primarily driven
by margin pressure in AP Actives due to US
tariffs on the importation of zicconium, akey
raw material, from China,
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Qur strategy

Our medium terrm Personal Care growth
strategy is focused on two areas: Cosmetics
and AP Aclives.

In Cosmetics, consumers areincreasingly
looking for products that contain clean and
natural ingredients, providing a positive
market environment for our hectorite based
Cosmetics business. We are pleased by
o success to date; however, incrernental
investment will further increase our ability
to develop new customers and enter new
geographies and markets.

We have a good track record in Asia, but with
the region representing just 20% of our sales
we have more to do. To drive us forward

we are doubling the size of our Asia sales
tearn, buiiding dedicated regional technical
support and refocusing our innovation
efforts on differentiated technologies that
are aligned with market needs.

Skincare is a large and growing part of the
Personal Care market. While, to date, we
have littte presence in this market. hectorite
is well suited for this application and in 2018
we launched two new products targeting
this market. Driving further penetration of
these products is a key priority for 2020
and beyond.

in AP Actives. population growth and rising
incomes will support a growing market for
antiperspirants inmaost Latin and Asian
countries. To help cost effectively serve

this growth we are investing approximately
$20min a new manufacturing facifity in India.
Focused giobal key account management
and cutting edge innovation will also support
our growth ambitions.

We believe that our strategy will enable

us to deliver organic revenue above GDP,

with high and stable margins over the

medium term.

* Adjusted for FX {where constant currency
reflects prior year results translated at current

year exchange rates} and the impact of M&A.
See page 39.



Coatings

High value

participation

Luc van Ravenstein

SVP Global Ceatings and Energy

$320m

2019 revenue (2018: $362m)

$48m

2019 adjusted operating profit

(2018:$53m)

Sales by region

Asia 40%

Europe 27%

Americas 33%
Sales by market

Decorative 31%

Industrial 69%

While performance in 2019 was impacted
by a global slowdown inindustrial activity, it
is encouraging that our adjusted operating
profit margins have improved as a result of
our transformation programme and self-
help actions.

Over the medium term we expect marging
to further improve as we execute on our
strategic growth priorities.

Adjusted operating profit
margins improved to

15.1% as aresult of the
transformation programme
and self-help actions

Financial performance

Coatings revenue in 2019 was $320m
compared with $362m in the prior year,

2 12% decline on areported basis. Onan
organic basis*, revenue fell by 8% driven
by weak end market demand, customer
destocking and the impact of our portfolio
simplification actions.

Asiais the largest region of our Coatings
business, representing approximately
40% of total sales. In 2018, our revenuein
the region declined by 12% on an organic
basis*. This was a result of a material
demand slowdown in industrial sectors
such as automotive and construction and
significant customer inventory destocking,
particularly inthe first half of the year.
Magcroeconormic weakness, driven by the
China-US trade disputes, was the primary
contributing factor. Revenue also declined
in the Americas and Europe, reflective of
subdued macroeconomic factors, butata
much more modest rate.

On an organic basis®, adiusted operating
profit declined by 8% to $48m, as a

result of weaker demand conditions.
Margins however improved from 14.5%

in 2018 to 15.1% in 2019, reflective of the
impact of our transformation programme
and the benefit from seif-help actions such
as cost savings and new business wins.

Our strategy

In 2019, we cornpleted our Coatings
transformation programme to strengthen
our ability to deliver profitable growth.

As aresult of improved globail key account
systems we are closer to our customers.
This is resulting in improved dialogue, more
innovation partnerships and increased
new business opportunities, Also, we have
simplified our product portfolio, and for the
first time, created one integrated global
Coatings team, making us leaner and faster
to respond to customer and industry needs,

Our growth strategy is centred on areas
where Elementis’ unique technologies

and expertise will bring solutions to the

key challenges that our customers face.
Three areas in which our ingredients will play
a critical role are the formulation of premium
decorative coatings, the switch from
solventborne to waterborne coatings, and
trends benefitting adhesives & sealants.

In decorative applications, consumers want
products that make their lives easier and
deliver sustainability benefits. Our Rheolate®
HX series delivers breakthrough single

coat performance, a step change in stain
resistance and enables VOC free coatings.

Inindustrial coatings, the challenge is to
create new forrnulations that enable the
transition from solvent to waterborne
technologies. Through our leadership
inrheclogy, novel waterborne adgditives
and strong presence in Aslawe are well
positioned to deliver this change.

And finaily, hybrid adhesives & sealants

are a high growth segment supported by
megatrends including light weighting and
energy efficiency requiations. Here, our
range of Thixatrol® additives are able to
deliver customers enhanced adhesion,
lower energy processing costs and genuine
sustainability benefits as they are derived
from natural castor wax.

We are well positioned for success, and
execution of our strategic priorities should
enable us to deliver revenue growth in
excess of GDP and improving operating
margins over the medium terrm.

* Adjustedfor FX iwhere constant currency
reflects prior year resulls transiated at current
year exchange rates) and the impact of M8A,
Seepage 39.
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Operating review contlnued

Talc

Global expansion

Christian Kather
SVP Global Talc

$151m

2019 revenue (2018: $22m)

$26m

2019 adjusted operating profit

{(2018: $4m)

Sales by region
Asia 15%
Europe 76%
Americas 9%

Sales by market

Industrial Taic 76%
Paper 16%
Other minerals 8%

In 2019, Talc grew adjusted operating profit
by 11% on a 12 month pro forma* canstant
currency basis to $26m, with good growth
inindustrial talc and the delivery of cost
synergies, offsetting end market weakness
inpaper.

As a fuily integrated part of the Elementis
global operations, our strategy is to leverage
this asset base and innovation expertise

to further capture market share in new and
existing geographies and applications.

Adjusted operating profit
grew 11% on a pro forma
constant currency basis
driven by industrial taic
growth and cost synergy
delivery

Financial performance

QOna 12 month pro forma basis*, Talc
revenue in 2019 declined by 5% to $151m.
Excluding the impact of FX, specificaliy the
weaker euro against the US doilar, revenus
rose 19 on the prior year period with growth
iningustrial talc offset by a decline in sates to
paper markets.

Industrial talc revenue rose by 4% on a pra
forma constant currency basis driven by
market share gains in technical ceramics
and coatings, as we gained new customers
and entered new geographies. Sales in
Asia grew 36% in 2019, as we pursuved our
strategy to grow Talc outside our core
European market. This growth was partially
offset by a decline in talc demand for use
intong kife plastics, primarily in automotive
applications, as global car production
declined by 6% on 2018, reflecting tougher
macroeconomic conditions.

Elsewhere, Talc sales (o the paper market
fell due to atempaorary customer proguction
issue andweak market demand for graphic
paper. We continue to expect our sales to
the paper market to decline in the medium
term driven by the ongoing structura! shift
to digital media platforms.

On a 12 month pro forma basis*, adjusted
operating profit rose by 4% on a reported
basis, and 11% on a constant currency
basis, to $26m following the delivery of new
business opportunities and the majority of
our $2m cost synergies. As a result, marging
rose from 15.5%in 2018 to 17.1%in 2019.
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Ouwr strategy

One year after the acquisition of Talc the
business is fully integratedinto Elementis’
global operations. All key individuals

have been retained. processes are fully
embedded and sales teams are fully
integrated. We are now working to deliver
qur medium term strategic ambitions,
aiming to generate organic revenue growth
above GDF levels and operating profit
margin mprovement.

The historic focus of our Talc business has
been European paper markets; reflective
of the location of our depositsin Finland.
Inrecent years we have successfully
increased our ability to serve high value
industrial applications outside Europe.

As part of Elementis, we have material
opportunities to turther globalise and
accelerate growth by leveraging the Group's
assetbase, marketing and distribution
capabilities and technical expertise,

Utilising Elementis’ existing presencein
coatings and personai care markets shoutd
enable us to deliver $20-25m of revenue
synergies by 2023 ant generate material
valire creation. In 2019, we made good early
progress, identifying approximately $20m of
new business opporiunities. Thereis scope
for further development,

Qver the medium term we are also focused
on growing and increasing our market share
in applications such as long life plastics

and catalytic convertors. Demand for both
applications is supported by consumer

and regulatory needs to reduce vehicle
weights and emissions, andis expectedto
exhibit sustained growth. We have a ciear
strategy to capture this growth and increase
our share by winning on quality, customer
service and technical support.

* Seepage 173 for pro forma information.



Resilient Chromium performance
in North America and a challenging
drilling environment for Energy

Eric Waldmann
SVP Global Chromiurn

Chromium

$171m

2018 revenue {2018: $184m}

$18m

2019 adjusted operating profit
(2018:$33m)}

Chromium performance in 2019 was
impacted by weaker global industrial dermand
and a deteriorationin pricing, primarily outside
of North Armerica, as the year progressed.
Qur priority is to run our operations ina

safe and reliable manner, while focusing

on perfarmance improvement initiatives.

Performance in our North
American business was
relatively robust

Financial performance

Chromium revenue in 2019 was $171m
compared to $184m in the previous year,

a decrease of 7% driven by weak global
industrial demand and pricing for chromium
chemicals. As aresult of weak demand from
industrial applications, including automotive
and machinery end users, our volumes
declined by 7% on the prior year pericd.
Average pricingwas also lower, primarily in the
second half of the year, reflective of weaker
giobal chromiumindustry capacity utilisation,
which we estimate fefl from approximately
90% in 2018 to around 80%in 2019.

While our North American operations were
impacted by the global industrial production
slowdown, cormnpared to the rest of the
world its performance was relatively robust,
protected by our strong market share and
differentiated customer delivery system.
Outside of North America, our performance
was more materially impacted by lower
volumes and unit pricing.

Adjusted operating profit declined by 45%
to $18m, reflective of the impact of weaker
voiumes globatly and weaker pricing outside
North America.

Qur strategy

In Chromium, we have a strong competitive
position as the sole producer in North
Americawith a differentiated product
deiivery system that materially reduces
customer product handling risk. While our
business is exposed to the economic cycle,
in particular outside North America, it is a
high return operation with opportunities

for improvement.

Qur primary focus is the delivery of safe

and reliable operations for our employees
and customers. Outside of this there are
opportunities to drive improved performance.
Priorities include the delivery of cost and
working capital gains, increased customer
adoption of our fast penetration Waynetan
Chrome Sulphate produci range and driving
our product mix increasingly to high value
chromic acid and oxide applications.

Lue van Ravenstein
SVP Global Coatings and Energy

Energy

$47m

2019 Revenue (2018: $55m)

$4m

2018 adjusted operating profit (2018: $7m)

In 2019, performance was impacted by lower
oil prices and a decline in drilling activity,
particularly in North America.

Looking forward. growthin key oil producing
regions outside of North Americais akey
strategic priority.

Revenue declined by 14%
to $47m, reflective of lower
driiling activity

Financtal perfermance

Energy revenue in 2019 declinedby 14% ona
constant currency basis* to $47m as aresult
of lower drifling activity. Weaker cil prices

and cash constraints for exploration and
discovery companies, particularly inNorth
Amnerica, resulted innotably weaker demand
for our products particularly in the second
haif of the year. As a result, revenue in North
America declined by 29% on the prior year
period. New business wins in the Middie East
andCentral Asia, and good global key account
progress, helped to partially offset this.

Adjusted operating profit declined by 46%
to $4rn, refiective of the weak drilling activity
and the associated negative operating
leverage impact.

Our strategy

In Energy, we are focused on the delivery of
driling solutions to oil field service companies.
Ona global scale we provide a range of

technolegies including organoclays, such as
our differentiated hectorite based solutions,
and synthetic alternatives. These products
help deliver faster and more efficient ciland
gas drilingin the most chalienging conditions.

Whilst short term demandgis influenced
by market factors such as the oil price, our
medium term strategic priorities are clear.

Deeper market penetration of key oil
producing regions in the Middie East, Russia,
Africa and Asia is a priority. This strategy

will be executed in tandem with the Group's
Global Key Account Programme, and

is already delivering resuits as outlined

inthe 2019 financial performance.

Further progress will help diversify our
activities outside of North America.

This wiltbe supplemented by an encouraging
innovation pipeline, with several launches
planned over the next 18 months, and further
focus on our cost structure.

* See page 33 for constant currency data
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Risk management

Managing our risks
and opportunities

Risk management

Elementis faces anumber of risks and
uncertainties in the ordinary course of its
operations. The effective identification,
mitigation and ongoing management

of these risks underpins the deiivery of
strategic objectives. Elementis has an
established risk management framework
and system of internal controls to
support decision making throughout

the financial year.

Risk management systems are intended to
mitigate ang reduce risk to the lowest extert
possible, however, complete elimination of
all risks faced by Elementis is not possible.
Therisk management processes can

cnly provide reasonable and not absotute
assurance against material misstaternent
ot loss.

Risk management framework

The Board has overall responsibility for

risk management and sets the Group's
policies, culture and tone on risk as weli

as providing oversight to management.

A risk managernent framework is in place to
identify, assess, mitigate and manitor the
risks faced.

The Company places the highest priority on
preventing loss of iife, other harm to people
andthe enwvironment, legal and regulatory
breaches and damage to reputation or brand
and has in place Group policies, procedures
and guidance in varicus aspects of business
operations and functions tn order to help

the ELT and employees manage riskin

these areas.

Risk culture

Every individual at Elementis has a
responsibility to manage risk, irrespective
of function, business or role. Risk awdreness
exists through decision making processes
and is embedded in systems, policies.
procedures, ieadership and behaviours

and specific standards such as the Code

of Conduct. All Company employees are
regponsible for complying with related
Company policies and guidance, and share
responsibility for ensuring that the Company
conducts its business in a safe, lawful and
ethical manner.

Every individual at Elementis
has a respoensibility to
manage risk, irrespective of
function, business or role.

Top down Board
Oversight, The Board has overall responsibility for risk management and sets
identification, the Group's policies. culture and tone onrisk as well as providing
assessment and oversight to managemernt
mitigation of risks at
a Group level Audit Committee CEQ (supported ELT
Supports the Board | bythe ELT) Individual ELT
and has specific The CECis members have
responsibility for responsible for responsibility
monitoring financial | implementing for managing
reporting as well Group policies, and monitoring
as the internal risk management risks relevant to
__________________________ and external audit performance, their business or
programmes, one identifying principal | functiononan
of the primary risks and ensuring ongoing basis.
purposes of which FESOUICES are
is to provide aliocated for
assurance eftective tisk
on financial, management and
operational and mitigation.
compliance
Bottomup controlg,
identificabion,
assessment and Operational and supporting functions
mitigation of risk Data privacy steering committee, HSE council, Manufacturing
across operationat councH, ECT, ESC, Internal audit and irvestment Commitment
and functional areas | forum
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Risk appatite and tolerance

Risk appetite at Elementis is understood

as being the amount of risk that the Board

is prepared to accept in returmn for reward

or investrnent return. There is a degree of
variability in determining risk appetite which
may be based on strategic objectives as well
as guidance from management or advisers
based on appropriate understanding

and analysis of the pature of the risk.

The strategic appetite for risk is therefore
decided on a case by case basis at Board
level, for example with respect to any
corporate transaction or significant capital
expenditure project, and delegated to the
executive team to implement as appropriate.
The maximurn risk that can be taken before
the Company experiences financial distress
is also decided at Board level and mitigated,
as far as possible by internal controls,
business continuity plans, insurance,
financial instruments and contracts.

Risk review process

The Board maintains an annual forward
planner to ensure that appropriate focus

is given at scheduled meetings to discuss.
review And moniter business performance,
strategic priorities, governance, compliance
and risk matters. This approach enables

the Board to engage directly with each

of the business units and functional
departmental leaders.

Each ELY member is responsible for
identifying, assessing and monitoring their
respective business and functional risks as
well a5 imeasuring the impact and lkelihood
of the risk to the business. Each identified
risk is categorised as strategic, commercial,
operational, financial or compliance.

On an annual basis, the ELT reviews
operational risks and the Board carries
out a review of the principal risks

and uncertainties.

During the year, the following risk
management activities Nave been
carted gut:

« Risk management policies and procedures
were reviewed and updated

« Talc risk register developed andintegrated
into the Efementis Group Risk Register

* Renewal of insurance programme

+ Board briefing on climate change risks
and preparation for reporting in line with
the recommendations of the Task Force
on Climate related Financial Disclosures
{TCFD}in 2021



Key areas of focus during the year

There have been no fundamental changes
to our principal risks and uncertainties
during 2019. Global macroeconomic factors
suchas increased political uncertainty,
trade tensions between the US and China,
Brexit and customer demand and supply
has weighed on the Group during the year.
Against this backdrop, Elementis has
continued to seek and maximise commercial
opportunities in order to optimise the
achievement of strategic objectives.

Key movements of principal risks during the
yearinclude increased risks refating to Risk
nurmbers 4 and 5 {see graph). The growth
expectations for the Group in existing and
new territories could be impacted as a result
of increasing regulatory compliance or
adverse regulatory developments that could
lead to product delays or hinder strategic
progress over a 12-24 month horizon.

Emerging risks

Emerging risks are identified through

the risk management framework and
ordinary course of business such as
monthly performance calls with each
business unit and function, ELT and Board
meetings, steering committees and
customerfmarket insight.

Brexit

During 2019, the Board continued to monitor
the impact of Brexit amidst a period of
political uncertainty. Management remains
of the view that the impact on the Group

is expected to be of fow materiality.

We continue 190 monitor the status of the
trading relationship between the EUand the
UK. A cross-functional teamisinplace to
assess potential risks and impacts so that
we can take appropriate action in relation

to our supply chain and customers.

Coronavirus (COVID-19)

Management continue to assess the
impact of the virus on the Company’s
ocperations and businesses. Aninternal
team has been established to ensure the
business is able to respond as and when
new information is available. Employees are
aware and understand how 1o report and
share localinsight with management.

Hygiene protocols are in place at each of
our manufacturing sites. Travel restrictions
are currently in place which will be reviewed
as necessary. Each of the business units

15 assessing the financialimpact as the
situation develops.

Our principal risks

1.

2,
3.

s

© W~

Climate change

Awareness and engagement of climate
change, sustainability and ESG matters
are gaining intensity amongst a number

Uncertain global economic conditions and competitive pressures in the market place
{inciuding currency movement).

Business interruption as a result of a major event or a natural catastrophe.

Business interruption as a result of supply chain failure of key raw materials and/on
3rd party service provision.

Increasing reguiatory and product stewardship challenges.

. Major reguilatory enforcement acticn, litigation and/or other claims arising from

products andfor historicat and ongoing operations.

. Intellectual property and know-how.
. Portfolic innovation and technology.

Talent management and succession planning.

. IT, Cyber and GDPR.

At present, we envisage that climate change
is not a specific risk category inits own right
rather, that it could have the ability to affect
specific principal risk categories.

of stakeholder groups. Using the TCFD
framework to map our physical and
transition risks and oppertunities will
enable us to analyse the financial impact
over amuch longer time horizon, 2020 will
be a year of preparation.

Annual Report and Accounts 2019 | Elementis ple 4%

vioda) afiejeng

SIUBLIALETS [EIURULY aoueuIsAnb sreiodios

uslieloLIBPIoY3IRYS



Risk management continued

Principal risks

Link to strategy

o Innovation o Growth o Efficiency

Readmore on page 14-19

and uncertainties

Uncertain global economic conditions
and competitive pressures in the market
place {inciuding from currency

Business interruption as aresultofa
major event (e.g. operations/HSE,
transport, workplace incident caused by

Business interruption as a result of
supply chain fallure of key raw materials
and/or third party service provision

movement) system failure and/or human error, or by
fire, storm and/or fiood, pandemic) ora
natural catastrophe
Link to strategic ° o o Link to strategic o o Link to strategic o o
objective objective objective
Link to business o® @ Link to business @ @ Link to business @ @
model model model
Link to KPls Read more on Link to KPis Read more on Link to KPlIs Read more on
page 22-23 page 22-23 page 22-23
Movement Movement Movement
Inyear inyear inyear
Description of risks Description of rigsks Description of risks

The performance of the specific end-user
markets we serve is affected by general economic
conditions. Adverse devetopments that may result
in a downturn in general @conamic conditions or
in the industries in which our customers operate
may include political uncertainty. retaliatory tariffs
of other disputes between trading partners.
Sub-optimal global economic conditions can
affect sales, raw material COStS, fluctuations in
foreign exchange rates, capacity, utifisation and
cash generation.

Increased competitive préssure in the
rmarketplace can result in Significant pricing
pressure and ioss of market share. The impact of
non-dalivery of operating Dians cantead to market
expectations of Group earnings not being met and
slower delivery of reported Strategic priofities.

The ability of the Group to manage its operations
successfully and achieve performance in line with
its strategy, business plans and budgets depends
onthe efficient and uninterrupted operation

of planning processes, operationat delivery
capabilities and internal control environment.
Production facifities may be subject to planned
and unplanned shutdowns, turnarounds and
outages including natural catastrophe, weather,
climate change. disruption associated with
transportation, utilities and distributors couid
result inincreased Costs in securing alternate
facilities, significant time ¢ increase production or
customer qualification,

The Group is dependent on numerous raw
materials from various sources. Inthe eventof a
iong term supply disruption or market volatility, it
may not be possible o secure sufficient supplies
of raw materials from aiternative sources on a
timely basis or in sufficient quantities or qualities
or on commercially reasonable terms. The lead
time and effort needed to establish a relationship
with a new suppfier could be lengthy and could
resultin additional costs, diversion of resources
and reduced production yields,

Controls and mitigating activities

- Financial performance {mornthly sales, profit and
cash flows}is closely monitored with full year
retorecasts updated twice 8 year and variances
investigated and explained

- Contingency and cost réduction plans can

beimplemented in the event of an economic

downturn 1o reduce operating costs, inciuding

non-essential capital expenditure items and

discretionary spend

Currency hedging action taken as appropriate

Global key account management programme

inplace to deepen how we work and grow with

our largest customers as weil as monitoring

customer performance and trends.

Balanced geographic footprint and supply chain

and broad differentiated product offering across

gifferent sectors

+

Cantrols and mitigating activities

= Preventative maintenance, critical spares.
process and other safety procedures to mitigate
the effects of a major incident

Property damage and business interruption
insurance coverage

Each site ig required to develop abusiness
continuity plan that includes emergency
respanse and business recovery protocols;
annual reviews, pericdic updates. training: and.
exercising the plan via periodic drilis or table
top exercises. We verify business continuity
compliance through the HSE auditing process.

+ Business continuity scenario planning overseen
by ELT

HSE management programme which intludes
corporate compliance audits andinsurance
property surveys

« HSE matters reviewed by ELT on 2 monthly basis

-

Controls and mitigating activities

* Preventative maintenance, critical spares.
process and other safety procedures to mitigate
the etfects of a major incident

* Property damage and business interruption
insurance coverage

+ implement annual review and periodic testing of
business continuity ptans at all sites

- Business continuity scenario planning overseen
by ELT

» HSE management programme which includes
corporate compliance audits and insurance
property surveys

* MSE reviewed by ELT ona monthly basis

Developments

= implementation of cost and operational
efficiency plans to reduce Operating cost.
inciuding non-essential Capital expenditure
iterns and discretionary spend

= Focus on pricing, margin management and new
business opportunities

* Maintain operational reliability

Developments
* Hurricane Florence insurance reimbursement

= Continued focus on operational reliability

*+ Risk engineering surveys carried out at Talc sites
and insurance programne integration

+ New finished goods warehouse at Castle Hayne
Lo mitigate against potential future climate
related events

+ COVID-19 response plan

Developments

= Supply chain contingency planning Lo mitigate
Brexit and/or other trade retated risks continualiy
updated to address changing environment

- Strategic supplier relatonships for caw materiats
proviged for lower raw material cost

« improved planning process ensurec appropriate
inventory levets

» Comtinued focus on qualification of new sources
of supply
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Link to business model Change inrisk
. . Saiesand Increasing Decreasing Nochange
° fenovations @ Gperations rnarketing risk profile risk profile inrisk profite

Read more on page 20-21

increasing reguiatory and product
stewardship chalignges

Major regulatory enforcement action,
litigation and/or other claims arising
from products and/or historical and

intellectual property and know-how

ongoing operation

Link to strategic o ° o Link to strategic o Link to strategic o
objective objective oblective

_Linkto business o @ @ Link to business @ @ Link to business o @ @
model model maodel
Link to KPIs Read more on Link to KPIs Read more on Linkto KPls Read more on

page 22-23 page 22-23 page 22-23
Movement Movement Movement
inyear inyear inyear
Description of risks Description ofrisks Description of risks

Emerging regulations in global markets canieadto
hurdies and additional costs to deliver on strategic
objectives. Non-caompliance and suspected
non-compliance could lead to reguiatory action,
The Group is subject to extensive and evolving risk
in multiple jurisdictions.

The global nature of the Group's operations
means that the Group is subject to awide range of
legistation and reguiation. including for exampile,
anti-bripery and anti-cornpetition legislation,
taxation, data privacy, ermployment andimport?
expart controfs.

Failure to comply can lead tolitigation, claims,
damages, fines and penaliies. The Group may

be invoived inlegal proceedings and claims

within the ordinary course of business including
legacy claims from businesses that have

been acquired or disposed of by the Group or
ongoing operations.

Adverse results inlegal proceedings could resultin
reputational and financial demages and diversion
of management time and resources.

Failure 1o adequately protect and preserve
inteflectual property and proprietary know how
in both existing and new markets could harm our
competitive position.

Controls and mitigating activities

* Global Product Stewardship team oversees,
manages, and monitors regulatory
developments in various jurisdictions.

+ Coordination with R&D team to enable 2
faster speed-to-market of new technologies
and applications.

» Safety Data Sheets. labels. and regulatory
information is provided for global customers
specific to the requirements in their jurisdiction.
Multiple languages are used to communicate
these requirements.

Controls and mitigating activities

= Active compliznce and risk management
programmes in place {including palicies.
procedures and iraining)

* Insurance programime and risk transfer strategy
inplace to mitigate potential fimancial losses

« Experienced General Counsel supported by in-
house and external legal teams

* Regular reviews of litigation and compliance
reports by the Beard and the Audit Committee
aswellas the internal audit programme help
ensure these key risks are managed effectively

* Business processes are supported by HR
policies and the Code of Conduct

= Data Protection Steering Committee meets
regularly to oversee compiiance with applicable
data privacy laws

Controls and mitigating activities
= Experienced General Counsel supported by in-
house and externallegalteams

» Employment and computer policies {supported
by training) enstire employees are made aware
of their pbligations relating to confidential
information and access controls to protect HR
processes in place 1o ensure new hires undergo
appropriate background and reference checks

+ Trademark and patent watch lists

« [itigation and compliance reports reviewed by
Audit Committee and Board

Developments

= Brexit pianning for uninterrupted supply in
Europe and UK

» Successful implernentation of Korea REACH.
Turkey REACH. and Russia REACH

= Integration of Talc business into product
stewardship programs

+ Continued expansicn of ISO 16128 Naturat and
COSMOS product offerings

Developments

* Internat audit of GDPR processes and
completeness assessmentin the event of a
GDPR event

* Audit of alt policy universe & policy protacots.

* Review of internal controls in China and Taiwan
and health checks completed relating to the
financial controls withinthe Talc business,

Developments
» Freedomto operate practices for all new
productinnovations

« Patent and Intellectual Property disclosures to
keep distinction in our new launches

+ Increased partnerships with key technology
leaders under confidentiality agreements

» Monitoring competitive Intefiectuat Property
landscape for our segments

« Actively enforcing our proprietary advantages
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Risk management continued

Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Portfolio innovation and technology Talent management and IT, Cyber and GDPR
succession planning
Link to strategic oo Link to strategic ° o Link to strategic o
objective objective objective
Link to business o @@ Link to business o@ @ Link to business @@
modet model model
Link to KPis Read more on Link to KPls Readmore on Link to KPls Read mere on
page 22-23 page 22-23 page 22-23
Movement Movement Movement
inyear Inyear inyear
Description of risks Description of risks Description of risks

The ability of the Group to competeis

highly dependent on its ability to meet the
changing needs of customers and keep

pace with technologica! innovations and
sustainability trends.

New or substitute products and technologies
developed by competitors could erode the
Group’s abitity to compete and lead to declines in
sales and market share.

The Group operates in highly competitive
labour markets and relies upon the expertise
and services of talented individuals and teams
to succeed. Loss of key people or disryption
teteams without timely action could resultin a
disruption {0 business operations.,

The Group is expected to increasingly rety on IT
systerns for its internal communications. controls,
reporting and relationships with customers and
suppliers. A significant disruption could cause
delays to key operations and nability to maet
customers’ requirements and result inincreased
operating costs, legal liability and reputational
damage. Inaddition, GDPR has created a range

of new compliance obligations with increased
financial penalties for non-compliance.

Controls and mitigating activities

* Globai R&D team aims to develop new
products and technologies used in anevalving
market to meet the changing needs of our
sophisticated customers

« Coflaborative relatiunships with customers and
industry formutalors ensures cur efforts are
aligned with iatest market trends

« Innovation stage gate process with systematic
prioritisation enables the Group to deliver high
value solutions for the market

= Hectorite and high quality talc minerals
are natural resources enabling the
Group to consistently deliver high
performance innovation

Contrals and mitigating activities

= Formai tafent and succession management
programmes in place with indivigual
davelopment goals reviewed

« Succession 10 the ELT reviewed with the Board

* Global Talent Director supports the CHRO with
focus on Talent

* HR systems functionality for performance
management and compensation planning

* Forrmal system for job grading and
compensation benchmarking in place
supported by external expertise

Controls and mitigating activities

* Security controls including policies and
procedures, staff awareness and training.
risk management and compiiance.
systems and information management and
protection process

» RegularIT, cyber and GDPR updates to the Board

+ Business ¢ontinuity and emergency
response plans are in place at each of our
manufacturing sites

+ Internal audits are scheduled on aregular basis

Developments
= 13 new productfaunchesin 2019

>25 planned for 2020

New KPI's measuring Distinctive Product
Innovation sates

“Sustainability” Innovation pipeline

Synergistic combinations of
existing technologies

Leveraging Hectorite and Talc backward
inmegration inte owr pipeline

* Market adjacencies expansions

Developments

= Qrgerly transition of new incumbents to SVP's
of Technology. Supply Chain and Strategy/
Trangformation completed.

+ Key talent from Mondo acquisition retained and
developed into broader Elementis roles.

* Talent and succession planning process
reviewed with ELT and updated to include
succession to critical Level 3 roles.

» Employee experience survey launched
to gain feedback on talent and
development opportunities

Developments

» Cyber security maturity workshop carried out

* Continued focus on cyber risk and
security protocols

« GDPR completeness assessment carried out by
Internal audit function

+ implementation of single-sign on/multi-
{actor authentication
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Viability and going
concern statement

Going Concern

The Directors have assessed the

Group as a going concem, having given
considerationto factors likely to affect its
future performance and development,
the Group’s financial position and the
principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, including the Group's exposure
to credit, liquidity and market riskand the
mechanisms for dealing with these risks.

The Group's net debt position at the 2019
year endwas $454.2m. [thas access to

a syndicated revolving credit facility of
$375mwith an expiry date of September
2024 andiong term loan facilities of
$200m and €172m which have an expiry
date of September 2023.

Under this principal borrowing facility,
the Group performs covenant tests for
net debtEBITDA ratio and interest cover.
No breaches inthe required covenant
tests were reported during the year.

The Group also uses various short and
medium term forecasts to monitor
anticipated future compflance and these
incluce stress testing assumptions

to identify the headroom onthese
covenant tests.

The Directors are satisfied that,

after considering all of the above, it

is appropriate for the Group and the
Company to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing these
Group anc parent company financlal
statements, and that there are no materiat
uncertainties to the abiiity of the Group
and Company to continue to do so over a
period of at least 12 months from the date
of approval of the financial statements.

Business Viability
Assessment

The basis cf the assessment includes a
detailed review of strategic and operating
plans, underpinned by one and three
year financial forecasts including profit
and loss and cash flows. Considerationis
therefore given to capital expenditures,
investment plans, retumns to shareholders
and other financial commitments, as

well as to the Company’s debt bearing
capacity, its financial resources.
borrowlngs and the availability of finance.
No review of business plans and

financial forecasts ts complete without
arobust assessment of the risks and
opportunities in such planning models
and the assurnptions used. These reviews
include consideration and discussion of
the materials prepared and presented to
the Board by management and its advisers
(where appropriate), as well as additional
information requested by the Board.

The Board's programme of monitoring
major risks is therefore, an important
component of the business viabllity
assessment. Business and segment growth
scenarios, rate of return oninvestments,
assumptions on global GDP growth rates,
relevant currency rates, commodity prices
in business plans and financial forecasts
are all considered, with stress testing on
financial models where appropriate. Finally.
areview of litigation and tax reports, legal
and compliance risks throughout the year
and at a formal year endrisk review ensures
that the viability statement Is made witha
reasonable degree of confidence.

Principal risks

For each principal risk thatis deemed tobe
both permanent and have a high impact,

a severe but plausible scenario has been
considered. In making the business viabllity
statement the Board has reviewed and
discussed the overall process undertaken
by management and has assessed the
outcome of the stress-testing, carried

out using the Group's three-year financial
forecast as the base case.

The three-year financial forecast considers
the Group's cash flows, interest cover,

Net Debt:EBITDA covenant ratio and

cther key financial ratios over the period.
These metrics are assessed against the
Group Risk Register to determine the most
impactful ones to stress test against. and
this is carried out to evaluate the potential
impact of the Group’s principal risks actually
occurring. Based on the results of its review
and as set out above, the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Group will
be able to continue in operationand meetits
liabilities as they fall due over the three-year
period of their assessment.
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Business Viability
statement

In accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code provision 31, the
Directors have reviewed the Group's
current position and carried out a robust
assessment of the principal risks and
uncertainties that might threaten the
business model, future performance,
solvency and liquidity of the Group,
Including resilience to such threats, and
consider that they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able
to continue In operation and meet its
liabilities as they falt due over a period of
atleast three years.

A period of three years was chosen

as being consistent with the Group's
business and financial planning models,
R&D plans. a number of key supply
contracts and externat borrowing
facilities. Inaddition, three years Is the
period used for mid-term business
planning purposes. Whilst the Directors
have noreason to belleve that the Group
wili not be viable over alonger period, a
three year period allows the Directors
to make the viability statement with
areasonable degree of confidence
whilst providing shareholders with

an appropriate longer term outlook.

The Directors’ viability assessment

of the Group's prospectsis based on
reviews of annual operating and three
year business plans, bank covenant
compliance forecasts, including
sensitivities, the Group's strategy and
strategic priorities, principal risks and
how these are managed and mitigated.
How these reviews were carried out, the
principat risks and how they are being
managed are more fully described and
explained in the Principal Risks and
Uncertainties section on pages 5Cto
52, together with relevant assumptions
and qualifications.

Strategic Report

The Strategic report was approved by the
Board of Directors on 4 March 2020 and

is signed on its behalf by:
RLa— Mloe e
PaulWaterman  Ralph Hewins CEO
CFQ
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Viability and going
concern statement

Going Concern

The Directors have assessedthe

Group as a2 going concern, having given
consideration to factors likely to affectits
future performance and development,

financial forecasts is complete without
arobust assessment of the risks and
opportunities in such planning rmodels
and the assumptions used. These reviews
include consideration and discussion of
the materials prepared and presented to

Business Viability

statement

In accorgdance with the UK Corporate

Governance Code provision 31, the

podsaafieiens
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Directors have reviewed the Group's
current position and carried out a robust
assessment of the principal fisks and
uncertainties that might threaten the
business model, future performance,

the Group's financial position and the
principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, including the Group’s exposure
to credit, liguidity and market risk and the

the Board by management andits advisers
{where appropriate), as well as additional
information requested by the Board.

The Board's programme of monitoring

SJUSLLIALELS eIDUBLIS

mechanisms for dealing with these risks,

The Group's net debt position at the 2018
year end was $454.2m. It has access to

a syndicated revolving credit facility of
$375m with an expiry date of September
2024 and long term loan facilities of
$200m and €172m which have an expiry
date of September 2023,

major risks is therefore, animportant
component of the business viability
assessment. Business and segment growth
scenarios, rate of return on investments,
assumptions on global GDP growth rates,
refevant currency rates, commaodity prices
inbustness plans and financial forecasts
are afl considered, with stress testing on

solvency and liquidity of the Group,

including resitience to such threats, and
consider that they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group wil! be able
to continue inoperation and meet its
lhabilities as they fall due over a period of

at least three years.

A period of three years was chosen

as being consistent with the Group's
business and financial planning models,
R&D plans, a number of key supply
contracts and external borrowing
facilities. In addition. three years is the
period used for mid-term business
planning purposes. Whilst the Directors
have no reason to beheve that the Group
will not be viable over a longer period, 8
three year period alfows the Directors
to make the viability statement with
areasonable degree of confidence
whilst providing shareholders with

an appropriate longer term outiook.
The Directors’ viability assessment

of the Group's prospects is based on
reviews of annual gperating and three
year business plans, bank covenant
compliance forecasts, including
sensitivities. the Group's strategy and
strategic priorities, principal risks and
how these are managed and mitigated.
How these reviews were carried out, the

financial models where appropriate. Finally,
areview of litigation and tax reports, legal
and compliance risks throughout the year
and at a formal year end risk review ensures
that the viabtlity statementis madewith a
reasonable degree of confidence.

Under this principal borrowing facility,
the Group performs covenant tests for
net debtEBITDA ratio andinterest cover.
No breaches in the required covenant
tests were reported during the year.

The Group also uses various short and
medium term forecasts to monitor
anticipated future compliance and these
include stress testing assumptions

to identify the headroom on these
covenant tests.

Principal rigks

For each principal risk that is deemed to be
both permanent and have a high impact,

a severe but plausible scenario has been
considered. In making the business viability
staterment the Board has reviewed and
discussed the overall process undertaken
by management and has assessedthe
outcome of the stress-testing, carried

out using the Group's three-year financial
forecast as the base case.

The Directors are satisfied that,

after considering all of the above. it

is appropriate for the Group and the
Company to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing these
Group and parent company financial
statements, and that there are no material
uncertainties to the ability of the Group
and Company to continue to do soover a
period of at least 12 months fromthe date
of approval of the financial statements.

The thvee-year financial forecast considers
the Group's cash flows, interest cover.

Net Debt:EBITDA covenant ratio and

other key financial ratios over the period.
These metrics are assessed against the

3 H H 1 Group Risk Register 10 determine the most principal risks and how they are being
BUSIHGSS Vlablllty impactful ones to stress test against, and managed are more fully described ang
Assessment this is carried out to evaluate the potential explained in the Principal Risks and

impact of the Group's principal risks actually
oceurring. Based on the results of its review
and as set out above, the directorshave a
reasonable expectation that the Group will
be able to continue in operation and meet its
liabilities as they fait due gver the three-year
period of their assessment.

Uncertainties section on pages 50 1o
52, together with relevant assumptions
and qualifications.

The basis of the assessmentincludes a
detafled review of strategic and operating
plans, underpinned by one and three
year financial forecasts including profit
and loss and cash fiows, Consideration is
therefore given to capital expenditures,
investrent plans, returns to shareho'ders
and other financial commitments, as

well as te the Company’s debt bearing
capacity, its financial resources,
borrowings and the availability of finance.
No review of business ptans and

Strategic Report

The Strategic report was approved by
the Board of Directors on 4 March 2020
and is signed on its behalf by:

PaulWaterman  RalphHewins
CEC CFO
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Corporate governance

Chairman’s Corporate
Governance Statement

Andrew Duff
Chairman

lam pleased to present our Governance
report for the year ended 31 December 2019
inaccordance with the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code {the Code). The report

on pages 60 to 71 sets out pur approachto
governance, our key areas of focus during
the year, our ways of working and how we, as
your Board, remain effective as stewards of
your company.

Board leadership and effectiveness
Together with the support of the Group
Company Secretary, we conducted an
internal review of Board effectiveness.

am delighted to confirm that your board
represents a strong mix of skills, experience,
diversity and knowledge and that each
board member continues to demonstrate
and effectively contribute to board affairs.
Further information relating to the evaluation
process and areas for development can be
found on page 70.

Understanding our business

During the year, the Board visited operations
in Finland, Amsterdam and Shanghai.

The Board were delighted to visit our Talc
sites for the first time following the acquisition
in October 2018. The Board were impressed
with the quality of the operations at our
Finland and Amsterdam sites.

In October, the Board visited our Shanghai
site to deepenits understanding of the
business in Asia. The Board were keen to
meet new management ang understand
how the marketplace had evolved since
the last visit in 2016.

Purpose, Culture, Strategy and Values
The Board considered the Code
requirements during the year and several
discussions took place on the development
of the company’s purpose, how the

Board assess culture and ensures that

the strategy and values are appropriate.
Further information can be found onpage 64.

Diversity

The Board is cormmitted to actively promoting
diversity inits broadest sense and recognises
the benefits to the business of bringing
avariety of perspectives and thought
leadership o senior management and Board
decisions. We seek to maintain a Board with
awide range of skills, expertise, backgrounds
and experiences of which ethnicity and
gender diversity play a role. Interms of gender
batance, we are proud to report that women
represent 37.5% of the Board's composition.

Stakeholder engagement

it is each directors’ duty to promate the fong-
term success of the Company and during
the year, the Board considered stakeholder
views in taterial decision making processes.
Further information on how the Board
considers and engages with stakeholders
can be found onpages 8Band €3,

Workforce engagement

In October 2019, the Board approved
the appointment of Sandra Boss as
Designated Non-Executive Director
for workforce engagement.

Sandra reviews and monitors employee
insight driven by the employee engagement
survey and participates in an engagernent
programme which includes a variety of
engagerment channels such as focus
groups, town hall meetings and employee
engagement data. Sandra reports on
engagement activities and employee
sentiment to the Board and we strongly believe
that this adds an additional perspective to
board matters whenwe make decisions that
mayhave a significant impact on employees.
Further information regarding the role and
activities planned for 2020 are on page B3,

Succession

During the year, as part of the Board's
ongoing succession planning processes,
we announced that Nick Salmon, our Senior
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Independent Director would be stepping
down from the Board at the 2020 AGM.
Following a thorough recrustment process
led by the Nomination Committee, John
O'Higgins was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director with effect from 4 February 2020
and will become Senior Independent Director
following the AGM. John is currently a non-
executive diector of Johnson Matthey plc
and Oxford Nanopore Technologies Limited.

For further information on the recruitment
process, and John's biography, please refer
to pages 73 and 57 respectively.

Accountability

The Board acknowiedges its responsibility
to give a fair, balanced and understandable
view of the business' financial position

and future prospects. On behalf of the
Board, at the recommendation of the

Audit Committee based onits assessment
detailed on page 77, | confirm that we believe
the 2019 Annual Report presents a fair,
balanced and understandable assessment
of the Company's position, its perfarmance
and its prospects as well as its business
model and strategy.

Annual General Meeting

As gver, | am gratefui to you, our
sharehgiders for your continued supgport
and ook forward to welcoming you at our
AGM where you will have the opportunity
to meet with the Chairs of the Board
Committees and senior management.
The AGM will be held on Wednesday, 29th
April 2020 at 9am at the offices of Herbert
Smith Freehills LLP, Exchange House,
Prirrose Street. London EC2A 2EG.

Andrew Duff
Chairman

Compliance statement

The Financiai Reporting Council requires
listed cornpanies to disclose whether they
have complied with the provisions of the
UK Corporate Governance Code (Code)
throughout the financial year. The Code
provides the standard for corporate
governance in the UK.

Fer this Annual Repert and Accounts we
are reporting inaccordance with the 2018
Code requirements and we describe how
we have applied the main principles and
complied with the provisions, for the whole
of the year ended 31 December 2018, on
our website: www.efementis.com

The Code canbe accessed at
www.frc.org.uk,



Board of Directors

Key 10 Committee membership
A Audit Committee

N Nomination Commitiae

R Remuneration Committee

* Chaicman of the Committee

Andrew Duff Paul Waterman Ralph'Hewins
Chairman CEO CFO
Tenure Tenure Tenure

Andrew joined the Board as & Non-Executive
Director and Deputy Cheirman on 1 Aprit 2014
and was appointed Non-Exe cutive Chairman in
April 2014

Experience and role

Andrew has significant boardroom experience
gained from serving as a director and chairman of
a number of UK and international cormpanies. This,
combined with experience in the manufacturing,
energy and utilities sectors, enables Andrew to
effectively lead the Board and deliver value to
sharghoiders and other stakeholders.

From 2003 unti 2008, Andrew was chief executive
officer of npower, the successor entity 10 Innogy pic
which in 2000 was dernerged from National Power,
restructured and then sold 1o RWE, the German
electricity and gas company. He was also a member
of the RWE's executive committee. Betfore this, he
spent 16 years at BP in downstream international
markets. Andrew was g non-executive director of
wolseley pic. the intarnational plumbing and building

" materials company, between 2004 and 2013, where
he was also the senior independent director and
¢chairrnan of the remuneration committee.

Andrew holds a 85¢ (Honours) degree in
Mechanical Engineering and is a Fetiow of
the Energy Institute.

Paut was appointed CEQ on 8 Febryary 2016.

Experience and role

Paul has a proven track record in developing
markets, products and opportunities for creating
value, business optimisation and transformation.
Paul's global experience provides the siil set
required to deliver the Company's strategy and
provide inspiring leagdership,

Prior to joining Elementis, Paul was global CEO

of the BP Lubricants business in 2073 after

having overseen the BF Australia/New Zealand
downstream business. in 2010, Paul was country
president of BP Australia. Prior to this he was CEQ
of BP's globai aviation, industrial, marine and energy
lbricants businesses {2009 1 2010) and CEO of
BP Lubricants Americas (2007 to 2009). He joined
BP after it acquired Burmah-Castrol in 2000. having
joined the latter in 1994 after roles at Reckitt
Benchiser and Kraft Foods.

Paul holds a BSc degree in Packaging Engineering
from Michigan State University and an MBA in
Finance and International Business from New York
University, Stem School of Business.

Ralph was appainted CFO-Designate and

Executrve Director on 12 September 2016
and became the Elementis Group CFQ on

1 November 2016.

Exparience and role

Ralph iz an accompiished CFO who has a strong
track record in finance, strategy development and
implementation and MBA which enables him to
provide effective financiat leadership to underpin
the delivery of the Company’s strategy.

Raiph had a 30 year career with BP. where he held a
number of significant ieadership positions. including
roles in financial management, sales and marketing,
corporate developraent, MAA, stiateyy arkd
planning. In 2010, Ralph was CFO of BP Lubricants
and served on the board of Castrol India Limited
from 2010 until 2016.

Ralph holds an MA degree in Modern Higtory and
Ecanomics from the University of Oxford and an
MBA from INSEAD,

Committee membership
N*

Committee membership

Committee membership

External appointments

Non-executive chairman of Severn Trent

pic {from July 2010) and chairman of the
nominations committee and mermber of the
corporate responsibility committee and
remuneration committee. {(He will be $tepping
down from the Severn Trent board in April 2020.)
Non-axecutive director of UK Government
Investments Ltd (UKGH) (from July 2019). UKG is
responsibie for the portfolio of over 20 arm's
length bodies and for detivering arange of
corporate finance advice to the UK government
* Member of the CBj President’s Committee

« Trustee of Macmillan Cancer Support

External appointments
None

External appointments
None

Nationality
British

Nationality
American

Nationality
British
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Corporate governance

Board of Directors continued

Nick Salmon
Senior Independent Director

Sandra Boss

independent Non-Executive Director and
Designated Non-Executive Director for
warkforce engagement

Dorothee Deuring
Independent Non-Executive Director

Tenure

Nick was appointed 3 Non-Executive Director
on 20 October 2014 and became Senior
Independent Director on 16 Decernber 2014,
He will be stepping down from the Board at the
AGM in Aprit 2020.

Experlence androle

Nick has extensive experience gained from non-
executive roles and as an accomplished executive
in specialty chemicals, utility and engineering
sectors. He has heen responsible forleading
several major restructuring projects and negotiating
complex acquisitions and disposals which is highty
valuatle in Board debates.

Nick was chief exacutive of Cookson Group pic
from July 2004 1o December 2012 when Cookson
demerged to create two new listed companies,
Vesuvius plc and the specialty chemicals company,
Alent plc. Nick was formerly executive vice-
president of Alstom S.A. and chief executive of
Babcock International Group pic. He held other
senior management positions at GEC and GEC
Alsthom and the China Light and Power Cormpary,
Previous non-executive director roles include
United Utilities plc from 2005 to 2014, where he
was also senior independent director from 2007
onwards and non-executive director at Interserve
plc from 2014 to 2019,

Nick holds a BSc degree in Mechanical
Engineering and is a Fellow of the Royal Acaderny
of Engineering.

Tenure

Sandra was appointed a Non-Executive Director
on 1 February 2017. Sandra was appointed

as Designated Non-Executive Director for
workforce engagement in October 2019,

Experience androle

Sandra brings strategic advisory and corporate
finance experience gained as a consuliant 1o
complex global companies on transformational
change. Her knowledge of financiat global markets
ang econamic matters, alongside risk management
in regutated industries provides the Board with
valuable insight.

Sandra was a senior partner at McKinsey &
Company from 2005 to 2014 land a partner from
2000). where she specialised in investment banking
and risk, and held several senior management
pasitions in the United Kingdom and the United
States. At McKinsey, Sandra acted as an adviser
G global financial institutions, corporates and
public sector badies on awide range of strategic,
operational and policy issues, Sandra has held
other non-executive and advisory appointments
with the Institute of International Finance, the
McKinsey Master Retirement Trust and the Edith
Wharton Restoration,

Sandra has a BA degree in American Studies and
Economics from Stanford University and an MBA
from Harvard Busingss School.

Tenure
Dorothee was appointed 2 Non-Executive
Director on 1 March 2017.

Experience and role

Dorothee provides the Board with valuable
insight into the wider European chemicals and
industrial sectors as well as sector specific
acquisition expertise.

Dosothee manages her own corporate advisory
gonsultancy serving a number of European clients
in the pharmal/biotech sector. She is active in
various industry bodies. Her previous executive
rotes included managing director and head of
Corporate Advisory Group (Europe) at UBS in
Zurich, head of M&A chemicals and heatthcare

at a private investment bank in Germany and

as a3 senior executive in the corporate finance
department at the Roche Group.

Dorothee holds a master's degree in Chemistry
from the Université Louis Pasteur, Strasbourg and
an MBA frorm INSEAD.

Committee membership
ANR

Committes membership
AN R

Committes membership
A.NR

External appointments

+ Independent chairman of South East Water
Limited (from April 2015}

= Non-exacutive director of Scotia Gas Networks
Lt {from March 2019)

Externaf appeointments -

+ External member of the Aankof England’s
Prudential Regulation Committee {frorm
Septernber 2014} and anindependent member
of its RTGS/CHAPS board which oversees
the UK's high value payment system, chair of
the RTGS/CHAPS board risk committee and
member of the RTGS renewal committee

- Anon-executive director of Enstar Group
Limited (from November 2015}, chairman
of the risk committee and a member of the
compensation and nominating committees.
{She will be stepping gown from the Enstar
Group Board on 31 March 2020}

External appointments

+ Non-executive director of the supervisory board
of Bitfinger SE (from May 2016) and member of
the audit committee

+ Non-executive director of AXPO Holding AG
{from March 2017}

+ Non-executive director of PIQUR Therapeutics
AG (from May 2019)

« Non-executiva director of Selecta Group {from
January 2020)

« Mominated as non-executive director of tonza
Group AG {subject to shareholder approvatin
Apri) 2020}

Nationality
British

Nationality
British/American

Nationality
Austrian
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Key to Committee membership
A Audit Commitiee

N Nomination Committee

R Rermumerstion Committee

* Chairman of the Committee

Steve Good
Independent Non-Executive Director

Anne Hyland
Independent Non-Executive Dicector

John O'Higgins
Independent Non-Executive Director

Tenure

Steve wag appointed a Noh-Executive DireGlor
on 20 October 2014 and became Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee in Aprit 2017,

Experience and role

Steve has strong and relevant international
experience in specialty chernicals businesses.
manufacturing and diverse industrial markets

which enables him to provide guidance and
challange to management, Steve's involement with
remuneration committees in other organisations
enables him to provide judgement and demonstrate
sound knowledge of topical remuneration matters in
his capacity 8s Rernuneration Committee chair.

Steve was chief executive of Low & Bonar pic
between September 2009 and September 2074,
Prior 1o that role, he was managing director of its
technical texties division (2006-20049), director of
new business 2005-2006), and managing director
of its plastics dision (2004-2005). Priorto Low &
Bonar. he spent 10 years with BTP pie {now part

of Clariant) in a variety of teadership positions
managing intemational speciatty chemicats
businesses. Steve has previously Served as non-
executive director and chairman of the remuneration
comrnittée of Cape pic (2015-2017) and non-
executive director of Anglian Water Services and

member of the audit. nomination and remuneration  *

committges (2015-2018).

Tenure

Anne was appaointed 2 Non-Executive Director
on 1 June 2013 and became Chairman of the
Audit Committes in August 2013

Experience androle

Anne brings significant and current fingncial, internat
controls, audit and tax expertise to the Board which
engbles her to be effective in her role as Audit
Committee chair, Anne's background with global
campanies enables her to effectively contribute in
the context of Elementis’ existing markets and new
tsingss opportunities.

Anne is currently CFO of Kymiab Group Ltd, 2 bio-
pharmaceutical company funded by the Wellcome
Trust and the Bilt & Melinda Gates Foundation.

Prior to her current executive role, she was CFO and
company secretary of both BBI Diagnostics Group
Ltd and Vectura Group pIC, Frevious senior finance
positions held include director of corporate finance
at, the then FTSE 100, Celitech Group pic, Medeva
pic and KPMG,

Anne holds a degree in Business Siudies from
“Trinity Coflege, Dublin and is a chartered accountant

_ {FCA) and a corporate tax adviser (CTA-AITIL

Tenure

Johnwas appointed a Non-Executive Director
on 4 February 2020 ang will becorne Senior
Independent Director following the conclusion
of the 2020 AGM.

Experience androte

John brings strong Strategic and operational
experience gained from his CEQ role at Spectris
ole (January 2006 to Septermbier 2018), leading
the business through a period of significant
strategic transformation and development. John's
background in global markets, chernicals and
manufacturing will enable him to provide valuable
knowledge and guidance to the Board.

Prior to Spectris plc, John spent 14 years at
Honeywell International in 2 number of senior
management roles including Chairman of Honeywell
Aytomation india ang President of Automation

& Control for Asia-Pacific. His early career was
spent at Daimfer Benz AL as a research and
development engineer.

Previous non-executive director rofes inciude
Exide Technologies, 2 US based suppher of battery
technology to automotive and industrial users
from 2010 to 2015).

John holds a master's degree in Mechanical
Engineering from Purdue University (USA) and
an MBA from INSEAD.

Committee membership
RN

Committee membership
At N

External appointments

» Non-executive chairman of Zotefoams plc

{non-executive drector from October 2014

and chairman from April 2016} and chairman of

he nomination ¢committee and member ol the

remuneration committee

Non-executive chairman of Devro pic from

June 2019}

Non-executive director of Dialight pic (from

June 2018} and member of the nominations.

committee and remuneration committee (He will

be stepping down from the Dialight plc Board on

31 March 2020)

= Director of Low & Bonar Pension Trustee Lid
{from Juty 2018}

Nationality
British

External appointments

* Non-executive director of Clinigen Group
pic from Janvary 2018) and chairman of the
audit committee

» CFO of Kymab Group Ltd (from March 2015}

Committee membership
AN R

Externalappointments
= Trustee of the Wincott Foundation
* Member of the Corporate Advisory Board of
Great Ormond Street Hospital Children’s Charity
= Non-executive director of Oxlord
Nanopore Technologies
* Non-executive director of Jahnson Matthey
pic and amerber of the audit, nominalion and
remuneration commitiees

Nationality
irish

Nationality
frish
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Corporate governance

Executive Leadership team

4_MarciBrand

1. Paul Waterman 2. Ralph Hewins 3. Luc Van Ravenstein
CEOD CFQ SVP Global Caatings SVP Global Personal Care
and Energy
Full biography can be found Fuli biography can: be found Yenure Tenure
on page 55. oh page 56. Joined Elementis in 20712 Joined Elerentis in 2018
Basad Based
New Jersey. US New Jersey, US
Experience androle Experience and role

Luc is responsible for leading

the Global Coatings and Energy
businesses. As the transformation
programme in Global Coatings was
completed in 2079, Luc’s focusin
2020 will be to drive the execution of
our growth strategies as faid outin
our recent capital markets day.

Luc started his career st Bementis
Ieading the Personal Care and
Surfactants businesses following
leadership pasitions at specialty
chemicals company Croda.

Luc has an MSc degree in Chemistry
and Chemical Engineering and a
Professional Doctorate in Engineering
from Eindhoven University

of Technology.

Marciis responsible for the Personal
Care business which includes the
Cosmetics, AP Actives and Pharma
businesses. As SVP Globa! Personal
Care, Marci's focus is on directing the
Personal Care sales and rmarketing
teams and driving synergies in the
business following the acquisitions
of SummitReheis {201 7) and

Mondoe [2018).

This rofe follows her 35 years'
experience at BP in marketing and
sales leadership roles developing
strategic busine$s opportunities
in both businass, b2b and

b2c erwironments.

Marci holds a BSc degree in
Marketing from Seton Hall University
and is a graduate of the Sales and
Marketing Executive Programme from
the Kellogg School of Busingss at
Northwestern University.
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5. Christian Kather
SVP Global Talc

6. Eric Waldmann
SVP Giobal Chromiym

7. Steve Ridge
SVP Global Supply Chain &

8.Joe Lupia
SVP Global Technology

Manufacturing

Taenure Toenure Tenure ' Tenuse

Joined Elementis in 2018 Joined Eiementis in 2007 Joined Elementis in 2019 Joined Elementis in 2019
Based Based Based Based
Amsterdam, Netherlands New Jersey, US New Jersey. US New Jersey, US
Experience and role Exaperience androle Experience and role Experience and role
Christian has led the Talc business Eric is responsible for the keadership Steve brings to Elernentis his solid Joe joined in 2019 to run Globat
since 2011, having joined Mondo of aur global Chromiurm ageratian experience in overseeing a globat R&D and Product Stewardship.
in 2010, Following the acquisition which includes the commaercial team manufacturing and supply chain His former Commercial experences
of Mondo he is currently focusing and strategic sourcing. foolpring. With a proven track enable him to ensure our innovation

on growing the Tale husiness on
a global basis and delivering the
integration synergies.

Previpusly Christian worked as
Senior Vice President & General
Manager at Evonik Degussa Corp.,, in
Parsippany, N There he was heading
the Business Unit Coatings and
Additives and was responsible for the
global pigment dispersion business.
Before that he held a number of
Senior executive pasitions with the
Degussa Group, both in Europe and
the USA_

He has a busingss education from
Harvard Business School and insead
and a PhD in International Law from
the University of Munster, Gertnany.

Eric: has held a number of roles in our
Chromiurn business, most recently
as VP Fnance and Sourcing. Prior to
joining Etementis, Eric’s experience
was focused in the areas of finance,
accounting, mergers and acquisitions
and sourcing.

Eric holds a bachelor's degree in
tusiness administration from Buckned
University, and an MBA from Villanova
Umversity Eric is a member of the
intermational Chromium Development
Association ICDA) Councd, which
overseas and sets the strategy for
promoting the value and sustainability
of chromiurn and represents the
chromium industry woridwidle.

record of leading international

teams and a passion for safety and
continuous improverment, Steve
drives a strong safety cutture and
operational excellence across all of
Elemnentis’ facilities around the world,
Steve is responsible for supply chain,
manufacturing, capital projects,
procurement, quality and health

and safety.

Steve joined Elementis from

FMC where he was the giobal
manufacturing diector. Priof to FMC,
Steve was the global EHS and
Operational Excellence Director

at Celanese.

Steve earned a master's degree
in Cheminal Fngineening from

pipetine is capable of delivering both
technical and financial success.

Joe is responsible for coliaborating
with the buginess leaders to
develop new technologies that
enhance our customers’ product
performance as it pertains to the:
quality. sustainability and efficiency

© needs of our partners. He is also

responsible for product stewardship
and sustainability matters,

Joe has 30 years’ experience in the
chermicals industry and joined us from
BASF where he had many different
technical and commercial roles over
his 24 year tenure.

Joe has a Ph.D. in Qrganic Chermistry
from Seton Halt University.

Texas A&M University and a
batchelors degree in Chemistry
and Mathermatics from Flodida
Southem College.
9. Ajeeth Enjeti’ 10. Chris Shepherd 11. Walker Allen 12, Laura Higgins
SVP Strategy Chief Human General Counsel and Chief Group Company Secretary
and Transformation Resources Officer Compliance Officer
Tenure Tenure Tenure Tenure
Joined Elementis in 2018 Joined Elementis in 2017 Joined Elementis in 1999 Joined Elementis in 2018
Based Based Based Based
Amsterdam, Nethenands Landon, UK New Jorsey, US t.ondon. UK
Experience and role Experience and roje Experience and rofe Experience and role
Ajeethjoined Elementis as part of the  Chris leads the Group Human Walker leads the Group's Legal Laura is the Group's Company

Mondo Minerals acguisition and leads
the Strategy and Transformation
agenda for the Company. Previousty,
Ajeeth was COC and a board member
0f Mondo Minerals (now Elementis
Talc). where he was part of the
leadership team that led the Mondo
Minerais transformation into a higher
vaiue company.

Prior {0 Mondo, Ajeeth was a strategy
consultant with Bain & Company,
overseeing major strategic projects
for Fartune 500 corporations.

Earlier in his career, Ajeeth also held
various senior commercial roles at
rmultinationats such as PepsiCo and
IBM in Asia and the Middle East.

Ajeeth eamad his MBA from IMD
{Switzerdand) and holds a master's
degree in Marketing and a bachelor's
degree in Electrical Engineering.

Resources and Communications
function and is responstie for
tatent, succession, HR operations,
reward programmes and internal
communications. Chris’ focus s
on embedding the Company's
culture and values throughout the
organisation, geveloping internal
tatent and standardising aur globat
people processes.

Chrig has over 20 years” experience
of global human resources gained
ina mix of privately held US and UK
listed pics with the first 12 years

of his career in manufacturing and
supply chain.

Chris holds an MEng in Mechanical
Engineering from the University
of Liverpool.

function with global responsibility

for alllegai matters within the
Groupinclugding fitigation, M&A and
intellectual property matters. As Chief
Compliance Officer, Walker's remit
includes oversight of the Group's
cornpliance programime including

the development of our Group
comptiance pulicies and procedures.

Waiker has 25 years' experience

as an in house lawyer within global
businesses having started fis career
in private practice in two New York
City law firms.

Waiker is a mernber of the New York
Bar and is admitted as in-house
counsel in New Jersey

Secretary and is responsibile for
providing Board support and advice
on corporate governance, UK

listng abligations and corporate
transactions. Laura is also responsidle
for overall Group risk management
processes and the global insurance
programme and is a pension trustee.

Laura has held variou$ senior
company secretarial positions at
public quated companies inctuding
Sky, Britvic, Betfair and Rio Tinto

Laura holds a postgraduate diploma
in Legal Practice and a BA {(Hormours)
inLaw and Legai Studies with History.
She is also a Feliow of the Chartered
Governance Institute.
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Corporate governance

Board leadership

Governance framework

Shareholders

Audit Committee

+ Dverseeing financial reporting and
the Group's financial systems

* Monitering internal controis and
risk management

* Maintaining an appropriate
relationship with our internal and
externat auditors

For further information, please
seepages T5t0 77

Nomination Committee

+ Responsibility for the structure,
size and composition of the Board,
ensuring the Board and Committees
have the correct balance of skills,
knowledge and experience

+ Ensuring and overseeing
succession planning and
responsibility for the annual review
of Board effectiveness

= Identifying and nominating suitable
candidates for appointment to
the Board

« Promating diversity

For further information, please
seepages72to 74

Remuneration Committee

» Setting the remuneration policy and
determining the reward structure for
the Chairman, Executive Directors
and Executive Leadership team, to
align their remuneration with the
long term interests of the Company

* Approves bonus plan, long
term incentive plan targets and
share awards

Forfurther information, please
see pages 7910 95

Board meeting attendance during 2019
The attendance of the Directors for eight scheduled Board
meetings for the year ended 31 December 2019

Associated documents

Andrew Duff 100%
PauiWaterman 1009%
RalphHewins 100%
Sandra Boss 100%
Dorothee Dewring 100%
Steve Good 100%
Anne Hyland 100%
Nick Salmon 100%
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The matters reserved for the Board and terms of reference
for the Committees can be found on the corporate website:
www.elementis.com




e
Board roles and responsibilities of the Directors

The Board has agreed a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive as well as those of the

other Directors.

Role Responsibility

Chairman
Company Secretary

* Leadership of the Board, setting the agendas in consultation with the CEQ, CFO and Group

« Promoting open, honest and constructive debate and challenge during meetings and guides the CEO
and CFC in delivery of the Company's strategy

= Ensuring the Board conforms with the highest standards of corporate governance

+ Chairs the Nomination Committee and ensures the Board has an appropriate balance of skilland
experience and effective succession planning in place and leads the annual Board effectiveness review

« Effective engagement and communication with sharehclders and other stakeholders and ensuring that

their views are understood by the Board

CEO + Day-to-day management of the business

« Execution of strategy and gperational performance
* Providing regular updates to the Board on all significant matters relating to the Group
» Ensuring the Company has a strong team of high-calibre executives, and putting in place management

succession and development plans

CFO = Supporting the CEQ in the delivery of the Company’s strategy and financial performance
! » Leading the Group Finance function and responsible for financial reporting, investor relations, IT, risk and

insurance and tax matters

Senior Independent
Director

« Acting as a sounding board to the Chairman, providing support and advice where necessary
= Point of contact for shareholders and other stakeholders to discuss matters of concern

« Leading the Board on the performance evaluation of the Chairman

independent Non-
Executive Directors

* Providing independent oversight objectivity to the Board's deliberations
= Using their broadrange of experience and expertise to challenge management and aid decision making

» Playing a leading role in the effectiveness of the Board Committees

Group Company = Supporting the Chairman in ensuring the Board operates efficiently and effectively

Secretary = Providing the Board with advice on governance developments
= Facilitating the Directors’ induction programmes and assisting with ongoing training and developrment
+ Assisting the Chairman with the Board effectiveness review process

Designated Non- » Representing the Board when engaging and communicating with employees and providing

Executive Director for communication on any outcomes

workforce engagement

Independence of the Non-Executive Directors

£ach of the Non-Executive Directors is considered independent
in character and judgement. The Chairman was considered
independent on appaintment and the Board confirms that

he remains effective. The independence of Non-Executive
Directors is reviewed annually by the Nomination Committee.

Further information can be found in the Nomination Committee
reportonpages 72tc 74.

The biographies of the Directors can be found on pages 55 to
57 and details of the membership of each Board Committee
can be found on pages 72, 75 and 79 respectively.

Conflicts of interest

The Board operates a policy to identify and, when appropriate,
manage actual or potential conflicts of interest that may arise.

Directors are required 1o seek Board approval for any actua!
or potentiai conflicts of interest. Conflicts of interest are
considered formally by the Board, at each meeting, and are
kept under review throughout the year.

Ralph Hewins i inreceipt of a conflict autherisation from the
Company inrespect of him acting as a trustee of the Elementis
Group Pension Scheme. Further getails can be found in the
Directors' report on page 96.
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Corporate governance

Board leadership continued

Directors’ insurance and indemnities
The Company maintains Directors’ and
Officers’ liability insurance, in the event of
legal action brought against its Directors.

The Company has also granted indemnities
to each of the Directors. These indemnities
are uncapped in amount, inrelation to
certainlosses andliabilities which they may
incur to third parties in the course of acting
as a Director of the Company. Neither the
indemnity orinsurance provides coverage
inthe event that a Directoris proved to have
acted fraudulently or dishonestly.

Board training and independent advice
All Directors have access ta the advice and
services of the Group Company Secretary
and may take independent professional
advice, as appropriate, at the expense of
the Company.

Directors are given the opportunity
throughout the year to undertake tramning
and attend serninars, as necessary, te
keep their skifls and knowledge up to date.
In addition, technical briefings are regularly
inciudedin Board and Committee papers.

The Group Company Secretary supports the
Chairmanin ensuring that the Board and its
Committees operate within the governance
framework and that communicationand
information flows within the Board and its
Committees and between management and
Non-Executive Directors remain effective.

information flows

The Chairman and the Group Company
Secretary ensure that the Directors receive
clear and timely information on ali relevant
matters. Board papers are circulated in a
timely ranner in advance of the meetings
to ensure that there is adequate time for
them to be read and to facilitate robust

and infarmed discussion. A fully encrypted
eiectronic Board portalis used to distribute
Board ang Committee papers and to provide
efficient distribution of business updates
and other resources to the Board.

Board induction

The Chairman, with the support of the
Group Company Secretary. is responsible
for preparing and coordinating an
appropriate induction programme

for newly appointed Directors.

The programme may include elements
of the following:
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Induction programme

induction - General Topics

* The role of a Director

» Board and Committees

« Board meetings

« Rules, reguiations and guidance
+ Board procedures

+ Current issues

= Nature of the Company, its business
and its markets
= The Company’s main relationships

Induction - Board Committees {as appropriate)
« Role and remit of the Committee * The legal requirements relevant to
* Link between the Committee’s the Committee's operations
poiicy and the Company's » Market practice and current trends
strategic objectives relevantto the Committee
* The annual meeting schedule for « Currentissues
the Committee = Views of investors on matters
+ The main business conducted by considered by the Committee and
the Committee potential areas of focus
= Any technical training on key matters

Induction - External Advisers
Meetings with:

* External auditors

* Imternal audit function

* Remuneration consuitants
* Brokers
= Lawyers

Induction - Senior Management meetings

Meetings with:
* CEQ + SVP, Globat Supply Chain &
« CFO Manufacturing

« General Counsel & Chief
Compliance Officer
= Group Company Secretary

+ SVP Global Coatings & Energy

+ 5VP Global Perscnal Care

* SVP Global Chromium

+ SVP Global Talc

* SVP, Strategy and Transformation
» Chief HR Officer

* SVP Technology

induction - Site visits
* SciPark (New Jersey, US), Amsterdam, Netherlands (Talc), Castle Hayne, North
Caroling, US {Chromium) and others as agreed during the course of the year




Engaging our workforce

SandraBoss
Non-Executive
Director and
Designated Non-
Executive Director
(DNED) for workforce
engagement

Purpose of the role

Inline with the requirements of the UK
Corporate Governance Code 2018
{Code). the role of Designated Non-
Executive Director (DNED) exists to
ensure that the views and concerns
of the workforce are brought to the
Board and taken into account and
are consistent with the Company's
values and suppert its long term
sustainable success.

During the year, Sandra Boss was
appointed as the DNED and is
expected to:

= Understand the concerns of
the workforce

« Articulate those views and concems
inBoard meetings

« Ensure the Board takes appropriate
steps to evaluate the impact of
proposals and developments On
the workforce and consider what
steps should be taken to mitigate any
adverse impact

» Feedback to the workforce on
steps taken to address concerns or
explain why particular steps have not
beentaken

Responsibilities:

+ To review and monitor insight driven
by the engagement survey or other
gualitative data (quarterly updates) with

the support of the CHRO, Group Company -

Secretary and SVP, Gioba! Supply Chain
and Manufacturing (together the DNED
Sub Committee)
To actively participate in a programme of
workforce engagement which may include
avariety of engagement mechanisms/
channels such as focus groups and
townhatls
As a standing agenda item at the Board,
the DNED is expected to report onthe
programme of engagement activity and
workforce concerns
The DNED is expected to feedback any
concerns regarding remuneration directly
to the Remuneration: Committee
Supported by the DNED Sub Committee,
the DNED is expected to preparg
appropriate responses to address
workforce concerns
+ Supporied by the DNED Sub Committee,
the DNED is expected to explain how the
Code provisions relating to workforce
engagement have been met

-
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Activities carried cut in 2019

» Communicated the appointment of Sandra
Baoss (DNED) to the wider workforce

* Developed workforce engagement plan
for 2019-2020

* Launch of engagement survey

= China focus group following Board site visit
to China, The purpose of this activity was
to understand sentiment based onlocal
management changes, organisational
review and other Values based questions

Activities planned for 2020

» Focus groups facilitated across
selected sites

* Physical attendance by DNED as part of
the Beard's site visit programme to Castle
Hayne and New Jersey

* Review of engagement survey data at
regularintervals

* Workforce engagement reports at
Board meetings

» DNED communications to workforce in
response o insight gained from focus
groups and site visits

Further information on workforce
engagement can be found on pages 34, 36,
67 and 69.
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Corporate governance

Company purpose and culture

How the Board monitors culture

KPiIs

A number of non-financial KPIs are
regularty menitored by the Board
which underscore the Company's
commitment to minimise the impact
of the company’s operations onthe
environment and ensure that safety
remains a top priority.

Strategy

The Board receive strategic updates
from each of the business leaders
throughout the year which enables

a deeper understanding of the
Company’s strategic ambitions.
These updates provide valuable
context for the 3 year plan and annual
operation plan discussions

Ethics, whistieblowing, fraud

and anti-bribery

Qur Code of Conduct sets the
standard for how we expect

our employees to behave.

The Audit Committee and the Board
receive bi-annuai compliance

and ethics updates, including
whistieblowing reports.

Defining purpose

With the support of the Group Company
Secretary, the Board discussed and agreed
the Company's purpose.

Our purpose is to achieve sustainable
progress across the world through
innovative specialty chemical products

that deliver cleaner and better performance.

We are coliaborative industrial innovators;
developing long-term partnerships with

our customers, innovating at pace to keep
them at the forefront of their markets.
Combining our access to unique natural
resources with our unmatched rheclogy
and technological expertise, we responsibly
transform raw materials into advantaged
ingredients that provide crucial end product
benefits. This enables our customers

to sohve their product performance and
sustainability challenges.

Risk management

The Company places the highest
priority on preventing loss of life,
other harm to people and the
envisonment, legal and reguiatory
breaches and damage to reputation
or brand. The Board receives

risk management, insurance and
internal audit reports.

Stakeholder engagement

During 2019, the Board has directly
engaged with investors {retail

and institutional} and employees.
The Board have received updates
on customers,suppliers and
environmental matters.

The Board considered how to align the
company's culiure with purpose, values
and strategy.

The process included:

» Research of UK specialty
chemicals marketplace including
competitive advantage

» Selected stakeholder interviews to identify
and develop company purpose themes

+ Discussion of a draft overarching purpose
statement with a supporting narrative

+ Company values were established during
2018 following a refresh and engagement
with employee focus groups

» Strategy is discussed regularly and
includes the 3 year plan, annual operating
plan andis formally agreed as part of the
Board's annual programme

+ The Company’s values of Safety, Solutions,

Ambition, Respect and Team underpin the
behaviours expected to cultivate an open
andinclusive culture
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Maintaining a healthy culture

To ensure that the Company is creating the
right environment for longer term success,
a variety of mechanisms are available to
measure company culture. for example:

» Whistleblower reports

+ HSE updates

» Internal and external audit reports

« Compliance reports

« Engagement survey insight and other
HR metrics

* Townhaltmeetings and site visits

» Business and functionai deep dives

There are also other mechanisms for
measuring culture which can be directiy
linked to the Company’s values, such as:

+ Safety -~ Near misses or process
safety incidents

« Solutions - Number of products
or customer innovation projects

* Ambition - New business opportunities
and market participation

= Respect - Compliance training and
speaking up channels

« Team-Employee engagement survey,
talent and succession plans



Board activities

2019 Board activities timeline

Board meeting {London}

Full year resuits review

Board meeting {London)
Strategic update: Global
Coatings transformation,
T and Cyber

1 trading update announced

AGM

Board meetings and site visits
{Finland and Amsterdam)
Strategic update: Talc

Board meeting and site visit (China)

Visit to Songjiang site and townhall
meetings with Anji and Hsinchu

Three year plan

Q3 trading update announced

Board meeting (London)
Annual operating plan

Strategic updates:HR and
Supply Chain

Capital Markets Day feedback

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

Jun

Jul

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

2018 full year results announced
Investor relations roadshow
Board call

Investor feedback

Board meeting (London)
Interim results

Strategic updates: HSE
and innovation

2019 interim results announced

Investor roadshow

Board meeting (Londan)
Strategic updates: Chromium and
Personal Care

Non-Executive Directors
only meeting

Capital Markets Day

Board activities .

The Board has a formal annual programme
of activities whichis supplemented by
ad-hoc meetings and conference calls,

as and when appropriate.

Al each of its formal meetings, the Board
receives standing updates, as part of

the CEQ's report, regarding financial,
operational, governance, compliance, HSE
performance and investor engagement.

The Board also meets for dinner and uses
this time as an opportunity to informally

+ discuss relevant matters.

The Board regularly invites ELT members
to attend Board meetings and receives
presentations from their relevant business
and functional areas.

During 2019, the Board meetings took place
in London, Finland, Nethertands and China.
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Corporate governance

Board activities continued

... ]
The Board's focus in 2019 was as follows:

Innovation, Growth and Operational Sharehaolders, Finance
Efficiency strategy performance stakeholders and matters
governance
= Talc integration update + Regular CEQ reports (Product « Investor relations reports, * Financial performance reports
g
Stewardship. Innovation, roadshows and other investor and forecasts
» Transformation updates for Business DEVE'DPI‘"E-HE. meetings and feedback
Supply Chain and Coatings People, Communication. « Dividend policy. distributable
Safety and Supply « Corporate broker review reserves and recommendation
-+ India supply chain investment Chain priovities) of payment
- » Board effectiveness evaluation
* lInnovation pipeline : :s;‘:g;‘ia::x:;;‘s * Treasury and hedging reports
» People strategy including
. - Capital Markets Day strateqy J talent management, * Financial statements for full
. G;;?up insurance and succession planning, values. and half year and Q1 and Q3
. . ] risk management nd cultur " a
+ Strategic reviews of Coatings, activities programme and culture trading statements
Personal Care, Energy,
Chromium and Tale - . - = Updates on the revised UK « Fuliand half year
* Grouprisk reviewincluding Corporate Governance Code results presentations
+ China route to market Brexit plans including purpose and culture
partnership and Asia specific . « Taxreports, tax strategy and
deep dive = GDPR and data privacy update * Modern Slavery Statement updates on EC state aid
- Three year plan - Digitaland cyber update « Litigation angd + Annual operating plan
‘compliance reports
= Divestment of dental plant — * Review of subsidiary
+ Directors’ duties training and financing structure
UK Corporate Governange
Code updates * Working capital update
+ Updates from Board

Comrmittee chairs

Board diversity policy

Employee engagement,

. townhalls and site visits

Designated Non-Executive
Director workforce
engagement appointment and
engagernent updates

Health, safety and
environment update

Comrmitee terms of reference

Chairman’s site visits to US,
Indiz and Shanghai
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Board visits

The Non-Executive Directors are encouraged 1o visit

Group manufacturing sites to enable them to gain a greater
understanding of the Group’s activities and to meet people across
the business.

June 2019 ~Finland and Netherfands

Foliowing the acquisition of the Talc business in October 2018,
the Board agreed to visit Taic assets in Finland and Netherlands.
Recognising the flow of operations from mine to customer, the
Board was keen to gain and deepen its understanding and to meet
Talc employees for the first time.

twas decided to visit the Sotkamog site (Finfand} first, followed by
Amsterdarm the following day to make the most effective use of
the Board's availability. The Board was unable to visit operations in
Finland before June as g result of typical freezing temperatures for
afarge part of the year.

At the Sotkamo site, the Talc management team provided the
Board with a presentation followed by a visit to the mine and
processing facilities. A townhall meeting with employees followed
and was held facilitated via a web-link with the Vuonos site with
local translation provided. The townhall provided an opportunity
for the Board to reiterate the strategic importance of the Taic
business and for employees to engage directly withthe Board.

The following day the Board travelled to Amsterdam to visit
the processing and warehouse facilities and continue Board
discussions which concluded their visit of the Talc operations.

Capital Markets Day

November 2019

The Company held a Capital Markets Day in November 2019 with
over 100 analysts and investors physically attending the event.
Other stakeholders were able to participate via a weblink.

Following a presentation on the medium term strategic priorities,
attendees were invited {0 participate in three breakout sessions
with demonstrations on how Elementis products were meeting
innovation and consumer trends from the Personal Care, Coatings
and Talc businesses. The presentation is available in the investors
section of the corporate website at www.elementis.com.

October 2019 - China

As part of the Board's 12 month planner, the Board expressed
significant interest in returning to Shanghai having last visited in
2016. New local management had recently been hired and the
Board was keen to meet with the new tearn and understand the
impact of the transition on workplace culture and similarly to
deepen their knowledge of local and global economic factors.

The Board was provided with a presentation from the Asia
management team and subsequently participated in a tour of
the Shanghai site which included processing, warehousing and
technical laboratories. A townhall meeting with employees was
facilitated by the management team and was held vie a web-link
with other sites in Anji {China) and Hsinchu (Taitwan).
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Corporate governance

Engaging with our stakeholders

Section 172 Cor“panies Aut2008

The Board acknowledges that there is
alegal requirement for the Company
to report on how the Board and

its Committees have considered

the requirements of section 172 of
the Companies Act 2006 in their
decision making.

How do we listen to our customers?
Our customers demand high quality
and consistent products which

are able to demonstrate superior
performance, efficiency and
sustainability features. They rely on
us to deliver innovation and technical
expertise in line with consumer and
industrial trends.

How do we listen to our investors?
Our investors want to ensure that

we continue to grow and deiiver
sustainabte financial returns.

Regular investor dialogue throughout
the year ifustrates themes such as
profitability, debt, ability to continue
to pay dividends, £ESG matters and
continued strategic progress,

Section 172 requires directors to
actin the way they consider, in good
faith, would most likely promote the -
success of the company for the
benefit of its members as awhole,
taking into account the factors

as outlined in section 172 of the
Companies Act 2006.

What matters the most to them?
We seek opportunities to collaborate
and buildiong term relationships with
our customers to ensure we are able
to keep them at the forefront of their
industries.

What matters the mosttothem?

To build trust and transparency with
existing and prospective investors and
provide sustainable financial returns.

Further information on how the Board
considers stakeholder views inits
decisionmaking processes canbe
found on page 36.

How do we respond?

“We use innovation as a platform for

customer engagement, through
trade shows, conferences, ongoing
customer relationship meetings and
technical teachins’ to demonstrate
our expertise, capability and

new products.

How do we respond?

We engage with investors through

a variety of channels which include
meetings and roadshows with
institutional investors ona range

of ESG, operational, financial and
strategic matters. The Company
engages with investors via the Director
of Investor Relations or the Group
Company Secretary who are available
10 deatwith shareholder gueries.
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How the Beard engages
T argd

How the Board engages




Employees Supp"ers

woday oiBetens

How do we listen to our employees?
We recognise our people are our
greatest asset for our success.

During 2019, we introduced our
employee engagement survey

which wilt become an area of focus

for management on an ongoing basis.

How do we listen to our suppliers?
We strive for the highest ethical
standards and hold our suppliers
and partners to the same standards.

How do we consider our
communities?

We are committed to minimising the
impact of our business operations on
the environment. Respect and care for
our environment and owr communities
are core values at Elementis.

What matters the most to them?
Employees want to contribute and
share in the company’s SUCCess.
Relevant matters include employee
pay and benefits, investment in
training, talent and succession
planning, working conditions, health
and safety, diversity and inclusion
and sustainability.

What matters the most to them?
Qur supplier community recognise
the vaiue of maintaining long term
relationships and that business
dealings and practices are fair.

What matters the most?

Our behaviours impact the people
who work for us, as well as the wider
environment. Cur communities have
vested interests in the sustainability
of our products and operations,
reputation and ethical behaviour.

How do we respond?

We engage with employees
through a variety of channels which
include CEQ and business segment
communications, line manager
dialogue, whistieblowing services
and reward matters.

How do we respond?

We engage with our suppliers through
ongoing relationship management,
commercial terms and conditions,
contract negotiation.

We circulate a survey to our top 80%
(by value) of suppliers, attend suppiier
conferences and have a Purchasing
Code of Practice in place to drive
engagement with our suppliers.

How do we respond?

We contribute to local economies,
encourage open dialogue and
participate in comymnunity related
matters such as biodiversity and
other environmental initiatives.

How th
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Corporate governance

Board evaluation

Board evaluation

In line with the UK Corporate Governance Code, an externally facilitated review of Board effectiveness is carried out every three years.
The last externally facilitated review was carried out in 201B. In 2019, it was agreed that aninternally facilitated review wouid be appropriate.

Board effectiveness cycle

racilia

Process

A discussion is held by the Nomination Committee to consider the approach and process for evaluation. Following agreement, the
Group Company Secretary and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee agree the timetable, process and resources required for

the evaluation activity.

During 2019, the process was divided into four stages:

the evaluation.

The internal review

is usually carried

out by means of an

online questionnaire.
Directors are invited to
give their responses onthe
individual and collective
perfarmances of the Board
and its Committees.

Stage 1 Stage2

The Group Company If there are any issues
Secretary and Chairman raised, the Group Company
agree the format of Secretary wili reach out to

the individual and discuss
their concerns orissues.

Individuairesponses
are collatedinto a
report prepared by the
Company Secretary.

The Chairman meets with
each Director individually
o air any concerns

they may have around
Board dynamics and
operation of Board and
Committee effectiveness.

Stage 3 Stage 4
The Group Company The reportis presented and
Secretary discusses the discussed with the Board.
underlying Fhemg s of The Board agrees on the
the evaluationwith the

. areas of development for
Chairman and prepares a .

the forthcoming year.

formal paper for discussion.

2019 areas of focus

Following the FRC's guidance on Board effectiveness in July 2018, the internal review questions focused on the following themes:

* Board leadership and Company purpose

» Division of responsibility

+ Composition, succession and evaluation

2019 internal review outcome

Strengths

+ The Board and its Committees continue to perform effectively

« High quality of debate and challenge in aninclusive,
colaborative, trusting and supportive environment
* Relationships between Board and Executive Directors are

open and constructive

» Effective understanding of risks and internal

control environment

+ Aligned views on priorities and challenges over the next

1-3 years
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« Audit, risk and internal control

* Remuneration

+» Final comments and observations

Focus for 2020

« Continue toidentify ways of leveraging Non-Executive

Directors’ expertise

* Deepen the Board's understanding of the ‘customer voice’

through business unit deep dives

« Continued focus on Board succession planning



Diversity

Diversity

Diversity of our pecple is intrinsic to better business decisions.
Appointments are made on merit and we seek Lo leverage the
benefits of the wide and diverse talent pool.

Employee location

We are dedicated to increasing diversity through our recruitment
and talent review processes and creating awareness and
understanding of the value of diverse teams at all levels.

Our Directors and ELT have committed to continue to build diverse
teams that succeed through all aspects of diversity, e g. gender, age.
nationality and ways of thinking.

The overview information belowis as at 31 December 2019.

Diversity overview
. Composition of the Board Average age of Board Nationality of the Board Length of tenure
as at 31 December 20719 * Sandra Boss has dualnationality ~ ©fthe Board
Gender of Board Gender of ELT Gender ~ELT DirectReports  Gender~ Company wide

*  In accordance with the UK Corparate Governance Code, the Chairman was considered to be ingepentent on appointment.
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Corporate governance

Nomination Committee report

Andrew Duff
Chairman
Nomination Committee

Membership, meetings

and attendance

Andrew Duff (Chair) [ F 3 X X )
Sandre Boss (12 X 2
Dorothee Deuring [ X X X X ]
Steve Good o000
Anne Hyland [ Z X X J J
Nick Salmon (2 2 X X
John Q'Higgins*

*  John O'Higgins joined the Committee on
4 February 2020

Role of the Committee

The Committee is responsible for the
structure, size and composition of the Board
ensuring that the Board and Committees
have the most appropriate balance of skiils,
knowledge and experience. This Committee
ensures and oversees succession planning
and has responsibility for the annual review
of the Board.

Key responsibilities

» Regularly reviewing the structure, size,
diversity and composition of the Board

« Ensuring that the Company has the

right leadership, balance of skills and

expearience to deliver the Company's

strategy and enable the Board to

effectively fulfilits obligations

Succession planning for the Board and ELT

Leading on the annual performance

evaluation of the Board andits Committees

Identifying and nominating, for approval

of the Board, candidates to fill Board

vacancies as and when they arise

Identifying and managing any potential

conflicts of directors’ interests

The Committee's terms of reference are
available on the Company’s website at
www.elementis.com.
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The Committee is chaired by the

Chairman and comprises all the Non-
Executive Directors, who are considered to
be independent. Members' biographies can
be found onpages 55t057. The CEQ has a
standing invitation to attend meetings and
external advisers attend where relevant,

Committee members take no partin

any discussions concerning their own
membership of the Board or appointment
as a Chair of a Committee but are involved
in the recommendations on Committee
membership changes.

Re-appointment of Directors

Al Directors are subject to re-election at
the next Annual General Meeting {AGM), as
required by the UK Corporate Governance
Code. Following the appraisal process, the
Committee concluded that each of the
Directors continued to make an effective
contribution to the Board and provided
sufficient time to the Company.

In accordance with the Code, each of
the Directors will submit themselves for
re-election at the 2020 AGM, with the
exception of Nick Salmon who will step
down at the AGM.



Dear Sharehoiders

As Chair of the Nomination Committee,

| am pleased to present the Nomination
Committee report covering the work of the
Committee in 2019. This report should be
read in conjunction with the separate section
on cempiiance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code on page 54.

Activities during the year

= Annual review of Director's independence
and conflicts in accordance with the
Committee’s terms of reference

« Engagement with Korn Ferry to
conduct a search for a new Senior
Independent Director

= Reviewing structure, size, diversity and
composition of the Board

+ Adoption of Diversity policy

» Succession planning for the Board and ELT

» Ensuring that at least annually the Non-
Executive Directors meet without the
Executive Directors present

+ Invesior meetings with Chairman of
Normination Committee

NED re-appointments

The re-appointments of Anne Hyland

{for a third term from June 2019}, Sandra
Boss (a second term from February 2020}
and Dorothee Deuring (a second term

from March 2020) were approved and
recommended to the Board during the year.

Board effectiveness

Cnanannual basis, the Chairmanis
responsible for conducting an appraisal
with each Non-Fxecutive Director in respect
of their skills, experience, contribution
and time commitment to the Company.
The Committee oversees the evaluation
process which for 2019 comprised of an
internal evaluation. The 1ast externally
facilitated review was carried outin 2078
and it is anticipated that the next external
review will be conducted in 2021.

Following the review, the Boardis satisfied
that all Directors possess relevant experience
andappropriate levels of independence and
financial and commercial experience across
various industries.

Further information regarding the process
canbe found on page 70.

Board composition and skills

Following the internal effectiveness review,
the Committee considers that the current
Board membership has the right balance of
commercial and governance experience,
independence and challenge and that the
diverse range of skills and experience of
the Directors prevents any influence, either
individually or collectively, aver the Board's
decision making.

Further information can be found on page 74
witha skills and experience matrix.

Succession planning

As part of the Board's succession

planning processes, Nick Salmon agreed

1o step down from the Board as Senior
Independent Director {SID) at the Company’s
Annual General Meeting in April 2020.

The Cormmittee appointed Korn Ferry,
external search consuitants, to undertake
asearch for suitable candidates.

Following a thorough recruitrent process,
John O'Higgins was appointed as &
Non-Executive Director with effect from

4 February and wilt become SID following
the AGM on 28 April 2020.

Please see page 57 for John's biography.

SID recruitment process

Thie Chairman of the Board. assisted by

the Nomination Committee members ang
Group Company Secretary, led the process
inthe search for a new SID.

Following a Committee discussion. arole
specification was prepared and shared
with Korn Ferry. The Committee agreed
that the attributes for the candidates
should demonstrate:

» Current, proven and well regarded
Independent Director from the broad
industrial/manufacturing sector

« Significant international business
expenence in hisfher former executive
career as either a CEQ or Main Board
Executive of a complex multinational
B28 company

= Anable strategic thinker who canplay a
rote in Board discussions on Elementis’
Strategy

+ Due regard to the benefits of a candidate
with diversity, inctuding gender, social and
ethnic backgrounds

Korn Ferry prepared a long list of 13 potential
candidates based onthe role specification.
The Committee duly discussed the merits

of each of the candidates and agreed that
seven candidates would be shortlisted.
During the shortlisting process. Korn Ferry
updated the Committee based on their
confidential discussions with the candidates
regarging their interest for the role. The next
stage included candidate meetings with

the Chairrman of the Board. After each of

the meetings, the Chairman provided the
Committee with feedback and evaluation

of each of the candidate’s experience

and skilis.

The next step was to identify which
candidates would be taken through to the
next stage and a final shortlist of candidates
were invited to interviews with the other
Non-Executive Directors, Executive
Directors and Group Company Secretary.

* Following the interviews and taking into

account; the references of the preferred
candidate, external responsibilities and
potential conflicts. the Committee agreed
to recommend to the Board that John
O'Higgins be appointed as 2 Non-Executive
Director on 4 February 2020 and assuming
the role of SID at the AGM in April 2020.

.

2019 Meetings summary

April = Adoption of revised diversity policy

June = Recommendation for Anne Hyland to be issued with z letter of re-appointment
September » Board succession planning

November = Senior Independent Director recruitment update

December « Discussion of board effectiveness outcomes

» Senior Independent Director recruitment update
« Recommendations for Sandra Boss and Dorothee Deuring {o be issued with etters

of re-appointment

* Recommendation of revised Terms of Reference
« Composition of Board and Committees
« Review of Direciors’ independence and confiicts
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Corporate governance

Nomination Committee report continued

Diversity and inclusion

Qur approach to diversity and inclusionis
set out in the Board's diversity policy which
is reviewed annually by the Committee,

The diversity policy was revised during the
year, & copy of which can be found onthe
Company's website at www.elementis.com.

When a new search for a Board member

is undertaken, a briefing is prepared and
shared with external search consultants to
ensure that diversity of gender, social and
ethnic backgrounds and skills is promotedin
the selection of candidates.

Since 2017, the Board continues to exceed
the Hampton-Alexander target, for the
percentage of women on Boards to reach
one third by 2020. it is acknowledged that
there is a need to identify and develop the
next generation of talent within the Group
and processes are in place to ensure the
Board has visibility.

Further information can be found on
page 71.

Andrew Duff
Chairman Namination Committee

Lockingaheadto 2

020

Andrew Steve Anne Nick Sandra  Dorothee John Paul Ralph
Duff Good Hyland Salmon Boss Deuring O'Higgins Waterman Hewins

Sector experience
Manufacturing/industrial processing ® ® ® ® ® L
Specialty chemicals ® ® [ ] [ ]
Industry verticals ® ® ® ® L
Commodity chemicals/pharma L [ J L ] L
Investment banking/corporate finance [ ] L [ J
Global markets [ L L ]
Not for profit L [ ® [
Professional services [ L
Geographical experience
(lived and worked for 12 months)
Nerth America ® [ ] L ] e [ J
Europe (excl UK) ® ® [ [ ] ® L
Asia Pacific {inc India) [ ] L [ ] ® ] ®
Functional experience
Pension trustee L]
M&A/capital raising ® ® L ® ® @ ®
Financial/accounting expertise ® ®
(recent/relevant)
Taxftreasury L 2
Salesimarketing/customer L ] [ ) ® ®
Strategy/business development L ® ® L 4 [ ] ® ® L
Research/technology/finnovation L [ ] L] L] *
Regulated markets o ® L [ ] ®
Regulators/legal ®
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Corporate governance

Audit committee report

Anne Hyland
Chairman
Audit Committee

Membership, meetings

and attendance

Anne Hyland o0
(Audit Chair)

Sandra Boss o0e
Dorothee Deuring o0e
Nick Saimon o0
John O'Higgins*

* Jahn O'Higgins joined the Committee on

4 February 2020

Role and responsibilities

« Monitoring the integrity of the Group's
financial statements, financiat reporting
and related siatements

Ensuring the appropriateness of
accounting policies, any changes o
these, and any significant estimates

and judgements made

Reviewing the effectiveness of

internal control, compliance and risk
management systems (including
whistleblowing arrangements}
Overseeing all aspects of the relationship
with the internal and external auditors;
approving the policy on non-audit
services; effectiveness of the audit
process, making recommendations to the
Board for their dismissal or changes; angd
supervising any tender process

The Committee's terms of reference, which
are reviewed and approved periodically,

are available on the Company's website at
www.elementis.com.

Allmembers of the Committee are
independent Non-Executive Directors.
Members'’ biographies can be found on
pages 55 to 57.

The Chairman of the Board, CEQ, CFO
and Group Financial Controller, alongside
representatives from the externat
auditors, Deloitte, and internal auditors,
PwC, have a standing invitation to attend
Committee meetings.

Asrequired by the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Board is satisfied
that Anne Myland has recent and relevant

financial experience to chair this Committee.

The Committee as a whole has the financial
and commercial competence to meet

its responsibility in an independent and
robust manner.
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The Chair of the Audit Committee is availabte
tomeet with shareholders at the Company’s
AGM and on request during the course of
the year.

Main activities during the year
The Committee’s focus in 2019 has been:

« Meetings with both the internal and
external auditors to review their
key fingings

* Reviewing the internal control systems and
considering the output of internal audit
reviews and management’s action plans

+ Reviewing the integrity, consistency and
key accounting judgements made by
management in both the Company's full
ang half year results

« Advising the Board on whether the Annual
Report and Accounts preparation process
is fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary
to shareholders 1o assess the Group's
position and performance, business model
and strategy

~ Reviewing the going concern and
viability statements and the supporting
assumptions and assessments in the
Company's Annuat Report and Accounts

= Ensuring cormnpliance with applcable
accounting standards. monitoring
developments inaccounting regulations
which affect the Group and reviewing
appropriateness of accounting policies
and practices currently in piace

* Reviewing effectiveness of the internal
and external auditors, their independance
and ohjectivity and terms and scope of
engagement and recommending their re-
appointments .

+ Overseeing matters relating to tax
including the impact of tax rates on the
financial statements and approving the
Company'stax strategy

+ Litigation and compiiance reports for both
the full and half year

« Considering the material legal risks
impacting the Company and the
associated provisioning for both the fufl
and half year

« Receiving updates on the Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics, compliance
training and whistleblowing policies

+ Technical updates onthe 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code and IFRS 16

+ Reviewing the Group's risk management
activities undertaken by each business
area, and at Group level 1o identify and
assess the Group’s principal risks

+ Monitoring and assessing the Group's
insurance arrangements
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Corporate governance

Audit committee report continued

The report of the Audit Committee for
the 2019 financial year explains how its
responsibilities have been carried out
during the year.

External auditors

Deloitte have served as external auditors

for four years. The Committee engages with
Deloitte to ensure this key area of oversight

is appropriately maintained. The Committee
periodically meets privately with the lead audit
partner and senior members of the audit team
to discuss their work and findings. No areas of
significant concern have beenraised.

Audit of the 2019 Annual Report

and Accounts

At the end of 2019, Deloitte presented

their audit plan for the year ahead which the
Committee considered and then approved.
Deloitte highlighted the key areas of risk,
which were primarily identified as areas

of judgement and complexity and were
consistent with those areas identified by

the Committee. As part of the audit process,
Deioitte then presented a detailed report of
their audit findings, which were reviewed and
discussed. A similar process is undertaken
for the half year results.

Auditor rotation and tendering and
competition and markets authority order
- statement of compliance )
The Committee carried out an audit tender
processin 2015 resufting inthe appeintment

~of Delpitte as external auditors in April

2016. Deloitte's re-appointment in 2019

was approved by shareholders at the
Company's AGMin April 2019. The year
ended 31 December 2019 was the third year
forthe lead engagement partner Christopher
Powell. The Committee confirms that the
Company is compliant with the provisions

of The Statutory Audit Services for Large
Cornpanies market Investigation [mandatory
use of Competitive Tender processes and
Audit Cornmittee Responsibiliies) Order
2014 for the year ended 31 December 2019

Audit effectiveness

To support the Committee in evaluating

the effectiveness of the external auditors, a
questionnaire based evaluation is completed
by the Finance team. The data is collated into
ascore cardthat can thenbe usedtoassess
the strengths and weaknesses of the external
auditors. Management and the external
auditors then address any areas of weakness
n their regular review meetings, and the
senior audit partner from Deloitte updates the

Committee onhow areas of weakness are
bemg addressed.

The Committee also monitors audit
effectiveness by reviewing the Audit Quality
inspectionreports published by the FRC.

Following the 2019 review, the Committee
considers the auditors’ performance to be
satisfactory and that the audit is effective as
measured against their letter of engagement
and the scope of services agreed.

Auditor independence

The Committee considers the external
auditors' objectivity and independence at
least twice a year. It receives reports from
Deloitte onits internal quality controls and
independence rules and considers carefully
the extent of the non-audit services
provided by Deloitte.

The Committee is of the view that Deloitte
were objective and independent throughout
the 2019 audit process notwithstanding the
level of non-audit services provided.

Non-audit services

This is further maintained by the Group
policy on non-audit services which contains
guidance on the types of non-audit work that
the external auditors may be considered for.

%
Key judgements and areas of significant focus
The following table sets out the significant matters considered by the Committee during the year in relation to the Financial Statements.
Further information on these judgements is detailed inNote 1 of the accounts.

Key judgement

How the Committee has addressed these matters

Environmental

A process consistent with 2018 for the evatuation of environmental provisions was followed by management, the

provision key area of judgement being the discount rate used for future liabilities. In 2018, this discount rate was 2 5%. The
Committee considered this discount rate and decided that a revised rate of 1% for the UK and 2% for the US would
reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the liabilities and therefore
appropriate for 2019. )

Impairment Critical accounting estimates arise in determining the value inuse for the goodwill balances tested, which require

testing of assessments of the achievability of business plans (and therefore future cash flows), growth rates beyond the period

goodwillin covered by the five-year business plans and appropriateness of the discount rates applied to future cash flows.

::’a:,i‘:" g’su A report from management was discussed setting out the basis for the assumptions and confirmation that the cash

& takc flows used were derived from the 2019 three year plan (which in their role as members of the Board, Committee

members had previcusly reviewed and approved).
The Committee has reviewed the robustness of the impairment model, challenged the appropriateness of the key
assumptions used to calcuiate value in use including forecast sales volumes, seliing prices, growth rates used to
extrapolate beyond the forecast period and the discount rates applied to the resulting cash flows. The Committee
agreed with management that no impairment was required.

Revenue The main area of judgement continues to be in relation to recognition of revenue for shipments by sea, The

recognition Committee satisfied itself that the Group had appropriately recognised revenues in accordance with their

contractual obligations during the pericd, paying particular attention to period end cut-off.

Determining
lease contract
terms with
extension
options

Following the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases in the year management have exercised judgement in evaluating whether
the Group is reasonably certain 1o exercise options to renew or terminate leases. There are two leases of land and
buildings for which the Group has determined that the extension options contained within the lease contracts are
reasonably certain to be exercised. As such the periods covered by the extension options have beenincluded inthe
. leaseterm and the calculation of the related lease liabilities. The Committee satisfied itself that the Group had made

appropriate judgements concerning the likelihood of exercising extension and termination options of its leases.
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Undes the policy, the CFO may approve
individual engagements where the fee is
upto 15% of the Group's audit fee for the
year, provided that the total non-audit fees
inthe year do not exceed 50% of that Group
audit fee. Decisions above thase thresholds
must be referred to the Committee

for determination.

Non-audit services

2019 2018
Audit fees {$m) 1.4 1.4
Assurance related
services ($m) 0.1 0.1
Non-audit
fees ($m) 0.0 0.3
Ratio of non-
audit fees to
audit fees () 0% 21%
Totalfees ($m) 1.5 1.8

Examples of services that the external
auditors may and may not be allowed to
perform under the policy can be found at
www.elementis.com.

Based onthe Committee’s recommendation,
the Board is proposing that Deloitte be
re-appointed as externatauditors to the
Company at the AGM in April 2020.

Internal controls and risk

management system

The Committee’s role is to review the
effectiveness of the internal control,
compliance and risk management systems
which it ¢arnies out in support of the Board's
formal review of significant risks and
material controls, as summarised inthe
Riskmanagement report on pages 48to 49,

PwC provides an outsourced internal audit
function, The Committee considers that
the value of internal audit is enhanced by
having a third party perfosm this function,
to support theindependent challenge of
management and give greater access to
expertise and resources than aninternal
function could provide.

The internal audit planis basedona

review of the Group's key risks which are
considered high risk or have not been subject
to a recent audit. The 2018 internal audit
plan was discussed and agreed between
management and PwC ahead of itbeing
considered and subsequently approved

by the Commitiee. During 2019, the facus
for internal audit included, Mondo financial
controls health check and actions to bring
inline with group controls. india investment,
GDPR completeness assessment, contract
compliance and customer services and
pricing. Managament reviews the schedule
with PwC ona quarterly basis and adapts

during the year to incorporate any new or
increased risks which materiafise. This is then
reviewed and approved by the Cornmittee.

The outcomes of the internal reports are
provided to the Committes, alongside any
remedial actions.

Following an evaluation of the services
provided by PWC inrespect of the internat
audit, the Committee confirms that both the
process for determining the internal audit
programme, and the programme itself, are
appropriate and effective. No significant
internal control failings or weaknesses were
reportediast year. Set out belowis a summary
of the key features of the Group's internal
controls and riskmanagement system.

Control environment

The Group has policies and procedures

that set out the responsibiities of business
and site management, inciuding authority
fevels, reporting disciplires and responsibility
for risk management and internal control.

n addition, annual compliance statements
oninternal controls are certified by each
operating segment,

Risk identification and review

A formal risk review process exists at

Board and ELT levels for the identification,
evaluation, mitigation and ongoing
monitoring of risks, including emerging risks.
Further detaiis can be found on pages 50
to52.

internal audit programme

Aninternal audit programme is proposed

by PwC inconsultation with the CFQ

and approved by the Committee each

year, setting out a programime of audits

over the course of the next 12 months.

The programme covers the monitoring of
the effectiveness of internal controis and the
design of processes to test the effectiveness
of controls. As well as conducting audits of
operating (acilities, sales offices and tolling
sites on a two to three year rotational basis,
the internal audit programme includes
reviews of Group functions and processes.

Controls assurance
The controts assurance framework at
Elementis is as follows:

» Board leadership supported by anopen
and transparent culture of 'no surprises’,
good governance and compliance.

This means knowing and understanding
the businesses and quality interactions
between the Board and the Executive
Leadership team{including a regular
programme of presentations and reports to
the Board. as weil as operational site visits)

« Internail and external audit programmes,
regular litigation and compliance reviews
with the General Counsel and Chief
Compliance Officer

+ aprogramme of comphance audits,
reguiatory inspections, environmeittal
Teviews and property surveys Dy
external specialists

+ Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, on
which all employees are giventraining and
are required fo self centify compliance with,
supplemented by an online compliance
training programme, an anti-bribery and
corruption policy, which contractors are
also regquired 10 sign up 1o, whistieblowing
arrangements and an anti-retaliation policy

Whistieblowing

The Group's whistleblowing facility is
accessible on a 24/7 basis, 365 days of
the year and provides arrangements for an
independent service provider to receive, in
confidence, reports of breaches of any legal
or Company policy requirements, including
those refated to actounting, suditing,

risk, internal control and related matters.
Any such disclosures arereported toihe
Committee a5 appropriate.

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Committee adopted a similar approach
as in previous years to ensure that the Annual
Report is fair, balanced and understandable.
The process was as follows:

* Aninternal Annual Report Team (ART}was
set up to manage the process. The ART
consisted of members drawn from Group
Finance, Company Secretariat and
Investor Relations teamns. The ART was
responsible for regularly reviewing work
and ensuring balanced reporting with
appropriate links befween key messages
and sections of the Annual Repaort,
The Committee chairman held meetings
with the audit partner, and the Commitiee
held meetings with the external auditors
without managerment being present.
An audit clearance meeting was held
with the Committee chairman, CFO and
members of the Finance team alongside
the audit pantner and audit team members.
The Committee received updates from
management on the Annual Report
progress and audit throughout the process
as well as from the Company's brokers and
other advisers
» The Committee, Chairman and Executive
Directors reviewed the Annual Report in its
final stages

*

Fallowing this pracess, the Committee
supparting the Board are able to confirm
that the Annual Report, taken as a whole,

is fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the necessary information for
sharehoiders to assess the Group's position,
performance, business model and strategy.

Anne Hyland
Chairman, Audit Committee
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Corporate governance

Relations with shareholders

Board engagement with shareholders
Elementis is committed to delivering long
term sustainable returns to its shareholders.
The Chairman is responsible for effective
communication with shareholders.

The CEO and CFQ are the Campany's
principal contacts for investors, analysts,
press and otherinterested stakeholders.

There is a dedicated investor relations
programme for current and potential
investors, whichis managed by the Director
of Investor Relations who reports to the CFO.

The Board receives an investor relations
report at each of its meetings outlining
recent dialogue with investors and feedback
received. Analysts' reports are also made
available to the Board. The Chairman
attends the financial resuits presentations
where he has the opportunity to meet with
those analysts who attend.

The Chairman and Senior independent
Director are available to sharehoiders to
gdiscuss governance and sirategy COnNcerns
as appropriate. The Chairman meets with
shareholders (o diISCUSS governance or
other matters as appropriate. During these
meetngs, investors are invited to meet with
other members of the Board, for example,
the Chair of the Audit, Nomination or
Remuneration Committees.

Shareholder meetings

In April 2019, we held our annual shareholder
meeting. The Notice of AGM was postedto
shareholders at least 20 days prior to the
meeting. The Board welcomes attendance
atthese meetings and they provide a
valuable opportunity to discuss Company
matters and interaction with the Board.

We are grateful to those shareholders who
were unable to attend but submitted voting
instructions via proxy.

Atthe AGM, ali the members of the

Board attended and the CEQ provided a
presentation to shareholders outlining the
performance of the Company during the
prior financial year. Shareholders are able to
engage directly with the Chairs of the Audit
and Remuneration Committees at the AGM.

Each resolution was proposed separately
and voting was conducted on a poll taking
into account votes cast at the meeting and
those submitted via proxy.

Sharehgiders had the option to vote either for
or against a resohution or to withhold their vote.

Al proposed resolutions were passed,
with votes in favour ranging from 83.16%
1o 100%.

Following the meeting. the voting results
were announced to the London Stock
Exchange and published on the Company’s
corporate website.

Capital Markets day

inNovember 2019, we held a Capital
Markets Day in London for over 10Q analysts
and investors to outline the next phase

of our development, The event provided
stakeholders with the opportunity to be
updated on our strategic priorities, meet
management and see some our products
inaction. At the events we outlined our
medium term performance objectives of:

= Adjusted operating profit margin of 17%

« Operating cash conversion of at least 90%
perannum

« Financial leverage of under 1.5x net debt/
EBITDA

2019 investor relations programme
During 2019:

« Institutional investors and analysts were
invited to attend the Comparny's fullyear
and half year results presentationinperson
of via a webcast

* Over 100 attendees, both current
investors and potential investors, attended
the Capital Markets Day

* Over 130 investor meetings

» Attended five investor conferences

+ Interim and annual results roadshows

* Meld ad hoc road shows in Europe and
North America

Private investors

The Board is keento hear the views of

our private shareholders and they are
encouraged to use our sharehoider maibox,
company.secretariat@elementis.com,

for detailed enqguiries and to access our
website for our Company reports and
business information.

Specific enquiries may also be addressed to
the Group Company Secretary and sent to
the registered office.

Shareholder tracing programme

In 2015, a shareholder tracing programme
was launched to reduce the number of
‘gone-away’ shareholders onthe share
register over a period of four years. Intotal
769 accounts have been closed with a total
value returned of over £665.000.

2019 investor relations calendar

Janvary February March May Juty September Movember December
Paris FY18results FY 18 UBS small Ht 19results  Berenberg Capital QOverseas
roadshow presentation  roadshow and midcap presentation  focd Markets Day  roadshowin

conference ingredients North America

Chairman’s Ht 19 and chemicals

Governance roadshow conferance Credit Suisse

roadshow chemicals
conference
Berenberg
eyropean
conference
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Corporate governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report

Steve Good

Chairman

Remuneration

Committee
Committee members
Scheduled meetings
Committee Scheduled
members meetings
Steve Good [ X ¥ ¥ ]
Sandra Boss L X X ¥ )
Dorothee Deuring XYY Yl
Nick Saimon o006
John O'Higgins*

*  Johrr O'Higgins joined the Comrmittee on
A February 2020

Dear Shareholder,

Asg Chair of the Remuneration Committee
{the Committee), | am pleased to present
the Directors’ Rernuneration Report for

the year ended 31 December 2019,

This statement provides a summary of

the work completed by the Committee in
the year, the key decisions that have been
taken and how the Reruneration Policy was
implemented. 2019 was a year of continued
progress in transforming our portfolio of
Businesses 1o reposition the Company as a
premium performance additives company,
with advantaged positions in growing
markets. This good strategic progress was
delivered against a backdrop of challenging
macroeconcmic conditions in response

te which the managament team quickly
implemented a nurnber of self-help actions
to ensure that financial performance would
be as robust 2s possible in the current
commercial environment.

From a Committee perspective, 2019 was
a busy year considering remuneration
payments in the context of the continued
strategic progress but challenging
financial performance noted above,
reviewing the implications of the updated
2018 UK Corporate Governance Code
and determining the application of our
current Remuneration Policy for the final
time in 2020. A new Policy is due to be
proposed to shareholders at our 2021
AGM. These factors are cavered in the
Reports that follow.

The Report is set out in three parts:

1. This Annual Statement summarising how
the Policy has been implemenied and the
key decisions the Committee has taken;

2. The Annual Report on Remuneration
which proviges detait on how we paid
Directors during 2013 and how we
propose 1o implement the policy in
2020¢; and

3. Asummary of the Remuneration Policy
{Policy), as approved with over 99%
support at the 2018 AGM.

The Report will be presented to shareholders
for approval at the AGM on 29 Aprii 2020
and | hope you will vote in support of

the resolution.

Remuneration policy

The Remuneration Policy [Policy} promotes
sustained performance of the Company and
is aligned with shareholder interests with
incentive pay based on growing profits and
delivering abhove average total shareholder
return. tn fine with the business operations as
a global speciaity chemicals cornpany, our
Policy is designed with a bias towards long
term performance. As a Cornmittee, we have
considered whether the Policy is operating
as intended and whether any changes for
2020 were needed in light of the updates

to our medium term strategic objectives.
The conciusion of the Committee was that
the current focus on profitable growth and
delivering above average total sharehalder
return remains appropriate. However, in tight
of ingtitutional investors’ expectations in
relation to Executive Director pensions, the
Committes has agreed with the Executive
Directors that their current pension provision
should be reduced and as a result a glide
path to align them to the average of the UK
workforce by end 2022 has been agreed.
This change can be accommodated within
our existing Palicy.

In advance of a new Policy being presented
to shareholders at the 2021 AGM, the
Committee will again review the Policy over
the course of 2020 to ensure it continues to
support the long-term business strategy and
takes due account of bast practice corporate
governance developments.
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Corporate governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Variable remuneration outcomes for 2019
Annual bonus

As noted earlier, 2019 was a year of strong
strategic progress with delivery across a
range of objectives set at the start of the year
that included completing the integration of
Mondo and driving cost synergies across

the Group, business simplification within

our Coatings busmess, right sizing our

R&D capabilities and upgrading our digital
technologres, financial reporting systems
and internal controls, With regards to financial
performance in the context of challenging
macroeconomic conditions, notwithstanding
strong management self-help actions

and strong free cash flow generation,
performante was below the range of targets
set at the start of the financial year.

Whilst the performance against individual
objectives was strong and resulted in
between 80% and 90% of the strategic
targets set at the start of the year being
achieved, in light of the financial performance
of the Company during the year, the
Committee used its discretion to reduce

the bonuses earned based on the targets
originally set by 33%. As a result of the above,
following the Committee undertaking a
formal assessment of performance against
the targets, and then using its discretion,
bonuses were payable in the range of 16.7%
to 17.3% of maximum for the Executive
Directors. Furthermore, to ensure a continued
link between the strong defivery achieved
against our strategic goals and shareholder
retums, 100% of the bonus payable will be
deferred into the Company’s shares and held
for a minimum of two years.

Further details of the targets set for 2019 are
disclosed on pages 87 to 90. The Committee
continues to provide detailed disclosure

for non-financial targets following feedback
from shareholders.

Long term incentive plan (LTIP)

The 2017 LTIP Awards vest to the extent
that EPS growth and TSR performance
targets are met over the three years ending
on 31 December 2019. As a result of the
challenging macreeconomic conditions
during the performance period, the
Company’s total shareholder returns over
the period was below the median performing
company in the FTSE All-Share Index
{excluding investment trusts) and, therefore,
this portion of the award will not vest,

The threshold EPS target has not been met
and this portion of the award will also lapse.
As aresult. none of the 2017 award will vest.

The Committee beiieves that the overall
incentive out-turns detailed above are
appropriate based on the Company's
performance over the whole period and
demonstrates that the Committee has, and
will continue to, set performance targets
which it considers to be meaningful and
appropriately stretching.

Application of Remuneration Policy

in 2020

As detailed above, the current Policy is
considered to be working effectively with
the change to Executive Directors pension
arrangements, the only material changes to
the current application of Policy for 2020.

The key points to note include:

Salary review: In line with the average
increases awarded to the salaried workforce
in the US and the UK, the salary of the CEQ
was increased by 2% to $917.741 and

the CFO's salary was increased by 2.2%

to £362.237. These changes are effective
from 1 January 2020.

2020 annual bonus: There will be no change
to the quantum and as such the CEQ will
have the opportunity to earn 150% of salary
and the CFO 125% of salary.

As for 2019, the bonus will be based 70%
against a challenging range of financial
targets (509 on adjusted Group profit before
tax and 20% on average trade working capital
to sales ratio {AWC) on total operations) ang
30% based on the delivery of specific and
measurable objectives that are related to the
Company's strategic priorities.

Summary details of our approach to target
setting are detailed on page 84 and full
details of the financial target ranges and our
performance against them will be disclosed
on a retrospective basis in next year's report.
The Cormmittee has discretion to modify the
overall amount of bonus payable to ensure it
is appropriate.
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2020 LTIP Awards: Awards are expected

to be granted at the same levels asin 2019
at 200% of salary for the CEQ and 175% of
salary for the CFO. in determining the award
sizes, the Committee considered the degree
of stretchin the targets noting both the
minimal vesting at the threshoid performance
levels {which is well below market norms)
and the demanding nature of the financial
targets setin light of ongoing challenging
market conditions.

The primary performance targets will be the
same EPS and TSR performance conditions
{split 50:50) as operated in 2019.

The range of EPS growth targets will be
average annuat EPS growth of 3% to 12%
p.a. for threshold to maximum vesting which
runs from 0% to 100% on a straight line
basis. Growth will be measured from the
2019 EPSresult to the EPS achieved in 2022.
The Committee considers this high growth
range to be appropriately stretching in light
of the progress made with our Company’s
strategy after having had regard to current
internal planning and external broker
forecasts for our future performance in

light of currert market conditions.

TSR will continue to be assessed against
the constituents of the FTSE Ali Share
index {excluding investment trusts).
Threshold vesting starting at 3.85% for
median performance, increasing on a
graduated basis with 100% vesting for
achieving stretch targets, which for TSR will
require at least upper quartile performance.

The 2020 LTIP awards will also be subject

to a return on capital employed underpin.
This will require the Committee to consider
the vesting result determined based on the
application of the EPS and TSR performance
conditions in light of the return on capital
employed achieved during the three year
period ending 31 December 2022 relative

to the Board's internal plans over the period.
if the Committee does not consider the
vesting resuit appropriate in light of the return
on capital employed achieved in this context,
the underpin enables vesting to be reduced
to a more appropriate level.



Non-Executive Directors’ fees: The
Committee, following a recommendation

by the Board, approved a policy in 2016 to
increase the Chairman's fee and the Non-
Executive Directors’ basic and any additional
role fees annually by the same percentage
increase as the average UK salaried
workforce for the year being reported.

As such, the 2020 fees have been increased
by 2.2%.

Foliowing the appointment of Sandra Boss
as Designated Non-Executive Director for
workforce engagement, fees were agreed
at £4,358 per annum. These fees were also
increased by 2.2% on 1 January 2020.

Governance developments

Changes to Executive Director

Pension Benefits

As a result of the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code, and wider institutional
investor guidance recommending pension
alignment between executives and
employees, the Committee has seviewed
the current Executive Directors’ pension
provision. The conclusion of the Committee,
with the agreement of the Executive
Directors, is that pension benefits should be
reduced to reflect pension provision maore
generally in the UK but also take account of
the timing of individual appointments and
pension provision at that time. Setting the
quanturn of Directors’ pension with reference
to general provision across the Company's
UK employees is appropriate given that
Executive Director remuneration has been
set toreflect UK market practice in terms of
quantum and structure in light of Elementis
being Premium Listed on the London

Stock Exchange.

The policy the Committee has adopted is as
follows in relation to future pension provision:

For ncurnbent Executive Direciors
{contribution to a pension scheme or
a cash alternative).

« From 1 January 2020: 25%

* From 1 December 2020: 24%

» From 1 December 2021 22.5%
+ From 1 December 2022: 21%

The above rates already include a reduction
in the level of pension that can be provided
to the Chief Executive with future Company
contributions to his contractual US
retirement scheme to be limited to circa

5% from 2020 where previousty they have
been up to circa 8% of salary in addition to
his separate entitiement to a 209% of salary
cash allowance.

For new Joiners:

* 8% contribution to a pension scheme ora
cash alternative

The reduction set out above for Executive
Directors will achieve alignment with the
average rate of pension currently provided
to UK employees. It is reflective of the typical
individual pension funding rate prevaifing

at the time of the Executive Directors’
appointments ie, the 21%is set at the
current average funding cost and at a rate
that reflected standarg practice at Elementis
in the UK at the time of their appointments.
To provide further context, both the median
and upper quartile employee included in the
CEO to all employee pay ratio on page 94
has a pension contribution {as a percentage
of salary) in excess of the 219% of salary
detailed above. As a Company that has
grown through a combination of organic
growth and acquisition there are several
pensinn schemes that operate in the UK.
The schemes include both defined benefit
and defined contribution arrangements.
New joiners to Elernentis in the UK are now
eligible to join an open defined contribution
plan {where the typical Company contribution
is 8% of salary) but employees that joined in
prior years continue to benefit from future
accrual of benefits in their originat pension
plans. On this basis, the approach detailed
above provides consistency between the
Executive Directors and the wider workforce
alowing for the tming of their joining service
with any new joiner being set at the same
pension rate as other new joiners.

Context of Directors’ pay within

the Company

Whilst the Group has less than 250
employees in the UK and is therefore not
required to report under the gender pay gap
regulations, a comprehensive global review
of gender pay was completed towards the
end of 2018. This looked at all roies globally
0 determine the equity of pay based upon
actuallocal pay rates and the level of the
role. Due 1o the significant nature of this
work, it will be undertaken on a biennial
basis. Actions were taken in 2019 onasmall
number of inrole gaps that were identified.
The Board and the Committee will continue
to monitor the situation going forward.

The Group is also not required to provide
disclosure of the CEQO to all employee pay
ratio given the Group has less than 250
employees in the UK. However, given the
external focus on pay ratics the Committee
has included full pay ratic disclosure

on page 94. The Committee noted that

the ratio was towards the lower range

of those previously disclosed by FTSE

350 companies.

Concluding remarks

The Comymittee believes that the Policy and
our approach to implementation in both 2019
and 2020 are in the best interests of the
Company ond we hope that you will suppont
the actions the Committee has taken by
voting in favour at the 2020 AGM. If you have
any concermns, please feel free to contact

me via the Group Company Secretary at
companysecretariat@elementis.com.
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Corporate governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Annual Report on Remuneration (Report)
This Report details how the Company's policies and practices on Directors' remuneration were applied in respect of the financial year ended
31 December 2019 and how they will be applied in the 2020 financial year.

A copy of the current remuneration policy is available on the Company’s website: wwwelementis.com/governance/remuneration-committee

Our measures
Annual Bonus LTiP
Adjusted Group profit before tax: Earnings per share (EPS):
50% weighting 50% weighting
Adjusted average trade working capital Relative Total Shareholder Return (TSR):
to sales ratio (AWC): 50% weighting
20% weighting

ROCE underpin
Non-financial {objectives aligned with Safety,
Strategic implementation and People:

30% weighting

L ________ |
How our measures link to strategy '

Strategic priorities

Performance metrics Innpvation Growth Efficiency

Bonus Financial: (70%)
Adijusted Group profit before tax [ J ® [
Average trade working capital to sales ratio @ [ ]

Non-financial: (30%)

Relative TSR versus FTSE All Share {50%)
Return on operating capital employed (Underpin)

Safety. compliance and risk management ® o [

Strategic implementation ® ® [ ]

People [ J [ ®

LTiP EPS (50%) ® o o
9 [ ) L

® ® L]
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Implementation of Remuneration Policy for 2019

The section below summarises how the Policy was implemented in the financial year ending 371 December 2019. Further detaiis are provided

onpages 85t091.
Key Policy features Performance assessment How we implemented m 20197
Salary Not applicable PaulWaterman  Rafph Hawins
* Increases normally guided by the general increase for the 2019 salary £704.909" £354.439
local workforce andior broader workforce as a whole
* Equivalent to $899,746
In line with the average increases awarded to the
US and UK salaried workforce, the salaries of the
CEQ and CFC's satary were both increased by ¢.3%.
These changes were effective from 1 January 2019.
Pensior/benefits/all employee share schemes Not applicable PaulWasterman  RalphHewins
» Pension: CEQ participates in US specific arrangements Pension £152.000° £88.610

and receives a salary supplement of 20% of salary and
CFO receives salary supplement of 25% of salary

= Benefits: Directors receive market competitive benefits
and may participate in all-employee share schemes

* Equivelent to $194,000

= imptementation in line with the Palicy

* In 2018, the CEQC opted not to participate
in any voluntary US supplementary
retirement arrangements

Annual bonus Paul Waterman Ralph Hewins PaulWatérman  Ralph Hewins
- Pe:‘formanr?e'r‘edlatl_ed Opportunity  150% of salary _ 125% of salary 2019 bonus £186,942" £75466
S o vere  BET ~ $335muvstarget o $1461m % deferred in shares
value for achievement P ¢ maxi until Q12022 100% 100%
against annuat targets ayout 0% of maximum
« Committee may AWC 22.5% vs target of 19.5% * Equivalent to $238.613
adjust outturn where Payout 0% of maximum
formulaic assessment Non-financial See page 87 10 88
is inconsistent 87% of 83% of
with Company’s maximum maximum
overall performance reduced to reduced to
* 50% of bonus earned Payout 58% 56%
deferred into shares for 173% of 16.7% of
two years . .
N i
- Recovery and withholding Tota maximum maximum
provisions apply Further information can be found on pages 85 o 88.
In light of the financial perfarmance, the Committee
used its discretion to reduce the outcome of the
individual portion by 33%. 100% of the bonus
payment will be deferred as shares for 2019.
Long term Incentive plan PaulWaterman Ralph Hewins TSRvs FTSE All
» Performance measures 2017 LTIP 2017 Award Average EPS growth Share
based on financial andfor vesting £0 £0 Weighting 50% 50%
relative TSR metrics and Threshold 3% pa Median
measured over 3 years target
- Co_mmattee may Maxirmum 10%pa  Upperquartle
adjust outturn where target
:‘::r’:;ﬂfg :;ﬁssme”t Actual -767%pa__ 23rd percentile
with Company’s Vesting 0%/50% 09%/50%
cwer_all perfc_)rmancg Further information can be found on
* Holding period applies for pages 90 to 91
two years following vesting ’
» Recovery and withholding
provisions apply
Share ownership Paul Waterman RalphHewins Both the CEO and CFO increased their holdings
guidelines Guideline 200% of salary  200% of salary during the year. Further information can be found
* Build up and maintain a On track 'On Track onpage 91.
shareholding equal to Leve! 989% of salary  56.6% of salary

200% of salary
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Corporate governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

impiementation of Remuneration Policy For 2020

The section below summarises how the Committee intends to implement the Palicy for the forthcoming financial year ending

31 December 2020.

Key Policy featuwies

2020implementation

Salary

+ Level based on the scope and résponsibifities of the role

+ Increases normally guided by the general increase for the focal
waorkforce and/or broader workforce as a whole

+ The Committee reviewed salaries and decided to award Paul
Waterman and Ralph Hewins each a salary increase as shown in the
table below, which is consistent with the average increase last year
for the respective US and UK salaried workforce.

PautWaterman Ralph Hewins
Salary as at 1 January 19 $899,746 £354.439
Salary as at 1 January 20 $917740 £362,237
2020 Increase {+2%) {+2.2%)

Pension/ benefits/ all employee share schemes

« Pension: CEQ participates in US specific arangements and receives
a salary supplement of 20% of salary and the CFO receives a salary
supplement of 25% of salary

+ As detailed on page 81 it has been agreed that pension provision
for the incumbent Directars will be aligned with typical UK pension
provision by the end of 2022

» Any new Director appointment will have pension set at 8% of salary

« Benefits: Directors receive market competitive benefits and may
participate in all-employee share schemes

+ Implementation in line with the Policy albeit a change to the
proposed application of policy in refation to pension frorm 2020

Annual bonus .

* Policy maxirmum of 150% of salary for CEQ and 125% of salary
for CFO

+ Performance relaied scheme which delivers value for achievement
against annual targets

» Committee may adjust outturn where formulaic assessmentis
inconsistent with Company's overall performance

» 50% of bonus earned deferred into shares for two years

+ Recovery and withholding provisions apply

Link to KPIs

= Adjusted Group PBT

* AWC

= Individual objectives linked to strategic priorities

Paul Waterman Ralph Hewins

150% of 125% of

Opportunity salary salary
Performance metrics:

* Adjusted Group PBT: 50%

+ Average trade working capital to sales ratio: 20%

« Non-financial strategic priorities: 30%

« The Committee considers that the bonus targets are commercially
sensitive and therefore plans to disclose themonly ona
retrospective basis in next year's Directors’ remuneration report.

* The range of targets around budgeted performance levels to apply
to the 2020 annual bonus remain the same as in 2019 for both
the Adiusted Group PBT and AWC. However, in kight of the current
economic cutiook, the absohite leved of Adjusted Group PBT
performance required has been recalibrated versus the 2019 targets to
reflect current internal planning and market expectations. The targets
are considered similarly challenging to those set in 2019 allowing for
current market conditions, Full retrospective disclosure of the actual
targets will be included in next year's Directors’ Remuneration report.

Long term incentive plan

* Policy maximurm is 250% of salary

+ Awards vest to the extent performance conditions are achieved

» Performance measures based on financial and/or relative TSR
metrics and measured over three years with a ROCE underpin

» Committee may adjust outturn where formulaic assessment is
inconsistent with Company's overall performance

» Holding period apples for two years foliowing vesting

» Recovery and withholding provisions apply

« ROCE underpin introduced for the 2019 awards continues to apply

Link to KPls

+ EPS

* Relative TSR

= ROCE underpin

Paul Waterman Ralph Hewins

200% of 175% of

LTIP Award salary salary
Performance metrics:

) Thegshold Threshold Maximum

Weighiing laiget vesting target

EPS growth 50% 3% 0% 12%

Relative TSR vs
FTSE all-share Upper
index 50% Median 3.85% quartile

+ The range of EPS targets 1s considered to be appropriately
demanding noting {i} that vesting takes place from 0% (as opposed
to the market norm of 25%), and (i} in line with institutional
investor expectations such that the range straddies consensus
growth expectations
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Key Policy features

2020 implementation

Chair and NED fees

» To attract individuals with the relevant skills, knowledge and
experience that the Board considers necessary in order t¢ maintain
an optimal mix that ensures the effectiveness of the Board as a
whole in carrying out its duties and responsibilities

= 2020 fees were increased in line with the average for the UK

salaried workforce:
2020
2020 2019 increase
Basic fees
Chairman £195,055 £190.856 (+2.2%)
Non-Executive Director £51,268 £50,164 {+2.2%)
Additional fees
Senior Independent Director £8,908 £8,716 (+2.2%)
Chair of Augdit or
Remuneration Committee £8,908 £8,716 (+2.2%)
Workforce engagement NED £4,454 £4,358 (+2.2%)

CEO and CFO Rewards Scenario Analysis

The bar charts below ilustrate the potential pay opportunities for Executive Directors under 3 different scenarios for 2020.

The CEO's remuneration has been converted into pounds sterling using the average 2019 exchange rate of $1.2764:£1.00.

Fixed: comprises fixed pay being the value of salary, benefits and pension (taken to be 25% of salary).

On target: the amount receivable assumes performance in which 50% of annual bonus is payable and 50% of LTIP awards vest.

Maximur. the maximum amount receivable should all stretch targets be met and vesting under both the annual bonus scheme and LTIP is
100%. When valuing the LTIP awards under the ‘On target’ and ‘Maximum’ scenarios, these are based on face value as a percentage of salary.
The LTiPs also relate to awards to be made in 2020 rather than any awards vesting in 2020.
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Corporate governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Remuneration payable to Directors for 2019 (audited)
Although the Company reports its results in US dollars, the remainder of this report on remuneration is presented in pounds sterling because
the majarity of the Directors are UK based and paid in pounds sterling.

A breakgown of the Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the table below

Fixed Performance related
£000 Year Salaryffees  Benefits? Pension  Sub-total Bonus LTIP  Sub-total Total
Executive Directors
Paul Waterman, CEQ" 2 2019 705 70 152 927 187 - 187 1114
2018 651 43 183 877 352 - 352 1,229
Ralph Hewins, CFO? 2019 354 25 89 4568 75 - 75 543
2018 344 25 B6 455 159 - 159 614
Non-Executive Directors
Andrew Duff, Chairman 2019 191 - - 191 - - - 191
2018 185 - - 185 - - - 185
Sandra Boss® 2019 51 - - 51 - - - 51
2018 49 - - 49 - - - 49
Dorothee Deuring 2019 50 - - 50 - - - 50
2018 49 - - 49 - - - 49
Steve Good 2019 59 - - 59 - - - 59
2018 57 - - 57 - - - 57
Anne Hytand 2019 59 - - 59 - - - 59
2018 57 - - 57 - - - 57
Nick Salrmon 2019 59 - - 59 - - - 59
2018 57 - - 57 - - - 57
Total 2019 1,528 85 241 1,864 262 - 262 2,126
Total 2018 1.449 68 269 1,786 511 - 511 2,297

1 Paul Waterman is based in the US and paid in US dollars, He received an annual salary of $89%k (2018: $874k). His pension comprises 20% of his salary

and employer contributions to defined contribution retirement schemes. Foreign exchange rate applied is the 2019 average rate of $7,2764.£1.00(2018:
$1.3413:£1.00L

Taxable berefits for Paul Waterman consist of a car allowance, private health care {£1 2,1 28), dental, ife assurance. accidental death and disablement cover
and long term disability insurance (£20.816), tax advice {£23,504) and club membership, The increase in benefits shown over 2019 is largely due to a $30,000
payment made in connection with receipt of tax advice to enable him to make appropriate tax filings in both the UK and US as a result of company business
travel requirements during 2018719 which exceeded the normal business expectations agreed on appointment and gave rise to the need for dual filings.
Taxabie benefits for Ralph Hewing consist of a car alowance (£18,000), private health care and life assurance.

3 Sandra Boss was appointed Designated Non-Executive Director for workforce engagement in October 2018

4 John O'Higgins was appointed on 4 February 2020

N

Determination of annual bonus outcome for performance in 2019 (audited)

This section shows the performance targets set in respect of the 2019 annual bonus scheme, the level of performance achieved and the
amount of honus payable te Directors. The bonus targets were tested against the full year results and the full year bonus payment will be paidin
Q1, For 2019, 100% of the amount vesting will be paid in the form of a share award deferred for two years.

Based on a testing of the performance conditions originally set, the bonus outcomes were as follows:

FY 2018 bonus plantargets Percentage of salary vesting
Relative
walighting of Paul

performance Percent of Waterman Ralph

Fultyear bonus conditions Threshold Ptan Stretch  Actual result maximum CEOQ  Hewins CFO
Maximurm as % salary 150% 125%
PBT ($m) 50% 1278 1461 160.7 935 0% 0% 0%
AWC %) 20% 215 195 175 225 0% 0% 0%
Non-financial 30% nfa n/a 39.0% 31.25%
Total full year 100% 39.0% 31.29%
Post Discretion 26% 20.8%

In ight of the financial performance, the Committee used its discretion to reduce the outcome of the individuat portion by 33%, resulting inthe
reduction in the annual bonus awards set as a percentage of salary from 39% to 26% for the CEO and from 31.25% to 20.8% for the CFO with
the entire bonus deferred into the Company's shares for two years.

Set out below are the challenging 2019 individual strategic objectives and actual performance against them prior to the use of discretion by
the Committee to reduce the bonus outcomes. The objectives established and the assessment of performance is shown in the table below
The objectives were categorised into three groups — (1) Safety, Compliance & Risk Management, {2) Strategic Implementation and (3} People
with each group having an egual weighting.

86 Elementis plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019



2019 bonus assessment for CEO

Summary
Measure Qbjectives Performance Indicators Achievements scaring
Safety, compliance and » Throughembedding  + Reportable Injuries: TRIR - target * TRIR=0.48
risk management our Values in the <0.7, threshold <0.85 and stretch * Environrnent Tier2/3
way we work, create <0.55 incidents =0
ASSESSMENT + Environmentai Tier 2/3incidents; = LTA > 3 days = 1

All targets exceeded and
further investrent made int
Safety culture, awareness
ang equipment

a culture of Safety,
Compliance and

Risk Management

target Tier 2 incidents = 1, threshoid
= 1 Tier 3 and stretch =0

» LTA> 3 days: target =2, threshold = 3,
stretch =1

Strategic Implementation .
Actions to deliver “Pursue

Best Growth Opportunities™
Strategic Priority

ASSESSMENT

All targets achieved and
overall transformation

Coatings

Transformation

» Simplification of the portfolio
through targeted reduction of 250-
300 SKU's

« Improve margins and efficiency
through SG&A reduction {run rate
target 1o be agreed Q2)

« 332 reduction in active
SKU'sin2019

* $4m targeted reductionin
SGRA achieved with further
margin improvement
through pricing, product
optimisation and .
channel strategy

programme detivered
Actions to deliver "Pursue + Talc Integration * Successful integration of Business = Business fully integrated as
Best Growth Cpportunities” « Atleast $2m full year run rate cost per plan.
Strategic Priority synergy actions executed « $2mfult year run-rate cost
synergies delivered with
ASSESSMENT good progress made on
Targets achieved revenue synergies
Actions to deliver “Pursue « Plan and execute = Cassius project benefits delivered + Cassius project
Supply Chain Transformation® 2019 component iy full completedin 2019
Strategic Priority of Coatings * India Project delivered to plan with an annual run rate
ASSESSMENT Manufacturing « Pursue Coatings Ma_rnufacturﬁng benefit of $3m achieved
footprint optimisation footprint rationalisation in Asia Majority of pianned 2019
Targets partially achieved and the Americas to deliver benefit achieved
utilisation, fixed cost and working * Taloja site acquired, plan
capital benefits in place and construction

started. Savings on track

for full delvery

Project re-evaluated

into i), Global review of
manufacturing footprint and
ii}. Chromium manufactuing
and efficiency

Combined benefit in line
with operational efficiency
targets for 2022

Innovate for High Margins & -
Distinctiveness

ASSESSMENT

Targels partially achieved

Reset R&D agenda
and resourcing

* Establish right sized R&D
Qrganisation for both effectiveness
and efficiency

- Ciarity of product pipeline and
subsequent growth potential over
short and medium term horizon

R&D organisation re-aligned
to growth strategies, in
place Q4 ensuring global
reach and local presence

» Inncvation pipetine re-
focused ondistinctiveness,
materiality and speed with
clear KPI's set
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Corperate governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Surmmary

Measure Objectives Performance indicatoss Achievements scoring
People = Continued « Building Asian Leadership Capabitity + Critical new hires in place
Actions to deliver "Culture development of through the successful appointment  in China and India plus
of High Performance” the capability and and integration of new Senior ~ significant capability
Strategic Priority diversity of the Leaders in Commercial China and SE  building in Sales territory

Executive leadership Asia, Finance and Supply Chain. teams, HR and Finance
ASSESSMENT . i -
- teamand level 3 + Succession plans established teams. Commercial Director
Targets partialty achieved {senior) leadership for ELT and critical level 3 roles to india/SE Asia hiring

increase our most senior female
population 10 25% (17% at end
2018) by 2021

in progress

ELT and Level 3 succession
review completed with
focus on development of
tatent. Two female Plant
Managers appointed
Extended leadership
group 23% female at

end of December 2013,
Senior Leadership at 20%
Female

Key to summary scorin

el PRI N T
ERAE H SN b g

88 Elementis plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019



2019 bonus assessment for CFO

Measure Objectives

Pertormance indicators

Summary
Achievements sgoring

Safety, compliance and
risk management

ASSESSMENT

All targets exceeded and
further investment made in
Safety culture, awareness
and equipment

» Through embedding
our Values in the
way we work, create
a culture of Safety,
Compliance and
Risk Management

» Reportable Injuries: TRIR - target
<0.7, threshold <0.85 and stretch
<055

= Erwvironmental Tier 2/3 incidents:
target Tier 2 ncidents = 1, threshold
=1 Tier 3and stretch=0

+ LTA> 3 days: target =2, threshold = 3,
stretch = 1

* TRIR=048
= Environment Tier2/3
incidents = 0

«{TA>3days=1

Strategic Implementation
Actions to deliver "Pursue
Best Growth Opportunities”
Strategic Priority

ASSESSMENT
Targets achieved

« Talc Integration

» Successful integration of Business
» Atleast $2m full year run rate cost
synergy actions executed

+ Business fully integrated as
per plan

» $2m full year run-rate cost
synergies delivered with

good progress made on
revenue synergies

Actions to deliver “Pursue
Supply Chain Transformation”
Strategic Priority

ESSMENT
Targets partiatly achieved

* Plan and execute
2019 component
of Manufacturing
footprint optimisation

« Cassius project benefits delivered
in full

- India Project delivered to plan

~ Pursue Coatings Manufacturing
footprint rationalisation in Asia
and the Americas to deliver
utitisation, fixed cost and working
capital benefits

« Cassius project
completed in 2019
with an annual run rate
penefit of $3m achieved.
Majority of planned 2019
benefit achieved
* Taloja site acquired, plan
in place and construction
started. Savings on track
for full defivery
Project re-evatuated
into i} Global review of
manufacturing footprint and
ii) Chromium manufacturing
and efficiency Combineg
benefitin line with
operational efficiency
targets for 2022

Actions to defiver “Culture
of High Performance”
Strategic Priority

ASSESSMENT
Targets partially achieved

« Digitalimplemeniation * Successful launch of Elementis.com,

CRM and e-commerce, plus 2019
components of BYMI project

« Improve flash reporting to align with
business segments

* Elementiscom launched in
May, CRM via Salesforcecom
launched and key in driving
NBO's. E-commerce and B
M delayed untl 2020

Flash reporting aligned to
new business segments
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Corporate governance

Directors' Remuneration Report continued

Measure

Objectives

Performance indicators

Achievements

Summary
scoring

Actions to deliver “Culture
of High Performance”
Strategic Priority

ASSESSMENT

Targets achieved

» Sustainable working
capital reduction

* Strategic balance
sheet management

* Improve efficiency of working

capital deployment

- = $12m reductionin 2019
* Clear and appropriate actions taken
to manage risk — interest rate and fx

+ $11m delivered in 2013
with excellent progress
in dermand planning and
inventory management

+ Euribor hedging in place
over €120m of our debt
such that approx 50% af
debt is now fully interest

" rate hedged through to

Q4 2023. Managed debt

- spit USDIEUR to rmirror
EBITDA split and reduce fx
risk. Extended $375m RCF
by 12 menths to reduce
risk of all debt maturing in
one tranche

People

Actions to deliver "Culture
of High Performance”
Strateqic Priority

ASSESSMENTY
Targets partially achieved

+ Continue to build
the capability
of the Finance/
IT organisation

+ Effective transition to new Finance
{{T organisation, new structure

embedded with particular
focus on Asia controls / risk
management capability

* Build cohesive team with added

capability in Performance

Management and Digital technology

New Finance/IT
organisation in place as

of Q4. Good progress

on Asia controls and risk
management capability
Performance Management
tearmn continuing to
develop and enhance
capability. Good progress
made in building Digital
technology understanding

Directors’ share based awards

Determination of 2017 LTIP awards (audited}
Under the 2017 Award, achieving the threshotd EP'S growth target (3% p.a.) would result in 0% of the EPS portion vesting and achieving the
threshold TSR target (median rank) would result in 3.85% of the TSR portion vesting. The threshold EPS and TSR targets were not met and

these awards will lapse.

Annual LTIP awards granted in the year {audited}
LTIP awards made in 2019 are set out in the table below and are subject to EPS and TSR performance conditions (split 50:50) over the three

years 10 31 December 2021 as shown in the table below.

Facevale of The enddate of
Type ot Number o1 awardatgrant Percentage that would vest the performance A sumrnary of performance
Award hoider share award Grant date awards {E€'000s)* - atthreshold performance period targets and measures
Paul Waterman Nil cost 01.04.2079 845,282 1.381 0% of the award subject 31122027  Average annual EPS growth
{restricted to the EPS condition ‘ of 3% to 12%
stock unit) and and
RalphHewins Nilcostoption 01.04.2019 381,469 620 3.85% of the award TSR performance of
subject to the TSR median to upper quartile
condition

1 The share price used to determine the number of awards granted was 162.6 pence, being the average mid-market ¢losing share price on the dealing day

preceding the date of grant.

2 Detalls of deferred bonus and savings based share schemes are shown in the table overieal.

Sourcing shares for our share plans
Employee share plans comply with the Investment Association's guidelines on dilution which provide that overall issuance of shares under all
plans shouid not exceed an amount equivalent to 10% of the Company's issued share capital over any ten year period, with a further limitation
of 5% in any ten year period on discretionary plans. Based on the number of awards that remain outstanding as at the year end, the Company's

headroom for all plans is 3.68% and for discretionary plans is 3.11% of issued share capital.
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Directors’ scheme interests laudited}
The interests of the persons who were Directors during the year in the issued shares of the Company were:

Scheme interests

Vested but
Option Granted  Exercised Lapsed unaxercised
Interest Grant price during during during share
yhe date {p} 01.01.19% 2019 2019 2018 311218 options
Executive Directors
Paul Waterman LTIP® 04042016 ~ 533,043 - - 333,043 - -
DSBP®  07.03.2017 - -48028 - 48,028 - - -
LTIP®W  03.042017 ~ 512508 - - ~ 512509 -
DSBP®  05.04.2018 - 159,523 - - - 159523 -
LTIPw  30.04.2018 - 483127 - - - 4831727 -
DSBP® (06.03.2019 - ~ 110378 T - 110,378 -
L{TIPA 01042019 - - 849,282 - ~ 849282 -
Total scheme interests 1,736,230 859.660 48,028 533,043 2114819 Nil
Ralph Hewins RA%  1909.2016 - 263008 - -~ 263.008 - -
DsBP®  0703.20717 - 7,140 - - - 7140 7,140
RA®  (703.2017 - 17,458 - - - 17458 17,458
RA®  (0703.2017 - 92,262 - - - 92,262 92,262
LTIPW  03.04.20107 - 221128 - - -~ 221328 -
DSBP®  (05.04.2018 - 73123 - - - 73123 -
LTiP¥  30.04.2018 - 229983 - - - 229983 -
SAYE®  2711.2018 163.91 10931 - - - 10,981 -
DSBP®  (0603.2013 - ~ 48865 - - 48865 -
LTiPW  01.04.2019 - - 3B1,469 - - 3B1,468 -
Total scheme interests 915083 430,334 Q 263008 1.082409 116,860
Notes

{AILTIP awards are subject to performance canditions. The same refative TSR performance conditions apply in respect of the awards made in 2016, 2017, 2018 ang
2019 and the same EPS growth targets apply to all awards (annal growth of 3% to 10%) other than the 2019 award [annual growth of 3% to 12%}. These awards
ordinarily vest on the third anniversary of the grant date. Full detail of the vesting conditions are set out on page 90.

(B} Conditional share award under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan (DSBP). Structured as restricted stock units for Paul Waterman and nil cost options for Ralph
Hewins. For DSBP awards granted in March 2019, the share price at date of grant was £1.632. The face value of awards at grant were £180,137 and £79,749 for
Paul Waterman and Raiph Hewins respectively.

[CYReplacement Awards structwed as nil cost options made under standaione arrangements that borrow terms from the LTIP as amended. The 2016 awards lapsed
on 4 April 20719. In kne with the remuneration forfeited on leaving his former employer, the 2017 Award did not have performance congitions, but shares were
required to be held for two years,

{D}Replacernernt Awards structured as nil cost options made under standalone arrangerments that borrow tesms from the DSBP as amended.

{E} Options held under the UK SAYE scheme. This is a savings Dased share option scheme that is not subject to performance conditions. Further details on this
scheme is shown in Note 26 1o the ‘consolidated financial statements’ on page 153.

Directors’ share interests (audited)}
The interests of the Directors fincluding any connected persons) during the year (and from the year end to 4 March 2020) in the issued shares
of the Company were:

Acquited Disposed Shareholding
during during level met as at
01.01.19 2018 2019 311219 311219
Executive Directors

Pau!l Waterman' 394.830 41,042 o 435,872 No'
Ralph Hewins 4660 10,000 0 14,660 No!

Non-Executive Directors
Andrew Duff 69.500 0 0 69,500 nfa
Sandra Boss 15,625 0 o] 15,625 nfa
Dorothee Deuring 16.250 0 o} 16,250 nfa
Steve Good 12,500 4] 0 12,500 n/a
Anne Hyland 22153 Q o] 22353 na
Nick Salmon 17500 0 o] 17,500 nfa
John O'Higgins? - 0 0 0 nia

1 As per the Policy, Executive Directors are expected to buikd up a shareholding that is equalin value to 200% of their basic annual saleries. Share awards vesting
over time wil contribute to meeting the shareholder requirement.
2 John Q'Higgins joined the Board on 4 February 2020
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Corporate governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

The market price of ordinary shares at 31 December 2019 was 179 pence {(2018: 182.1 pence}and the range during 2019 was 129.8 pence to
179.7 pence (2018: 166.1 pence to 288.8 pence).

As at 31 December 2019, the Trustee of the Company's Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) neld 780,759 shares (2018:828,787).
As Executive Directors, Paul Waterman and Ralph Hewins, as potential beneficiaries under the ESOT, are deemed to have an interestin any
shares that become held in the ESOT.

As at 4 March 2020, no person who was then a Director had any interest in any derivative or other financial instrument relating to the Company's
shares and, so far as the Company is aware, none of their connected persons had such aninterest. Between 31 December 2019 and 4 March
2020 there was no change in the relevant interests of any such Directors nor, so far as the Company is aware, in the relevant interests of any of
their connected persons.

Other than their service contracts, tetters of appointrent and tetters of indemnity with the Company, none of the Directors had an interest in
any contract of significance in relation to the business of the Caompany or its subsidiaries at any time during the financial year.

Retirement benefits
The table below shows the breakdown of the retirement benefits of the Executive Directors, comprising employer contributions to defined
contribution plans and salary supplements paid in cash.

Paul Waterman received a salary supplement of 20% of his basic salary and participated in US contractual retilement schemes. Further detail
can be found in the Policy, The amount shown in the table befow represents employer matching contributions and both this and the salary
supplement are included in the Directors’ emoluments table shown on page 86.

Ralph Hewins received a salary suppiement of 25% of his basic salary in liew of any other retirernent benefit. The amount received is shown in
the table below and in the Directors’ emoluments table.

Directors’ retirement benefits (audited)

DPefined contribulion plans Salary supplemeni
2018 2018 2019 2018
E'Q00 €000 £°000 £'060
Paul Waterman 1 58 141 125
Ralph Hewins n/a nfa 89 86

Payments to past Directors/payments for loss of office (audited)
There were no payments in the financial year.

Total shareholder return performance and change in CEO's pay

The graph below illustrates the Company's total shareholder return for the ten years ended 31 December 2019, relative to the FTSE 250 Index,
along with a table illustrating the change in CEQ pay since 2009. The table also details the varying award vesting rates year on year for the
annyal bonus scheme andg LTIP.

As the Company's shares are denominated and listed in pence, the graph below looks at the total return to 31 December 2019 of £100
invested in Elementis on 31 December 2009 compared with that of the total return of £100 invested in the FTSE 250 Index. This index was
selected for the purpose of providing a relative comparison of performance because the Company is a member of it.
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2018
CEQ pay (tota!
remuneration — £'000s) 1031 2,864 3,560 2,252 1,573 763 1,553! 2,539 1,229 1114
Annual bonus payout
{% of maximum) 100% 100% 81% 56% 50% 0% 27.5% 93.0% 35.0% 17.3%
LTIP vesting
(% of maximum) 0% 100% 100% 100% 65% 0% 91.2%* 91.4%* 0% 0%

1 Includes remuneration for Paul Waterman and David Dutro for the period in which each was CEO during 2016
2 Relates to Paul Watermam's buy-out awards which vested in March 2017,
3 Relates to Paul Waterman's buy-out awards vesting in March 2018.

CEQ to all-employee pay ratio

Whilst Elementis is not reguired to publish a CEQ to all-employee pay ratio given it has less than 250 UK employees, voluntary disclosure of the
pay ratio is included below. In line with the retevant legislation, the analysis has been completed using Option A fi.e actuai total remuneration
earned in 2019 has been used as the basis for comparison). Whilst this is only based upon 68 UK employees there is a good mix of
manufacturing based employees ¢. BO% and corporate Head Office employees. Option A was used as it was deemed the most accurate and
prevalent amongst recent FTSE 250 disclosures.

The ratio is comparable with that measured internally for 2018 and is consistent with the pay, reward and progression policies for the company's
UK employees taken as a whole.

CEQ pay ratio 2019
Method A
CEQ Single figure £1,114,000
Upper quartile 15
Median n
Lower quartile 25

The salary and total pay for the individuals identified at the Lower quartile, Median and Upper quartile positions in 2013 are set out below:

019 Salary Total Pay
Upper quartile individual £55.127 £76,260
Median individual ' £38.282 £52,292
Lower quartile indnadual £39,185 £43745

In redation to the level of pension provision provided to employees, both the median and upper quartile individuals in the table above received
pension provision (expressed as a percentage of salary) above the rate of pension set under the proposed Executrve Director glide path with
effect from December 2022 as detailed on page 81.

Relative importance of spend on pay
The table below shows the total remuneration paid across the Group together with the total dividends paid in respect of 2019 and the
preceding financial year.

£€m 2019 2018 Change
Rernuneration paid 1o all employees 1 (see note 8 to the Consclidated financial statements) 107.8 100.4 7.4%
Total dividends paid in the year 378 305 23.3%

1 The amounts for 2019 and 2018 have been converted from dollars into pounds sterling using the average USDIGBP exchange rates for those years.
2 Totat remuneration has increased due to the inclusion of the Talc employees balanced by a reguction in headcount through organisational changes and changes
in FX rate.
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Corporate governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Percentage change in CEQ's pay
The table helow shows the change from 2018 10 2019 of the CED's pay with regard to the three elements set out below and the corresponding

change of these elements across all employees within the Group.

9% Change from 201810 2019

Salaries Benefils Bonys?
CEQ pay (total remuneration) 8.2% 621% -46.9%
All ermployees 15.5% 10.7% -26.1%

1 Al percentages are based on converting retevant local currencies into pounds sterling using the average rates for the respective year.

2 Change in bonus relates o payments in respect of the retevant financiat years.

3 Theyear onyear change in (i the CEQ's benefits are driven by costs incurred as result of tax advice to the CEO due to being required to file taxes in dual locations
as a resuit of travel required by the Company and i) changes in employee salary, benefits and bonus are driven by changes to the employee population aniging as
a result of the Mondo acquisition and movements in exchange rates.

Statement of shareholder voting

The resolution to approve the 2017 Directors’ remuneration policy was passed on a poll at the Company's 2018 AGM held on 26 April 2018 and
the 2018 Directors’ Rernuneration Report was passed on a poll at the Company's 2079 AGM held on 30 April 2019. Set out in the table below
are the votes cast by proxy nrespect of these resolutions.

Vetes for % For Votes against % Against Votes with-held
2018 Directors’ rernuneration report {2019 AGM) 427.515.220 8968  49.201.155 10.32 9,712,530
2017 Directors’ remuneration policy {2018 AGM) 378,249,966 99.35 2,477,105 0.65 852722

Votes withheld are not included in the final figures as they are not recognised as a vote in law.

Other Information about the Committee's membership and operation

Committee composition

The Chairman and members of the Committee are shown on pages 55 to 57, together with their biographical information. Four meetings were
held during 2019 and the attendance of Committee members are shown on page 79.

The Chairman, CEQ and other Non-Executive Directors who are not members of the Commiittee have a standing invite to attend and the
CFO and CHRO aiso attend meetings by invitation, as appropriate. The Executive Directors are not present when their own remuneration
arrangements are discussed or, if they are, they do not participate in the decision rmaking process.

Terms of reference
A full description of the Committee’s terms of reference is available on the Cornpany's website at www.elementis.com.

Activities during the year

The Committee ensure Lhat the Policy promotes sustained performance of the Company and s aligned with shareholder interests with
incentive pay based on growing profits and delivering above average total shareholder return. in line with the business operations as a giobal
specialty chernicals company, our Policy is designed with a bias towards long term performance. In line with this strategy, the performance
metrics are selected to focus on profitable growth and delivering above average total shareholder returns.,

The Committee consider the Directors' remuneration in the context of remuneration practices across the group, considering pay ratios
(including the CEQ pay ratio and gender pay gap). internal relativities, and external benchmarking. The Committee is of the opinion that the
Policy is currently operating as intended, and provides a strong link between company performance and outiurns.

in the forthcoming review of the Policy, the Committee will consider the clarity, simplicity, risk afignment, predictability of outcomes,
proportionality and alignment with culture. These are also considered when implementing the Policy. For example, salary increases are
considered in the context of the increases provided 1o the wider employee population, the measures used in the incentive schemes are directly
linked to the KPis used within business and both the annual banus and LTIP have clearty defined performance targets.

Shareholders will be consulted during the Policy review in 2021 in advance of it being presented for approval at the 2022 AGM.
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Commitlee meeting dates Agendaitems
February 2019 = 2016 LTP performance outcomes
+ 2019 LTiP targets / performance conditions and delegating authority to grant the 2019 awards
« 2018 Bonus plan payments, deferred share awards and 2019 bonus plan targets
+ Consideration of 2019 annual bonus targets
= ELT salary review and bonus payments
= Approval of final draft of Directors’ remuneration report
« Terms of Reference
July 2019 » Corporate governance update
» Bonus plan — confirrmation of Group 2013 bonus targets
+ LTIP dividend equivalents
+ Board expenses policy
December 2019 * Corporate governance update
= Application of Policy in 2020 in light of strategy update (November Capital Markets
Day presentation)
= 2020 salary reviews for Paul Waterman and Ralph Hewins
+ Review of performance to date for 2019 annual bonus
» Annual bonus design for 2020
» Chairman's fee review

Qutside of the above meeting dates the Committee considered and confirmed operational matters in appropriate forums (e.g. the Executive
Directors 2019 annual bonus targets, granting of the 2019 LTIP awards).

Evaluation, training and development
On an annual basis the Committee's effectiveness is reviewed as part of the evaluation of the Board. Following the evaluation iast year, there

were N major issues to report.

During 2019. Committee mambers were updated on the latest developments on executive remuneration and alf members recewved briefings
from the Group Company Secretary and the Committee’s remuneration advisers throughout the year, to keep them updated on topical matters
and developments relating {o executive remuneration.

Remuneration advisers

Korn Ferry were appointed externatl advisers to the Committee with effect from April 2017, The Commitlee is satisfied that there was no over
reliance on Kern Ferry and that advice received was independent and objective, Korn Ferry are a member of the Remuneration Consultants
Group and veluntarily operate under the Code of Conduct. Fees paid to Korn Ferry for remuneration advisory services in 2019 were £57,976
(exciuding VAT} and were charged on a time and materials basis.

In addition to the remuneration advisory services provided by Korn Ferry, ather teams also provided assistance with the recruitment of Steve
Ridge and John O'Higgins and advice on the new sales incentive plan. There are no other connections with the Company that may impact the
independence of the remuneration advice received given the nature of the other services provided and the internal protocols at Korn Ferry.

Auditable sections of the directors’ remuneration report

The sections of the Annual Report on Remuneration that are required to be audited by law are as follows: Remuneration payable to Directors for
20192 and Retirement benefits; and tables headed Annual LTIP awards granted in the year, Dlrectors scheme interests, Directors’ share interests
and Directors' retirement benefits.

Steve Good
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
4 March 2020
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Corporate governance

Directors’ report

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Additional disclosures

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statermnents of the Company and the Group for the year ended
31 Decernber 2019.

Information required to be disclosed in the Directors’ report may
be found below and in the following sections of the Annual Report
and Accounts, in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and
the Listing Rule 9.8.4R of the Financial Conduct Authority.

Business model Pages 2010 21
innovation, Growth & Efficiency strategy Pages 14t0 19
Dividend Page 41
Results Pages 381043
Financial assets and liabilities Page 134
Financial instruments Page 134
Principal risks Pages 50 to 52
R&D actities Pages 1410 15
People Pages 3310 35
Greenhouse gas emissions Page 30
Going concern Page 53
Viability statement Page 53
Long term incentive plans Pages 15310 155

DIRECTORS

Directors

The current Directors and their biographical details are detailed

on pages 55 to 57. Nick Salmon will be stepping down from his

roie as Senior Independent Director at the AGM on 28 April 2020.
John O'Higgins was appointed Non-Executive Director on 4 February
2020 and will be become Senior Independent Director after the AGM.
Further information regarding the SID recruitment process can be
found on page 73.

Appointment and replacement of directors

The Articles give the Directors power to appoint and replace
Directors. Under the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee,
appointments are recommended by the Nomination Committee for
approval by the Board. In line with the UK Corporate Governance
Code, the Articles also require Directors to retire and submit
themselves for election at the first annual general meeting ("AGhM?)
following appointment and to retire at each subsequent AGM and to
submit themselves for re-election at the foliowing AGM. The service
contracts of the Executive Directors and letters of appointment of the
Non-Executive Directors are available for inspection at the Company’s
registered office.

Directors’ interests
Details of the Directors’ interests in shares can be found inthe
Directors’ remuneration report on pages 90 and 91.

Directors’ Powers

The Directors’ powers are conferred on them by UK legisiation and
by the Company's Articles of Association (Articles). The Articles may
only be amended by speacial resolution of the Company at general
meeting of its shareholders.

Directors’ conflicts of interest

Ralph Hewins is inreceipt of a conflict authorisation fromthe
Company in respect of him acting as a trustee of the Elementis
Group Pension Scheme.
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The conflict authorisation enables Ralph Hewins to continue to act as
a trustee notwithstanding that this role could give rise to a situation
inwhich there is a conflict of interest. The Board considers that it is
appropriate for the trustees of the UK pension scheme to benefit
from the financial expertise of the CFO and that his contribution

at trustees’ meetings demacnstrates the Board's commitment

to supporting the UK pension scheme. The Board's corflict
authorisation is subject to annual review and, under the terms of

the conflict resolution, reciprocal provisions have been put in place
with a view to safeguarding information that is confidential to the
Group as well as to the trustees, Were a conflict of interest to arise,
Ralph Hewins is required 10 excuse himself from reading the refevant
papers and absent himself from participating in refevant discussions.
Procedures are in place to ensure compliance with the Companies
Act 2006. These procedures have been complied with during the
year. Details of any new conflicts or potential conflict matters are
submitted to the Board for consideration and where appropriate are
approved. Authorised conflicts and potential conflict matters are
reviewead on an annual basis.

Directors’ indemnities

In addition to the indermnity granted by the Company to Directors in
respect of their liabilities incurred as a result of their office, a Directors’
and Officers’ hability insurance policy is maintained throughout the
year. Neither the indermnity nor the insurance provides cover in

the event that a Director has proven to have acted dishonestly or
fraudulently. Similar arrangements also exist for Directors appointed
to Group subsidiary entities.

SHARES

Share capital

As at 31 December 2019, the Company's issued share capital was
580,518,327 ordinary shares of £0.05 pence in issue, which carries
voting rights of one vote per share. All of the Company's issued
shares are fully paid up and rank equally in all respects. The rights
attached to the shares, in addition to those conferred on their holders
by law, are set out in the Company's Articles.

From time to time the ESOT hoids shares in the Company for

the purposes of various share incentive plans and the rights
attaching to them are exercised by independent trustees, who may
take into account any recommendation by the Company. As at

31 December 2019, the ESOT held 780,759 shares in the Company
{2018: 828,787). A dividend waiver is in place in respect of all shares
that may become held by the Trust,

Further details of the authorised and issued share capital during the
financial year are provided in note 9 to the accounts on page 169.

Purchase of shares

The Beard has the power conferred on it by shareholders to
purchase its own shares and is seeking renewal of that power at the
forthcoming AGM within the limits set out in the Notice of Meeting,

Save as you earn schemes

The UK savings-related share option scheme was launched in August
2016 and matured on 1 October 2019. The US savings-refated share
option scherne was launched in September 2017 and matured on

7 September 2019.

All permanent employees who had completed at least six months’
continuous service were invited to participate and make monthly
savings contributions over a period of either two years for US
participants and three or five years for UK participants. At the end of
the savings term {'maturity date”), participants are given the choice
of taking their money back, or to purchase shares at a 20% discount



of the market price set at the date of invitation and have six months in
which to exercise their options.

Substantial shareholders

As at 31 December 2019 and 4 March 2020, the foliowing interests
invoting rights over the issued share capital of the Company had
been notified.

Percentage of

Ordinary  issued share

shares capital

APG Asset Management NV. 58,010,079 9.99
Ameriprise Financial, inc. and its group 57.916.440 998
FMRLLC 51,605,069 8.89
Aberdeen Asset Managers Limited 23,056,448 4.97
Schroders plc 22,517,387 491
AXA Investment Managers SA. 23,515,878 405

BlackRock, Inc. Below 5% Below 5%

EMPLOYEES

Empioyment policies and equal opportunities
Elementis policies seek to create a workplace that has an open
atmosphere of trust, honesty and respect. Harassment or
discrimination of any kind based onrace. colour, religion, gender,
age, national origin, citizenship, mental or physical disabilities, sexual
orientation, veteran status, or any other similarly protected status is
-not tolerated. This principle applies to all aspects of employment,
including recruitment and selection, training and development,
promotion and retirement.

Employees are free to join a trade union or participate in collective
bargaining arrangements.

it is also Group poiicy tor employeas who have a disabilty {o
reasonably accommodate them, where practicable, and to pravide
training, career development and promotion, as appropriate.

It is Group policy not to discriminate on the basis of any unlawful
criteria and its practices include the prohibition on the use of child or
forced labour.

Elementis supports the wider fundamental human rights of its
employees worldwide, as weil as those of our customers and
suppliers, and further details are set out on pages 31 to 35.

Employee communications and involvement

The Company is committed to employee involvement throughout the
business. Further information regarding employee engagement can
be found on page 34 and 63.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Going concern and viability statement

The Directors consider that the Group and the Company have
adeguate resources to remain in operation for the foreseeable future
and have therefore continued to 3dopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements. The Code recuiires the Directors to

assess and report on the prospeacts of the Group over a longer period.

This longer term viability statement is set out on page 53.

Significant agreements - change of control

There are few significant agreements which the Company is party to
that take effect, alter or terminate in the event of change of control
of the Company. The Company IS a guarantor under the Group's
$200rm and €172m long term loans and $375m revolving credit
facility and, in the event of a change of control, any lender among the
facility syndicate, of which there are 12 with commitments ranging

from $25m to $33m, may withdraw from the facility and that lender's
participation in any loans drawn down are required to be repaid.

The rules of the Company's varicus share incentive schemes set
out the conseguences of a change of control of the Company on
the rights of the participants under those schemes. Under the rules
of the respective schemes, participants would generally be able

to exercise their options on a change of control, provided that the
relevant performance conditions have been satisfied and, where
relevant, options are not exchanged for new options granted by an
acquiring company.

Auditors

Deloitte LLP have indicated their willingness to remain in office as our
auditors and following recommendation by the Audit Commiittee, a
resolution regarding their re-appointment willt be included within the
Notice of Meeting for the 2020 AGM.

The Directors confirm that, so far as they are aware, there is no
relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are
unaware and each Director has taken all steps they are ought to have
taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

Annual General Meeting

The 2020 AGM will be held at 9.00am on Wednesday 29 Aprit 2020 at

the offices of Herbert Smith Freehills LLP, Exchange House, Primrose
Street, London, EC2A 2EG. Details of the resolutions to be proposed
at the AGM are set outin the Notice of AGM which has been sent to
shareholders and is available on the Elementis corporate website:
wwwelementis.com

Paolitical donations
The Group made no political donations during the ycar (2018: nil).

Branches

As a global Group, Elementis’ interests and activities are heid or
operated through subsidiaries, branches, joint arrangements of
associates which are established in, and subject to the laws and
reguiations of, many different jurisdictions.

Other information

Information about financial risk management and exposure to
financial market rigks are set out in Note 23 to the financial statements
onpages 139to0 142,

Events after the balance sheet date
There were no significant events after the balance sheet date.
On behalf of the Board.

Laura Higgins
Group Company Secretary
4 March 2020
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Corporate governance

Directors’ responsibilities

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual
Report and Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and reguiations.

Comgpany law requires the Directors to prepare such financial
staternents for each financial year Under that law the Directors are
required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance
with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have
also chosen to prepare the parent Company financial statements
in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Disctostire Framework.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that peried.

In preparing the parent Cornpany financial statements, the directors
are required to;

= select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently;

» make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

- state whether Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework has been followed, subject to any materlal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements: and

= prepare the financial statements on the going concernbasis unless
it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue
In business.

In preparing the Group financial statements, Intermnational Accounting
Standard 1 requires that Directors:

« property select and apply accounting policies;

~» present information, including accounting policies, Ina
manner that provides relevant, rellable, comparable and
understandable information;

« provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to understand
the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions
an the entity’s financial position and financial performance; and

= make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a
geing concern.
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The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disciose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other imegularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
the corporate and financial information included on the company’s
website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissermination of financial statements may differ from legisiation
in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ responsibility statement

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

- the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant
financial reporting framework, give a true and fair view of the assets,
fiabitities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole;

« the strategic report includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the posttion of the Company and
the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that they face; and

= the Annual Report and financial statements, taken as a whole, are
fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s position and
performance, business model and strategy:

This responsibllity statement was approved by the Board of
Directors on 4 March 2020 and is signed on its behalf by.

Pl Mo (e,

PaulWaterman  Ralph Hewins CEO

CFO



Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Elementis pic

Report on the audit of the financial statements

1. Opinion
In our opinion:

« the financial statements of Elementis plc {the ‘parent company’} and its subsidiaries {the ‘group?} give a true and fair view of the state of the
group's and of the parent company’'s affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended;

« the group financial statements have been propery prepared in accordance with international Financiai Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the Eurcpean {nion;

« the parent company financial statements have been property prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 "Reduced Disciosure Framework; and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the group
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

« the consolidated income statement;

« the consclidated statement of comprehensive income;

= the consolidated balance sheet;

« the consolidated statement of changes in equity;

= the consolidated cash flow statement;

« the consolidated Financial Statement refated notes 1 to 34;

* the parent company balance sheet;

« the parent company statement of changes in equity; and

» the parent company statutory accounts related notes 110 12,

The financial reporting framework that has been appiied in the preparation of the group financial statements is applicable law and IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial
staternents is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards., including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

2 Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) I5As {UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under .
those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK. including the Financial Reporting Council's (the 'FRC’s) Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest
entities, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We confirm that the non-audit services
prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the group or the parent company,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Summary of our audit approach
Key audit matters The key audit matters that we identified in the cument year were:

« Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets in relation to the Talc CGL;
* Revenue recognition; and
+ Environmental provision.

Materiality The materiality that we used for the group financial statements was $3.7 million (2018: $5.3 milion}
which equates to 5% of profit before tax adjusted for the sale of operations, restructuring and business
transformation costs, the release of contingent consideration and other adjusting items.

Scoping We have performed full scope audits of six components which contribute 89% of the Group's revenue and
77% of the Group’'s profit before tax.

Significant changes in cur We have included a key audit matter in refation to goodwill impairmant of the Talc CGY, givan that the

approach headroom for this segment is iow compared to the total carrying value.

We no longer consider the acquisition accounting for Mondo Minerals Holdings BV. to be a key audit matter
as the acquisition accounting was completed in 2018.
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independent auditor's report continued

4, Conclusions relating to going concern, principal risks and viability statement

4,1 Gofngfconcern

We have reviewed the directors’ statement in iote 1 to the financial staternents about whether they
considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing them and their
identification of any material uncertainties {o the group’s and company’s ability to continue to do so over a
period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial staterments.

We considered as part of our risk assessment the nature of the group, its business moedel and related
risks including where relevant the impact of Brexit, the requirements of the applicable financial reporting
framework and the systern of internal control. We evaluated the directors’ assessment of the group's
ability to continue as a going concern, including chalienging the underlying data and key assumptions
used o make the assessment, and evaluated the directors’ plans for future actions in relation 1o their
going concern assessment.

We are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to in relation to that
statement required by Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) and report if the statement is materially inconsistent with our
knowtedge obtained in the audit.

Going concern is the basis of
preparation of the financial
statements that assumes an
entity will remain In operation
for a period of at least 12
months from the date of
approval of the financial
statements.

We confirm that we have
nothing material 1o repory, add
or draw attention to in respect of
these matters.

4.2 Principal risks and viability statement

Based solely on reading the directors’ staterments and considering whether they were consistent with the
knowledge we obtained in the course of the audit, including the knowiedge obtained in the evaluation of
the directors’ assessment of the group’s and the company's ability to continue as a going concern, we are
required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to in refation to:

» the disclosures on pages 48 to 53 that describe the principal risks, procedures to identify emerging risks,

and an explanation of how these are being managed or mitigated;

* the directers’ confirmation on page 53 that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal
and emerging risks facing the group. including those that would threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency or liquidity; or

= the directors’ explanation on page 53 as to how they have assessed the prospects of the group, over
what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement
as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the group will be able to continue in operation and
meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment, including any related disclosures
drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

We are also required to report whether the directors’ statement reiating to the prospects of the group
required by Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3} is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit.

Viability means the ability of
the group to continue over the
time horizon considered
appropriate by the directors.

We confirm that we have
nothing material to report, add
or draw attention to inrespect of
these matters.
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8. Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of
the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement {whether or not due to fraud) that we identified.
These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy. the atlocation of resources in the audit; and directing

the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statermnents as a whole, and in forming ouwr opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate ppinion on these matters.

5.1 Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets in refation to the Talc CGU

Key audit matter description

The group holds $200.5 miliion of goodwill and $88 million of intangible assets
arising from the acquisition of Mondo Holdings BV. in 2018. in accordance with 1AS
36, management is required to perform an annual assessment of impairment of the
Group's cash generating units {CGUs), as described in note 1, which was performed
as at 31 October 2019. This regquires judgement in relation to the key assumptions,.
including the future cash flows of each CGU, which are used 1o determine the value
in use. We identified the Talc CGU as being most sensitive to variations in future
forecast cash flows, given the decreased performance in the year, and we have
further identified the sales volume assumptions in the short-term cash flows as

a key audit matter.

Management has highlighted impairment of goodwilt as a key source of estimation
uncertainty in note 1 and provided disclosure on the sensitivity of this CGU to
reasonably possible changes in key assumptions in nate 10. These significant

How the scope of our audit responded
to the key audit matter

judgement areas are also referred to within the Audit Commitiee report on page 76.
Our procedures included: .

= Understanding and challenging the key assumptions underpinning management's
forecast sales volurne increases, and evaluating the significance of both
corroboratory and contradictory information by reference to recent actual
performance and available third party evidence:

= Performing independent sensitivity analysis on the impairment modet;

+ Assessing the growth rate against independent assumptions presented by industry
analysts; and

« Reviewing the approprigteness and caompleteness of the related disclosures.

Key observations

Management’s assumptions regarding the value in use are reasonable but contain a
degree of optimism. We concur with mansgement's conclusion that no impairment
is required, however there are reasonably possible scenarios which could result in
an impairment,

We consider the disclosurg in the judgements and estimates section of note 1
proviged concerning the imparment of assets in the Talc CGU together with the
reasonable possible change sensitivity provided in note 10 to be reasonable.

Annual Report and Accounts 2019 | Elementia plc 101

uoday mbaeng

BILUIA0G A1R10d 107D

SIUILANG (WIIUBULY

UONBULIOJ JOPIOUBIEYS



Independent auditor’'s report continued

5.2. Revenue recognition

Key audit matter description

During the year ended 31 December 2019 the group earned revenue of $873.6 million
related 1o the sale of specialty chemicals (31 Decernber 2018: $822.2 million).

At the year end, there are varying adjustments required for goods which have been
despatched but which have not met the definition for transferring control of the
goods to the customer intine with IFRS 15. Management has determined the point
at which control passes based on different shipping terms and the key judgement
in the calculation relates to the assumptions around the delivery times to this point.
The Group trades globally and a change in the number of days assumed for these
shipments can have a material impact on the cut-off adjustment. Given the level of
management’s judgement involved, we identified this key audit matter as a potential
fraud risk.

The accounting policy is described in note 1 where this is also inciuded as a critical
accounting judgerment. These significant judgement areas are also referred to within
the Audit Committee report on page 76

How the scope of our audit responded
. to the key audit matter

Cur procedures included:

+ Reviewing and assessing commercial arrangements covering shipments, to
determing the point at which the performance obligation is met for different
shipment arrangements and agreements with customers;

+ Selecting a sample of international shipments made pre-year end for time periods
varying by destination port and therefone transit time for shipments and agreed
these 10 customer order, shipment and invoice details. cash receipts and goods
receipt notes;

« Performing substantive procedures to test the assumptions management used in
their cut-off calculation for reasonableness and consistency, and,

« Substantively tested a sample of post year end credit notes by tracing to supporting
information {o determing if revenue was inappropriately recognised in the year.

Key observations

From the work performed, we have noted no material misstaternents and have
concluded that management has completed appropriste cut-off adjustments at the
year end to take into account those sales where control has not transferred.

5.3 Environmental provision

Key audit matter description

in line with other companies within chemical industry, Elementis holds provisions for
the monitoring and remediation of a number of operating and legacy sites, including
those sold off or no fonger in use. In accordance with the Elementis’ environmental
provision policy, a provision is recognised for the restoration of contaminated land.

As at 31 December 2019, Elementis has recognised a provision $44.1 million

{31 December 2018 $43.3 milion} against the liabilities, of which the majority are hetd
against two sites being the UK Chromium site at Eaglesciiffe and the US Chromium
site at Corpus Christi,

There is uncertainty in this provisicn relating to the estimated future cash expenditure
to remediate the two sites and discount rate appiied in the calculation given the long
time horizon of 25 years over which costs for these two sites are anticipated, small
changes in annual cash cutflows can have a significant cumulative impact on the
total provision required. The cash fiow is estimated and calculated by management
and external environmental consultants. These cash flows are then discounted at the
management determined discount rate. Due to the judgemental and material nature
of estimation of such forecast spending, we have considered the valuation of the
provision on these two sites to be a key audit matter.

The Group's accounting policy is included within note 1 1o the consotidated financial
statements where this is also included as a critical accounting judgement. There is
additional disclosure included within note 15. The Audit Committee discussionis
included on page 76.
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How the scope of our audit responded Qur procedures included:
to the key audit matter

= Holding discussion with management and the Group's external environmental

consuitants on the identified environmental issues to confirm our understanding
of the current situation and the process by which management angd the external
consullants prepared the cash flow forecasts;

= Agsessing the appropriateness of forecast of individual cost categories on each
significant site selected for completeness testing through discussions with site

managers at relevant locations;

= Working with our internal valuation experts to challenge the appropriateness of the
discount rates applied by comparison to our own internal benchmark data;

= Challenging the key assumptions and inputs to the forecast cash flows and agreeing
the inputs to supporting documentation;

« Working with our internal environmental consultants to challenge the completeness
of the cost categories included within the forecast cash flows and assessing the key
assumptions and inputs to the forecast cash flows;

+ Reviewing the previous estimates made of expected cash outflows to actual cash
outflows to determine the reasanableness of the project spend; and

+ Performing searches of external databases to determine compieteness of the
identified environmental issues and sites.

Key observations As 3 result of our work, we have concluded that the provisions held by Elementis in
relation to environmental remediation and monitoring appear reasonable.

6. Our application of materiality
8.1. Materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it probabie that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable person wouid be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work and in

evaluating the results of our work,

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements

Parent Company financial statements

Materlality $3.7 million {2018: $5.3 million} $1.5 million (2018; $2.1 miftion}
Basis for Materiality was set on the basis of 5% of A factor of 3% of net assets was used capped to an
determining materiality profit before tax, adjusted for the sale of operations,  appropriate component materiality 40% (2018: 40%)

restructuring and business transformation costs,
release of contingent consideration and other
adjusting items. The movement in materiality year on
year is due to the decreased profit of the groupin the

of Group materiality.

current year.
Rationale for the ‘We have used adjusted profit before tax as we We have used net assets in determining materiality as
benchmark applied consider this to be a key performance measure for we believe this is an appropriate basis for materiality

the Group. This metric is important to users of the
financial statements (investors and analysts being
the key users for a listed entity) because it portrays
the performance of the business and hence its
ability to pay a return on investment to the investors
and also has substantial prominence in the Annual
Report. Our rationale for excluding certain iterns is
that these are one off costs and are routinely added
back by analysts in analysing company performance.

as it reflects the nature of the parent company
as a holding company and its contribution to the
Group performance.

6.2. Performance materiality

‘We set performance materiaiity at a leve! lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncorrected and undetected
misstatements exceed the materiality for the financial staternents as a whole. Group performance materiality was set at 70% of group
materiality for the 2019 audit (2018: 709%). In determining performance materiality, we considered our assessment of the control environment,
the volume and nature of misstaterments identified in previous years and the developments in the business during the year.

6.3. Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of $185,000 (2018: $205,000), as
well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the Audit Cormmittee on
disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financiai statements.
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Independent auditor's report continued

7. An overview of the scope of our audit

7.1. Identification and scoping of components

Our Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide controls, and assessing the
risks of material misstatement at the Group level,

There are six components for the 2019 year end, of which, three are significant to the Group:

« the Specialty products operations in the US;

» the Speciatty products operations in the UK;

» the Speciaity products operations in Taiwan, including the Chinese operations:
* the Chromium operations in the US;

+ the Chromium operations in the UK; and

+ the Taic operation in Netherlands and Finland.

These six locations were subject to full scope audits, which were performed by local component auditors under the direction and supervigion
of the Group audit team, except the Speciality UK and Chromium UK operations where the Group audit team performed the audit without the
involverent of a component team.

Qur audit work on the six components was executed at levels of performance materniality applicable 1o each individual entity which were lower
than Group materiality and ranged from $1.6 million to $1.3 million (2018: $2.6 million to $1.5 million).

The in-scope iocations represent the principal business units within the Group's operating divisions and account for 89% {2018: 86%) of the
Group's revenue and 77% (2018; 88%! of the Group’s profit before tax. -

At the parent entity tevel we also tested the consolidation process and carried out analytical procedures to confirm our conclusion that there
were no significant risks of material misstatement of the aggregated financial information of the remaining components not subject to audit or
audit of specified account balances. The parent company is located in the UK and is audited directty by the Group audit team.

7.2. Working with other auditors

As part of the audit process, the senior members, including the Group Audit Partner, of the audit team visited three of the four locations subject
to fult scope audit procedures by component audit teams {2018 alf) set out above. During our visits, we attended key meetings with component
management and auditors, and reviewed detailed component audit work papers.

In addition to the planned programme of visits, planning meetings were held with key component audit teams. The purpose of these planning
meetings was to ensure a good level of understanding of the Group's businesses, its core strategy and a discussion of the significant risks.

We also send detailed instructions to our component auditors, include them our team briefing. discuss their risk assessment, and review
documentation of the findings from their work. We also provided direction on enquiries made by the component auditors through online and
telephone conversations. All the findings noted were discussed with the component auditor in detail and further procedures to be performed
were issued where relevant.

8. Other information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other
than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report,
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

In this context, matters that we are specifically required to report t¢ you as uncorrected material misstatements of the other information include
where we conclude that:

~ Fair, balanced and understandable - the statement given by the directors that they consider the annual report and financial staterments
taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the group’s position
and performance, business model and strategy, is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit; or

» Audit committee reporting - the section describing the work of the audit committee does not appropriately address matters communicated
by us to the audit committee; or

- Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code - the parts of the directors’ statement required under
the Listing Rules refating to the company’s compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code containing provisions specified for review
by the auditor in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R(2} do not properly disclose a departure from a relevant provision of the UK Corporate
Governance Code.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
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9. Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

10. Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financisl statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that inctudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs {UK) will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financiat statements.

Details of the extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws and
regulations are set out below.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at: www.frc.orguk/
auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

11. Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. and then design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, including obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

11.1. Identifying and assessing potential risks related to irregularities
In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatemnent in respect of iregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws and
reguiations, we considered the following:

= the nature of the industry and sector, controt environment and business performance including the design of the group’s remuneration
pokcies, key drivers for directors’ rernuneration, bonus levels and performance targets;

= results of our enquiries of management, internal audit and the audit committee about their own identification and assessment of the risks
of irregularities;

« any matters we identified having obtained and reviewed the group’s documentation of their policies and procedures relating to:
- identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and reguilations and whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance:
- detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged frauth,
- the internal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or non-compliance with laws and reguiations: and

« discussing among the engagement team including component audit teams and involving refevant internal specialists, including tax, pensions,
and IT specialisis regarding how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements and any potential indicators of fraud.

As a result of these procedures, we considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and identified
the greatest potentia! for fraud in the following areas: posting of inappropriate journat entries and manually manipulating revenue to meet
targets, and bias in the environmental estimates. In common with all audits under ISAS (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures
1o respond to the risk of management override.

We also obtained an understanding of the legal and reguilatory frameworks that the group operates in, focusing on provisions of those laws
and regulations that had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The key laws and
reguiations we cansidered in this context included the UK Compantes Act, Listing Rutes, pensions legislation, tax legisiation.

In addition, we considered provisions of other faws and reguiations that do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance
with which may be fundamental to the group’s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty. These included environmental requiations.

11.2. Audit response to risks identified

As a result of performing the above, we identified revenue recognition and emvironmental provision as key audit matters related to the potentiat
risk of fraud or non-compliance with iaws and regulations. The key audit matters section of our report explains the matters in more detail and
also describes the specific procedures we performed in response to those key audit matters.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to risks identified included the following:

« reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting docurmentation to assess complance with provisions of relevant laws
and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

= enquiring of management, the audit committee and in-house legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims;

= performing anatytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material misstatement due
to fraud;

« reading minutes of meetings of those charged with govemance, reviewing internal audit reports and reviewing correspondence with
HMRC: and

+ in addressing the risk of fraud through management cverride of controls, testing the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments;
assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of 2 potential bias; and evaluating the business
rationaie of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.
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Independent auditor's report continued

We atso cormmunicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team members including internal
specialists and significant component audit teams, and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations
throughout the audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

12. Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been property prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2008.

In our opinion, based on the work underiaken in the course of the audit:

L .
= the information given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements; and
« the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

i the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors' report.

13. Matters on which we are required to report by exception
13.1. Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinian:

= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

+ adequate accounting records have not been kapt by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

* the parent company financial staternents are not in agreerment with the accounting records and retumns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

13.2. Directors’ remuneration
Under the Campanies Act 2006 we are also required ta report if in our opinion certain disclosures of dinectors’ rernuneration have not been
made or the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited is not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report inrespect of these matters.

14. Other matters

14.1. Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the audit committee, we were appointed by the Board on 27 Aprit 201 6 to audit the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2016 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous
renewals and reappointments of the firm is four years, covering the years ending 31 December 2016 to 31 December 2019.

14.2, Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the audit committee
Qur audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the audit committee we are required to provide in accordance with 1ISAs (UK).

15. Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s rmembers those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the comparny and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinicns we have formed.

e Reomsad D

Christopher Powell, FCA, {Senior statutory auditor)
Fer and on behaif of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

Londan, United Kingdom

4 March 2020
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Financial statements

Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Note $m $m
Reveriue 2 B873.6 8222
Cost of sales {552.2) (516.6)
Gross profit a4 305.6
Distribution costs (127.3) {111.6}
Administrative expenses (93.2) {1091}
Operating profit 2 100.9 849
Loss on disposal 33 (9.0} ~
Other expenses’ 25 (1.5) (1.6)
Finance income 3 9.4 a3
Finance costs 4 {29.8} (18.2)
Profit before income tax 61.0 654
Tax 2] {14.8) {15.6)
Profit from continuing operations 46.4 49.8
Lass fram discontinued operations 33 - 8.4)
Profit for the year 46.4 41.4
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 46.4 414
Earnings per share
From continuing operations
Basic (cents) g 8.0 95
Diluted (cents) 3 1.9 9.5
From continuing and discontinued operations
Basic (cents) 9 8.0 79
Diluted (cenrts) 9 7.9 7.9
1 Other expenses comprise administration expenses for the Group's pension schemes.
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2019
2019 2018
$m $m
Profit for the year 46.4 414
Other comprehensive income:
lterns that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss:
Remeasurements of retirement benefit obligations {11.1) 53
Deferred tax associated with retirerent benefit obligations 1.3 07
ftems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and 1oss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations {23.9) 0.5
Effective portion of change in fair value of net investment hedge 215 - {20.5)
Recycling of deferred foreign exchange iosses on disposal 0.4 42
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges {2.8) 1.4
Fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to income statement - [01)
Exchange differences on translation of share options reserves 2.7 {0.4)
Other comprehensive income (5.9) 8.9
Total comprehensive income for the ygar 40.5 325
Attributatye to:
Equity holders of the parent 40.5 325
Total compeehensive income for the year 40.5 325
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Financial statements

Consolidated balance sheet

As at 31 December 2019

Restated’ Restated?
2019 2018 2017
31Decomber 31 December 31 December
Note m m $m
Non—current assets
Goodwilt and other intangible assets 10 958.1 976.6 717.2
Property, plant and equipment 1 5136 478.2 2195
ACT recoverable 16 48 9.8 16.2
Deferred tax assets 16 28.2 244 0.2
Net retirement benefit surplus : 25 7.4 221 219
Total non-current assets 15121 1,511 9750
Current assets
inventories 12 168.7 1887 1436
Trade and other receivables . 13 1179 1338 118.3
Derivatives 21 0.1 20 09
Current tax assets 25 3.0 43
Cash and cash equivalents 20 103.9 96.1 55.0
Total current assets 3031 423.6 3231
Assets classified as held for sale - - 58.2
Total assets 1,805.2 1.9347 1.356.3
Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts and loans 19 (2.2) (2.8) 27)
Trade and other payables 14 {134.5) {140.6} (177
Financial iabilitles 29 {2.1) ©0.1) -
Cumrent tax liabilities . {23.2) (i7.1) {14.7)
L ease liabilities 24 {7.1} - -
Provisions 15 {6.4} (7.3} {10.8)
Total current liabilities {175.5) (167.9) {145.3)
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 21 (550.8) {585.8) {338.1)
Retirement benefit obligations 25 (24.5) {32.00 32.4)
Deferred tax llabilities 16 {150.2) (151.7) (93.4)
Lease fiabilities 24 (39.8) - -
Provisions 15 {45.2) {41.5}) (21.9)
Financial liabilities 21 {13.0) (40.2) -~
Total noncurrent liabilities . (823.5) (851.2) {485.8)
Liabilitles classified as held for sale - - {22.9)
Total llabilities (999.0) (1,019.3) (654.0)
Net assets : 906.2 915.6 702.3
Equity
Share capital 17 521 521 44.4
Share premium 237.7 2376 219
QOther reserves 18 811 855 99.0
Retained eamnings 5253 540.4 5370
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent ) 906.2 915.6 702.3
Total equiity 806.2 9156 702.3

1 31 December 2018 balance sheet has been restated to show the UK pension surplus of $22.1m within non-cument assets and to offset unamortised syndicate
fees of $5.6m against the borrowings to which they relate within non-current liabllites. See Note 34.

2 31 December 2017 balance sheet has been restated to show the UK pension surplus of $21.9rm within non-curent assets and to offset unamortised syndicate
fees of $5.3m against the borrowings to which they relate within non-current liabilities. See Note 34.

The financial statements on pages 107 to 161 were approved by the Board on 4 March 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

PaulWaterman  RalphHewins CEOQ
CFO
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Financial statements

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Share Sr!are Translation Hedging Other Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserves earnings equity
$m $m $m $m $m S $m
Balance at 1 January 2018 444 . 219 (57.2) {6.9) 163.1 5370 702.3
impact following adoption of IFRS 15 - - - - - (0.9} (0.9}
Revised at 1 January 2018 444 218 {57.2) {6.9) 163.1 536.1 701.4
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - - - 41.4 414
Other comprehensive income:
Exchange differences - - (20.0) - (0.4) - {204
Recycling of deferred foreign exchange losses
on disposal - - 4.2 - - - 4.2
Fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to the income
statement . - - - (84} - - {0.1)
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow
hedges - - - 1.4 - - 1.4
Remeasurements of retirerment benefit obligations - - - - - 53 53
Deferred tax adjustment on pension scheme deficit - - - - - 07 07
Transfer - - — - 15 15 -
Total other comprehensive income - ~ {15.8) 1.3 (1.9 7.5 8.9
Total comprehensive income - ~ {15.8} 13 {1.9) 489 325
Transactions with owners:
Purchase of own shares - - - - - 0.3) 0.3
Issue of shares by the Company’ 77 215.7 - - - - 2234
Share based payments - - - - 29 - 29
Deferred tax on share based payments recognised
within equity - - - - - (2.4) (2.4)
Dividends paid - - - - - (41.9) {41.3)
Total transactions with owners 77 2157 - - 2.9 {44.6) 1817
Balance at 31 December 2018 521 2376 {73.0) {5.6) 1641 540.4 915.6
Balance at 1 January 2019 521 2376 [73.0) (5.6) 1641 5404 9156
Impact following adoption of IFRS 16 - - - - - (4.0 4.0}
Revised at 1 January 2019 521 2376 (73.0) (5.8) 164.1 536.4 911.6
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - - - 46.4 46.4
QOther comprehensive income:
Exchange differences - - 36 - 27 - 63
Recyciing of deferred foreign exchange losses
on disposal - - 04 - - - 04
Fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to the income
statement - - - - - - -
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow
hedges . - - - {2.8) - - {2.8)
Remeasurements of retirement benefit obligations - - - - - ey 11
Deferred tax adjustment on pension scheme deficit - - - - - 1.3 1.3
Transfer ’ - - - - {1.3) 1.3 -
Total gther comprehensive income - -~ 4.0 (2.8) 14 (8.5) {5.9)
Total comprehensive income - - 4.0 {2.8) 1.4 379 40.5
Transactions with gwners:
issue of shares by the Company - 01 - - - - a1
Share based payments - - - - 30 - 3.0
Deferred tax on share based payments recognised
within equity - - - - - 0.3 0.3
Dividends paid - - - - - (49.3) [49.3)
Total transactions with owners - 0.1 - - 30 49.0) (459}
Balance at 31 December 2019 52.1 2377 (69.0} 8.4) 168.5 525.3 908.2

1 The Rights issue raised gross proceeds of $232.7m. The total amount capitalised 10 share capital and share premium was $222.2m 18232 7m less issuance

costs of $10.5m).
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Financial statements

Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018

Note $m Sm
Operating activities:
Profit for the year 46.4 414
Adjustments for: '
Other expenses 1.5 1.6
Finance income 3 {0.4) 0.2
Finance costs 4 29.8 18.2
Tax charge & 14.6 13.6
Depreciation and amaortisation 7 70.1 459
{Decrease)increase in provisions 15 (27.8) 92
Pension payments net of current senace cost 25 {1.2) 1.9
Share based payments 26 3.0 28
Loss/fprofiy) on disposal of business 33 9.0 {12.1)
Operating cash flow before movement in working capital 145.0 122.3
Decreasef(increase) in inventories 18.6 (24.6)
Decrease/lincrease) in trade and other receivables 15.5 {2.8}
{Decrease)fincrease in trade and other payables {8.5) 106
Cash generated by opevations 170.6 1055
Income taxes paid {2.2) (6.9
interest paid 4 {25.0) {14.3)
Net cash flow from operating activities 1434 843
Investing activities:
interest received 3 0.4 -
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.8 0.6
Purchase of property. plant and equipment (47.7) {50.0)
Purchase of business net of cash acquired 32 - 4847)
Disposal of business 33 (2.1) 58.0
Acquisition of intangible assets {0.4) 1.4
Net cash flow from investing activities {49.0) (477.5)
Financing activities:
Issue of shares by the Company and the ESOT net of issue costs 0.1 2233
Dividends paid 29 (49.3} {41.9)
Purchase of shares by the ESOT - {0.3)
Proceeds on issue of new debt - 5547
Net movement on existing debt (30.4) {296.7)
Payment of lease liabikties (6.0} -
Net cash used in financing activities {85.6}) 4391
MNetincrease in ¢ash and cash equivalents 8.8 459
Cashand cash equivalents at 1 January 96.1 550
Foreign exchange on cash and ¢ash eguivalents {1.0) 4.8}
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 20 103.9 96.1
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

1. Accounting policies

Elementis plc is a public company limited by shares incorporated
and domiciled in England and is the parent company of the Group.
The address of its registered office is Caroline House, 55-57 High
Holborn, London WC 1V 6DX, The Group financial statements
have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the EU (adopted IFRS). The Company has efected to prepare its
parent company financial statements in accordance with FRS 101,
These are presented on pages 162 to 170.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except that derivative financial instruments are stated at their
fair value. Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower

of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sett, The preparation
of financial statements requires the application of estimates and
Jjudgements that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
revenues and costs and related disclosures at the balance sheet
date. The Group's accounting policies have been updated foliowing
the adoption of 3 number of new standards and amendmentsto
standards that have been issued and are now effective for the Group.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis. The rationale for adopting this basis is discussed in the
Directors’ report on page 97.

Reporting currency

As a consequence of the majority of the Group's sales and earnings
originating in US dollars or US dollar tinked currencies, the Group has
chosen the US dollar as its presentational currency. This aligns the
Group's externat reporting with the profile of the Group. as well as with
internal management reporting. The functional currency of the parent
is pounds sterling.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of

estimation uncertainty

When applying the Group's accounting policies, management must
make a number of key judgernents on the application of applicable
accounting standards and estimates and assumptions concerning
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. These estimates and judgernents

are based on factors considered to be relevant, including historical
experience, which may differ significantly from the actual outcome.
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing s material
adjustment 1o the amounts recognised in the financial statements
within the next year are discussed below. The development of the
estimates and disclosures related to each of these matters has been
discussed by the Audit Committee.

Critical accounting judgements

The following are the critical judgemenits, apart from those involving
estimations (which are dealt with separately below). that the Directors
have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the financial statements. Where relevant and practicable, sensitivity
analyses are disclosed in the relevant notes to demanstrate the
impact of changes in estimates or assumptions used.

a. Revenue recognition

Judgement is exercised over how to determine the timing of revenue
recognition for orders where the agreed terms are delivery to the
destination point. The Group has compiled shipping estimates based
on the destination country which are used to inform the timing of
revenue recognition. In compiling these estimates management have
used past experience and carrier standard shipping estimates to
inform their decision making.

b. Determining the lease term of contracts with

extension aptions
The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellabie term of
the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend
the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised.

The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably
certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate 2
lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there
is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its
control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option
to renew or to terminate (&.g. construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset}.

There are two leases of land and buildings for which the Group has
determined that the extension options contained within the lease
contracts are reasonably certain to be exercised. As such the periods
covered by the extension options have been included in the lease
term and the calculation of the related lgase liabifities.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions conceming the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material misstaternent to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabifities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

.
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 December 2019

1. Accounting policies continued

a. Environmental provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration are recognised where: the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount can be estimated reliably:

Environmental provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expecied to be required to settle the obligation using a2
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time vaiue of money and the risks specific to the obligation. Due to the
long time horizons over which costs are anticipated, smail changes

in recurring annual cash outfiows can have a significant cumulative
impact on the total provision requited. Further details of these
provisions and a sensitivity assessment are given in Note 15.

b. Valuation of a defined benefit pension obligation

The key estimates made in relation to defined benefit pensions relate
to the discount rate used to determine the present value of future
benefits and the rate of inflation applied to plan assets. Further details
on pensions and a sensitivity analysis are given in Note 25.

c. Impairment testing of goodwill

Each year the Group camries out impairment tests of goodwill which
require estimates o be made of the value in use of its cash generating
units. These value in use calculations are dependent on estimates of
future cash flows, long-term growth rates and appropriate discount
rates to be applied to future cash flows. Further details on these
estimates and sensitivities of the carrying value of goodwill to these
estimates are provided in Note 10.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financiat statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year.

Subsidiaries are all entities {including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed 10, or has nghts to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns throughiits
power aver the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date on which that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of

a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree, and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resuiting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair value at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s propartionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s icentifiable net assets.
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Acquisition costs are accounted for as an expense in the
period incurred.

Intragroup batances and any unreaiised gains and losses or income
and expenses arising from intragroup transactions, are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are eliminated n the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

A full ist of the Group's subsidiaries is shown in Note 6 of the parent
company financial statements.

Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the
previous financial year except for the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases.

Initial adoption of IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangemertt contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives
and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions lnvolving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees 1o recognise most leases on the balance sheet.

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
1AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify teases as either operating or
finance leases using similar principles as inlAS 17. Therefore, IFRS 16
did not have animpact for leases where the Group is the lessor.

The Group adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach on transition with the date of initia! application of 1 January
2019. Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively
with the curmulative effect of initially applying the standard
recognised at the date of initial application as permitted under the
transitional provisions.

At transition, for leases classified as operating leases under IAS 17,
{ease liabilties were measured at the present value of the rernaining
lease payments, discounted at the Group's incremental borrowing rate
as at 1 January 2019. Right of use assets were measured at either:

= their carrying amount as if IFRS 16 had been applied since the
lease commencement date, discounted at the Group's incremental
borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019. The Group has appiied this
methodology to some of its property leases.

* an amount equal to the lease liability, adiusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments. This has been applied to the
majority of the Group's leases compnsing leases of property, motor
vehicles, fixtures and fittings and items of plant and equipment.

The impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 on the consolidated financial
statements is shown in Nole 24.



Forelgn currency

a. Foreign currency transactions

{ransactions in foreign currencies are transiated at the foreign
exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance
sheet date are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at

that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are
recognised inthe income statement. Non -monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated at exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value
was determined,

b. Financial statements of foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill
and fair value adjustments arising on consolidation, are translated at
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The revenues and
expenses of foreign operations are translated at the average rates of
exchange ruling for the relevant period, Exchange differences arising
since 1 January 2004 on translation are taken to the translation
reserve. They are recognised in the income statement upon disposal
of the foreign operation. The Group may hedge a portion of the
transiation of its overseas net assets through US dollar and euro
borrowings. From 1 January 20085, the Group has elected to apply
et investment hedge accounting for these transactions where
possible. Where hedging is applied, the effective portion of the gain or
loss on aninstrument used to hedge a net investment is recognised
in equity. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised inthe
income statement.

Property. plant and equipment

terns of property, plant and equipmen are stated at cost less
accumuiated depreciation and impairment losses. Freehold land is
not depreciated. Leasehold property is depreciated over the period
of the lease. Freehold buildings, plant and machinery, fixtures, fittings
and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives on

a straight line basis. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual
values are assessed at the reporting date. No depreciation is charged
on assets under construction until the asset is brought iINto use.

Depreciation is charged on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful economic lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 10 - 50 years
Plant and machinery 2 - 20 years
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 2+ 20 years

Shorter of the useful economic
lite of the asset and the
lease term

Right of use assets

The cosi of replacing part of an item of property, piant and equipment
is recognised in the carrying amount of the tem if it is probable that
the future economic benefits embodied within it will flow to the Group
ang its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the
income statement as incurred,

Management regulany considers whether there are any indications
of impairment to carrying vatues of property. plant and equipment.
Impairment reviews are based on risk adjusted discounted cash flow
projections. Significant judgement is applied to the assumpiions
underlying these projections which include estimated discount rates,
growth rates, future selling prices and direct costs. Changas to these
assumptions could have a material impact on the financial position of
the Group and on the resuit for the year.

Intangible assets

a. Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, and it represents
the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value
of the identifiable net assets acquired. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controfling interest recognised and previously haid
interest measured at fair value is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

b. Research and development

Expenditure on pure research is recognised in the income

statermerit as an expense as incurred, Under IAS 38, expenditure on
devetopment where research findings are applied to a plan or design
for the production of new or substantially improved products and
processes is capitalised if the product or process will give rise 1o
future economic benefits and where the cost of the capitalised asset
can be measured reliably. Expenditure capitalised is stated as the cost
of materials, direct labaur and an appropriate proportion of overheads
less accurnulsted amortisation. The length of development lifecycles,
broad nature of much of the research undertaken and uncertainty
until a iate stage as to ultimate commercial viability of a potential
product can mean that the measurement criteria of 1AS 38 regarding
the probabiiity of future economic benefits and the reliability of
allocating costs may not be met, in which case expenditure is
expensed as incurred.

c. Customer relationships and other intangible assets

Customer relationships and other intangible assets are stated at cost
or when arising in a business combination, estimated fair value, less
accumulated amortisation.

d. Amortisation

Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight

line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets

through the administrative expenses line item, unless such lives

are indefinite. Goodwill is systematically tested for impairment each
year. Other intangible assets, comprising customer lists, customer
relationships, manufacturing processes and procedures, trademarks,
non-compete clauses and patents are amortised over their estimated
useful lives which range from 5 16 24 years.
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 December 2019

1. Accounting policies continued

impairment of non-current non-financial assets

The carrying armount of non-current assets other than deferred tax is
compared 1o the asset’s recoverable amount at each balance sheet
date where there is an indication of impairment. For goodwill, assets
that have an indefinite useful life and intangible assets that are not
yel available for use, the recoverable armount is estimated at each
balance sheet date.

Each year the Group carries out impairment tests of its goodwill

and other indefinite life intangible assets which requires an estimate
{0 be made of the value in use of its cash generating units {CGUs).
These vaiue in use calculations are dependent on estimates of future
cash flows and long term growth rates of the CGUSs. Further details of
these estimates are given in Note 10.

Animpairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an
asset or its CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of CGUs are aflocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to CGUs and then to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit on & pro-rata basis.
A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are targely independent of the cash inflows from other
assels or groups of assets.

The recoverable amount is the greater of their fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value inuse, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset(s). For an asset that
does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

Impairment of financial assets ~ expected credit losses

The Group applies the IFRS § simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a ifetime expected loss allowance
for all tradle receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. The expected loss rates are based on payment profiles and the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced. The historicat loss
rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward looking information

in refation to macroeconomic factors that could affect the ability of
customers to settle receivables.

The Group usualty considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 120 days past due. In certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering
the confractual cash fiows.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net reahsable value.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price, less estimated
costs of compietion and selling expenses. Cost, which is based ona
weighted average, includes expenditure incurred in acquiring stock
and bringing it to its existing location and condition. In the case of
manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes an
appropriate share of pverheads attributable to manufacture, based on
narmal operating capacity. :

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are due for payment within one year and are thus
classified as current. They are non -interest bearing and are stated
at their neminal amount which is the original invoiced amount, less
allowance for expected future credit losses. Estimates of future
expected credit osses are informed by historical experience and
management’s expectations of future economic factors, further
information on expected credit loss impairment is given in the
irpairment of financial assets accounting policy. Individual trade
receivables are written off when management deem them to be no
longer collectable.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

A non-current asset or a group of assets containing a non-current
asset (a disposal group), is classified as held for sale if its carrying
amount will be recovered principalty through sale rather than through
continuing use, itis available for immediate sale and sale within

one year is highly probable. On initial classification as held for sale,
nen-current assets and disposal groups are measured at the lower
of previous carrying amount and fair value less casts to sellwith any
adjustments taken to profit or ioss. The same applies to gains and
losses on subsequent remeasurement.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's business
that represents a separate major line of business or gecgraphic area
of operations ¢r is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to
resale, that has been disposed of, has been abandoned or that meets
the critena to be classified as held for sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comgrise cash balances and call deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less. Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.



Leases

Accounting policy applied from 1 January 2018

A lease liability is recognised when the Group obtains control of the
right-of-use asset that is the subject of the lease. The lease hability

is subseguently measured using the effective interest method, with
interest charged to finance costs. Right-of-use assets are generally
depreciated over the shorter of the asset's usefuil life and the lease
term on & straight-line basis. If the group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the undertying asset's useful life.

At inception, the Group evaluates whether it is reasonably certain
that any option to extend a lease term will be exercised or likewise
whether any option to terminate the lease will be exercised. The Group
continues to evaluate the likelihood of exercising such options
throughout the initial lease term. When the Group is committed to
extending or terminating the lease, having considered the alternative
options available and, where appropriate, lessor consent to the
extension or termination has been obtained, the Group will consider
the option to be reasonably certain to be exercised. When an option
is reasonably certain to be exercised, the right-of-use asset and lease
lisbilities recognised are adjusted to reflect the extended or cuntailed
iease term.

Leases. which at inception have a term of less than 12 months or
relate to low-value assets, are not recognised on balance sheet.
Payments made under such leases are recognised as an expense
in the INCome statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

Accounting policy applied up until 31 December 2018

Leases which result in the Group receiving substantially ali of the
risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are treated as finance
leases. An asset held under a finance lease is recorded in the balance
sheet and depreciated over the shorter of its estimated usefut life
and the lease term. Future instalments net of finance charges are
included within borrowings. Minimum lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charge. which is allocated t¢ each period

to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
liability and charged to the income statement and reduction of the
outstanding tiability. Rental costs arising from operating leases are
charged on a straight line basis over the period of the lease,

Borrowings

Borrqwings are initially measured at cost {which is equal to the fair
value at inception), and are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method, Any difference between the
proceeds, net of transaction costs and the settlement or redemption
of borrowings is recognised over the terms of the borrowings using
the effective interest rate method.

Trade payables
Trade payatles are non-interest bearing borrowings and are initially
measuyred at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and
itis probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obiigation, if the effect is material, provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the fiability.

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group

has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan, and the
restructuring has either commenced or has been announced publicly,
In accordance with the Group's environmental policy and applicable
legal requirements, a provision for site restoration in respect of
contaminated land is recognised when the land is contaminated.
Provisions for environmental issues are judgemental by their nature,
particularly when considering the size and tming of remediation
spending. and more difficult to estimate when they relste to sites no
longer directly controlled by the Group.

Pension and other post retirement benefits

inrespect of the Group's defined benefit schemes, the Group's net
obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and prior pericds, that benefit
is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair vatue of any
plan assets is deducted. The liability discount rate is the yield at the
balance sheet date on AA credit rated bonds that have maturity dates
approximating to the terms of the Group's obligations. Pension ang
post retirement liabilities are calculated by qualified actuaries using
the projected unit ¢redit method. Following the introduction of the
revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits standard, the net interest on the
defined benefit liability consists of the interest cost on the defined
benefit obligation and the interest income on plan assets, both
calculated by reference to the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation at the start of the period.
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 December 2019

1. Accounting policies continued

The Group recognises actuarial gains and losses in the pefiod

in which they occur through the statement of comprehensive
income. The Group also operates a small number of defined
contribution schemes and the contributions payable during the

year are recognised as incurred. Due to the size of the Group’s
pension scheme assets and liabiflities, relatively small changes in the
assumptions can have a significant impact on the expense recorded
in the incorne statement and on the pension liability recorded in the
balance sheet.

Share capital

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary
shares and share options are recognised as a deduction from equity.
When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount
of the consideration paid. including directly attributable costs, is
recognised as a deduction from equity. Shares repurchased by the
Company are classified as treasury shares and are presented as a
deduction from total equity.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward
currency contracts, interest rate swaps and commodity swap
contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and
commadity price risks, respectively. The Group does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. However,
dertvatives that do not quaiify for hedge accounting are accounted
for as trading instruments. Due to the requirement to assess the
effectiveness of hedging instruments, changes in market conditions
can result in the recognition of unrealised gains or iosses on hedging
instruments in the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair vaiue and
are shown within Oerivatives if they are in an asset position or within
financial liabilities if they are in a fiability position. The gain or loss on
remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in the income
statement. However, where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting,
recognition of any resuttant gain or loss depends onthe nature of the
itern being hedged.

a, Cash fiow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of
the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset or hiability, or a highly
probable forecast fransaction, the effective par{ of any gain or loss
on the derivative financial instrument is recognised directly inthe
hedging reserve. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit and loss in the
periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or [0ss, in the
sarme ling of the income statement as the recognised hedged item.
However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the
recognition of a nor-financial asset the gains or losses previousty
accumulated in equity are transferred from equity and included in the
initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset.
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b. Fair value hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge
of the variability in a fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment, ali changes in the fair value of the
derivative are recognised immediately in the income statement.

The carrying value of the hedged itemis adjusted by the change in fair
value that is attriputable to the risk being hedged (even if it is normally
carried at amortised cost] and any gains or losses on remeasurerment
are recognised immediately in the income statement {even if those
gains would normally be recognised directly in reserves).

c. Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

The Group designates the foreign exchange gain or losson a
propertion of the Group's Euro and US dollar denominated borrowings
as a hedge of the Group's net investment in foreign operations.

As such the foreign exchange gain or loss on those borrowings is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity until such time as the operations are disposed of at which point
the corresponding amounts are recycled to profit or loss.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Group
is demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal,
to a formal detailed plan to terminate employment before the normal
retrement date. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are
recognised if the Group has made an offer encouraging voluntary
redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the
number of acceptances can be estimated reliably.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of promised goods to
customers (the performance obligation} in an amount that reflects

the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for
those goods. This may occur, depending on the individual customer
relationship, when the product has been transferred to a freight carrier,
when the customer has received the product or, for consignment
stock held at customers’ premises, when usage reports for the
reievant period have been compiled.

All revenue is from contracts with customers and pertains to the sale
of speciafty chemicals products, selling prices are agreed in advance
and hence are directly observable.

The Group's payment terms offered to customers are within a
certain number of days of receipt of invoice and standard contracts
do not include & significant financing component. The Group does
not expect to have any contracts where the period between the
transfer of the promised goods to the customer and payment by the
customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Group does not
adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Provistons for returns, trade discounts and rebates are recognised as a
reduction in revenue at the later of when revenue is recognised for the
transfer of the related goods and the entity pays or promises to pay the
consideration. The promise to pay rebates is contractually agreed in
advance and thus the point of transferring the goods to the customer
is deemed to be the Iater of the two circumstances. Rebates and
discounts are estimated using historical data and experiences with the
custarners. Returns from customers are negligible.



Operating profit

Operating profit inchudes net profits realised on the sale of tangible
fixed assets, current and long term assets and liabifities bul excludes
gains and losses on the disposal of businesses.

Other expenses

Other expenses are administration costs incurred and paid by the
Group’s pension schemes, which relate primarily to former empioyees
of legacy businesses.

Finance income and finance costs

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested and
changes in the fair value of financial instruments ai fair value taken to
the income statement. Interest income is recognised as it accrues,
using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borowings, lease
Liabilities, unwinding of the discount on provisions, dividends on
preference shares classified as debt. foreign currency gainsAosses
and changes in the vaiue of financial instruments at fair value taken
to the income statement. All borrowing costs are recognised in the
income statement using the effective interest method.

Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income statement
except 1o the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income. Current tax is the expected
tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment 10 tax payable in respect of previous years.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable protits will be available against which

the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax is provided on temparary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for:
the initial recognition of gaodwill; the initial recognition of assets or
figbifities that affect neither accounting nor taxabie profit other than
in 3 business combination; and differences relating to investments

in subsidiades to the extent that they will probably not reverse in

the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realised.

The Groupis required to astimate the income tax in each of the
jurisdictions inwthich it operates. This requires an estimation of
current tax liability together with an assessment of the temporary
differences which arise as a consequence of different accounting
and tax treatrnents. The Group operates in g number of countries
inthe world and is subject to many tax jurisdictions and rules. As a
consequence the Group is subject to tax audits. which by their

nature are often complex and can require several years to conclude.
Management's judgement is required to determine the 1otal provision
for income tax. Amounts are acerued based on Management's
interpretation of country specific tax law and likelihood of settlement.
However, the actual tax fiabilities could differ from the position ang

in such events an adjustment would be required in the subsequent
period which could have a material impact. Tax benefits are not
recognised unless ii is probable that the tax positions are sustainable.
Once considered to be probable, management reviews each material
tax benefit to assess whether a provision should be taken against full
recognition of the benefit on the basis of potential settlement through
negotiation. This evaluation requires judgements to be made including
the forecast of future taxable income.

Share based payments

The fair value of equity settled share gptions, cash settled shadow
options and LTIP awards granted to employees is recognised as an
expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is
reasured at grant date and spread over the period during which the
employees become unconditionally entitled to the options/awards,
The fair value of the options/ awards granted is measured using 3
binomial mode), taking into account the terms and conditions uppn
which the options/ awards were granted. The amount recognised

as an employee expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
share optionsiawards that vest except where forfeiture is only due to
share prices nul achieving Uk Uneshold Tor vesting.

Own shares held by Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT)
Transactions of the Group sponsored ESQOT are included in the
consolidated financial statements. In particular, the ESQOT's purchases
of shares in the Company are charged directly to equity.
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 December 2019

1. Accounting policies continued

Alternative performance measures

In the analysis of the Group's operating results, earnings per share and
cash flows, information is presented to provide readers with additional
performance indicators that are prepared on a non-statutory basis.
This presentation is reguiary reviewed by management 1o identify
itemns that are unusual and other items relevant to an understanding
of the Group's performance and long term trends with reference

to their materiality and nature. This additional information is not
uniformly defined by all companies and may not be comparable with
similarly tittied measures and disclosures by other organisations.

The nen-statutory disclosures should not be viewed in isolation or

as an alternative to the equivalent statutory measure. information for
separate presentation is considered as follows:

= Material costs or reversals arising from a significant restructuring of
the Group's operations are presented separately

* Disposal of entities or investments in associates or joint ventures or
impairment of related assets are presented separately

« Other matters arising due to the Group's acquisition, such as
adjustments to contingent consideration, payment of retention
bonuses, acquisition costs and fair value adjustments for acquired
assets made in accordance with IFRS 13 are separately disclosed
in aggregate

« If a change in an accounting estimate for provisions, including
ervironmental provisions, results in a material gain or loss, that is
presented separately

« Other items the Directors may deem to be unusual as a resutt of
their size and/or nature.

Adoption of new and revised standards

In the current year, the Group has applied 2 number of amendments
to IFRSs issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board
{IASB) that are mandatorily effective for accounting periods that begin
on or after 1 January 2019. With the exception of IFRS 16 Leases,
their adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or
on the amounts reported in these financial statements:

+ IFRS 16 Leases

* IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

+ Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation [Amendments
to IFRS G}

* Long-term interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments
to 1AS 28)

* Plan Amendment, Curtaiment or Settlement (Amendments to
1AS 19)

* Annualimprovements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle (Amendments to
IFRS 3.IFRS 11,1AS 12 and IAS 23}

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statemenits, the Group
has not applied the following new and revised international accounting
standards {AS/IFRSs) and interpretations {FRICs) that have been
issued but are not effective for periods starting on 1 January 2019
but will be effective for later periods:
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International Accounting Standards {IAS/IFRSs)
and Interpretations (IFRICs) not yet endorsed
by the EU:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7:

interest Rate Benchmark Reform (issued on

Effective date
1 January 2021

26 September 2019} T January 2020
Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations

{issued on 22 October 2018} 1 January 2020
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of '

Material (issued October 2018} 1 January 2020

2. Operating segments

Business segments

The Group has determined its operating segments on the basis of
those used for management, internal reporting purposes and the
allocation of strategic resources. In accordance with the provisions

of IFRS 8, the Group's chief operating decision maker is the Board of
Directors. Following a review in December 2017 of the application

of IFRS 8 (Operating Segments) the Group has decided that, from

1 January 20118, the segments within continuing operations that should
be disclosed are as follows with the addition of the Talc segment as the
result of the acquisition of Mondo Minerals BV in October 2018

« Personal Care
« Coatings

» Tatc

= Chromium

*» Energy

The five reportable segments, Personal Care, Coatings, Talc, Chromium
and Enengy each have distinet product groupings and separate
management structures. Segment results, assets and liabiliies include
items directly attributable to a segment and those that may be reasonably
allocated from corporate activities. Presentation of the segmental results
is on a basis consistent with those used for reporting Group results.

The principal activities of the reportable segments are as foliows:

Personal Care

Production of rheclogical modifiers and compounded products,
mnciuding active ingredients for AP deodorants, for supply to personal
care manufacturers,

Coatings
Production of rheological modifiers and additives for decorative and
industridl coatings.

Talc
Production and supply of talc for use in plastics, coatings, technical
ceramics and the paper sectors. -

Chromium
Production of chromium chemicals,

Energy
Production of rheological modifiers and additives for oil and gas
drilling and stimmulation activities.

Inter-segment pricing is set at a level that equates to the
manufacturing cost of the product plus a commercially appropriate
mark up.

Unallocated iterns and those relating to corporate functions such as
tax and treasury are presented in the tables overleaf as central costs.



Segmental analysis for the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 .

. Parsanal . Segmeant Cantral Total

Care Coatings Talc Chromium Eneryy tatals costs oparations

$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m

Revenue 195.0 3204 150.7 171.0 46.6 883.4 - 883.4
internal revenue - - - {9.8) - (9.8) - {9.8)

Revenue from externa! customers 195.0 3201 150.7 161.2 46.6 873.6 - 873.6

Adjusted operating profit 42.7 48.3 25.7 18.2 as 138.7 {15.7) 123.0
Adjusting items {13.6) {4.6) (5.8) (5.6) - {29.6) 1.5 {22.1)

Profit/lloss) before interest 29.1 43.7 19.9 12.6 3.8 109.1 (8.2) 100.9
Loss on disposal (9.0) - - - ‘ - 9.0 - 9.0
Other expenses - - - - - - {1.5) {1.5)

Finance income - - - - - - 0.4 0.4
Finance expense - - - - - - {29.8) {29.8)
Taxation - after adjusting items - - - - - - {20.7) {20.7)

Taxation — on adjusting items - - - - - - 61 6.1

Profit for the year 201 43.7 19.9 12.6 3.8 1001 {53.7) 46.4

2018
Personal
Care,

Coatings and Segmeont Youal

Energy' Tale Chromlum totals Cantral opdrations

$m $m $m $m $m $m

Fixed assets 708.8 330.3 B82.6 1.121.7 350.0 1.471.7

inventories 88.9 19.0 60.8 168.7 - 168.7

Trade and other receivables 701 .S 19.3 110.9 7.0 117.9

ACT recoverable - - - - 4.8 4.8

Derivatives - - - - 0.1 01

Tax assets - - - - 30.7 30.7

Net retirement benefit surplus - - - - 7.4 7.4

Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 103.9 103.9

Segment asseots 867.8 370.8 182.7 1.401.3 503.9 1,905.2
Trade and other payables (72.3) {20.0) {27.0) {119.3) {15.2) {134.5)
Operating provisions (2.3) (4.4) (20.9} {27.6) {24.0) {51.6)
L ease habilities (31.1) (13.4) {1.1) {45.6) {1.3) {46.9)
Bank overdrafts and lpans - - - - {553.0) (553.0)
Current tax liabilities - - - - {23.2) {23.2)
Retirement benefit obligations - - - Co- (24.5) (24.5)
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - {150.2) (150.2)
Financial liabilities - - - - {15.9) {15.1)
Segment liabilities (105.7) {37.8) (49.0) {192.5) {806.5) (999.0)

Net assets 762.1 333.0 113.7 1,208.8 {302.6) 906.2

Capital additions 211 14.4 11.6 473 4.1 51.2
Depreciation and amortisation (33.6) {24.6) {9.8) {68.0) {2.1) (70.1)

¥ Due to the shared nature of the production facilities for the Personal Care, Coatings and Energy segments a spit of assets and liabilities by segment is not
available and the cost 1o determine such a split would be prohibitive therefore assets and liabilities are shown in aggregate for these segments.

Analysis by geography
Norih United Rest of Rest of the

America Kingdorr Europe World Total
2019 $m $m s $tm $m
Revenue from external custorers 285.2 294 250.7 308.3 8736
Fixed assets 810.1 240.4 357.8 63.4 1,4717
Capital additions 25.5 1.3 16.7 7.7 51.2
Depraciation and amortisation (33.4) {1.6) (31.6) (3.5) {70.1)

Revenue is based on the location of the customer. The Group's largest customer accounts for 3.1% of revenue ($27.2m).
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 December 2019

2. Operating segments continued
Segmental analysis for the year ended 31 December 2018

2018
Totat of
Personal . Segment Central  continuing  Discentinued Total
Care Cuoatings Tale  Chromium Energy totals costs  operations operations  operations
$m sm sm M $m $m $m Sm $m $m
- Revenue 2103 362.2 215 1843 549 833.2 - 833.2 48 838.0
Internal revenue - - - (1 Q) - {(11.0) - (11.0) - {11.0)
Revenue from external
customers 210.3 362.2 215 1733 54.9 8222 - 8222 4.8 8270
Adjusted operating profit 52.2 525 39 330 71 1487 6. 1326 {0.6) 132.0
Adjusting iterns (11.8} 51 a1 {17.2) - (28.0) {19.7) (47.7) {9.8) (57.5)
Profit/fioss) before interest 40.4 576 {0.2) 158 71 1207 {35.8) 849 {10.4) 74.5
Other expenses - - - - - - {1.6) {1.6) - (1.6}
Finance income -~ - - - - - 0.3 0.3 - 0.3
Finance expense - - - - - - {18.2) 182 - {18.2)
Taxation - after adjusting
items - - - - - - (24.4) (24.4) 03 (24.1)
Taxation - on adjusting
items - - - - - - 8.8 8.8 1.7 10.5
Profit for the year 40.4 576 0.2 158 kAl 1207 {70.9) 49.8 8.4 41.4
2018
Parsonal
Care.
Coatings Segment Total
and Energy’ Talc  Chromium totats Centralz  operations
$m $m im $m $m $m
Fixed assets 7106 3313 795 1,121.4 3334 11,4548
Inventories 1061 242 584 1887 - 1887
Trade and other receivables 78.4 19.3 307 128.4 54 1338
ACT recoverable - - - - a8 98
Derivatives - - - - 20 20
Tax assets - - - - 274 274
Net retirernent benefit surplus - - - - 221 221
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 96.1 96.1
Segmernt assets 895.1 3748 1686 14385 4962  1,9347
Trade and other payables (77.0) {18.6) (304} (126.0% (14.6} (140.6)
Operating provisions {1.5) (4.9} {2168} | (280) {20.8) (48.8)
Bank overdrafts and loans - - - - (5BB.6) {588.6)
Current tax liabifities - - - - {17.1) {17.1)
Retirement benefit obligations - - - - (32.0) {32.0)
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - {1517} (151.7)
Financial fiabilities - - - — (40.3) {40.3)
Segment labilities {78.5} {23.5) i52.0) {154.0) (8651 {1,019.7)
Net assets 816.6 351.3 1166 1,2845 {368.9) 915.6
Capital additions 298 6.8 129 495 1.8 513
Depreciation and amornisation {30.5} {4.9) 8.4 {43.8) (1.4) (45.2)

' Duetothe shared nature of the production faciities for the Personal Care, Coatings and Energy segments a split of assets and liabilities by segment is not
avaiiable and the ¢ost to determine such a spht would be prohibitive theretore ossets and liabilities are shown in aggregate for these segments.
1 Restated to show the UK pension surplus of $22.1rm within non-curent assets and to offset unamortised syndicate fees of $5.6m against the borrowings to

which they relate within non-current liabilities.
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Analysis by geography
North United Rest of Restofthe  Discontinued
America Kingdom Europe ‘World pperations Tota)
2018 fm $m $m m m m
Revenue from external customers 2903 321 2011 2987 48 8270
Fixed assets 790.8 2301 3731 60.8 - 1,454.8
Capital additions 325 20 34 B1 08 46.9
Depreciation and amortisation (28.7) {1.5) (11.0) (4.0} 0.7 {45.9)
Revenue is based on the location of the customer.
3. Finance income
2019 2018
$m $m
Interest on bank deposits 0.4 0.3
4. Finance costs
2019 2018
$m $m
Interest on bank loans 23.7 16.8
Pension and other post retirement liabilites 0.5 0.4
Unwind of discount on provisions 2.4 1.0
Fair value movement on derivatives 1.4 -
Interest on lease liabilities 1.8 -
29.8 182
5. Adjusting items
AdJusting Adjusting
{tems on items on
diseontinuad 2015 discontinued 2018
2079 operations Total 2018 operations Totat
$m $m $m im $m &m
Restructuring 5.1 - 5.1 02 - 02
Business transformation 2.5 - 2.5 5.6 - 5.6
Emvironrmentat provisions
Increase in provisions due to additional
remediation work identified - - - 16.5 - 16.5
Increase in provisions due to change in discount rate 4.9 - 4.9 - - -
Costs related to acquisition activities - - - 16.5 - 16.5
Uplift due to fair value of Talc inventory - - - 29 - 29
Sale of Jersey City site - - - {12.7) - 127
Sale of Surfactants business - - - 05 - 0.5
Amgortisation of intangibles arising on acquisition 18.6 - 18.6 15.0 - 150
GMP Pension - - - 3.2 - 3.2
Surfactants commercial settlement - w - - 9.8 98
Release of contingent consideration (9.0} - {5.0) - - -
221 - 221 477 9.8 57.5
Sale of Dental plant 9.0 - 2.0 - - -
Mark to market of derivative financial instruments 1.4 - 1.4 - - -
Tax credit in relation to adjusting items (6.1) - 6.1 (11.5) .7 (13.2)
Tax arising on the restructuring of our German operations - - - 27 - 27
26.4 - 26.4 389 8.1 470
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2019

5. Adjusting items continued

A number of items have been recorded under ‘adjusting items’ in 2018 by virtue of their size andfor one time nature. in line with our accounting
policy in Note 1, in order to provide additional useful analysis of the Group's resuits. The net impact of these iterns on the Group profit before tax
for the year is a debit of $32.5m {2018: $57.5m). The items fall into @ number of categeries, as summarised helow:

Restructuring — In 2019, restructuring costs relate predominantty to the organisational efficiency programme which has eliminated duplicate
roles, reduced management layers and increased spans of control in order to realise cost savings and efficiencies across the Group. Asin 2018
restructuring also includes the IFRS 2 cost of buyouts associated with the CEQ and CFQ's appointments in 2016.

Business transformation - In 2019 we initiated a programme 1o review and optimise our supply chain and manufacturing footprint across our
Coatings, Personal Care, Energy and Chromium businesses. Costs incurred in 2019 related to exiting supply contracts and consulting fees
incurred 1o design our target operating model. in 2018 a programme 1o ransform the Coatings segment had been implemented focusing on
re-engineering our approach to markets (direct vs distributor), our undertying asset base and our preduct offerings in order to leverage our
international networks and key account management.

Increase in environmental provisions due to additional remediation work identified — assessments at the end of 2018 had resulted

in anincreased provision required at a number of our legacy sites. As these costs reiate to non-operational facilities they are classed as
adjusting items.

Increase in environmental provisions due to change in discount rate — The Group's environmental provision is calculated on a discounted
cash flow basis, reflecting the time period over which spending is estimated to take place. A change in discount rates has increased the liability
by $4.9m in the year. As these costs relate to non-operational facilities they are classed as adjusting items.

Costs relating to acquisition activities - these were one-off costs predominantly associated with the acquisition of Talc in 2018 - primarily
the write off of the set-up costs of the previous financing facility (now replaced by a new arrangement), bank and lawyers fees and retention
bonuses for Talc employees.

Uplift due to fair value of Talc inventory - in accordance with IFRS 3, inventory held within Tale was revalued to fair value on acquisition,
representing an uplift of $2.9m over the book value. As all Talc stock to which this uplift relates was sold by 31 December 2018, the additional
expense recognised in cost of sales due to this fair value uplift was classed as an adjusting item in 2018,

Sale of Jersey City site - In 2018 Elementis disposed of a legacy site in Jersey City. The proceeds on disposal less costs to dispose have
been treated as an adjusting item due to their size and one-off nature.

Sale of Surfactants business/disposal costs ~ The loss on sale of the assets and business has been treated as an adjusting item in 2018.

Amortisation of intangibles arising on acquisition — these costs are excluded from operating profit to provide readers of the accounts with
additional useful analysis of the performance of the business. In 2019 and 2018 this line item includes amortisation on intangibles acquired as
part of the Mondo acquisition compieted in October 2018.

GMP Pension - on 26 October 2018, the High Court ruled on the Lioyds Bank Guaranteed Minimum Pension inequalities case. In response to
this our actuaries have inciuded a past service cost of $3.2m for the estimated costs anising from the judgement.

Surfactants commercial settiement — these are costs incurred in settlement of a commercial dispute relating to the Surfactants business
disposed of in 2018.

Release of contingent consideration - An assessment of the potential payments to be made under the earnout mechanism in relation to the
Talc acquisition have led to the refease of $3.0m.

Sale of Dental plant - The [0ss on the exit of 3 non-core plant {part of the Dental business) has been treated as an adjusting item in 2019.

Mark to market of derivatives - The movements in the mark to market valuation of financial instrurnents which are not in hedging
relationships do not form part of the underlying performance of the business and thus are treated as adjusting items.

Tax on adjusting items - this is the net impact of tax relating to the adjusting items listed above.

Tax arising on the restructuring of our German operations — during 2018 an internal restructuring exercise was undertaken in order to
optimise the operational efficiency of the Group. This restructuring resuited in a one-off tax charge.
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To support comparability with the financial statements as presented in 2018, the reconciliation to the adjusted consoiidated income statement

is shown below.
2m8 2019
Profit ang Profitand
2019 2019 loss after loss after
Prafit and Ad) g Husting Ing
loss on tems on ftams on ftems
b tinul Inuing antotal
operations operations aparations. operations
$m $m $m $m
Revenue B73.6 - 873.6 873.86
Cost of sales {552.2) - (552.2) (552.2)
Gross profit N4 - 3214 3214
Distribution costs 122.3) - (127.3) 127.3)
Administrative expenses {83.2) 221 {71.3) {71.1)
Operating profit 100.8 221 1230 123.0
Loss on disposal 8.0} 9.0 - -
QOther expenses (1.5) - (1.5) £1.5)
Finance income 0.4 - 0.4 0.4
Finance costs 129.8) 1.4 {28.4) {28.4)
Profit before income tax 61.0 325 93.5 93.5
Tax (14.6) {6.1} {20.7) {20.7)
Profit for the year 46.4 26.4 72.8 72.8
Awributabie to:
Equity holders of the parent 46.4 26.4 72.8 72.8
Earnings per share
Basic (cents) 8.0 4.6 126 12.6
Diluted (cents) 7.9 4.5 124 12.4
2018
2018 Prafitand 2018
2008 Profitandloss 2018 s loss after  Profit and inss
2018 Adjusting after adjusting Profit anct Adjusting adjusting  after adjusting
Profit and loss items on items an loss on items on itemson items
oncantinuing continuing continding  discantinued  discontinued  discontinued ontotal
Operations operations operations operations operations operations operations
$m $m $m $m $m $m
Revenue B822.2 - 822.2 4.8 - 4.8 827.0
Cost of sales {516.6) - {516.6} (4.3) - 4.3) (520.9)
Gross profit 305.6 - 305.6 05 - 05 3061
Distribution costs {111.6) - (M11.6) {0.8) - 10.8) {(112.4)
Administrative expenses {109.1) 477 (61.4) (101} a8 (0.3) {61.7)
QOperating profit 849 477 1326 (10.4) 98 {0.6) 132.0
Other expenses (1.6) - (1.6) - - - (1.6}
Finance income 0.3 - 03 - - - 03
finance costs 18.2) - {18.2} - - - (18.2
Profit before income tax 65.4 477 131 (10.4) 98 {0.6) 1125
Tax {15.6) (8.8} {24.4) 2.0 1.7} 0.3 {24.1)
Profit for the year 498 389 887 8.4 81 (0.3) 88.4
Aftributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 498 389 887 (8.4) 81 {0.3) gB.4
Earnings per share
Basic (cents) 95 75 17.0 {1.6) 16 - 17.0
Diluted {cents) - 9.5 74 16.9 {1.5) 16 - 16.9
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 December 2019

5. Adjusting items continued

To support comparability with the financial staternents as presented in 2019, a reconciliation from reported profit/{loss) before interest to

adjusted profit before mcome tax by segment is shaown below for each year.

2019
Totalof
Personal Segment Central continuing Discontinued
Care Coatings Tale Chromlum Energy totals costs operations operations Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m
Reported operating profit/{loss) 291 437 189 126 38 1091 (8.2 1009 - 100.9
Adjusting ltems
Restructuring 07 26 0.2 o - 36 1.5 5.1 - 51
Business transformation 16 05 - 04 - 25 - 25 - 25
Increase in environmental
provisions due to change in
discount rate - - - 49 - 49 - 49 - 49
Amortisation of intangibles arsing
on acquisition 1.3 15 56 02 - 18.6 - 18.6 - 186
Release of contingent :
consideration - - - - - - (9.0} {S.0} - (9.0)
Adjusted operating profit/{loss) 427 48.3 257 18.2 38 138.7 (15.7) 123.0 - 123.0
Other expenses - - - - - - (1.5} (1.5 - 1.5
Finance income - - - - - - 0.4 04 - 04
Finance costs - - - - - - (28.4) (28.4) - {28.4)
Adjusted profit before income tax 427 48.3 257 18.2 3.8 1387 45.2) 93.5 - 93.5
2018
Tatal of
Personai Segment Central centinving  Discontinued
Care  Coalings Talc  Chramium Energy totals cosis operations operations Tota!
- £m gm $m m $m $m $m sm sm &M
Reported operating profit/{loss} 40.4 576 0.2} 15.8 71 1207 (35.8) 84.9 {10.4) 74.5
Adjusting ltems
Restructuring 0.2 0.2 - 0.2
Business transformation - 56 - - - 56 - 5.6 - 5.6
Increase in environmental
provisions due to additional
remediation work identified - - - 170 - 17.0 (0.5) 16.5 - 16.5
Costs related to acquisition
activities 0.2 - - - - 0.2 16.3 16.5 - 16.5
Uplift due to fair value of Talc
inventory - - 29 - - 29 - 29 - 29
Sale of Jersey City site - {127 - - - (12.7} - (127) - (127
Sale of Surfactants business - - - - - - 0.5 Q5 - 05
Amortisation of intangibles arising
OR acquisition 1.6 20 1.2 0.2 - 150 - 15.0 - 15.0
GMP pension - - - - - - 3.2 3.2 - 3.2
Surfactants commercial settlement - - - - - - - - 9.8 9.8
Adjusted operating profit/{loss) 52.2 525 3.9 33.0 71 1487 {16.7) 132.6 {0.6) 132.0
Cther expenses - - - - - - (1.8} {1.6) - 1.6
Finance income - - - - - - 0.3 0.3 - 0.3
Finance costs - ~ - - - - 118.2) {18.2) - {18.2)
Adjusted profitbeforeincome tax 52.2 525 39 33.0 71 148.7 (35.6) 113.1 (0.6 112.5
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6. Income tax expense

2019 2018
$m $m
Current tax on continuing operations:
UK corporation tax 5.7 a1
Overseas corporation tax on continuing operations 6.6 M7
Adjustments in respect of prior years:
United Kingdom - 0.9)
Overseas 13 0.2)
Total current tax 13.4 18.7
Deferred tax:
United Kingdom {0.1) {1.4)
Overseas 14 38
Adjustment in respect of prior years:
United Kingdom - 0.4)
Overseas {0.1) {5.9)
Total geferred tax 1.2 {3.1)
Income tax expense for the year 14.6 15.6
Comprising:
Income tax expense for the year 14.6 15.6
Adjusting items*
Overseas taxation on adjusting items 5.1 6.5
UK taxation on adjusting items 1.0 2.2
Taxation on adjusting items ! 6.1 88
Income tax expense for the year after adjusting items M 20.7 24.4

* See Note 5 for details of adjusting items

The tax charge on profits represents an effective rate of 23.9% (2018: 23.9%) and an effective tax rate after adjusting items of 22.1%
(2018: 21.6%). The Group is international, has operations in several jurisdictions and benefits from cross border financing arrangements.
Accordingly. tax charges of the Group in future periods will be affected by the profitability of operations in different jurisdictions, changes
to tax rates and regulations in the jurisdictions within which the Group has operations, as well as the ongoing impact of the Group's funding
arrangements. The mediumn term expectation for the Group's adjusted effective tax rate is around 22-23%.

The total charge for the year can be reconcited to the accounting profit as follows:

2018 2019 2018 2018
s$m % $m %
Profit before tax on continuing operations 61.0 65.4
Tax on ordinary activities at 19.00% {2018: 19.00%}* 1.6 19.0 124 190
Difference in overseas effective tax rates 17 2.8 1.5 2.3
Income not taxable and impact of tax efficient financing {15.2) {24.9) (6.8) (10.4)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 13.6 223 16.6 254
Adjustments in respect of prior years 1.0 1.6 (6.6) {10.1}
Tax rate changes 0.9 1.5 {1.3) (2.0}
Movement in urvecognised deferred tax 1.0 1.6 0.2} {0.3)
Tax charge and effective tax rate for the year 14.6 23.9 15.6 239

The tax credit related to discontinued operaticns is $nil {2018 credit of $2.0m}.
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2019

7. Profit for the year

Profit for the year including discontinued operations has been arrved at after charging/icrediting):

2019 2018
&m $m
Employee costs (see Note B} 137.6 134.6
Net foreign exchange gains (0.2} (0.3}
Research and developrment costs 7.8 9.3
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 50.8 302
Amortisation of intangible assets ' 19.2 15.7
Total depreciation and armortisation expense 701 459
Loss on disposal 9.0 -
Release of contingent consideration {9.0) -
Profit on disposal of property. plant and equipment ) 0.4 0.6
Write off of inventory 2.0 1.2
Cost of inventories recognised as expense 379.4 3845
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates:
Audit of company 0.4 G4
Audit of subsidiaries 1.0 1.0
Audit related services — infenm review 0.1 0.1
Services related to corporate finance transactions - 0.3
8. Employees
2018 208
$m $m
Employee costs:
Wages and salaries 121.9 117.4
Socal security costs 9.7 95
Pension costs 6.0 77
137.6 134.6
Number Number
Average number of FTE employees®: )
Specmatty Products 1.040 1155
Talc 234 41
Chromiurn 258 258
Central 18 18
Total from continuing operations 1,550 1,472
Discontinued operations** - 33
Total including discontinued operations 1,550 1,505

* Fulltime equivalent including contractors.
** The discontinued operations have been ncluded on a 12 month average basis.

The aggregate amount of Directors’ remuneration (salary, bonus and benefits} is shown in the Rermuneration Report on page 86,

- The aggregate amount of gains made by Directors on exercise of share options was $0.17m [2018: $0.9my.
» The rermuneration of the highest paid Director was $1.4m (2018. $1.6m)

* Payments have been made to a defined contribution pension scheme on behalf of 1 Director (2018: 1 Director). For the highest paid Director,

pension contributions of $0 2m (2018 $0.2m) were made.

126 Elementis plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2049



9. Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the parent is based on the following:

[ Dl d Total Conlinuing  Discontinued Totail
operations operations aperations operations operations operations
2019 2019 2018 28 2018 2018
$m $m $m $m 3m &m
Earnings:
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings per share 46.4 - 46.4 49.8 8.4 .4
Adjusting items net of tax 26.4 - 26.4 38.9 8.1 470
Adjusted earnings 72.8 - 72.8 887 0.3) 88.4
2019 2018
m m
Number of shares.
Weighted average number of shares for the purpases of basic earnings per share 579.6 5209
Effect of dilutive share gptions 8.9 5.4
Weighted average number of shares for the purposes of dituted earmings per share 588.5 526.3
Ceantinulng Discontinued Total Continuing  Discontinued Total
oparations oparations operations operations operations. operations
2018 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
cents cants cents cenls cents cents
Earnings per share:
Basic 8.0 - ‘8.0 a5 (1.6) 79
Diluted 7.9 - 7.9 8.5 {1.8) A
Basic after adjusting items 12.6 - 12.6 7o - 17.0
Diluted after adjusting items 12.4 - 12.4 16.9 - 16.9
10. Goodwill and other intangible assets
Othar
Customer intangible
Gooodwill Brand hists assets Totat
£m $m $m $m $m
Cost
At 1 January 2018 526.9 26.8 139.7 579 7514
Exchange differences 10.m {0.5) 1.2) 3.0 (14.9)
Additions - - - 1.2 1.2
Intangible assets arising on the acquisition of Mondo 200.5 - 40.9 47.3 288.7
At 31 December 2018 717.3 26.4 179.4 103.3 1,026.4
Exchange differences 8.4 03 1.2 {1.0} 6.5
Additions - - - 28 28
Disposals - 0.8) (12.4) 1.9} {15.1)
At 31 December 2019 725.7 25.9 165.8 103.2 1.020.6
Amortisation:
At 1 January 2018 - 0.8 6.2 272 34.2
Charge for the year - 11 8.5 6.0 15.6
At 31 December 2018 - 19 147 332 49.8
Charge for the year - 11 167 14 19.2
Disposals - 0.7) (4.6) 1.2} (6.5)
At 31 December 2019 - 2.3 20.8 39.4 62.5
Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2019 725.7 23.6 145.0 63.8 958.1
At 31 December 2018 7173 245 164.7 701 976.6
At 1 January 2018 526.9 261 133.5 307 717.2

The net book value of customer kists inciudes $108.0m (2018: $124.3m) in relation to the acquisttion of SurmmitReheis which have remaining

lives of between 4 and 21 years (2018: between 5 and 22 years} and $37.0m {2018: $40.4m) in relation to the acquisition of Mondo which has a

remaining life of 14 years (2018: 15 years).
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 20719

10. Goodwill and other intangible assets continued

Impairment testing and indefinite life assets
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units ("CGUS") as follows:

2019 2018

$m $m

Personal Care 293.2 2912
Coatings 202.6 1979
Talc 201.5 2005
Chromium - -
Energy 28.4 277
At 31 December 7257 717.3

The Group tests annually for impairment, or more frequently, if there are events or circumstances that indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable, No impairment charge was recorded in the year {2018: $nil).

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisiticn, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that
business combination.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUSs are determined from value in use calculations The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are
expected changes to sales volumes, selling prices snd direct costs during the forecast period, growth rates used to extrapolate beyond the
forecast period and the discount rates applied to the resuiting cash flows. Changes in sales volumes, selling prices and direct costs are based
on past practices and expectations of future changes in the market. The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
plans approved by management for the next three years with cash flows for periods beyond three years extrapolated based on estimated
growth rates of between 2.0% and 5.0% (2018: 3.0% to 7.0%). The rates do not exceed the average tong term growth rate for the relevant
markets. Managernent estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGUs.

In order to stress test the results over 3 wider range of conditions, management has expanded its testing to include a variety of growth rates
and alternative forecast scenarins that reflect the potential variability of risk within the CGUs. During the testing a range of discount rates from
9.5% 10 10.5% (2018 9.1% t0 13.5%) was used.

When the impairment testing was carned out in October 2019 the least headroom (as 8 percentage of CGU assets, when value in use was
cempared to total CGU assets including goodwill) was in the Talc CGU. The Taic CGU had headroom of $142.4m. The headroom is based on

a medium term growth rate of 5 0% and a long term growth rate of 3.0%. For the CGU's value in use to equal the fotal assets of the CGU sales
would have to decrease by an average of 9% over the 3 year forecast period, the medium term growth rate would need to be reduced ta 3.8%
and the long term growth rate to 1.5%.

The brand intangibles represent the value ascribed to the trading name and reputation of the Deuchem, Fancor, Watercryl, Hi-Mar and
SummitReheis acquisitons. The Group, with the exception of SummitReheis, considers these to have significant and ongoing value to the
business that wilt be maintained and it is therefore considered appropriate to assign these assets an indefinite useful life. The brand relating
to SummitReheis is being amortised over a period of three years. The carrying amount of brand intangitles with an indefinite useful life as at
31 December 2019 15 $23.4m (2018 $23 1m). Brand intangibles are tested annually for impairment using simitar assumptions to the goodwill
testing. The remaining intangible assets comprise the value ascribed to customer lists, patents and non-gcompete ciauses, which are being
amortised over periods of five to twenty-four years.
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11. Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

vooay Mbareng

Fixtures Faxtures:
Land and Plantand fittings and Under Land and Plant and fittings and
buildings machinery equipment  construgtion ilding " inery qui it Total
$m $m $m §m $m $m Fm $m
Cost
At 1 January 2018 1272 410.0 424 218 - - - 6014
Additions - B3 - 409 - - - 49.2
Exchange differences 3.1 (14.9) (0.6} {0.3) - - - (1B.5}
Disposals (19.6) (85.0) R }} 0.3 - - - (106.1)
Acquisitions through business
combinations 15.8 2316 04 24 - - - 250.2
Reclassifications 5.2 309 3.3 (39.4} - - - -
At 31 December 2018 1255 580.8 44.4 251 - - - 775.8
Impact following adoption of IFRS 16 - -~ - - 52.2 57 21 60.0
At 31 December 2018 1285 580.8 44.4 251 522 57 21 835.8
Additions - 14,3 0.1 334 0.1 0.1 0.4 48 4
Exchange differences {0.1) (4.2) {0.1) {0.1) (0.2) 0.1 - (4.8}
Disposals (2.9 + (M) (1.2) 0.1} 0.7) {0.1) - {16.1)
Reclassifications 2.8 34.7 2.5 (40.0} - - - -
At 31 December 2019 125.3 614.5 45.7 18.3 51.4 5.6 2.5 863.3
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2018 730 278.0 299 - - - - 3819
Charge for the year 29 251 1.6 - - - - 296
Exchange differences (1.7} 7N 0.4) - - - - 8.8)
Disposals {18.7) (84.9) (0.5) - - - - (104.1)
Reclassifications - 0.4 04 — - - - -
At 31 December 2018 oh.b 2111 3.0 - - - - 2976
Impact following adoption of IFRS 16 - - = - 11.8 - - 1.8
At 31 December 2018 55.5 211 31.0 - 1.8 - - 308.4
Charge for the year 28 39.0 2.4 - 4.5 11 11 50.9
Exchange differences - (0.2) ©.1) - - - - [0.3)
Disposals ©.4) (9.0} (0.7} - (0.2) - - (10.3)
Reclassifications - {0.5) 0.5 - - - - -
At 31 December 2019 57.9 240.4 331 - 161 13 13 349.7
Net book value:
At 31 December 2019 67.4 3741 12.6 18.3 35.3 4.5 1.4 513.6
At 31 December 2018 700 369.7 13.4 251 - - - 478.2
At 1 January 2018 542 1310 125 21.8 - - - 219.%
Group capital expenditure contracted but not provided for in these financial statements amounted to $nil (2018: $niY).
12. Inventories
2019 2018
$m $m
Raw materials and consumables 56.7 706
Work in progress 15.7 15.3
Finished goods and goods purchased for resale 96.3 1028
168.7 188.7

Inventories are disclosed net of provisions for obsolescence of $6.5m {2018: $7.8m).
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 December 2019

13. Trade and other receivables

2019 2018
tm $m
Trade receivables 96.6 1124
Other receivables 13.8 139
Prepayments 7.5 75
117.9 1338
14. Trade and other payables
2019 2018
$m $m
Trade payables 79.8 6186
Other payables 15.2 2089
Accruals 39.5 581
134.5 140.6
The group has not used any supplier financing arrangements in the pericd. .
15. Provisions
Self
Environmental Insurance Restructuring Other Total
$m 5m $m $m $m
At 1 January 2019 43.3 15 08 32 488
Charged/(credited) to the income statement:
Increase in provisions due to change in discount rate 49 - - - 49
Set up/lreiease) of provisions - 0.9 40 1.2 37
Unwinding of discount 22 - - 0.2 2.4
Utilised during the year 6.7} 0.4} {1.2) {0.5) 8.8
Currency translation differences 04 0.2 - - 06
At 31 December 2019 44.1 2.2 3.6 1.7 51.6
Due within 1 year 33 Q.4 22 05 6.4
Due after 1 year 40.8 1.8 1.4 1.2 45.2

Environmental provisions relate to manufacturing and distribution sites including certain sites no tonger owned by the Group. These provisions
have been derived using a discounted cash flow methodology and refliect the extent to which it is probable that expenditure wili be incurred
over the next 25 years. Included within environmental provisions are amounts in respect of all anticipated costs related to the closure and

remediation of the Chromiurm UK site at Eaglescliffe.

Environmental provisions have been increased by $4.9m due to fluctuations in the discount rates used to discount the provisions. This expense

is included within adjusting items (see Note 5).

if the cost estimates on which the provisions at 371 December 2019 are based were to change by 10%. the provision recognised would need
to change by approximately $4.4m. Whilst a range of outcomes is possible, the Directors Gelieve that the reasonably possibie range for the

environmental provision is from $38.1m to $46.0m.

Self-insurance provisions represent the aggregate of gutstanding claims plus a projection of losses incurred but not reported. The self-

insurance provisions are expected to be utiised within five years.

Restructunng provisions relate to costs of adjusting head count, training, refocation and other costs of restructuring where a need to do so bas

been identified by management,

Other provisions represent payments made for right of first refusal on a guarry, payments for which are linked to the discharge of residue into
another quarry owned by the same counterparty. These provisions are expected to be utilised within five years
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16. Deferred tax and ACT recoverable

Retirerment  Accelarated  Amortisation Other
benefit tax of US intangibte Temporary Urvrelieved

plans  depreciation goodwill assets differsnces tax losses Total

$m $m $m $m $m $m $m
At 1 January 2018 09 {19.5) {59.5} (36.7) 140 76 {93.2)
Arising on acquisition - - - {43.2) C.4 63 36.5)
Creditficharge) to the incomne statement 02 {121 09 71 46 (7.5) 3.2
Charge to other comprehensive income 0.2 - - - - - 0.2)
Charge to retained earnings - - - - {2.2) - {2.2)
Currency translation differences 0.1} = - 1.3 0.4 - 16
At 1 January 2019 0.8 {31.6) (58.6) {61.5) 17.2 6.4 (127.3)
Asising On disposal - - - 28 - - 2.8
Creditflcharge} to the income statement 0.2 (0.4) 01 (0.8} 07 {10} {1.2)
Charge to other comprehensive income 1.5 - - - {0.2) - 1.3
Charge to retained earnings - - - - 0.3 - 0.3

Currency translation differences 10.2) - - {0.2) 2.5 - 21
At 31 December 2019 2.3 {32.0) (58.5) {59.7) 20.5 5.4 (122.0)
Deferred tax assets 2.3 - - - 205 5.4 282
Deferrec tax liabllities - {320 (58.5) (59.7) = - {150.2)

Deferred tax assets have been recognised (o the extent that it is considered more likely than not that there will be taxable profits from which the
future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted. Where this is not the case, deferred tax assets have not been recognised.

Deferred tax liabilities are reduced for any deferred tax assets which exist within a jurisdiction where consolidated tax returns are filed and where

tax assets and liabilities may be netted.

An asset of $42.0m was recognised in 2014 relating to UK advance corporation tax [ACT) credits which had previously been unrecognised

because of uncertainty over future UK taxable profits, Movemenits in the ACT recoverable batance are shown below:

2019 2018

£m Sm

At 1 January 9.8 16.2
Utilisation {5.2) 83
Currency transiation differences 0.2 17
At 31 December 4.8 9.8

There are no material losses where deferred tax assets have not been recognised.

Al the balance sheet Gate the aggregate amount of the temporary differences in relation to the investment in subsidiaries for which geferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised was $26.0m {2018: $20.7m). No liability has been recognised in respect of these differences because
the Group is in a position te control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and the Group considers that it is probable that such

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial staternents continued
For the year ended 31 December 2019

17. Share capital

2018 2018

m 3m

At 1 January : 521 44 4
Issue of shares - 77
AL 31 Decermber 52.1 521

In October 2018 the Gsoup undertook a Rights issue on the basis of one share for every four fully paid ordinary shares heid. A total of
116,058,808 ordinary shares were issued at £1.52 per share. Gross proceeds of $232 7m were received resulting in an increase in share
premium of $214.5m after expenses. ’ .

Further details of share capita! are set out in Note 9 to the Parent Company Financial Statements.

18. Other reserves

Capital
redemption Transiation Hedging Share options
feserve reserve reserve reserve Total
$m $m £m $m $m
Balance at 1 January 2018 158.8 {572) 6.9) 4.3 99.0
Share based payments .- - - 29 29
Exchange differences - (15.8) - {0.4) (16.2)
Increase i fair value of derivatives - - 13 - 1.3
Transfer - - - {1.5) {1.5)
At 1 January 2019 158.8 {73.0} {5.6) 53 85.5
Share based payments - - - 3.0 30
Exchange differences _— 4.0 - 2.7 6.7
Decrease in fair vaiue of derivatives - - (2.8) - {2.8)
Transfer - - - (1.3} (1.3)
Balance at 31 December 2019 158.8 (69.0) (8.4} 9.7 911

The Company can redeem shares by repaying the market value to the shareholder, whereupon the shares are cancelled. Redemption must be
from distributabie profits. The capital redemption reserve represents the nominat value of the shares redeemed.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations
as well as from the transiation of habilties that hedge the Company’'s net investment in a foreign subsidiary.

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments related to
hedged transactions that have not yet occurred.

The share options reserve comprises amounts accumulated in equity inrespect of share options and awards granted to employees.
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19. Borrowings

2019 2018
$m $m
Bank loans 558.1 594.2
Unamortised syndicate fees 5.1 (5.6)
Carrying value of borrowings at 31 December 553.0 588.6
The borrowings are repayable as follows:
Within one year 2.2 28
Within two to four years 393.1 -
in the fifth year 162.8 591.4
558.1 594.2
The weighted average interest rates paid were as follows:
2018 2018
% %
Bank loans 3.4 3.7
Group borrowings were denominated as follows:
USDollar  Taiwan Dollar Euro Total
Bank loans
31 December 2019 245.2 2.0 3109 558.1
31 December 2018 275.0 2.6 316.6 594.2

Of the US dollar borrowings, $ril was unsecured (2018: $nil), bearing interest at the relevant interbank rates pius a margin. The Taiwan dolar and
remaining US doliar borrowings consisted of those secured by time deposits and those secured by charges over various land and buildings

in Taiwan.

20. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement comprise the following:

1019
$m

2018
$m

Cash at bank and on hand

103.9

96.1
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 Decermnber 2019

21. Financial instruments
AL 31 December 2019:

Held at fais value

Held atamortised cost

Through Derivatives

profit and used for Loans and Total Total
loss fedging receivables Liabilities book value fair value
$m $m $m $m $m m
Current:
Trade and other receivables {see note 13} - ~ 1104 - 110.4 1104
Derivative financial instruments {see note 22) - a1 - - 01 Q1
Cash and cash equivatents (see note 20} - - 1039 - 103.8 103.9
Financial assets - 01 2143 - 214.4 2144
Current:
Bank overdrafts and loans (see note 19} - - - (2.2) (2.2 2.2}
Trade and other payables (see note 14) - - - (134.5) {134.5) (134.5)
Derivative financial instruments {see note 22)* {1.4) 0.7} - - (2.1} (2.1
Lease labiiities {see note 24} - - - {71} {7.1) (7.3)
Non-current:
Loans and borrowings™* (see note 19} - - - (550.8) (550.8} {555.9)
Other financial kabilities*** - - - - - -
Lease liabilities [see note 24) - - - (39.8) (39.8) {39.8)
Contingent consideration*** (see notes 5 and 32) - - - (13.0} (13.0) {¥3.0)
Financial liabilities {1.4) 0.7) - (747.4) (749.5) (754.6)
Total {1.4) (0.6} 2143 {747.4) {535.1) (540.2)
At 31 December 2018:
Held at fair value Held at amaortised cost
Through Derivatives
profitand used for Loans and Toial Totat
loss hedqging receivables Liabilitias book value {air value
$m &m $m $m $m $m
Current:
Trade and other receivables (see note 13) - - 126.3 - 126.3 126.3
Derivative financial instruments (see note 22) - 20 - - 20 20
Cash and cash equivalents {see note 20} - - 361 - 9%.1 96.1
Financial assets - 20 222.4 - 224.4 2244
Current:
Bank overdrafis and loans - - - (2.8) (2.8) (2.8}
Trade and other payables {see note 14) - - - (140.6) {140.6) (1406}
Contingent consideration (see note 32) (0.1 - - - {0.1) Q1)
Non-current:
Loans and borrownigs** {see note 19} - - - {585.8} {585.8) {591.4)
Other financial liabilities*** - - - (18.9) {18.9) (18.9)
Contingent consideration*** (see note 5 and note 32) {21.3) - - - {21.3) {21.3)
Financial liabities " {21.4) - - (748.1) {769.5) {775.)
Total {21.4} 20 2224 (748.1) (5451} (550.7)

* Derivatives m a iabiity posivon at 31 Becermber 2019 are shown withun custent financial kabifties in the Consolidated balance sheet,

** Loans and borrowings are shown net of facwity fees of $5.7m (2018 $5.6m)
**Other financiat liabifities of $nil {2018: $18.5m) relate to an amount payable to the vendor of Mondo on the resolution of a tax case. This balance is comtined with
the contmgent consideration payable of $13.0m (2018: $237.4m) and shown in the non-current financial liabilitres line in the Consolidated balance sheet (2018

sphit between current and non current financial habilities).
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Fair values measurement and hierarchy

Basis for determining fair values
The Group measures fair values in respect of financial instruments in accordance with IFRS 13, using the foliowing fair value hierarchy that

reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

Levet 1: Quoted market price {unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.
Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observabie inputs, either directly or indirectly,
Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes contingent consideration,

The following summarises the significant methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial instruments:

The Group assesses that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, and the current
portion of floating rate bank and other borrowings, approximate to book values due to the short maturity periods of these financial instruments.
For trade and other receivables, allowances are made within their book value for credit risk. The fair values of lease liabilities approximate to their
book values due to the measurement of lease liabilities at the Group's incremental borrowing rate, which has not changed significantly since the
inteption of the lease liabilities presented. Leases are also negotiated at market rates with independent, unrelated third parties and are subject
to periodic rental reviews.

Derivatives (level 2)
Fair value is estimated by discounting the difference between the contractuaf forward price and the current forward price for the residual
maturity of the contract using a risk free interest rate (based on government bonds).

Non-derivative non-current financial liabitities flevel 2)
Fair value is calcutated based on the present value of future principat and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the

reporting date.

Contingent consideration payable {level 3)

Fair value has been estimated by calculating the present value of the future expected cash flows, Expected cash inflows are estimated based
on the terms of the sale and purchase contract, the entity's knowledge of the business and how the current economic environment is likely to
impact it.

As disciosed in Note 32, as a result of the acquisition of Mondo, a liability of $22.3m for contingent consideration payable was recognised as at
the date of acquisition. There were no significant inter-relationships between unobservable inputs that materially affect fair values.

Changes in fair value of financial iabilities classified as level 3 in the hierarchy are as follows:

2019 2018
tm $m

Contingent consideration at fair value through profit or foss:
AL 1 January 21.4 -
Foreign exchange losses/igains) 0.6 0.9
Additions - 223
Profit and loss movement {9.0) -
At 31 December 13.0 214
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2018

21. Financial instruments continued

Interest rates used for determining fair value

The interest rates used 10 discount estimated cash flows, where applicable, are based on the gevernment yield curve at the reponting date plus

an adequate constant credit spread, and were as follows:

2019 208
Y %

Borrowings

2.3-4.4 1.5-5.2

The following tabie shows amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation 1o financial assets and liabilities within the scope of IFRS 9:

2019 2018
$m gm
Recognised in profit or loss .
Interest income on bank deposits held at amortised cost 0.4 03
Fair value of cash flow hedges transferred from equity to the income statement - 0.1
Financisl income 0.4 04
Interest on bankicans (23.7 {16.8)
Fair value movement on derivatives not in hedging relationships {1.4) -
Interest on lease liabilities {1.8) -
Financial costs {26.9) (16.8)
Net financiat Costs (26.5) {16.4)

The following table $hows amounts recognised directly in equity in relation to financial assets and liabilities within the scope of IFRS &:

2019 2018
$m $m
Reccgnised directly in equity
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedge (2.8) 14
Fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to income statement - {eN ]
Effective portion of change in fair value of net investment hedge 27.5 (20.5}
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations (23.9) (1)
" Recogrised in:
Hedging reserve (2.8) 13
Transiation reserve 3.6 [20.0}
22. Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
Contract or underiying
principal amount Fair Yalue
Assatls Liabiiities
AL 31 Becember 2019 Asgseats Liabiites $£m tm
Current;
€30m/
interest rate swaps ~ cash flow hedges - $100m - 0.6)
Commodity swaps - cash flow hedges 0.2mMBTU 2040 MT 01 {0.3)
$110m/
Cross currency swaps - €100m - 1.4}
Total 01 {2.1)
Contractor underlying
principal amount Fair Vaue
Assets Liabilities
A1 37 December 2038, Assets Liabuties $m &m
Current:
interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges $100m - 20 -
Total 20 -
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Hedging activities
The Group is exposed to certain risks relating fo its ongoing business operations, The primary risks managed using derivative instruments are
foreign currency risk, comrmadity price risk and interest rate risk.

The Group's risk management strategy is explained in Note 23.

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

Cash flow hedges

Commuodity price risk .

The Group enters into commodity swap contracts to reduce the volatility attributable to price fluctuations of alurninium and gas. To the extent
they continue to meet the criteria for hedge accounting. the commodity forward contracts are accounted for as cash flow hedges.

‘There is an economic relationship between the hedged items and the hedging instruments as the terms of the commaodity swap contracts
match the terms of the expected highly probable forecast transactions {i.e. notional amount and expected payment date). As all critical terms
matched during the year, hedge ineffectiveness was immaterial. The hedge ratic is 1:1.

Interest rate rigk

The Group enters into interest rate swaps to swap a pottion of the interest arising from the Group's syndicated rolling credit facility from floating
to fixed. interest payments are highly probable, the hedged risk is the change in the market interest rate. The hedged items are the interest rate
cash flows on $100.0m of USD denocminated debt and $33.7m of EUR denominated debt, the Group's total debt 18 shown in Note 18 to the
financial staterments.

The principal terms {notional, reset date, tenor) of the hedged items and the hedged instruments have been matched along with the contractual
interest cash flows, therefore creating an exact offset for these transaction resulting in a net fixed interest payable. As the interest rate swaps
and the hedged iterns are matched lequal and opposite terms of interest rate, date and maturity) this results in a designated hedge ratio of 1.1
or 100%.

Hedge ineffectiveness can arise from:

» Changes in timing of the hedged item

= Areduction in the amount of the hedged item considered tc be highly probable

= A change in the credit risk of Elementis or the counterparty to the derivative contract
= Foreign currency basis spreads

The effect of cash flow hedges in the consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income is,
as follows:

Totalhedging Amount
{lossigain rectassified Lineitemin the
recognised romQClto statement of
inQCt profit or loss profit orloss
$m $m *$m
Year ended 31 December 2019
Admin
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges {2.4) {0.3) expenses
Admin
Commuodity forward contracts ~ cash flow hedges {0.4) 03 expenses
Year ended 31 December 2018
Admin
Interest rate swaps — cash flow hedges 1.4 0.1 expenses

Amounts reclassified from other comprehensive income to profit or loss are due to the hedged item affecting profit or 10ss in the period.
There were no instances of non-occurance of hedged cashfiows in either the current or comparative period.
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2079

22, Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities continued

Hedge of net investments in foreign operations
The Group seeks to denominate the currency of its borrowings in Euros and US dollars in order to match the currency of its cash flows, earnings
and assets which are principally denominated in those currencies.

The Euro and US dollar barrowings in Elermentis Holdings Limited, are designated as net investment hedges, as the company’s functional
currency is GBP The Group does not undertake derivative transactions to hedge the foreign currency translation exposures.

The Group anatyses the Eurc and US dollar net assets by subsidiary and the foreign currency borrowings in the name of Elementis Holdings
Limited are allocated against certain tranches of net assets for a specific subsidiary. Therefore, the cntical terms of the Euro and US dollar
borrowings and their corresponding hedged items are the same.

The Group performs a qualitative assessment of effectiveness and it 1s expected that the value of the Euro and US dollar borrowings in GBP
and the value of the corresponding hedged iterns in GBP will systematically rmove in the opposiie direction in response to movements in the
underlying exchange rates.

The main source of ineffectiveness in these hedging relattonships is the impact of a deciine in the carrying value of the hedged ttern compared
to the Euro and US dollar borrowings with the result that the value of the hedged item is less than the value of hedging instrument.

Foreign currency revaluation on the Eurc and US dollar borrowings in the name of Elementis Holdings Lirnited are recorded in other
comprehensive income and deferred in the foreign currency translation reserve on the balance sheet as long as the hedge is effective.
Any ineffectiveness is recognised in the income Staterment for that year.

Thempact of the hedged ilems on the staterment of comprehensive income is as follows:

2018 2018
Foreign Foreign
currency currency
translation translation
reserve feserve
$m $rn
Year ended 31 December
Net investment in foreign subsidiaries 27.5 (20.5)
Impact of hedging on equity
Set out below is the reconciliation of each component of equity and the analysis of other comprehensive income:
Foreign
Currency
Cash flow translation
hedgereserve reserve
§m $m
As at 1 January 2018 [6.9] {57.2)
Effective portion of changes in fair value arising from:

Derivative cash flow hedging instruments 1.4 -
Amount reclassified to profit or loss {0.1) 4.2
Foreign currency revaluation of the net foreign operations - 05
Foreign currency revaluatign of borrowings - (20.9)
Tax effect - -
As at1January 2019 {5.6) {73.0)
Effective portion of changes in fair value arising from:

Derivative cash flow hedging nstruments (2.8) -
Armount reclassified to profit or loss - 0.4
Foreign currency revaluation of the net foreign operations - (23.9)
Faoreign currency revaluaticn of borrowings - 275
Tax effect - -
As at 31 December 2019 {8.4) {69.0)
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23. Financial risk management

Risk management objectives
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

= Credit risk

» Ligquidity risk

= Market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. The Group's
risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriaie risk limits and controls and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Group’s activities.

The Group's Audit Committee ovesees how management monitors compliance with the Group's risk management policies and procedures
and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Group's Audit Committee is
assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Commnittee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obiigations,

and arises principally from the Group's recaivables from customers.

Trade and other receivables ]
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Group's
customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate, has iess influence on credit risk. No single
customer accounts for a significant proportion of the Group’s revenue.

Each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Group's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are
offered. The Group's review includes external ratings, where availabie, and in some cases bank references. Purchase limits are established for
each customer, which represents the maximurn open arnount without requiring approval from the Board of Directors. Customers that fail to
meet the Group's benchmark Creditworthiness may transact with the Group only on a prepayment basis.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach in establishing an allowance for expected credit losses {ECLs}. Therefore, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. A provision matrixis used
to calculate lifetime ECLs which takes into account the Group's historical credit loss experience adjusted for historical conditions that are not
relevant to future cashflows and forward looking factors specific to the debtor and economic environment.

Investments

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk through a treasury policy that imposes graduated fimits on the amount of funds that can
be deposited with counterparties by reference to the counterparties’ credit ratings, as defined by Standard & Poor's or Moody's.
Management does not expect any counterparty to fail to rmeet its obligations,

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date was:

Carrying amount

2018 2018

tm $m

Trade receivables 96.6 112.4
Cash and cash equivalents 103.9 96.1
200.5 2085

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by geographic region was:

Carrying amount

2019 018

$m $m

North America ) 2.6 350
Europe 30.5 366
Rest of the World 33.5 40.8
96.6 1124
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2019

23. Financial risk management continued

Expected creditlosses
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix;
Expected Expected
Gross Expected creditloss Gross Expected credit loss
2019 creditioss 2019 2018 creditioss 2018
$m rate $m $m rate $m
Not past due 87.0 1.3% [§R }] 9R8.4 1.6% 1.8
Past due 0-30 days 8.5 3.5% (0.3) 124 0.8% 1)
Past due 31-120 days 21 4.8% (0.1) 27 3.7% (0.1}
Past due > 121 days 1.4 64.3% {0.9) Q9 22.2% {0.2}
Total 99.0 (2.4) 114 4 (2.0}
The movement in the glfowance for expected credit losses during the year was as follows:
: 2018 2018
$m &m
Balance at 1 January 2.0 09
Charge to income statement ~ administrative expenses 0.4 01
Increase in provigion on acquisition of Mondo - 10
Balance at 31 December 2.4 2.0

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group's approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its fiabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation. The Group's funding policy 1s to have committed
borrowings in place to cover at least 125% of the maximum forecast net borrowings for the next 12 month period. At the year end the Group
had $267.0m (201 8: $206.5m) of undrawn committed facilities, of which $245.3m {2018: $180.0m) expires after more than 1 yvear.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The maturity analyses for financial liabilities showing the anticipated remaining contractual undiscounted cash flows, including future interest
payments, at current year exchange rates and assuming fioating interest rates remain at the latest fixing rates are:

31 December 2019

Within 1 year 1102 years 2toSyears AfterSyears Total

$m $m $m $m $m

Bank overdrafts 2.2 - - - 2.2
Secured bank loan - - 393.1 162.8 555.9
Trade and other payables 134.5 - - - 134.5
Lease liabilities 7.4 6.0 14.8 - 314 59.6
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 1443 6.0 407.9 194.2 752.2
Interest rate swaps” 0.6 - - - 0.6
Commodity swap contracts 0.1 - - - 0.1
Cross curfency swaps 1.4 - - - 1.4
Total derivative financial liabilities 2.1 - - - 21

*  Assumes no change in interest rates frarn those prevailing at the balance sheet date.

31 December 2018

Within 1 year 110 2years 2o Syears After 5 years Total

m $m $m $m $m

Barnk averdrafls 28 - - - 2.8
Unsecured bank loan - - - - -
Secured bank loan - - 5614 - 5914
Trade and other payables 140.6 - - - 140.6
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 143.4 ~ 5914 - 734.8

Total derivative financial liabilities” - - - _ -

* Assumes no change ininterest rates from those prevailing at the balance sheet date.
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, will affect the Group's income or the
value of its holdings of financial instrurments. The objective of market risk management is t1© manage and control market fisk exposures within
acceptable parameters, whilst optimising the retum on risk.

The Group uses derivatives in the ordinary course of business, and also incurs financial liabilities, in order to manage market risks. Al such
transactions are carried out within the guidelines set by the Board.

Market risk - currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a foreign currency other than the respective

functional currencies of Group entities, primarity the US dollar and the euro. The Group hedges up to 100% of current and forecast trade
_receivables and trade payables denominated in a foreign currency. The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its currency risk, with

& maturity of less than one year from the reporting date.

Interest on borrowings is dencminated in currencies that match the cash flows generated by the underlying cperations of the Group, primarity
US dollar, but also euro and pounds sterling. This provides an economic hedge in instances where hedging derivatives are not entered inta.

In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Group ensures that its net exposure is keptto an
acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary to address short term imbalances.

The Group's net investment in overseas subsidiaries creates exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations. The risk is hedged by US doliar
and eurc denominated drawdowns under the syndicated facility designated as the hedged item in net investment hedge relationships.
This mitigates the currency risk arising from the retrangslation of a subsidiary's net assets into pounds stering, the functional currency of the
ultimate parent Elementis plc.

Market risk - interest rate .
The Group's policy is to borrow at both fixed and floating interest rates and to use interest rate swaps to generate the required interest profile,
These interest swaps are designated within cashflow hedging relationships with the interest payments on the borrowings they are hedging.
The risk being hedged is the exposure of the Group to market rate volatility on a portion of the core Group debt. The Group policy does not
require that a specific proportion of the Group’s borrowings are at fixed rates of interest.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
A change of 100 basis points {19} in interest rates would have increased/(decreased) profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis
assumes that all other variables. in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

2019 20m8

10Cbps 10Chps 100bps 1006ps

ncreass decrease ncrease decrease

$n $m $m tm

Variable rate instruments {3.8) 1.9 (3.5) 28
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2019

23. Financial risk management continued

Market risk - commodity price risk

The group is exposed o movements in the prices of commodities it purchases such as aluminium. The volatility in the price of aluminium
has led to the decision to enter into commodity swap contracts. The swap contracts do not resuit in physical delivery of aluminium, but are
designated as cash fliow hedges to offset the effect of price changes in aluminium.

Commaodity price sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity i 2 10% increase m alurminiurn prices, which is management's assessment of the reasonably
possible change, on average, over any given year. As all of the Group's aluminium purchases are hedged and all aluminium swap cernvatives
achieve hedge accounting, there is no impact on profit or loss.

The table does not show the sensitivity to the Group’s total commodity exposure or the impact of changes in volumes that may arise from
Increase or decreasg in the respective commodity prices. The sensitivity analysis determines the potential effect on profit or I6ss and equity
arising from the Group's aluminium swap contract positions as a result of the reasonably possible increases or decreases of the respective
aluminium price.

2019 2018

Effect Impact Effect Impact

on profit ontotal on profit ontotal

beforetax equlty beliore tax eguily

8m §m $m $m

10% increase in aluminium prices - - - -

Other market price risk

Equity price risk arises from equity securities held within the Group's defined benefit pension abligations. In respect of the US schemes,
management monitors the mix of debt and equity securities in its investment portfalio based on market expectations. The primary goal of the
Group's investment strategy is 1o maximise investment returns, without excessive risk taking, in order to meet partially the Group’s unfunded
benefit obligations; management is assisted by external advisers in this regard. in respect of the UK scheme, the investrment strategy is set by
the trustees and the Board is kept informed.

Capital management

The Board's pokcy is 1o maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence, sustain future development
of the business and maximtse shareholder value. The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to equity holders of the parent comprising capital, reserves and retained earnings. Financing for the recent acquisition of Mondo
was part funded through a Rights Issue and part through drawdowns on the Group's syndicated borrowing facility.

The Group utiises a mix of debt funding sourges including term loans and revolving credit facilities (RCF) from the Group's syndicated
borrowing facitity with differing maturities to ensure continuity and provide flexibility. The group is subject to two financial covenants which
apply to the Group's syndicated horrowing facility, as such the group is reguired to maintain a ratio of net debt to EBITDA of less than 3.25x
and minimurm net interest cover of 3.0x {in relation to earnings before net interest expense and tax). The Net debt to EBITDA ratic stood at 2.7x
times at 31 December 2019 {2018: 2.5x) and the Directars anticipate the strong cash generation of the Enlarged Group to drive a matenial
deleveraging profile going forwards, with leverage reducing to a net debt to EBITDA ratio of around 1.5x in the medium term. Netinterest cover
at 31 December 2019 was 5.5x (20718 10.0x).

The Board monitors the return on operating capital employed (ROCE) both including and excluding goodwill, as defined on page 22. The Group's
target is to achieve a ROCE linciuding goodwill) in excess of our weighted average cost of capital,

The dividend policy is set out in the Chairman’s statement on pages 6 and 7.

142 Elementis plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019



24. Leases

Transition to IFRS 16 Leases

At transition, for leases classified as operating leases under 1AS 17, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted at the Group's incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019. Right-of-use assets are measured at either.

* their carrying amount as if IFRS 16 had been applied since the commencement date, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate - the Group applied this approach to its fargest property leases; or

* an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments —the Group applied this approach to
all other leases.

The Group used the following practical expedients when applying (FRS 16 to feases previously classified as operating feases under IAS 17:

* Used a single discount rate t¢ a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics

* Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately before the date of initial application

= Applied the exermptions toc short-term leases {lease contracts with less than one year to maturity on adoption) and leases of low-value assets
+ Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application

* Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contained options to extend or terminate the lease

When measuring lease liabilities for leases that were classified as operating leases, the Group discounted lease payments using its incremental
borrowing rate as 1 January 2019. The weighted average rate applied is 4%.

Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 can be reconciled to the operating lease commitments as of 31 December 2018, as follows:

2019

$m

Operating lease commitments disciosed as at 37 December 2018 48,3

Discounted using the ncremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019 418
Less: short-termn leases recognised on a straight-line basis as expense {0.2}
Less: low-value leases recognised on a straight-line basis as expense 0.2)

Add: adjustments as a result of a different treatment of extension and termination options 11.9

Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2019 653.3

The following tables show the impact of these changes on each line item affected.
Opeisting  Daprachation intarast

Pre IFRS 16 lease onrightofuse onlease As raported

2018 axpanse 25806 labllities 208

Condensed consolidated income staterment $m $m $m $m $m

Revenue B873.6 - - - 873.6
Cost of sales (552.2} ~ - - {552.2)

Gross profit ) 321.4 - - - 321.4
Net operating cosis {221.6) 7.8 {6.7) - {220.5}

Qperating profit 99.8 7.8 16.7) - 100.9
Loss on disposal {9.0) - - - (8.0}
Net finance costs and other expenses {29.1) - : - (1.8} {30.9)
Profit before income tax 617 7.8 {6.7) {1.8} 61.0
Tax (14.6) - - - {14.6)

Profit for the period 471 7.8 {6.7) {1.8) 48.4
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 Decermnber 2019

24. Leases continued

Movement as
aresultof
additions and Depreclation,
Adjustment to disposals imerestand
brought from? cashfiowsfor Forelgn
forward Januasry 2019 the12months  exchangefor
Pre lFRS 16 balances as at to to the 12 months As reported
31 December YJanuary JItDecember 31D b toD# b Np ber
2019 2019 2019 2013 2018 2013
Condensed consplidated balance sheet $m $m $m $m $m $m
Non-current assets
Goodwil and other intangible assets 958.1 - - - - 958
Property, plant and equipment 472.4 48.2 Q41 (6.7} {0.4) 513.6
ACT recgverable 4.8 - - - - 4.8
Deferred tax assets 28.2 - - - - 28.2
Net retirement benefit surplus 7.4 7.4
Total non-current assets 1,470.9 48.2 0.1 {6.7) {0.4) 1.512.%
Total current assets 393.1 - - - - 393.1
Jotal assets 1,864.0 48.2 0.1 (6.7} {0.4) 1,905.2
Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts and koans {2.2) - - - - (2.2)
Trace and other payables (134.5) - - - - {134.5)
Financiat liakilities {2.9 - - - - 2.1
Current tax liabilities (23,2} - - - - (23.2)
Lease liabilties - (7.4) (R} 0.4 - (1)
Provisions (6.4) - - - - {6.4)
Total current liabilities (168.4} {7.4) (0.1} 0.4 ~ {175.5)
Non-current liabilities
1.0ans and borrowings {550.8) - - - - {550.8)
Employee retirement benefits {24.5) - - - - (24.5)
Deferred tax liabitities {151.3) 1.1 - - - {(150.2}
Lease liabiities - {45.9) - 5.6 0.5 (39.8)
Provisions {45.2) - - - - (45.2)
Financial liabilities (13.0) - - - - {13.0}
Total non-current liabilities {784.8) {44.8) - 5.6 0.5 {823.5)
Total liabilities {953.2) (52.2) (0.1} 5.0 0.5 {999.0)
Met assets 910.8 {4.0) - (0.7) 0.1 806.2
Equity
Share capital 521 - - - - 52.1
Share premium 23717 - - - - 237.7
Other reserves 91.0 - - - 0.1 911
Retained earnings 530.0 (4.0) - 07N - 5253
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 910.8 {4.0) - {0.7) 0.1 906.2
Total equity and reserves 910.8 {4.0) = (0.7) 0.1 906.2
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PreiFRS t6 Effectof Asreported
2019 IFRS 16 2098

Condensed consolidated statement of cash flows $m $m $m
Operating activities:
Profit for the period 38.6 18 46.4
Adjustments 98.6 - 98.6
Operating cash flows before movements inworking capitat 137.2 7.8 145.0
Decrease in inventories 18.6 - 18.6
Decrease in trade and other receivables 15.5 - 15.5
Decrease in rade and other payables {8.5) - [B.5)
Cash generated by operations 162.8 7.8 170.6
Income taxes paid {2.2} - (2.2
interest paid (23.2) (1.8} (25.0)
Net cash flow from operating activities 137.4 6.0 143.4
Investing activities:
Net cash flow from investing activities {49.0) - (49.0)
Financing activities:
Issue of shares 0.1 - 0.4
Dividends paid {49.3) - {49.3}
Net movement on existing debt {30.4) - (30.4)
Payment of lease liabilities - (6.0} {6.0}
Net cash used in financing activities {79.6) {6.0) (85,6}
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 8.8 - 8.8
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 98.1 - 96.1
Foreign exchange on cash and cash equivalents {1.0} - (1.0}
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 103.9 - 103.9

Group as Lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of property, plant. machinery, vehicles and other equipment used in its operations.

The Group also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months s less and leases of low-value assets to which the Group applies the 'short-

term lease’ and lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions.
The foliowing are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

2018 2018

$m $m

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 8.7 -
Interest expense on lease liabilities 1.8 -
Expense related to short-term leases and low-value assets 0.3 -
Expense relating to variable lease payments not included in lease liabilities 1.2 -
- 8.1

Minirnum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense in the year
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Financial statements

Notes to the consclidated financial statements continued
Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

24, Leases continued

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:

2019 2018

$m $m

As at 1 January 2018 53.3 -

Additions ’ 0.6 -

Disposals {0.5) -

Interest expense 1.8 -

Payments (1.8) -

Foreign exchange movernents {0.5) -

As at 31 December 2019 46.9 -
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is as follows.

2019 2018

$m $m

Within one year 71 -

in the second 1o fifth years inclusive 18.4 -

After five years 21.4 -

46.9 -

Lease liabiities were first recognised at the date of initial application of IFRS 16 of 1 January 2019. Prior to 1 January 2019 1AS 17 has been
applied to operating leases with expenses recognised in the Income Statement on a straight line basis aver the life of the lease.

Operating leases under 1AS 17
At 31 December 2018, the Group had undiscounted outstanding commitrments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fell due

as follows:

2018

Em

Within one year 10.6
in the second to fifth years inclusive 197
After five years 18.0
48.3
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25. Retirement benefit obligations

The Group has a number of contributory and non-contributory post retirement benefit plans providing retirement benefits for the majority of
employees and Executive Directors. At 31 December 2019 the main schemes in the UK and US were of the defined benefit type, the benefit
being based on number of years of service and either the employee’s final remuneration or the employee’s average remuneration during a
period of years before retirement. The assets of these schemes are held in separate trustee administered funds or are unfunded but provided
for on the Group balance sheet.

The UK defined benefit scheme had a surphus under 1AS 18 of $7.4m (2018: $22.1m). In accordance with the requirements of IFRIC 14
management have concluded that the right to reduce the minimum funding contributions when the deficit falls befow $10.4m in conjunction
with the unconditional right to a refund of any surplus under any winding up of the plan provides sufficient evidence that an asset ceiling does
not exist and as such the full surplus has been recognised.

In addition the Group operates an unfunded post retirement medical benefit {PRMB) scheme in the US. The entitlement to these benefits is
usually based on the employee remaining in service until retirerment age and completion of a minimum service period.

Other employee benefit schemes included in the table overleaf relate 1o two unfunded pension schemes, a long term service award scheme
in Germany and a special benefits programme for a small number of former employees of the Eaglescliffe plant. The Group also acquired two
further unfunded pension schemes and two long term service award schemes all in Germany as part of the SummitReheis acquisition in 2017,
These are included within this category.

The Group also operates a small number of defined contribution schemes and the contributions payable during the year are recognised as
incurred. The pension charge for the defined contribution pension schemes for continuing operations for the year is $4.1m {2018 $3.0m).

Net defined benefit liability
The net liability was as follows:

UK penslon US pansion USPRMB
h schem Other Total
$m S $m $m $m
2019
Total market value of assets 724.2 122.5 - - 8486.7
Present value of scheme liabilities (716.8) (132.4) {6.0) (8.6) (863.8)
Net asset/Aliability} recognised in the balance sheet 7.4 {9.9) {6.0) {8.6) {17.1}
UK pension Us pensicn US PRMB
scheme schemes scheme Other Total
$m $m $mn £m $m
2018
Total market value of assets 6713 108.3 - - 779.6
Present value of scheme liabilities (649.2) (124.0} 5.6} (10.7) {789.5)
Net asset/fliability] recogrised in the balance sheet 221 {15.7) {5.6} (10.7) {9.9)

Employer contributions in 2019 were $nil (2018: $0.5m} to the UK scheme and $2.1m {2018: $1.9m} to US schemes. Top up contributions to
the UK scheme in 2020 will be nil based on the 2017 triennial valuation. Under this agreement top up contributions are no longer required until
at least 2021. Expected contributions to the US schemes in the next year are $1.5m,
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2019

25. Retirement benefit obligations continued

Movement in net defined benefit liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening baiances 1o the closing bafances for the net defined benefit liability and
its components,

UK pension US pension US PRMB
schemeo schemes scheme Other Total
$m $m gm $m $m
2019
Balance at 1 January 221 {15.7} {5.6) {10.7) {9.9)
Included in profit or loss
Cutrent service cost (0.6} {0.6) (0.1} (0.3) (1.6}
Running costs tn {0.9) - - (1.5)
Net interest income/{expense) 0.6 {0.6) (0.2) {0.3) (0.5)
Business disposal - - - 4.0 4.0
(1.1) {1.6) {0.3) 3.4 0.4
Included in other comprehensive income
Re-measurements: :
Return on plan assets excluding interest income 43.8 16.9 - - 60.7
Actuarial gains ansing frormn demographic assumptions - 1.0 - - .0
Actuanat losses arising from financial assumptions {56.2) {(12.2) (0.4} {2.2) {71.0)
Actuarial (losses)/gains arising from experience adjustment {1.5) 0.2 (0.4) - {1.7)
Exchange differences 0.3 - - 0.3 0.6
{13.6) 5.9 (0.8} {1.9) (10.4)
Contzrtbutions:
Employers - 1.5 0.7 0.6 2.8
Surplus / (deficit) in schemes at 31 December 7.4 (9.9} {6.0) (8.6) {(17.1}
UK pensicn Us pension US PRMB
scheme schemes scheme Other Torat
$m $m $m &m $m
2018
Balance at 1 January 219 {14.9) {6.2) (11.3) {(10.5)
included in profit or loss
Current service cost c8 o7 .0 oA .7
Past service cost (3.4 - - - (3.4}
Running costs (1.2 {0.4) = - (0.6
Net interest expense Q.5 {0.5) (0.2 0.2) (0.4)
{4.9) (1.6) (0.3} 0.3} {7.1
Included in other comprehensive income
Re-measurernents:
Return on plan assets excluding interest income {38.8) (8.9 - - {48.7)
Actuarial gains arising from demographic assumptions 220 0.3 - - 223
Actuariat gains ansing from financial assumptions 391 a1 0.3 - 475
Actuariat losses arising from experience adjustment (15.4) - - - (15.4)
Exchange differences {1.3) - - 05 (0.8}
4.6 [0.5) 0.3 0.5 49
Contributions:
Employers 0.5 1.3 0.6 0.4 28
Surplus / {deficit) in schemes at 31 Decembier 221 (15.7) {5.6) 10.7) (9.9}
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Plan assets
Plan assets comprise:

UK pension US pension uUs PRMB
b h Total
$m $m $m $m
2019
Equities 248.7 52.8 - 300.9
Bonds* 397.8 57.3 - 455.1
Cash/fliquidity funds 18.3 12.4 - 90.7
724.2 122.5 - 846.7
UK pension US pension US PRMB
schemsg schemes scheme Totat
$m $m $m $m
2018
Equities 2276 41.2 - 268.8
Bonds* 2674 54.4 - 421.8
Cash/liquidity funds 76.3 12.7 - 89.0
671.3 108.3 - 779.6

* Including LDI repurchase agreement habilities,

To reduce volatility risk a liability driven investment {LDJ} strategy forms part of the Trustees’ management of the UK defined benefit scheme's
assets, including government bonds, corporate bonds and derivatives. The bond assets category in the table above includes gross assets of
$774.9m {2018: $502.7m) and associated repurchase agreement fiabilities of $377.1m {2018: $135.3m). Repurchase agreements are entered

into with counterparties to better offset the scheme’s exposure to interest and inflation rates, whilst remaining invested in assets of a similar risk

profile. interest rate and inflation rate derivatives are also employed to complement the use of fixed and indiexed linked bonds in matching the

profile of the scheme's liabilities.

Al equities, bonds and liquidity funds have quoted prices in active markets. Other assets include insured annuities, an insurance fund and |

various swap preducts.

Within the UK pension scheme, the current asset allocation is approximately 3196 in 3 liability matching fund consisting of gilts (fixed interest
and index linked), bonds, cash and swaps, 20% in a buy and maintain fund and 499 in an investment fund that includes vatious equity and
equity like funds. The aim of the trustees is to manage the risk refative to the liabilities associated with the scheme’s investments through a
combination of diversification, inflation pretection and hedging of risk {currency, interest rate and infiation risk). The US scheme currently has
approximately 43% of its asset value invested in a range of equity funds designed to target higher retums and thus reduce the pension deficit,

with the balance invested in fixed income bonds and cash. The strategy is that as the deficit reduces, a greater proportion of investments will be

made into liability matching funds. Changes in the fair value of plan assets for the major schemes are as follows:
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 20719

25. Retirement benefit obligations continued

UK pension US pension UsS PAMB
s¢chema schemes scheme Total
$m Sm $m $m
2019
Opening fair value of plan assets 671.3 108.3 - 779.6
Expected return 18.3 4.2 - 22.5
Running costs {1.1) (0.4) - {1.5}
Actuarial gans 43.8 16.9 - 60.7
Contributions by employer - 1.5 - 1.5
Contributions by employees 0.1 - - 01
Benefits paid (36.0) {8.0) - {44.0)
Exchange differences 27.8 - - 27.8
Closing fair value of plan assets 724.2 122.5 - 846.7
UK pension US pension S PRMB
scheme schemes scheme Total
$m $m $m $m
2018
Opening fair value of plan assets 778.7 120.3 - 899.0
Expected return 18.0 40 .- 220
Running costs 1.2) (0.4} - (1.6
Actuarial gain (35.8) 8.9} - {48.7)
Contributions by employer 0.5 1.4 - 19
Contributions by employees oA - - 1
Benefits paid (427} [th) - 50.8)
Exchange differences (42.3) - - 42.3)
Closing fair value of plan assets 6713 108.3 - 7796
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Defined benefit abligation
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for the major schemes are as follows:
UK pension US pension US PRMD
h h h Total
$m $m $m $m
2019
Opening defined benefit obligation {649.2) {124.0) (5.6} {778.8}
Service cost {0.6) {0.6) {0.1) {1.3}
interest cost {17.7) (4.8} 0.2) (22.7}
Contributions by employees 0.1} - - (0.1}
Actuarial gainsflosses)
~ demographic assumprions - 1.0 - 1.0
~financial assumptions 156.2) {12.2) (0.4) (e8.8}
- experience adjustments (1.5} 0.2 (0.4} 1.7
Benefits paid 36.0 8.0 0.7 44.7
Exchange differences {27.5) - - {27.5)
Closing defined benefit obligation (716.8) {132.4) (6.0) {855.2}
UK pension USpension USPRMB
scheme schemes scheme Totat
$m $m $m
2078
Opening defined benefit obligation - (756.8) 135.2) (6.2) (898.2)
Service cost {0.8) o7 {0.) (1.6)
Past service cost (3.4) - - 34)
interest cost (17.5) (4.4) 0.2 22.1
Contributions by employees - - - -
Actuarial gains/llosses) arising from:
- dernographic assumptions 220 0.2 - 222
- financial assumptions 38 B.O 0.3 474
— experience adjustments (15.4) - - (15.4}
Benefits paid 427 81 06 51.4
Exchange differences 40.9 - - 40.9
Closing defined benefit obligation {649.2) {124.0} (5.6} (778.8)
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Financlal statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 December 2019

25. Retirement benefit obligations continued

Actuarial assumptions

A full actuarial veluation was carmied out on 30 September 2017 for the UK scheme and at 371 December 2015 for the US schemes.

The principal assumptions used by the actuaries for the maior schemes have been updated by the actuaries at the balance sheet date and

were as follows:

uK us
% %
2019
Rate of increase in salaries 4.0 3.00
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 2.9 N/A
Discount rate 2.0 3
Inflation 3.0 2,25
2018
Rate of increase in salaries 42 300/3.45
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 31 NiA
Discount rate 28 40
Inflation 3.2 225
The assumed life expectancies Onretireament are:
us

2019 2018 2019 2018

years years years YEars
Retirnng at 31 December
Males 22 2 20 21
Females 24 24 22 22
Retiring in 20 years
Males 24 24 21 21
Females 25 25 23 23

The main assumptions for the PRMB scheme are a discount rate of 3.05% {2018: 4.09%) per annum and a health care cost trend of 6 5%
{2018, 6.5%) per annum for claims pre age 65 reducing 1o 4.5% per annum by 2022 {201 8: 4.5%). Actuarial vaiuations of retirement benefit
plans inother jurisdictions have either not been updated for IAS 19 purposes or disclosed separately because of the costs involved and the
considerably smaller scheme sizes and numbers of employees involved.

At 31 December 2019, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligations for the major schemes was as follows:

UK. 13 years
US: 10years.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities are set out below:

Assumption

Change m assumption

impact on UK scheme

Impact onUS scheme

Discount rate

Rate of inflation

Rate of salary growth
Rate of moriality

Increasedidecreased by 0.5%
Increased/decreased by 0.5%
Increased/decreased by 0.5%
Increased by 1 year

Decreased/increased by 6%
ncreasedidecreased by 5%
Increasedidecreased by 0%
Increased by 5%

Decreased/increased by 5%
increased/decreased by 0%
Increased/decreased by 0%
Increased by 3%

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit obligation as
aresult of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. These sensitivities have been calculated
to show the movement of the defined obligation following a change in a particular assumption in isolation, assuming no other changes in

market conditions.

152 Elementis pic | Annual Report and Accounts 2018



26. Share based payments

The Group maintains a number of active share option and award plans and schemes for its empioyees. These are as follows:

Savings-related options

Options are granted under the tax-advantaged Save As You Earn (SAYE} share aption scherne in the UK. The SAYE aliows UK-based eligible
employees to acquire options over the Company's shares at a discount of up to 20% of their market value at the date of grant. Options are
normalty exercisable during the six month period following either the third or fifth anniversary of the start of the relevant savings contract.
Savings contracts are subject to the statutory savings limit of £500 per month,

US-based employees can enter into a similar share save scheme (Share Save). Employees can enter into two year savings contracts saving up
to a maxirnum of $2,000 per month, allowing eligible empiovees to acquire options over the Company’s shares at a discount of up to 15% of
their market value at the date of grant.

Long-term incentive plan (LTIP} awards )
The LTIP is a discretionary employee share scheme for Executive Directors and senior managers. The vesting of the awards are subject 1o
performance conditions over a three year period at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee. The performance conditions of the LTIP are
detailed in the Rernuneration Report on pages 79 to 95, As approved at the 2018 AGM, restricted shares {i.e. shares that vest based on time
anty} are awarded to participants below Board level. Shadow LTIPs are in place for senior managers based in China and Malaysia.

Deferred share bonus plan {(DSBP) awards
The DSBP operates exclusively for the Executive Directors. Under this scheme, 50% of any cash bonus payable is awarded in shares and
deferred for two years. There are no other performance conditions other than continued employment.

Legacy Schemes .
Prior to the introduction of the LTIP for senior managers, certain employees participated in the Executive Share Option Scherme {ESOS.

The ESOS which (except for outstanding awards which will run their course} has been discontinued. The Company operated shadow ESOS fora
number of senior managers, who were employed or based in China or Malaysia,

Options were valued (as shown in the table below) using the binomial option pricing model. The fair value per option granted and the
assumptions used in the calculations are as folfows:

2018 2018

- Fair value per option {pence) 115.6 155.4
Expected volatility (%) 31 26
Risk free rate (%) 0.5 07
Expected dividend yield (%) , 4.3 34

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Company's share price over the previous five years.

The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferabifity, exercise
restrictions and behavioural considerations. The Group recognised total expenses of $3.0m (2018: $2.8m) related to share based payment
transactions during the year.
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Financia! statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2019

26. Share based payments continued

At 31 December 2019 the following options/awards to subscnbe for ordinary shares were outstanding:

Exarcisable

At
A1 January 31 December
Exercise price 2019 Granteg Exercised Expired 2019
Year of grant i From To ROO ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 DOC

UK savings related share option scheme
2015 189.72 011018 01/0419 9 - - 9 -
2016 160.89 0110119 01/04/20 163 - 3N {22 110
2017 207.40 01/10/20 01/04/21 24 - - (12) 12
2018 163.91 01/01/22 01/07122 200 - - {134) 66
2019 121.33 0Y11/22 01/05/23 - 342 - - 342
2019 121.33 01/11/24 01/05/25 - 25 - - 25
396 367 (37) (177 555

US savings related share option scheme
2017 217.18 07/05/19 0712419 236 i - (229} 7
2018 160.14 05/12/20 05/03/21 585 - - (208) 377
2019 133.96 11/08/21 11712421 - 578 - - 578
821 578 - {437) 962

Executive share option schemes/awards granted under the LTIP*

2010 5216 06/04/13 06/04/20 186 - 92) - 94
2011+ 137.18 04/04/14 Qa/04f21 110 - - [14) 296
2012+ 177.81 2710615 27/06/22 216 - - {20) 196
2016+ 218.17 04/04/19 04/04/26 904 - - (904) -
2016* Nil 04/04119  04/04/26 999 - - {899) -
20164 Nil 04/04/18 19/09/26 263 - - (263} -
20174 Nil 07/0317 07/03/27 92 - - - 92
20074 Nl 07/03/1% 07/03/27 55 - {48) - 7
2017~ Nil 07/03/20 07/03/27 17 - - - 17
2017+ 264.66 03/04/20 03/04127 847 - - (59) 788
2007 Nil 03/04/20 03/04/27 1,474, - - 7N 1,403
0174 Nil Q1/08/19 01/08/27 &3 - - 63} -
20184 Nil 05/03/20 05/03/28 233 - - - 233
2018 Nil 30/04/21 30/04/27 2,141 - - {239} 1,902
2018 Nil 27/08/21 27/06121 7 - - - 7
2018* Nil 2910/21 29/10/21 38 - - (2) 36
2018° Nil 21/12/20 21412120 209 - - - 209
2018* Nil 2322 2112121 361 - - - 361
2019 il Q3/0121 30/01/21 - 124 - - 124
2018 Nil 03/01722 30/01/22 - 157 - - 157
2019l Nil 06/03/21 06/03/21 - 110 - - 1o
2018# Nil 06/03/21 06/03/29 - 49 - - 49
2019~ Nil 01/04/22 01/04/22 - 3.899 - (98) 3.801
20191 Nil 01/04722 0104122 - 5 - - 5
8,215 4,344 {140} (2,732) 9,687

1 Where necessary option prices were adjusted for by a factor of 1.092715 to refiect the dilutive effects of the 2018 Rights Issue.

+ These options include cash settied shadow executive options granted to a number of executives on the same basis as the executive options with the same
performance conditions and exercise provisions). These shadow options are included in the calculation of the total expenses recognised by the Group related to
share based payments. The closing balance of the 2011 and 2017 options shown above include approximately 5000 and 57.000 shadow options respectively.

4 Awards made as one-off agreements that borraw from the terms of the LTIP.

These cptions include cash settled shadow LTIPs granted to a number of executives on the same basis as the LTIP {with the same performance conditions

and exercise provisionsl. These shadow LTIPs are included in the calculation of the total expenses recognised by the Group related to share based payments.

The closing balance of 2018 and 2019 LTIPs shown above include approxirnately 45,000 and B4,000 shadow LTIPS respectivety.

Conditional share award under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan.

Awards made as one-off agreements under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan {nil cost options).

2018 and 2019 LTIPs shown above include approximately 44,960 and 83,951 shadow LTIRs respactively,

Conditional share award under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan {nil cost award, structured as restricted share units),

—

(=R
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The weighted average remaining contractual fife of the above shares cutstanding at 31 December 2019 was 7.9 years (2018. 7.1 years}.
The weighted average exercise prices of aptions disclosed in the previous table were as follows:

2018 2018

Averags Avarage

axercise exercise

price (p) price (p}

At 1 January 79.8 1132
Granted 23.0 417
Exercised 57.4 118.8
Expired 100.5 1474
At 31 December 44.4 79.8
Exercisable at 31 December 116.8 nil

The weighted average share price st the date of exercise of share options exercised during the year was 126 pence (2018: 153 pence).
The number of exercisable options outstanding as at 31 December 2019 was 540,821 (31 December 2018: nil).

27. Related party transactions

The Company is a guarantor to the UK pension scheme under which it guarantees all current and future obligations of UK subsidiaries
currently participating in the pension scheme to make payments to the scheme, up to a specified maximum amount. The maximum amount
of the guarantee is that which is needed {at the time the guarantee is calied on) to bring the scheme’s funding level up to 105% of its liabilities,
calculated in accordance with section 179 of the Pensions Act 2004. This is also sometimes known as a Pension Protection Fund (PPF)
quarantee, as having such a guarantee in place reduces the annual PPF levy on the scheme,

The Group consists of the Parent Company, Elementis plc, incorporated in the United Kingdom and its subsidiaries and associates. .
In accordance with Section 409 of the Companies Act 2008 a full list of related undertakings, the country of incorporation and the effective
percentage of equity owned as at 31 December 2019 is disciosed in Note 11 to the parent company financial statements.

The remuneration of key management personnel of the Group, which is defined as the Board and the business president, Chromium., is
shown below:

2018 2018

m $m

Salaries and short term employee benefits 2.4 23
Other long term benefits 0.3 [oX-]
Share based payments 0.6 16
3.3 4.3

Full details of ali elements of the remuneration of Directors is set cut in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 79 10 95.
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 December 2018

28. Movement in net cash/(borrowings)

2019 2078
$m sm
Change in net cash resulting from cash flows:
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 8.8 453
Decrease fincrease} in borrowings sepayable within one year 0.6 0.2)
Decrease/(increase) in borrowings repayable after one year 29.7 (257.8)
fi-R | {2121}
Currency translation differences 4.8 51
Decrease/{increase) in net borrowings 43.9 {207.0}
Net borrowings at beginning of year {498.1) {291.1)
Net borrowings at end of year {454.2} (438.1)

Bank and Total Cashand Netdebtand
ather Lease financing cash lease
borrowings flabllitles llabtltles equivalents Babilittes
m $m §m $m $m
At 1 January 2018 (346.1) - {346.1) 55.0 {(291.1)
Exchange rate adjustments 9.9 - 89 14.8) 51
Business acquired (see note 32) - - - (484.7) (484.7)
Business disposed [see note 33} - - - 58.0 58.0
Issue of shares net of 1Issue costs* - - - 2222 2222
Cash fiows from financing activities (258.0} - {2588.0) 258.0 -
Other movements - - - {7.6) (7.8)
At 31 December 2018 {594.2) - (594.2) 96.1 {498.1)
Adoption of IFRS 16 - {53.3 {53.3) - (53.3)
Revised 1 Januvary 2019 {594.2) {53.3) (647.5) 96.1 {551.4}
Exchange rate adjustments 58 0.5 6.3 (1.0} 5.3
Business disposed - 05 a5 (2.1) (1.6)
Cash flows from financing activities 304 6.0 36.4 {30.4} 6.0
Other movements 0.1 (0.6} 07 413 4086
At 31 December 2019 {558.1} {46.9) {605.,0) 103.9 {501.1)

* Cashfiows relating 1o the rights issue were $222.2m ($232 7m less issuance costs of $10.5mj

29. Dividends

An interim dividend of 2.80 cents per share (2018 2 95 cents) was paid on 27 September 2019 and the Group is proposing a final dividend
of 5.75 cents per share (2018: 5.7C cents) for the year ended 31 December 2019. The total dividend for the year is 8.55 cents per share

(2018:8.65 cents).

The amount payable for the final dividend, based on the anticipated number of qualifying ordinary shares registered on the record date.

is $33.3m.

The payment of this dividend will not have any tax consequences for the Group.

Following the Rights Issue in October 2018, dividends per share for periods prior to this have been rebased Lo reflect the bonus element

resulting frorm this Rights Issue.

2019 2018
Interfm Final Full-year tnterim Final Fuli-year
Unadjusted dividend per share {cents) 2.80 5.75 8.55 2.95 570 865
Adjustment factor {x) 1.00 1.00 052 1.00
Rebased dividend per share (cents) 2.80 5.75 8.55 270 570 B8.40
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30. Contingent liabilities

As is the case with other chemical companies, the Group cccasionally receives notices of litigation relating to regulatory and fegal matters.

A provision is recognised when the Group believes it has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that an outfiow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Where itis deemed that an obligation is merely possible and that
the probability of a material outflow is not remote, the Group would disclose a contingent liability.

In 2013 the UK Government (through HMRC) introduced the UK Finance Company Exemption [FCE) regime. Elementis entered into the FCE
regime during 2014.in October 2017 the Eyropean Commission opened a State Aid investigation into the regime. In Apiil 2019 the European
Commission concluded that the FCE regime constituted State Aid in circumstances where Groups had accessed the regime using a financing
company with UK significant people functions; the European Commission therefore instructed the UK Government to collect any relevant State
Aid amounts. The UK Government indicated that it disagreed with the European Commiission's conclusion and appealed the decision in July
2019. In autumn 2018 HMRC made an initial information request to the Groups affected, which incluged Elementis. We understand that HMRC
will now seek to assess Groups for State Aid based upon their UK significant people function analyses. Foliowing consuftation with external
professional advisers Elementis believes that there is a technical position for asserting that our relevant financing company should not be
deemed to have UK significant people functions. The range of possible cutcomes is between $nil and $19.4m, however based on the work
undertaken to date management believe that the potential for a material outfiow is low. On this basis no provision has been made within these
financial statements in respect of this case.

31. Events after the balance sheet date

There were no other significant events after the balance sheet date.

32. Acquisition

On 23 Ottober 2018 the Group acquited all the shares of Mondo Minerals Holding BV. (Mondol, for an initial purchase consideration of $500m.
Mondo is a leading mine-to-market producer of talc and other mineral producits with a strong presence in Northern and Central Europe and a
growing customer base in Eastern Europe, Southern Europe, South Ametica and Asia, The Mondo Group supplies talc to customers operating
in a wide range of end markets, including industrial sectors (eq. plastics, paints & coatings, technical ceramics, life sciences) and paper sectors
(e.g. paper filer, paper coatings). Mondo uses praprietary fiotation process know how and formulation expertise to deliver superior product
quality and consistency to its customers.

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group's assets and liabilities:

Feir value of

Book vakse at Fair vatue asseLs

acquisition  adjustments acquirgd

HNote $m $m $m

Intangible assets 10 19.6 68,7 B88.3
Property, plant and equiprment " 226.2 241 2503
Inventories 24.3 19 26.2
Trade and other receivables 219 1.1 208
Tax indemnification asset - 66 6.6
Trade and other payables {18.1) .o (19.1)
Other accruals {26.1) - {26.1)
Cash and cash equivalents 39.9 - 399
Provisions ' 15 27 nn (3.8}
Corporation tax : {0.4) 0.2 0.2}
Deferred tax 16 {12.2) {24.3) {36.5}
Total identifiable net assets acquired 2724 74.0 346.4
Goodwill 200.5
Total consideration - 5469

of which: )

Contingent consideration 223
Consideration paid, satisfied in cash 5246
Cash acquired {39.9)
Net cash outfiow 4847
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 Decernber 2018

32. Acquisition continued

The fair value adjustment to inventores of $1.9m is the net of an uplift due ta fair value of $2.9m less anincrease in provision for obsolescence
of$1.0m

The valuation techniques used for measuring the fair value of material assets acquired were as follows.

Assels acquired Valuation technique
Property, plant and equipment A cost approach method, benchrmarked to rmarket where available, was the method
used to value machinery & equipment and buildings.

Land that had previousty been valued during a purchase price allocation exercise
conductad in 2012 was included at NBY due to management’s opinion that values had
not varied significantly in the intervening penod.

intantbie assets Intangible assets have been categorised into two groups: customer relationships and
technology. Customer relationships have been valued using a Multi-period Excess
Earnings Method, in which the value is equal to the present velue of incremenrial after-
tax cash flows attributable to the asset after deducting contributcry asset charges.
Technology has been valued using a Relief from Royalty methodology.

nventories The market approach has been used to determine fair value based on the net realisable
vatue of the inventory less costs to selt and a reasonabte profit margin.

The consideration for the acquisitions has been aliocated against identified net assets with the remaining balance recorded as goodwill.
The gocdwill recognised on acquisition reflects both the capabilities of the acquired entities’ personnel and the synergistic opportunities going
forward, neither of which can be allocated to an identifiable intangible asset.

Contingent consideration of $22.3m recognised on acquisition for the Mondo transaction was made up of:

2. $9.4mrelating to potential payouts that may be made under an eam-out mechanism dependant on EBITDA performance for the years 2018
-2020 exceeding certain threshoids. The potential undiscounted amount payable under the agreement is between $0.0m and $53.0m.
The fair value of the contingent consideration arrangement of $9.4m was estimated by calculating the present value of the future expected
cash flows based on a weighted probability analysis of a range of payments 1o give an estimate of the final cbligation.

b. afurther $12.8m that may be payable subject to the successful conclusion of an historic, pre-acquisition interest deduction dispute with the
Finnish Tax authorities,

There were a number of ane-off costs associated with the acquisition of Mondo Minerals - primarily the write off of the set-up costs of the

previous financing syndicate, now replaced by a new facility, bank and lawyers fees, retention bonuses for Mondo employees, that have

not been capitalised in accordance with IFRS 3. However, these have been reflected as adjusting items within Note 5 and recognised in

administrative expenses and operating cash.

Acquisitions made during 2018 contributed $21.5m to the Group's revenue and $3.9m to the operating profit.

The estimated contribution of Mondo Minerals to the resuits of the Group, had the acquisition been made on 1 January 2018. and assuming
that the fair value adiustments that arose on acquisition would have been the same at the earlier date, are as follows:

2018

$m

Revenue 158.4
Qperating profit 24.6
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33. Business exits
On 10 December the Group disposed of SRL Dental GmbH which comprised the Dental plant at Ludwigshafen, Germany for consideration
of $0.2m.

The results of SRL Dental GmbH, which have been included in the consolidated income statement were as follows:

Year ended

31 December

2019

m

Revenue 17.9
Expenses {17.9)
Profit before tax -
Attributable tax expense {0.1)
Net profit attributable to discontinued operations (attributable to owners of the Company)} {0.1)

Revenue includes $nil refated 1o inter-segment sales in 2019 (201 8: $nil).

During the year, SRL Dental GmbH contributed $1.8m (2018: $(1.9)m} to the Group's net operating cash flows and paid $nil (2018: $0.4m) in
respect of investing activities.

The Group recognised a total loss on current year disposal of:

Yoaar ended
31 December
2018
$m
Consideration received 0.2
Net assets disposed of (see table below) (1.8)
Disposal costs {1.0}
Recycling of deferred foreign exchange gains {0.4)
Loss on disposal 9.0}
Details of assets and fiabilities at the date of disposal are provided in the following table:
2019
m
Goodwill
Intangible assets 8.7
Property, plant and equipment 1.9
" Inventories 1.6
Trade and other receivables 2.3
Cash and bank balances 1.3
Total assets 15.8
Trade and other payables .1
Pensions 4.0)
Tax liabilities {2.9)
Total iabilities 18.0)
Net agsets 1.8
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2019

33. Business exits continued

2018 Business exits -~ discontinued operations
On 28 February 2018 the Group disposed of Elementis Speciaities Netherlands BV, which carried out all of the Group's Surfactants operations,
The disposat generated cash flow for the expansion of the Group’s other businesses.

The resuits of the discontinued operations,. which have been included in the consohdated income statement on the line ‘Loss from
discontinued operations’, were as foflows:

Year ended

31 December

2018

$m

Revenue 4.8
Expenses {15.2)
Profit before tax {10.4)
Attributable tax expense 20
Net profit attributable to discontinued operations (attributable to owners of the Company) 8.4}

Revenue includes $nil related to inter-segment sales in 2018.

During 2018, Elementis Specialties Netheriands BV contributed $1.1m to the Group's net operating cash flows and paid $0.6m in respect of
investing activities.

The Group recognised a total toss on disposal of:

Year ended

371 December

2018

$m

Consideration recewved 47.9
Net assets disposed of [see table below) 42,0
Disposal costs 12.2)
Recycling of deferreg foreign exchange gains (4.2)
Loss on disposal {0.5)

Net assets disposed of are analysed as follows:

2018

$m

Goodwill 3.2
Intangible assets 24
Property, plant and equipment 38.0
inventories 8.6
Trade and other receivables . 111
Cash and bank balances 2.8
Tota!l assets 66.1
Trade and other payables {20.3
Pensions {0.4)
Tax iiabilities (3.4}
Bank overdrafts and loans -
Total liabilities (249}
Net assets 42.0
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34. Balance sheet restatement

In accordance with IAS 1 we have shown below a balance sheet as at the beginning of the comparative period to show the UK pension surplus of
$21.9m within non current assets and o offset unamortised syndicate fees of $5 3m against the borrowings to which they relate within non current fiabifities.

Restated Restuted
1078 208 2017 2017
310December 3D b 31D k 31 December
$m  Restatement $m $m  Reststement $m
Non-current assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets 976.6 - 976.6 717.2 - 7172
Property. plant and equipment 478.2 - 478.2 219.5 - 2195
ACT recoverable 98 . - 9.8 16.2 - 16.2
Deferred tax assets 244 - 24.4 0.2 - Cc.2
Net retirement benefit surplus - 223 221 - 219 218
Total non-current assets 1,489.0 221 15111 9531 219 975.0
Current assets
Inventories 1887 - 1887 1436 - 143.6
Trade and other receivables 1394 (5.6) 1338 124.6 {5.3) 1193
Derivatives ~ 20 - 20 0.9 - 08
Current tax assets 30 - 30 43 - 43
Cash and cash equivalents 96.1 - 96.1 55.0 - 55.0
Total current assets 429.2 {5.6) 423.6 3284 5.3 3232
Assets classified as heid for sale - - = 58.2 - 58.2
Total assets 1.918.2 16.5 19347 1,339.7 16.6 1.356.3
Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts and loans 2.8) - (2.8) 27) - 2.7)
Trade and other payables {140.6) - {t40.6) {1172.7) - {1177}
Financial liabilities 0. - 0.1} - - -
Current tax liabilities (17.%} - AFAll {14.9) - {14.9)
Provisions (7.3} - (7.3} {10.8) - (10.8}
Total current liabilities (167.9) - (167.9) {145.3) - (145.3)
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings {591.4) 56 {(585.8) (343.4) 5.3 (338.7)
Retirement benefit obligations {9.9) {227) (32.00 {10.5} (21.9) {32.4}
Deferred tax liabilities {1517} - (1517} {93.4) - (93.4)
Provisions {41.5) - (41.5) {21.9) - {21.9)
Financial liabilities {40.2) - {40.2) - - -
Total non-current liabilities 8347} {16.5} (851.2) (469.2} {16.6) 485.8)
Liabilities classified as held for sale - - (22.9) - (22.9)
Yotal liabllities {1,002 6} (16.5} (1.019.1 {637.4) (16.6) {654.0)
Net assets 915.6 - 915.6 7023 - 7023
Equity
Share capital 521 - 521 444 - 444
Share prermiurm 2376 - 2376 219 - 219
Other reserves 85.5 - 855 99.0 - 99.0
Retained earnings 540.4 - 540.4 5370 - 537.0
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 915.6 - 9156 702.3 - 702.3
Total equity 315.6 - 915.6 702.3 - 702.3

* Cash flows relating to the rights issue were $222.2m {$232 7m less issuance costs of $10.5m).

The 31 Decermnber 2018 balance sheet has been restated to show the UK pension surplus of $22.17m within non-current assets and to offset
unamortised syndicate fees of $5.6m against the borrowings 1o which they relate within non-current liabifities, Erroneously the pension

surplus of $22.1m had been offset against pension liabiiities of $32.0m. In addition, the unamortised syndicate fees of $5.6m were previously
incorrectly presented within trade and other receivables, None of the restatements have had any impact on diluted or basic EPS.
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Financial statements

Balance sheet

at 31 Cecember 2018

Restaled'
2019 2018
Note £m £m
Fixed assets
rvestrments 5 773.9 771.8
Non-current assets
Debtors 7 12.7 127
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Creditors 8 {0.6) {0.6)
Net current assets 121 121
Total assets less current liabilities 786.0 7839
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings {188.2) (146.4)
Net assets 597.8 £637.5
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 9 28.9 289
Share premium account 176.5 176.4
Capital redemnption reserve 9 83.3 833
Other reserves 250.5 250.5
Share option reserve 9 17.7 15.6
Profit and loss account 40.9 82.8
Equity shareholders’ funds 597.8 6375

1 Restated to move amounts relating to share based payments to share based paymenis reserve, see note 12 for the restatement of the 31 Decernber 2017

company balance sheet.

The Company recognised a loss for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 of £3.1m (2018 £1.3m).

The financial statements of Elementis plc, registered number 3298608, on pages 162 to 170 were approved by the Board on 4 March 2020 and

signed on its behalf by:

Paul Waterman Ralph Hewins CEQ
CFO
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Financial statements

Statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2018

Restated’
Capital Share Restated®
Share Share redsmptlon Other options Retaineg
capital premium reserve reserves reserve eamings Total
£m Em £m Em £m £m £m

Balance at 1 January 2018 231 128 833 250.5 29 75.5 4481
Restatement - - - - 10.6 (10.6} -
Restated balance at 1 January 2018 231 128 83.3 250.5 13.5 64.9 4481
Comprehensive incorme
Profit for the year - - - - - (1.3} {1.3)
Total other comprehensive income - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - - - - {1.3) {1.3)
Transactions with owners
Isgue of shares by the Company 58 163.6 - - - - 169.4
Share based payments - - - - 21 - 21
Dividends received - - - - - 50.0 500
Dividends paid - - - - - {30.8) (30.8)
Total transactions with owners 58 163.6 - - 21 19.2 190.7
Balance at 31 December 2018 289 176.4 83.3 250.5 15.6 828 6375
Balance at 1 January 2019 28.9 176.4 83.3 250.5 156 828 6375
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - - - 3.1) 3.1
Total other comprehensive income - - - - -~ - -~
Total comprehensive income - - - - - {3.1) (31
Transactions with owners
{ssue of shares by the Company - Q1 - - - - [¢h]
Share based payments - - - - 21 - 21
Dwidends received - - - - - - -
Dividends paid - - - - - (38.8) (38.8)
Total transactions with owners - 0.1 - - 21 (38.8) (36.6)
Batlance at 31 December 2019 28.9 176.5 83.3 250.5 177 40.9 597.8

1 Restated to move amounts refating to share based payments to the share based payments reserve, see note 12 for the restatement of the 31 December 2017

¢ompany balance sheet.

The Company's distributable reserves amount t¢ £40.9m (2018: EB2.8m) at the end of the period. The Company regularly reviews its

distributable reserves and makes dividend recapitalisations as and when necessary to ensure it can make all expected dividend payments.
The Company has sufficient subsidiary reserves to enable such recapitalisations in 2020 and going forward,

For more information on the dividend issued and the dividend per share please see Note 28 of the Group financial statements.
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Financial statements

Notes to the company financial statements of Elementis plc

for the year ended 31 December 2019

1. General information

Elernentis pic is 8 public company limited by shares and is incorporated and domiciled in Engtand. The address of its registered office is
Caroline House, 55-57 High Holborn, London, WC 1TV 60X, The principal activity of the Company is to act as the ultimate holding company of the
Elermentis Group of companies.

2. Basis of preparation

The Company's financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, in compliance with applicable United Kingdom
accounting standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 — ‘Reduced disciosure framework — Disclosure exemptions from EU -adopted
IFRS for qualifying entities’ (FRS 101°), and with the Companies Act 2006. The Company has presented its results under FRS 101,

As a qualifying entity whose results are consolidated in the Elementis plc Consolidated financial staterments on pages 107 to 161, the Company
has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 101 from preparing a staterent of cashflows and associated notes, the effects of new but
not yet effective IFRSs, disclosures in respect of transactions and the capital management of whoily owned subsidiaries and key managernent
personnel compensation disclosures.

As the consolidated financial statements include eguivalent disclosures, the Company has also taken the disclosure exemnptions under FRS
1G1 inrespect of group settled share-based payments under IFRS 2 Share based payment, IFRS 16 leases, disclosures required by IFRS 7
Financial Instruments Disclosures and by FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement.

By virtue of section 408 of the Companies Act 2008 the company is exempt frorn presenting an incorme statement and disclosing employee
numbers and staff costs.

As a ¢consequence of the majority of the Company's assets, iabilities and expenses originating in UK pound steriing, the Company has chosen
the UK pound sterling as its reporting currency.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation ¢f these fmancial statements are set out beiow These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The Company has adopted FRS 101 in these financial statements.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the contracted rate or the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and the
gains and logses on translation are included in the profit and loss accourt,

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the balance sheet at cost iess accumulated impairment losses,

Potential indicators of impairment including the market capitalisation of the group dropping below the net assets of Elementis plc have
been considered. The recoverable amounts of cash generating units as determined for the impairment testing of goodwill also support the
recoverable amounts of the parent company’s investrents.

Dividends on shares presentad within shareholders’ funds

Dividends urpaid at the balance sheet date are only recognised as a liability at that date to the extent that they are appropriately authorised and
are no fonger at the discretion of the Company.

Pensions and other post-retirement benefits

The Company participates in the elementis Group defined benefit pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are beld separately frorm those
of the Company. Details of the latest actuarial valuation carried out in September 2017 can be found in the 2018 Elementis plc Annual report
and accounts. Following the introduction of the revised reporting standard, any surplus or deficit in the Elementis Group defined benefit pension
scheme is to be reported in the financial statements of Elementis UK Lid, which employs the majority of active members of the scheme and is
responsible for making deficit contributions under the current funding plan.

Taxation

Deferred taxis provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and hiabilities for financial reporting purpeses and
the amounts used for taxation purposes. Advance corpeoration tax recoverable by deduction from future comoration tax is carried forward
within deferred taxation or as ACT recoverable within debtors as appropriate.

There were no significant judgements or estimates necessary in 2019.
Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases. There has
been no impact from this standard on the Company's financial statements.
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Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in equity. Where the Company
grants options over its own shares to the employees of its subsidiaries it recognises in its individual financial staternents an increase in the
cost of investment in its subsidiaries equivaient ta the equity settled share based payment charge recognised in its subsidiaries’ financial
statements, with the corresponding credit being recognised directly in equity. The fair value is measured at grant gate and spread over the
period during which the employees hecome unconditionally entitted to the options. The fair value of the options granted is measured using a
binomial modei, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that vest except where forfeiture is only due to share prices not achieving the threshold
for vesting.

Classification of financial instrumens issued by the Company

Financial instruments issued by the Company are treated as equity only to the extent that they meet the following two conditions:

a. Theyinciude no contractual obligations upon the Company to deliver cash or other financial assets or to exchange financial assets or
financial iabfities with another party under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Company.

b. Where the instrument will or may be settled in the Company's own equity instruments, it is either a non-derivative that includes no obligation
to deliver a variable number of the Company’s own equity instruments or is a derivative that will be settled by the Company’s exchanging a
fixed arnount of cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

To the extent that the definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where the instrument so classified

takes the legal form of the Company's own shares, the amounts presented in these financial statements for called up share capital and share

premium account exclude amounts in relation to those shares.

Finance payments associated with financia liabilities are dealt with as part of interest payable and similar charges. Finance payments

associated with financial instruments that are classified as part of shareholders' funds, are dealt with as appropriations in the recorciliation of

movements in shareholders’ funds.

4. Profit for the financial year attributable to shareholders

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own profit and ioss account. Aless of £3.1m
{2018; £1.3m loss) is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

5. Directors’ remuneration

Details of Directors’ remuneration for the Company are included in the Directors’ remuneration report within the Elementss pic Anniual Report
and Accounts on pages 79 to 95.

6. Investments

Unlisted Unlisted Capital
shargs at cost loans  contributions Total
£m £m £m €m
Costat 1 January 2019 01 759.0 127 771.8
Additions - - 21 21
Net book value 31 December 2019 Q.1 758.0 14.8 773.9
Net book value 31 December 2018 0.1 759.0 127 7718

The investment in untisted loans is with Elementis Holdings Ltd, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary. The investments in unfisted shares are
in Elementis Group BY and Elementis Overseas Investments Ltd, both wholly owned subsidiaries. Capitat contributions relate to share based
payment awards made to employees of subsidiary companies.
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Financial statements

Notes to the company financial statements of Elementis plc continued
for the year ended 31 December 2019

6. Investments continued

The trading subsidiaries and associates of Elementis pic, all of which are wholly owned, excluding Alembic Manufacturing Limited, where the
Group holds a 25% interest, are as foliows:

Subsidiary undertakings Country of incorporation and operation
Adentatec GmbH Competence in Dental Personal Care products Germany*

Alermbic Manufacturing Ltd Personal Care products United Kingdom?

Deuchem Co., Ltd Additives and resins Taiwan?

Deuchem {HK) Trading Co t.td

Deuchem {Shanghai} Chemical Co. Ltd
Eisenbacher Dentalwaren EC GmbH
Elementis Chromium Inc

Efementis Chromium LLP

Elementis Deuchem (Shanghai)
Chemical Lid

Etementis LTP Inc

Elernentis Minerals BV

Additives and resins

Additives and resing
Personal Care progucts
Chromium chemicals
Chromium chemicals

Additives and resins
Chromium chemicels
Tale products

People's Republic of China - Hong Kong

Special Administrative Region*
People's Republic of China®
Germany®

United States of America’
United Kingdom?®

People's Republic of China®
United States of America’
Nethertands®

Elementis Specialties {Anji) Ltd Organcclays Peaple's Republic of China'®

Eternentis Specialties (Changxing) Ltd Organcclays People’s Republic of China"

Elementis Specialties do

Brasd Quimica Ltda Coatings additives Brazil'?

Elementis Specialties Inc Rheociogical additives, colourants, waxes, United States of America”
other specialty additives

Elementis SRL Inc Personal Care products United States of America’

Elernentis UK Limited trading as: Rheslogical additives. colourants.,

Elermentis Specialties waxes, gther specialty additives United Kingdom®

Elementis Pharma GmbH Personal Care products Gerrmany*?

Mondo Minerals Deutschland GmbH Tale products Germany™

Elementis Minerals Nickel Oy Talc products Finland's

Mondo Trading (Beijing} Company Ltd Talc products People's Republic of China®

1 Registered office Konrad-Adenauer-Strale 13, 50996 Koln, Germany,

2  Registered office Unit & Wimboume Buildings, Attantic Way. Barry Docks, Barry, South Glamworgan CFE3 3RA LUK,

3 Registered office 92, Kuang-Fu North Road. Hsinchu Industnal Park. Hukou, Hsinchu Tawan, ROC.

4  Registered office Flat P, 14/F, Haribest Ingustrial Building, 45-47 Au Pui Wan Street, Fotan, Shatin NT Hong Kong.

5 Registered office 99 Lianyang Road. Songjiang Industnial Zone, Shanghai, China.

6 Registered office Or-Konrad-Wiegand-Str. 9, 63939 Worth aMain, Germany.

7 Registereg office 1208 Orange Street, Wimington, Delaware, 18801, US.

8  Registered office Carohne House, 55-57 High Holborn, London WC 1V 60X, UK.

9  Registered office Kajuitweg 8. 1041 AR, Amsterdam, Nathedands.

10 Registered office Huibutay, Majiadu Village. Dipu Town, Anji County, Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, China,
11 Registered office Sian Town, Changxing County, Zhejiang Province, China,

12 Registered office Rodovia Nelson Leopoidino, SP 375, Km 13,8, s/n, Bairro Rural, Palmitat, S3c Paulo. Brazil
13 Registered office Gulinistr.2, 67065 Ludwigshafen, Germany.

14 Registered office Friedrichsaliee 14, 42117, Wuppertal. Germany,

15 Registered office Talkkitie 7, 83500, Outckumpu, Finland.

16 Registered office Nan Zhugan Hutong no.6, floor 9, 01-007, Dongeheng District, 100010, Bejjing, China.
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Non-trading and dormant subsidiaries of Elementis pic, all of which are wholly owned within the Group, are as follows:

Subsidiary undertakings Country of incorporation and operation
Agrichrome Ltd Non-trading United Kingdom®

American Chrome & Chemicals inc Dormmant United States of America?
Deuchem Helding Inc Domnant Samoa?

Deuchem intemational Inc Dormant Samoa*

Elementis America Shared Services Inc Dormant United States of America?
Elementis Austratia Ltd Daormant United Kinggom?®

Elemenitis Benelux NV MNon-trading {in liquidation) Belgium?

. Elementis Catalysts Inc Domrmant United States of America?
Elementis Chemicals Inc Dormant United States of America?
Elementis Chromium America Inc Domant United States of America?
Elementis Export Sales inc Non-trading United States of America?
Elementis Finance {Australia) Lt Dormeant United Kingdom®
Elementis Finance {Europe} Ltd Non-trading United Kingdom®
Elementis Finance {Germany) Ltd Non-trading United Kingdom®
Elementis Finance (Ireland} Ltd Non-trading reland®
Elementis Finance (Jersey) Ltd Non-trading Jersey®
Elementis Finance {US} Ltd Non-trading United Kingdom*
Elementis Germany GmbH Non-trading Germany?

Elementis Germany Ltd Dormmant United Kingdom?
Elermentis Global LLC Non-trading Urited States of America?
Elermentis GmbH Non-trading Germany”

Elementis Group (Finance) Lid Non-trading United Kingdom'
Elementis Group BV Non-trading Netherlands?®

Elementis Group Ltd Dormant United Kingdom®
Elementis Holdings Ltd Non-trading United Kingdom®
Elementis London Ltd Dormant United Kingdom?
Elementis Minerals Holding BV Non-trading Netherlands®

Elementis Nederland BV Non-trading Netherlands®

Elementis New Zealand | .td Dormant United Kingdom®
Elermnentis NZ Ltd Non-trading New Zealand'®

Elementis Overseas Investments Ltd Norn-trading United Kingdom®
Elernentis Pigments Inc Dormant United States of America?
Elementis S.E.A. (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Non-trading Malaysia'?

Elementis Securities Ltd Non-trading United Kingdom®
Elementis Services GmbH Non-trading Germany’

Eiementis Specialties (India) Private L td Non-trading India?

Elementis US Holdings Inc Non-trading United States of America?
Elementis US Ltd Non-trading United Kingdom’

H & C Acquisitions Ltd Dormant United Kingdom®

H & C Lumber Ine Dormant United States of America?
Harcros Chemicals Canada inc Dormant Canada’

Iron Oxides S.A. de CV Dormant Mexico*

Mondo Minerals international BV Dormant Netherlands®
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Financial statements

Notes to the company financial statements of Elementis plc continued
for the year ended 31 December 2019

8. Investments continued

Subsidiary underiakings

Country of incorporation and operation

NB Chrome Lid Dormant United Kingdom®

Reheis, Inc. Non-trading United States of America?
SRL Codperatief U.A, Non-trading Netherlands?

SRLH Holdings Inc Non-trading United States of America®
SRL International Holdings, LLC Non-trading United States of America?
Talc Holding Finance Oy Non-trading Firdand™

Talc Holding Oy Non-trading Finland?*®

WBS Carbons Acquisitions Corp Non-trading United States of America?
1 Registered office: Carofine House, 55-57 High Holpom, Londor WC1V 60X, UK,

2  Registered office 1209 Qrange Street, Wilmington, Delaware, 19801, US.

3 Registered office: Maystar Chambers, PO. Box 3269, Apia, Samoa.

4 Registered office. Regus Brussels Airport, Pegasustaan 5,1831 Diegem, Belgum.

S Registered office: 8th Floor, 8lock E, tveagh Court. Hercourt Road, Dublin 2, reland.

& Registered office: 3rd Floor, 44 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE4 9WG.

7  Registered office: Stolberger Str370, 50933, Kéln, Germany.

8 Registered office: Stawinskylaan 411, 1077XX Amsterdam. Netherlands.

9  Registered office: Kajuitweg 8, 1041 AR, Amsterdam, Netherlands.

10 Registered office: KPMG, P O Box 1584, 18 Viaduet Harbour Avenue, Maritime Square, Auckland, New Zeatand.

1t Registered office: 10th Eloor, Menara Hap Seng. No. 1 & 3 Jalan P Ramlee, 50250 Kuala Lumpur. Malaysia.

12 Registered office” Unit-B, Ground Floor, Jaswanti Landmark, Metra Industriat Estate, L.BS. Marg, Vikhrolh (W), Mumbai 400079, India.
13 Registared office: Clo Stewart McKelvey Stiling Scales,44 Chipman Hill, Suite 1000 ON E2t 456, Canada.

14 Registered office: Calie San Ignacio N 105, 22706 Tijuana.Baja California Mexico.

15 Registered office: Kajaanintie 54, 88620, Korholanmaki, Finland.

Notes:
» Other than Elementis Expart Sales Inc, Elementis Group BV and Etementis Overseas Investments Ltd, none of the undertakings is heid directly by the Company

» Allundertakings listed above have accounting periods ending 31 December, with the exceplions of (i) Elementis Specialties {Incha) Private Lid for which the

Equity capital is in ordinary ghares and voting rights equate to equity ownership.

reievant date is 31 March: and (i) Elementis Finance (Germany) Limited for which the relevant date is 30 September.

» Undertakings operating in the United Kingdom are incorporated n England and Wales. In the case of Corporate undertakings othber than in the United Kingdorn

their country of operation is also their country of incorgoration,

» Allundertakings ksted aDove have been included in the Consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year.

7. Debtors

zozm 20;3

Group rehef receivable 12.7 127
8. Creditors: amount falling due within one year

2019 208

£m Ern

Accruals and deferred income 0.6 0.6
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9. Share capital and reserves

2019 2018

Number 2019 Number 2018
‘000 £m ‘000 Em
Called-up allotted and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of 5 pence each
At 1 January 580,394 28.9 463,938 231
Issue of shares 124 - 116,456 58
At 31 December ) 580,518 28.9 580,394 289

During the year a total of 124,110 ordinary shares with an aggregate nominal vaiue of £6.206 were allotted and issued for cash to various
employees at subscription prices between 52 pence and 170 pence on the exercise of options under the Group's share option schemes.
The total subscription monies received by the Company for these shares was £0.7m.

In October 2018 the Group undertook a rights issue on the basis of 1 share for every four fully paid ordinary shares held. The issue was resulted
in the issue of 116,058,808 ordinary shares at £1.52 per share.

397.326 ordinary shares with an aggregate nominal value of £19,866 were allotted and issued for cash to various employees at subscription
prices between 170 pence and 226 pence on the exercise of options under the Group's share option schemes.

The total subscription monies received by the Company for these shares was £172.5m as a result of the rights issue and employee allotments.
The hoiders of ordinary shares are entitied tc receive dividends and entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company,

The Company can redeem shares by repaying the market value to the shareholder, whereupon the shares are cancelied. Redemption must be
from distributable profits. The Capitai redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the shares redeemed.

The share oplions reserve comprises amounts accumulated in equity in respect of share options and awards granted to empioyees.
Details of the shared based payments in the year are set out in Note 26 to the Elementis plc consolidated financial statements.

10. Related party transactions

The Company is a guarantor to the Elementis Group defined benefit pension scheme under which it guarantees ail current and future
obiligations of UK subsidiaries currently participating in the pension scheme to make payments to the scheme, up to a specified maximum
amount. The maximium amount of the guarantee is that which is needed (at the time the guarantee is calied on) to bring the scheme's funding
level up to 105% of its liabilities, calculated in accordance with section 179 of the Pensions Act 2004. This is also sometimes known as a
Pension Protection Fund {PPF) guarantee, as having such a guarantee in place reduces the annual PPF tevy an the scheme.

11. UKregistered subsidiaries exempt from audit

The following UK subsidiaries will take advantage of the audit exemption set aut within section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 for the year
ended 31 December 2019. Unless otherwise stated, the undertakings listed beiow are all 100% owned, either directly or indirectly, by Elementis
pic. The Company will guarantee the debts and liabilities of the UK subsidiaries listed below at the balance sheet date in accordance with
section 479C of the Companies Act 2006. The Company has assessed the probability of loss under the guarantee as remote.

Proportion of Proportion of

shares held by the shargsheld by

Company svbsidiary
Name (%) %) Company Number
Agrichrome Limited 100 - 2228826
Elementis Finance {Germany} Limited 100 - 5531634
Etementis Finance (US} Limited 100 - 9303101
Elementis Germany Limited 100 - 48664
Elermentis Group (Finance) Limited 100 - 9303017
Elementis Group Limited 100 - 4048541
Eiermentis Overseas Investments Limited 100 - 8008881
Elementis Securities Limiteg 100 - 597303
Elementis US Limited 100 - 8005226
Elementis Finance (Europe} Limited 100 - 11717371
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Financial statements

Notes to the company financial staterments of Elementis plc continued
for the year ended 31 December 2019

12, Balance sheet restatement

In accordance with IAS 1 we have shown telow a balance sheet as at the beginning of the comparative period to show the reclassification of
amaunts relating 1o share based payments to the share based payments reserve. These were incorectly included in the profit and loss account
in the prior year. The amounits in the share-based payments reserve are non-distributable.

Restated
2017 2017
31 December 31 December
£m Restatement £m
Fixed assets
Investments 7697 - 7697
Non-current assets -
Debters 127 - 127
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Credrors {0.6) - {0.6)
Net current assets 121 - 121
Total assets less current liabilities 7818 . - 7818
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings {333.7) - {333.7)
Net assets 4481 - 4481
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 231 - 23
Share premium account 128 - 128
Capital redemption reserve 83.3 - 833
Other reserves 2505 - 2505
Share option reserve 29 10.6 13.5
Profiy and loss account 75.5 (10.6} 6549
Equity shareholders' funds 4481 - 4481
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Sharehoider information

.Alternative performance measures and unaudited pro

forma information

Alternative performance measures

A reconciliation from reported profit for the year to eamings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA} is provided to support
ungerstanding of the summarised cash flow included within the Finance Report on pages 38 to 43.

2019 2008 2018 2018

Profit snd Prafit and Profitang Profitand

losson 104% on Ioss on toss on

total continuing discontinued 1otal

operations operations operations operations

$m $m sm $m

Profit for the year 46.4 49.8 8.4 41.4
Adjustments for

Finance income 0.4) 0.3} - 0.3

Finance costs and other expenses after adjusting items 31.3 19.8 - 198

Tax charge . 14.6 156 {2.0) 3.6

Depreciation and amortisation 70.1 456 0.3 458

Excluding intangibles arising on acquisition (18.6) (15.0) - (15.0)

Adjusting items impacting profit before tax 311 477 98 575

EBITDA 174.5 163.2 {03} 162.9

There are also & number of key performance indicators (KPIs} on pages 22 and 23, the reconcifiations to these are given below:

Operating cash flow

Operating cash fiow is defined as the net cash flow from operating activities less net capital expenditure but excluding income taxes paid or
received, interest paid or received, pension contributions net of current service cost and adjusting items.

2019 2018
$m $m
Net cash flow from operating activities 143.4 84.3
Less: Capital expenditure (47.3) {50.8)
Agd:
Incomne tax paid or received 2.2 69
Interest paid or received 25.0 14.3
Pension contributions net of current service cost 1.2 1.2
Adjusting items 30.3 1.8
154.8 777,

Operating cash flow

Operating cash conversion

Qperating cash conversion is defined as operating cash fiow {as defined above} excluding payments for provisions and share based pay, divided

by cperating profit from total operations after adjusting items.

2019 2018

$m $m

Qperating profit from total operations after adjusting items 123.0 132.0

Operating cash flow 154.8 777
Add:

Provision and share based pay 5.4 45

160.2 B2.2

130% 62%

Operating cash flow conversion
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Shareholder Information

Alternative performance measures and unaudited pro forma information continued

Contribution margin
The Group's contribution margin, which is defined as sales less all variable costs, divided by sales and expressed as a percentage.

2018

2018

$m $m

Revenue 873.6 8270
Variable costs {473.1) (8442
Non variable costs (78.1) (76.7)
Cost of sales (652.2) (520.9)

Adjusted Group profit before tax

Adjusted Group profit before tax is defined as the Group profit before tax from total operations (both continuing and discontinued) after

adjusting items, excluding adjusting items relating to tax.

Return on operating capital employed

The return on operating capital employed (ROCE) is defined as operating profit from total operations after adjusting items divided by operating
capital employed, expressed as a percentage. Operating capital employed comprises fixed assets (excluding goodwill), working capital and
operating provisions, Operating provisions include self insurance and emvironmental provisions but exciude retirement benefit obligations.

2018 2018
$m $m

Operating profit from total operations after adjusting items 123.0 132.0
Fixed assets excluding geodwil 746.0 7375
Working capital 1529 1819
Operating provisions {51.6) (48.8)
Operating capital employed 846.5 8706
Return on capital employed % 15% 15%

Average trade working capital to sales ratio

The trade working capital to sales ratio s defined as the 12 manth average trade working capital divided by sales, expressed as a percentage.
Trade working capital comprises inventories, trade receivables (net of provisions) and trade payables. It specifically excludes repayments, capital
or interest related receivables or payables, changes due to currency movements and items classified as other receivables and other payables.

Adjusted operating profit/operating margin

Adjusted operating profit is the profit derived from the normal operations of the business. Adjusted operating margin is the ratic of operating

profit, after adjusting items. to sales.

Unaudited information

Tobetter understand the full year performance of the business segments operated by the Group for the 12 months to 31 December 2018 for

corparative purposes, the information below includes the results for the Taic segment for the ten moanths prior to acquisition.

2018

2019 2018 2018 Proforma

conlinuing Conliruing Tale t Janto contmung

operations operations 220ct operations

Group performance L] m? sm? $m
Revenye 8736 822.2 136.9 9598
Adjusted operating profit 123.0 1326 207 153.3
Adjusted operating margin 14.1% 16.1% 15.1% 16.0%
Adjusted EBITDA 1745 163.2 36.6 199.8
IFRS 16 adiustment {7.9) - - -
Adjusted EBITDA pre IFRS 16 166.6 163.2 36.6 1998
Net Debt? 4542 4381 - 498.1
Net Debt/EBITDA* . 273 249
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2018

2018 2018 Pra forma

Continuing  Talc 1 Janto continuing

cperations 220¢t operationg
External r by bush $m' $m? $m %
Personal Care 2103 - 2103 219
Coatings 362.2 - 362.2 378
Talc 215 136.9 158.4 16.5
Chromium 173.3 - 173.3 1841
Energy 54.9 - 54.9 5.7
822.2 136.9 958.1 100.0

208

2018 2018 Praforma

Continuing  Talc 1 Janto continuing

operations 220ct operations
External ravenus by geography $m' $m? £m %
North America 2903 6.0 2963 308
Europe 233.2 1161 349.3 364
Rest of World 298.7 4.8 3135 327
822.2 136.9 989.1 100.0

12monthsto 12 mMonthsto

31 Dec 31 Dec

2019 2018

Mondo perfermance £m €m*
Revenue 1356.6 134.3
Adjusted operating profit 23.0 208

* Net DebtVEBITDA where £BITDA is the Adjusted EBITDA on continuing operations of the Group on a pre IFRS16 basis and including fuill prior months of Mondo is
the definition of Net Debit/ ERITDA for Elementis’ core banking covenants.

1 Source - Elementis annual accounts.

2 Source —Mondo management accounts for the relevant pernicd,

3 Seenole 28.
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Shareholder Information

Five year record
2016 2015
2019 2018 2017 restated? restated?
$m $m $m $m m
Turnover
Continuing operations 883.4 833.2 7977 629.2 623.4
Discontinued operations - 4.8 47.8 431 53.8
Group turnover 883.4 B38.0 8455 672.3 6772
Operating profit after adjusting items
Continuing operations 123.0 1326 122.7 97.3 119.8
Discontinued operations - {0.6) 5.4 0.3) 45
123.0 132.0 1281 97.0 124.3
Adjusting items before interest (31.1} {57.5) {30.9} {12.5) 28
Profit before imerest 01.9 745 97.2 84.5 1271
Other expenses (1.5) (1.8} (1.2 {3.4) (PAT)
Net interest payable (29.4) (17.9) (11.7} (7.6} 4.2}
Profit before tax 61.0 55.0 84.3 75.5 1208
Tax {14.8) {13.6) 333 {7.4) 126.2)
Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent 46.4 41.4 117.6 68.1 94.6
2018 2018
2079 2018 2017 restated? restated?
m $m $m $m gm
Basic
Earnings per ordinary share (cents) 8.0 79 233 147 205
- Earnings per ordinary share after adjusting items (cents) 12.6 17.0 1841 17.6 214
Diuted
Carnings per ordinary share {cents) 7.9 79 23.0 13.5 187
Eamings per ordinary share after adjusting items (cents) 12.4 16.8 179 16.1 19.0
Dividend per ordinary share {cents) 8.55 8.65 8.80 16.80 16.45
bividend per ordinary share rebased® (cents) 8.55 8.40 BOS 15.38 15.06
interest cover (times)’ 5.3 8.0 135 138.6 124.3
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 906.2 9156 702.3 627 6538
Net (debt)/cash {454.2} (498.1) 2911 75 740
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year (million} 588.5 526.3 513.0 510.0 509.4

1 Ralio of operating profit after adjusting items to interest on net bormowings.

2 Restated following the adiuistment for amortisation of intangibles 2016 and 2015 restated but not prior years. This is not expected [0 be material
3 Following the rights issue in October 2018, dividend per share for periods prior to this have been rebased to reflect the bonus element resulting from this

nghts issue.
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Shareholder Information

Shareholder services

Shareholder profile (by category) as at 31 December 2019

Percentage of

Number of Parcentage of Ordinary shares issued share
Category shareholders total {mithon) capital
Private individuals 7,999 91.81% 14,396,054 2.48%
Nominee companies A07 4.67% 445559730 76.75%
Limited and public limited companies 263 302% 109401576 18.85%
Other corporate bodies 42 0.48% 11.134,457 1.92%
Pension funds., insurance companies and banks 2 0.02% 26,510 0.00%
Shareholder profile (by size} as at 31 December 2019
Percentage of
Nurnber of Percemage of Ordinary shares issuedshare
Range of holdings sharehplders total {rnillign} capital
1-499 4,390 50.38% 775.265 0.13%
£00-999 121 12.87% 799,398 0.14%
1.000-4,999 2,189 25192% 4,734,849 0.82%
5.000-9,999 454 5.21% 3,060,252 0.53%
10,000-45.999 283 3.25% 5,682,390 0.96%
50,000-99,999 65 0.75% 4667784 0.80%
100,000-499,999 106 1.22% 23789716 4.109%
500.600-999,989 27 0.31% 18,791,358 3.24%
1,000,000 plus 78 0.90% 518,317,315 £§9.29%
Registrars Electronic communications

Enquiries concerning shares or shareholdings, such as the loss of a
share certificate, consolidation of share certificates, amalgamation
of holdings or dividend payments, should be addressed to the
Company's registrars:

Equiniti Group plc
Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex BN99 6DA
Tel: 0371 284 2379 0r +44{0)121 415 7043

For shareholders with hearing difficutties:
Tel: 0371 384 2255 or +44 (01121 4157028

Lines are open between 8.30am and 5.30pm Monday to Friday
{excluding public holidays in England and Wales).

In any correspondence with the registrars, please refer to Elementis
ple and state clearly the registered name and address of the
sharehotder, Please notify the registrars promptly of any change

of address.

Share dealing services

Equiniti provides a share dealing service that enables shares to be
bought or sold by UK shareholders by telephone or over the internet.
For telephone share dealing, please catl 0345 603 7037 between
8.302m and 4.30pm fines are open untl 6.00pm for enquiries) and for
internet share dealing, please visit:

www.shareviewco.uk/dealing

Dividends

Sharehglders who wish dividends to be paid directly into their bank
or building society account should contact Equiniti for a dividend
mandate form. This method of payvment removes the risk of delay or
loss of dividend cheques in the post.

Shareholders can elect to receive shareholder

documents electronically by registering with Shareview at
www.shareview.co.uk. This will save on printing and distribution
costs, creating environmental benefits. When you register, you will
be sent an email natification to say when shareholder documents
are available on our website and you will be provided with a link to
that information. When registering, you will need your shareholder
reference number which can be found on your share centificate or
proxy form. Please contact Equiniti if you require any assistance or
further information.

Share fraud

Share or investment scams are often run from ‘boiter rooms’ where
fraudsters cold call investors offering thern worthless, overpriced or
even non-existent shares, or offer to buy their shares in a company
at a higher price than the market value. Sharehoiders are advised

to be very wary of any unsolicited advice, offers to buy shares ata
discount, or offers of free reports about the company. Even seasoned
investors have been caught out by such fraudsters, The FCAhas
some helpful information.

Reportascam

I you are contacted by a cold caller, you should inform the Company
Secretary by email and aiso the FCA by using their share fraud
reporting form at wwwica.org.uk/scams or calling their Consumer
Helpline on 0B00 111 6768.

If you have already paid money to a share fraudster, please contact
Action Fraud 6n 0300 123 2040 or www.actionfraud.police.uk.
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Shareholder Information

Corporate information

Financial calendar

04 March 2020 Preliminary announcement of final results for the year enged

31 December 2019
29 April 2020 Annual General Meeting
29 Aprit 2020 Trading update .
30 April 2020 Ex-dividend for final dividend for 2019 payabie on ordinary shares
01 May 2020 Record date for final dividend for 2079 payable on ordinary shares
29 May 2020 Payment of final dividend for 2019 on ordinary shares
28 July 2020 interim resuits announcement for the half year ending 30 June 2020
03 September 2020 Ex-dividend date for interim dividend for 2020 payable on ordinary shares
04 September 2020 Record date for interim dividend for 2020 payable on ordinary shares
25 September 2020 Payment of interim dividend for 2020 on ordinary shares

Annual general meeting

The Annual General Meeting of Elementis pic wilt be held on 29 April 2020 at 8.00am at the offices of Herbert Smith Freehills LLP, Exchange

House. Primrose Street, London, £C2A 2EG.

The notice of meeting is included in a separate document.

Company secratary
Laura Higgins

Registered number
3299608

Registered office
Cargline House
55-57 High Holborn
L.ondon

WC1VeDX

UK

Principal offices
Elementis plc
Caroline House
55-57 High Holborn
London

WCIVBDX

UK

Tel: +44 [0)20 7067 2899

Elementis Global
469 OI1d Trenton Road
East Windsor

NJ 08512

us

Tel: +1 609 443 2000
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Independent auditors
Deloitte LLP
1 Little New Street. London EC4A 3TR

Joint corporate broker
JP Morgan Cazenove
€0 Victoria Embankment, London EC4Y OJP

Joint corporate broker
Nurmis
Cheapside House, 138 Cheapside, London EC2V 6LH

Public relations
Tulchan Communications
2nd Floor, 85 Fleet Street, London EC4Y 1AE

Solicitors
Herbert Smith Freehilis LLP
Exchange House, Primrose Street, London EC2A 2EG

Email
cormpanysecretariat@elementis.com

Website
wwwelementis.com



Shareholder information

Glossary

ACC American Chemistry Council Group Elementis pic and its subsidiaries
ACT Advance corporation tax HMRC HM Revenue & Customs
AGM Annuai General Meeting HSE Health, safety and environment
ART Annual Report team 1A Investment Association
Articles Articles of Association 1AS Internationat Accounting Standards
AWC Average trade working capitat IASB International Accounting Standards Board
Board Board of Directors of Elementis plc IFC Inside front cover
Brexit The withdrawal of the UK from the EU {FRIC internaticnal Financial Reporting
CAPAs Corrective and preventative actions Interpretations Committee
CapEx Capital expenditure IFRS international Financial Reporting Standards
cDP Carbon disclosure project 1SS Institutional Shareholder Services
CEO Chief Executive Officer KP1 Key performance indicator
CFO Chief Financial Officer KWh Kilowatt per hour
CGU Cash generating unit LDt Liability driven instrument
CHRO Chief Human Resources Officer LPG Liquefied Petroleum Gas
cO: Carbon dioxide LTA Lost time accident
[ Carbon dioxide equivalent LTe Long term incentive plan
Code UK C()rporate Governance Code MBTU Thousand British Thermal Units
Company Elementis pic Mondo Mondo Minerals Holding BV,
COSMOS Cosmetic Orgaric and Natural Standard and its subsidiaries
CSR Corporate Social Responsibility NED Non-Executive Director
DB Scheme Defined benefit scheme NIC National Insurance Contributions
DEFRA Department for Environment and OSHA Cccupational Safety and
Rura! Affairs Health Administration
DNED Designated Non-Executive Director pBY Profit bgfore tax i ‘
EBITDA Earnings before interest, tax. depreciation PRMB Post retirement medicat benefit
and amortisation R&D Research & Development
ECL Expected credit losses REACH Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and
ECT Elementis Compliance leam restriction of Chemicals
ELY Executive Leadership team RCF Revalving credit facility
EPS Earnings per share RfR Relief from royaity
ESC Elementis Sustainability Council Rights Issue A oneto four Rights Issue that was
ESG Environmental, Social and Governance undertaken by the Company in
- - October 2018
ESOS Executive share option scheme -
ESOY Employee share ownership trust ROCE Return on capital employed
poyes s i RSPO Roundtable for sustainable palm ol
EU Europear Union - —
—— - - - - RTO Regenerative thermal oxidiser
FRC Financial Reporting Council
- - - SAYE Save As You Earn
FRS Financial Reporting Standards - -
- T SiD Senior Independent Director
FTSE Financial Times Stock Exchange . - ———
- — SummitReheis SRLH Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries
GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles - -
- SvP Senior Vice President
GDP (Gross domestic product -
GOPR General Data Protection Reoulat TCFD The Task Force on Climate-related
e 2l Data Frotection Reguwation Financial Disclosures
G Gree.nhouse 99588 TRIR Total recordabie incident rate
cJ Gigajoute TSR Total shareholder return
UK United Kingdom
Designed by Luminous UN United Nations
+44 (0)29 71011677 UNGC COP United Nations Globat Compact
WWWILININOUS.CO.uk Communication On Progress
The paper used in this report is elemental chlorine us Lnited States of America
free and is FSC* certified. It is printed tc iSO 14001 vocC Volatile arganic compound

envirpnmental procedures, using vegetable based inks.

The Forest Stewardship Council® (FSC*)

is an international network which promotes
responsible management of the world's forests.
Forest certification is combined with a system
of product labelling that allows consumers

to readity identify timber based products

from certified scurces.




